
  

 

Meeting of the  

 

TOWER HAMLETS 
COUNCIL 

__________________________________ 
 

Wednesday, 16th May 2012  
at 7.45 p.m. 

or at the rising of the Annual Council Meeting, if later. 
_______________________________________ 

 
A G E N D A 

______________________________________ 
 

VENUE 
Council Chamber, 1st Floor, 
Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 

5 Clove Crescent, 
London E14 2BG 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: 
 
John S Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services 
Tel: 020 7364 4204, E-mail:johns.williams@towerhamlets.gov.uk 

 



 
Chief Executive’s 
Directorate 
 
Democratic Services 
Tower Hamlets Town Hall 
Mulberry Place 
5 Clove Crescent 
London E14 2BG 

 

Tel 020 7364 4204 
Fax 020 7364 3232 
 
www.towerhamlets.gov.uk 

 
TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS OF THE LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER 
HAMLETS 
 
You are summoned to attend an Ordinary Meeting of the Council of the London 
Borough of Tower Hamlets to be held in THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, 1ST FLOOR, 
TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG on 
WEDNESDAY, 16TH MAY 2012 at 7.45 p.m. or at the rising of the Annual Council 
Meeting, if later. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Aman Dalvi 
Interim Chief Executive 
 

 



 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING  
 

WEDNESDAY, 16TH MAY 2012 

 
7.45 p.m. or at the rising of the Annual Council Meeting, if later 

 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

1 - 2 

 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those 
restricting Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 
of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the 
Chief Executive. 
 

 

3. MINUTES  
 

3 - 76 

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the unrestricted 
minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of the Council held on 25th January 
2012 and the Budget Meeting of the Council held on 22nd February 
2012. 
 

 

4. TO RECEIVE ANNOUNCEMENTS (IF ANY) FROM THE 
SPEAKER OF THE COUNCIL OR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

 

 

5. TO RECEIVE PETITIONS  
 

77 - 78 

 The Council Procedure Rules provide for a maximum of three petitions 
to be presented at an Ordinary Meeting of the Council.  The deadline for 
submission of petitions to this meeting is noon on Thursday 10th May 
2012.  However, as at 8th May the maximum number of three petitions 
had already been received.    
 
The petitions received for presentation at this meeting are set out in the 
attached report. 
 

 

6. TO RECEIVE WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF 
THE PUBLIC  

 

79 - 80 

 The questions which have been received from members of the public for 
this Council meeting are set out in the attached report. 
 
A maximum period of 20 minutes is allocated to this agenda item. 
 

 



 
 

7. MAYOR'S REPORT  
 

 

 The Council’s Constitution provides for the Elected Mayor to give a 
report at each Ordinary Council Meeting 
 
A maximum of five minutes is allowed for the Elected Mayor’s report, 
following which the Speaker of Council will give the respective political 
group leaders an opportunity to respond for up to one minute each if 
they wish. 
 

 

8. TO RECEIVE WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF 
THE COUNCIL  

 

81 - 86 

 The questions which have been received from Councillors to be put at 
this meeting are set out in the attached report. 
 
A maximum period of 30 minutes is allocated to this agenda item. 
 

 

9. REPORTS FROM THE EXECUTIVE AND THE COUNCIL'S 
COMMITTEES  

 

 

9 .1 Local Development Framework (LDF):  Managing Development - 
Development Plan Document and Fish Island Area Action Plan 
submission to the Secretary of State for Independent Examination   

 

87 - 98 

 To approve the Managing Development DPD (Development Plan 
Document) and the Fish Island Area Action Plan (AAP) for submission to 
the Secretary of State in accordance with regulation 22 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012, the 
Council’s Statement of Community Involvement; and associated matters.  
 
The report of the Corporate Director, Development and Renewal is 
attached.  The Managing Development DPD (Appendix 1) and the Fish 
Island AAP (Appendix 2), and further appendices as listed at section 14 
to the report, are included on a CD-ROM that has been circulated to 
Members with the Council agenda.  
 

 

9 .2 Enterprise Strategy   
 

99 - 204 

 To approve the Council’s Enterprise Strategy following consultation, as 
recommended by the Executive at the Cabinet meeting on 8th February 
2012.  
 
The report of the Mayor in Cabinet and appendices including the 
Enterprise Strategy document are attached. 
 

 

9 .3 Community Safety Plan 2012/13   
 

205 - 270 

 To adopt the Council’s Community Safety Plan 2012-13 as 
recommended by the Executive at the Cabinet Meeting on 4th April 2012. 
 
The report of the Mayor in Cabinet, plus appendices including the 
proposed Community Safety Plan document are attached. 

 



 
 

 
9 .4 Pay Policy   
 

271 - 278 

 To adopt the Council’s draft Pay Policy Statement for publication as 
required by the Localism Act 2011. 
 
The draft Pay Policy Statement as recommended by the Human 
Resources Committee is set out in the attached report.  
 

 

10. TO RECEIVE REPORTS AND QUESTIONS ON JOINT 
ARRANGEMENTS AND EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS (IF 
ANY)  

 

 

11. OTHER BUSINESS  
 

 

11 .1 Scheme of Members' Allowances 2012/13   
 

279 - 288 

 To adopt the Scheme of Members’ Allowances for 2012/13.    The report 
of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) is attached. 

 

 

11 .2 The Amended Standards Regime   
 

289 - 318 

 To adopt a new Code of Conduct for elected and co-opted members; 
and to agree other matters relating to the revised Standards regime 
introduced by the Localism Act 2011. 
 
The report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) is attached.  
The proposals contained in the report have been subject to consultation 
with elected members and with independent members of the Standards 
Committee.  Any comments received, together with the 
recommendations of the Standards Committee meeting on 10th May 
2012, will be reported to the Council. 
 

 

11 .3 Report on Executive Decisions precluded from 'Call-in' on grounds 
of urgency   

 

319 - 320 

 To receive a report for information, in accordance with Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rule 17.1, on any Executive decisions taken since 
the last Council meeting in respect of which the call-in procedure did not 
apply because the decision being taken was urgent.   
 

 

12. TO CONSIDER MOTIONS SUBMITTED BY MEMBERS OF 
THE COUNCIL  

 

321 - 338 

 The motions submitted by Councillors for debate at this meeting are set 
out in the attached report. 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

13. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 

 In view of the content of the remaining items on the agenda, the Council 
is recommended to adopt the following motion: 
 
“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended, the press and public be excluded from the remainder 
of the meeting on the grounds that the business to be transacted 
contains information defined as Exempt in Part I of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972.” 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL SECTION (PINK) 
The Exempt/Confidential (pink) papers for consideration at the meeting 
will contain information which is commercially, legally or personally 
sensitive and should not be divulged to third parties.  If you do not wish 
to retain these papers after the meeting please hand them to the 
Committee Officer present. 
 

 

14. APPOINTMENT TO THE POST OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
(HEAD OF PAID SERVICE)  

 

 

 Report(s) arising from the considerations of the Appointments Sub-
Committee (to follow). 
 

 

 
 



1 

 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\6\8\AI00034868\$r2mwwsdt.doc 
    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 

 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\6\8\AI00034868\$r2mwwsdt.doc 
    

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

�

������������	
���������
�������
�

������������
����������
�


����������������������������������������������
�

�
�����������
����������������������
�����������������������
�������������������������� ���	�

�
�!"#!$%��$!%!&'(�
�
��������������������
���� !""���#$"�"�%&&�'�
���� !""���(�&!��%��$)�
���� !""���(��"$'��))!��%��$)�
���� !""�����!)�%��$)�
���� !""�����*!&�%��$)�
���� !""������!+�$���%��$)�
���� !""�������$)�%"!�
���� !""����!��%� �$��
���� !""���%&)�"�%'�)�
���� !""������!,�%'����
���� !""���������-$,���
���� !""����!.�������)�����
���� !""���%"!&�������)�����
���� !""���/������0!'�
���� !""�����$1���!$�������
���� !""�����0!)��),���
���� !""������ �2��� !'�
���� !""���3�)!���4��)!�$��
���� !""������"��4!&&'�
���� !""���5$�$��4�")'�
���� !""�������!+�"�#�+�$�
���� !""������"!�#��1$�65$�����
���� !""����!��*�"��'"���
���� !""���%���3� 7'���
�

���� !""����$�!'$�3��$'�
���� !""�����8������3��$'�
���� !""�����&!���(����
���� !""���%�9���(����
���� !""���%�!����(����
���� !""������!��(����
���� !""�����!�!��(������
���� !""����)8���!����!���
���� !""���#������!���
���� !""���2�.�"��!���
���� !""���%��$)�%)�����$��
���� !""����$'"$��5�0!���
���� !""���3�'����5$ 7�
���� !""���/$�!����������
���� !""����"!����������
���� !""����� ��$"�����)$�'�
���� !""�����0!)����9)���
���� !""���4"��!����!$�$"�
���� !""���-!""�����$��
���� !""���#$"�"��))!��
���� !""���(�'����))!��
���� !""���%&)�"��""���
���� !""������!���.6/�����
���� !""���%���:�!�$"� 7�
�

�
��$��$$�!�,� ���$� $)����;8<=�18�8�
�

�)!��*!+,!$�-.��-/&012���-/&0122-$��13+&/$��)+/4)/$5��1&�')!��)+1$�
�
�

��� �����	�����������������
�
%1�"�,!$'������&'$� $�9$�$��$ $!0$)����&$��"��������� !""��'���$"!���%7�����
%������� ����)�������$)�%&)�"���7!����-�8�
�
���������
�
�������$��1�"�,!$'������&'$� $�&$����$)8�

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

	�

��� ��������������������������
�

�-/&0122-$�
�

�'!"� �5*!�-.�1&'!$!%'� �!+%-&�

�""��(�&!��%��$)�
�


8<� 5$�'���"� �$'!)$���������$ �$)���$�8�

�""��������-$,��� 	8
� 5$�'���"� �� ��� �� �$�&$�� ��� ����
��)����8�

�""��/������0!'� 	8=� 5$�'���"� �� ��� �� ���'�$$� ��� ��$�
�� 7"��)� �$��"$�$��'��
9�! ��  ���$��"��
�  ����)��$'� �� ��$$�
' ���"8�

�""�����"��4!&&'�
�

>8� 5$�'���"�� �� �$"1� ��� �)�!�!'�$��
' �$�$'� ��� �$)� $�
��)$��,$� )�!�7!�,�
!� "�)!�,����""$�,$�	
���)�
������!��� %" ���"�
5����$�'�!1'� !�� ��� ��"$� ���
��$�:��%8�

�""���$�!'$�3��$'�
�

?8?� 5$�'���"� �� ��� �� ���'�$$� ��� ��$��! ��
�!@���"����"��$���$8�

�""����!�!��(������
�

	8	� 5$�'���"� #�'&��)� !'� �� "� ���
$�1"��$$����5�1"���#�� �8�

�""��3�'����5$ 7� 	8A� 5$�'���"� ��1"��$�� ��'� ��  ����� ��
9!�������48�

�""��3�'����5$ 7� 	8<� 5$�'���"� ��1"��$�� ��'� ��  ����� ��
9!�������48�

�""�� �� ��$"�
����)$�'�

?8?� 5$�'���"� �� ��� �� -���)� �$�&$�� ���
��$� �! �� �!@� ��"����"�
�$���$8�

�""��#$"�"��))!�� 	8	� 5$�'���"� ��� $�1"��$�� !'� "!�7$)� ���
5�1"��� #�� �� 9��� ��$�
�$��!��$)�!����$����!���

�""�� ���!�� �.6
/�����

	8
� 5$�'���"� ��1"��$)�&���#�8�

�
�

��� ���������
�
���� !""���3�'����5$ 7��$�$��$)�����,$�)��!�$��
8	��5�,$��������$��!���$'�
��)�'���$)������!��9�'��$ $''�������)$"$�$���$�'$��$� $B�C��$�)$ !'!������'$""�
��$�'!�$�9�'���7$��&����$�1�$0!��'��)�!�!'����!��D��'�!���!'�0!$9���!'� ���$���
��)�����&$$����)$������$��$$�!�,8�
�
���� !""��� 5$�$�� 4�")'� �$�$��$)� ��� !�$�� 
8� ��� 5�,$� >� ��� ��$��!���$'� ��)�
'���$)� ����� ��$� 1$�!�!��$�'� )!)� ���� �$ $!0$� �� 9�!��$�� �$1"�� 9!��!�� 	?� )��'� �'�
!�)! ��$)8���
�
�

Page 4



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

<�

���������
�
����� '�&*$ �� ��� ��$� ��$�)�$��� ��� !�$�� 
8	� �'� �&�0$�� ��$� �!���$'� ��� ��$�
��)!������$$�!�,������$����� !"��$")����	>�����0$�&$��	��&$� ���!��$)��'�
�� ���$ ���$ ��)���)���$��1$�7$��&$�������!'$)����'!,����$���  ��)!�,"�8�
���
����������������

 �� ��� �������� �������������� 6��� ���7� ����� �
�� ����8��� ���
������������
�����������
�����9���������
�
��������� $�$��'�9$�$���)$������$��$$�!�,8�
�
�

��� ����������������������
�
���� �!'1'1-&�.$-"�+**1&:��22-'"!&'%��%%-01+'1-&(�
�
�'� %���)�� ���� ��)� ��  �""$�,�$� �))�$''$)� ��$��$$�!�,� ��� &$��"�� ��� ��$�
1$�!�!��$�'���)��$'1��)$)����+�$'�!��'�������$�&$�'8�
�
���� !""���%"!&�������)��������&!�$���$�&$�������$'��� $'����$���$'1��)$)�
��� ��$� !''�$'� ��!'$)8� � �$,�"� �$'��! �!��'� ��)�  �����"'� ��)� &$$�� 1��� !�� 1"� $�
9�$�� ��$� "��)� ��)� &$$�� ,!0$�� ��� ��$� ���� !"8� � �$0$���$"$''�� ���� !""���
����)�����9�'�7$$������''!'����$�%''� !��!�����)�9��")�&$���11������$$�����
)!' �''���$�����$�������$�8�
�
���������
�
����� ��$�1$�!�!���&$� �$�$��$)� ��� ��$� ���$�!�����1����$��!�$ ������$0$"�1�$���
��)� �$�$9�"�� ���� �� 9�!��$�� �$'1��'$� ��� ���� ���'���)!�,�����$�'� 9!��!�� 	?�
)��'8�
�
�
���� �!'1'1-&� $!:+$41&:� !&;1$-&"!&'+2� *$-*-%+2%� .-$� ')!� 0+&+2� %14!��
� �0!+&��%'+'!(�
�
�'�-�$�)����"$����)�����$�$7���,"��)��))�$''$)���$��$$�!�,����&$��"�����
��$�1$�!�!��$�'���)��$'1��)$)����+�$'�!��'�������$�&$�'8�
�
���� !""�����&!���(�������&!�$���$�&$������#��'!�,����$���$'1��)$)������$�
!''�$'���!'$)8����$�!�)! ��$)������'�$���)�'1�7$��������! $�'���)��""��"��'������
��)���'�$)�9��")�&$��""� ��$)��� �$1"� $�$��8� ���$���)$����7� ���9��7�9!���
��$�1$�!�!��$�'���)�'���$)��������""� ��'�"���!���9��")���7$�1"� $�9!����$'!)$��'�
�����$�����$�����1��1�'�"'�����,���,$'���)�'�$)'�������$����$ �$)�&"� 7'8�
�
���������
�
����� ��$�1$�!�!���&$� �$�$��$)� ��� ��$� ���$�!�����1����$��!�$ ������$0$"�1�$���
��)� �$�$9�"�� ���� �� 9�!��$�� �$'1��'$� ��� ���� ���'���)!�,�����$�'� 9!��!�� 	?�
)��'8�
�

Page 5



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

A�

�
���� �!'1'1-&� $!:+$41&:� +&'1%-01+2� #!)+;1-/$� 1&� ')!� +$!+� -.� �+22+&0!�
�-+4(�
�
�������")�����!����)��'�#������� #�"! 7��))�$''$)���$��$$�!�,����&$��"��
�����$�1$�!�!��$�'���)��$'1��)$)����+�$'�!��'�������$�&$�'8�
�
���� !""�����!)�%��$)���$1����������� ��$���$'1��)$)������$� !''�$'���!'$)8��
#$� '���$)� ����� �$� 9�'� ��""�� �9��$� ��� 1��&"$�'� !�� ��$� ��$�� ��)� ��)� &$$��
9��7!�,�9!��� ��$�5�"! $���)����$���,$� !$'� ���$��$ ���� '�"��!��8� ���$�5�"! $�
��)��"�$�)����7$��� �!�����)���$�:$�0$�'�2!$")'�,��$'�9$�$�&$!�,�"� 7$)����
�!,�����)�1����"'� !� �$�'$)�&�� ��$�5�"! $���)��#��'8� �#$� !�)! ��$)� ������$�
9��")� &$� '$$7!�,� �����$�� �$$�!�,'� &$�9$$�� ���! $�'� ��)� �$'!)$��'� ���
)$�$��!�$������$��� �!��8�
�
���������
�
����� ��$� 1$�!�!��� &$� �$�$��$)� ��� ��$� ���1����$� �!�$ ����� ������!�!$'��
�� �"!�!$'� ��)� ��"���$� ���� �� 9�!��$�� �$'1��'$� ��� ���� ���'���)!�,� ����$�'�
9!��!��	?�)��'8�
�
�
�)+&:!�'-��$4!$�-.��/%1&!%%�
�
%�� ��!'� 1�!���� ���� !""��� %"!&��� ����)����� ������� ��)� ���� !""��� ���!��
(����������������1�� $)���"����!���E�C�������)$��5�� $)��$���"$�A88<�
��$� ��)$�� ��� &�'!�$''� &$� 0��!$)� ��� �""�9����!��� 	8A� ��� &$�  ��'!)$�$)� �'�
�$@��&�'!�$''8D�
�
��$�1�� $)���"����!���9�'�1��������$�0��$���)�9�'�+:$!!48�
�
�
���� � �!</+2��<*2-1'+'1-&�
�
���� !""������!��(�������������)����� !""�����!)�%��$)�������������$�
���!����'�1�!��$)�!����$��$1���8�
�
%��$�� )$&��$�� ���� !""��� �� ��$"� ����)$�'�������� ��)� ���� !""��� %"!&���
����)�����������������1�� $)���"����!���E�C�������)$��5�� $)��$���"$�
A88����$�+�$'�!���&$���9�1��8D����$�5�� $)���"����!���9�'�1��������$�0��$�
��)�9�'�+:$!!48��
�
��$����!����'�1�!��$)�!����$��,$�)��9�'���$��1��������$�0��$���)�9�'�+:$!!4�
9!�������$�&$��0��!�,��,�!�'�8��%  ��)!�,"��!��9�'B6�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 6



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�


�

���������
�
�)1%��-/&012�&-'!%(�
�
8������)$'1!�$���$��&�"!�!������'"�0$����0$��	����$��'��,�����)$�������'����

���)!�,� !��������&$!�,'� ���!��$��1���! �"��"�� ���� ��$�1��1�'$'����'$@��"�
$@1"�!���!������� $)�"�&�����)��$'�! �'"�0$��������,��!'$)� �!�$8�

�
	8������?������1$�1"$���$������! 7$)�$� ���$����?�F����9�! ����$�9��$����)�

 �!")�$�8�
�
<8� ����� !�� ��$� �(� ����� ����'��)'� ��� !�)!0!)��"'� ��$� &��,��� ��)� '�")� �'�

 ����)!�!$'���)���� $)�!������)$��6)���'"�0$��8�
�
A8��������9$��#��"$�'����$,���)!�,���!")�$��-���)� ����-��)�$'�$@ $""$���

9��7� �� �''!�,� ��� ��$� 1���$ �!��� ��)� 9$"���$� ���  �!")�$�� ��)� ����,�
1$�1"$8�

�

8� ����� ��$��$���1�"!���� 5�"! $� ��0$� '$�� �1� �� �����! 7!�,� #$"1"!�$�� 9��7!�,�

9!��� '��$� "� �"� ������!�!$'� ��� "��� �� ��!)'� ��)�  "�'!�,� )�9�� &����$"'��
,���$�!�,�!��$""!,$� $����7��9�������! 7!�,�,��,'�,���1'���)�9��7!�,�9!���
��$!�����$� �����!$'8�

�
�)1%��-/&012�#!21!;!%(�
�
8� ����� ' ���"'� '���")� &$� $� ����,$)� ��� !� ��1����$� ��$� ��1! � !���� ��$!��

 ���! �"�������!'$��9��$�$''�����,�'��)$��'8�
�
	8� GH����� ��$�$�����'���)$�&�� !�)!0!)��"'�� &�'!�$''����,��!'��!��'�� ��$�1�"! $��

,�0$���$��� ��)� $)� ��!���"� !�'�!���!��'� ��� ��!'$� �9��$�$''� ��� ������
�����! 7!�,���)�����11�'$�'� �������! 7!�,�� �!0$"�I���$����&$� ���$�)$)�

�
�)1%��-/&012�$!%-2;!%(�
�
8� ���$@1�$''�!�'�'�11����������$�9��7��������5%���(����)���!")�5��'�!���!����

��!")�5����,��1�����)���$������! 7!�,������!")�$�������$@��"�5��1�'$'��!'�
)�!�,� �����)� ��$� �(� ��� 1�����$� ��$� �!,��'� ���  �!")�$�� ��)� ���� ��$�
�$�'��$'���$���,��!'��!���!'���7!�,����1���$ ����$������� ���$� !�"���)�
'$@��"�$@1"�!���!�����)��&�'$8�

�
	8� ���� 7��9"$),$���$�1��$��!�"�!�1� �������$�	�	��"��1! ���)�5���"��1! �

4��$'� ��� �����! 7!�,�� !�� ��$�  ���$@�� ��� �� 1�''!&"$� !� �$�'$� ��� 1$�1"$�
$��$�!�,���$��(�)�$���������������! 7!�,����)����9��7�9!�������4�����$��
�"��1! ��,$� !$'���)���$�1�"! $���� ����$�� ����!'8��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 7



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

=�

=�� ������������������>��������������������������
����������
�
=��� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��1%%��/2'+&+��!:/"(�
��
:���� )�$'� ��$������� ��!�7� �&���� ��$� ���'$�0��!0$������� -��!'� 3���'��J'�
�$ $����!'$'�!�����)�������'1�������$'K��
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��)+)!4��21���+#1&!'��!"#!$�.-$��&;1$-&"!&'�
�
($�� �!0!�,'���$� �'� 1���� ��� �!'� )����� ���!�$'��� ���� ������ ��� ���)��� ��'�
������ $)�����!'� L($���������)��J�9$&'!�$�����M��$�9!""� ������$'�&��
F�!��
��$�1�� $''���)�'�0!�,���$��0$��,$����)�������'1�����'$���0$��N?����0$��A�
�$��'8���
�
%�7$��1������� ��$� L��$���9$��#��"$�'J�������!���5"��� !'� ��� �� 7"$�1�0$����
��)�1���$ ����$�$�0!����$�����)�1$�1"$J'��$�"��8���
�
�� �$�'$'� !�� 1�&"! � ����'1���� ���$'�  ��� �)0$�'$"�� !�1� �� ��� '� !�"� !� "�'!���
��)� 1$�1"$J'� $ ����! � 9$""&$!�,�� 1���! �"��"�� ���� 1���$�� '$ �!��'� ��� ��$�
 �����!��8��
�
��9$�� #��"$�'� ���� !"J'� ����'1���� 5"���!�,� �����$,�� �	�6	�<��� �'!�,�
)���� ���������'1���� �������)���� !�)! ��$'� �����1�&"! � ����'1���� ��!1'��  �����
����<;F��������"���!1'�!����$�&����,��9!���	F�����""���!1'�&�� ����
F�&��&�'��
A�F�&��9�"7!�,���)�	F�&�� � "!�,8��
�
��$�$���$�� ����� �$'!)$��'� ��� ��$� &����,�� �$"�� ��� 1�&"! � ����'1����� ����
$@��1"$�����,$�����9��7��'��11!�,��0!'!�����!"����)���!$�)'8��
�
�� �$�'$'�!��&�'����&$�����!����)��������$'� ����"'��$� ����,$����$�1$�1"$�
���,��&�� ��� ����$�� ����� ���0$"� !���$�"��!$���,�$$�$��9��'� ��� ��$�)$��!�$������
��$�+��"!������"!�$������""�!����9$��#��"$�'���)���$��$'��������)��8���
�
��$� �$ $��� !� �$�'$'� !�� ���$'� !�����)���9!""� !�1� ����� �$'!)$��'�&����7!�,�
1�&"! � ����'1���� "$''������)�&"$���)�1��$��!�""�� �$)� !�,� ��$������ �!0$�$''����
&�'����&$��������)���!"�'$�0! $'��'���,�$$�$�������������0$"�����"� �"�1$�1"$8���
�
%'���9$��#��"$�'�!'����7$)��'���$���!�)���'��)$1�!0$)�"� �"�������!�����$��!��
��$�  �������� ���$�� #� 7�$�� ��)� �$9����� ���� !� �$�'$'� !�� 1�&"! � ����'1����
���$'� 9!""� '!,�!�! ���"�� !�1� �� ��� 1$�1"$� ,�!�,� ��� 9��7� ��)� ��7!�,� ���$��
!�1�������*����$�'��1���! �"��"�����'$���0!�,����"!0$������$��!�!����9�,$����
9$"���$�&$�$�!�'8�
��
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��1%%��/2'+&+��!:/"�
�
��$'� ��$��$�)��$�&$����0$���0!$9����-��!'�3���'��J'���,��$��� �����($��
�!0!�,'���$J'�1��1�'�"� ����'$�$@ $''����� �$0$��$� ��� �$)� $�1�&"! � ����'1����
���$'�!'������$�"!'�! K�
�
�

Page 8



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

;�

�/""+$5� -.� �-/&0122-$� �)+)!4� �21@%� $!%*-&%!� '-� ')!� %/**2!"!&'+$5�
?/!%'1-&�
�
�� 9!""� �$$)� ��� "��7� ��� ��!'� !�� )$��!"� &$���$� ��7!�,� ��""�  ���$��'� &��� 9��")�
��7$���$�1�!���������'!� $�($���!0!�,'���$�"$����'�������������)������$� �'��
�����'!�,"$�&�'�*����$����'�,��$������>�1����N8<
8��
�
�
�)+&:!�'-��$4!$�-.��/%1&!%%�
�
%�� ��!'� 1�!���� ���� !""��� %"!&��� ����)����� ������ ��)� ���� !""��� ��!)�
%��$)� ���������� �� 1�� $)���"� ���!��� E� C����� ��)$�� 5�� $)��$� ��"$�
A88<� ��$���)$�����&�'!�$''�&$�0��!$)� ����""�9����!��'�	8���)�	8>� ���&$�
 ��'!)$�$)��'��$@��&�'!�$''8D�
�
��$�1�� $)���"����!���9�'�1��������$�0��$���)�9�'�+:$!!48�
�
�
������ �/#210�'$+&%*-$'�+&4�/&+..-$4+#2!�.+$!%�
�
���� !""���2�.�"��!�����������)����� !""���#������!������������� ��$�
���!����'�1�!��$)�!����$��,$�)�8�
�
���� !""��� 5$�$��4�")'�������� ��)����� !""��� �!��%� �$������������ ��
'+#2!4���$�)�$��������$����!����'���""�9'B6�
�
A�!2!'!�+22�+.'!$�B�)1%��-/&012�&-'!%�')+'@�+&4�1&%!$'(�

•� 5�!��������$�	����������"�$"$ �!����($���!0!�,'���$J'�������"�$"$ �!���
���!�$'���'���$)�C��9!""���$$.$�&�'���)���&$����$'�!���$�"��$��'����������
�$��'8D����3�������	��A����$�'!�,"$�&�'����$����'!)$�.��$��9�'�!� �$�'$)�
&��A<F���)� �'�����$'������$���&$���'$�&��	
F8�

•� 5�!��������$�	��A�������"�$"$ �!����($���!0!�,'���$�1���!'$)����$'�9��")�
����!� �$�'$��&�0$���$����$����!��"��!��8�����$1�$�&$��	��A��$������� $)�
�������&$����$'�9��")��!'$����F��&�0$�!��"��!�����)�&�'����$'�����F�
�&�0$�!��"��!��8�%�'!�,"$�&�'����$�9�'�!� �$�'$)�&��	�F8($���!0!�,'���$�
��'�'!� $��)�!��$)�!���!'��$��!�'������C��)$ !)$)����!� �$�'$���$����$'�
&$���$���$�O	��AP�$"$ �!��D8�

•� 5�!��������$�	��?�������"�$"$ �!����($���!0!�,'���$�1���!'$)������$$.$�
��&$����$'�!���$�"��$��'8��$�7$)�$��!"'���0$�'!� $�'��9����������
�!0!�,'���$���)��"�$�)��!��	��;��11��0$)��!,�$��������$�"��$�����&$�
!� �$�'$'8�

•� C����!0!�,'���$�!'�9���,���� "�!����$�$J'���N;	>��'��1"�'����)���$�$�!'����
'$1����$� &�),$�� ���� !�0$'��$��� 1��*$ �'8� ��� �$�  ��'� ���$'������ $@1$ �'� ���
"�'$�N8	&��!��!� ��$���������$'�E���)�����J'�����"$��$�9��")�J��&$��&"$�
��� 1"�,� 9!������ �!��!�,� ��$� )��6��6)��� ���)!�,� ���� ���)��J'� ����'1���� ���
��7!�,����$�������!�0$'��$���1��*$ �'8D�

•� C#�9��$J)�)�������!'��1�����!���&���!�� ��")��$����������&$���)�&�'�����$�
�1,��)$'� ��$� )$"��$)�� ��� ����  ��")� &$� ��� $)� ��� '�$)� '��$� '�����

Page 9



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

?�

�$�&$�'8�%���������"�  ��)!)��$�  ��� ��!)� ��$����J'�  ���$�'� ���  ��� ���$'8�
-���  ���!�,� ���$'�  ��")� �$���  ���!�,� !�0$'��$��� E� 9�! �� ���)��J'�
����'1����'�'�$����'�&$$��'��$"��'���0$)��������)$ �)$'8�8D�

�

�)1%��-/&012�#!21!;!%�')+'(�

•� -��!'�3���'��J'����$��$'��� ���!�,�!'���!�����)�9!""�&�!�,�"��,��0$�)�$�
��&$���)�����'1����!����'��� ���$��1,��)$'8�

•� ($���!0!�,'���$J'���,��$�����������$��$)� �!��'� ���&$�1�!)������������
�2��'��1"�'�!'��!'"$�)!�,���'���$�"��$'���2��&�'!�$''�1"���'��9'��""����
��$��1$���!���"�'��1"�'�!����$��$@��������$��'�9!""�&$�'1$������ �1!��"�
1��*$ �'8�

•� ($���!0!�,'���$J'�1���!'$'������&$���)�&�'����$�!� �$�'$'���0$����
 �$)!&!"!������)�������!'�"��$'��1��1�'�"'���$��$�������$�� ��! �"�1���!'$�
9�!�!�,����&$�&��7$�8�

�

�)1%��-/&012�$!%-2;!%(�

•� ���'�11����-��!'�3���'��J'�1"��'�����1,��)$����)��J'�����'1����
!����'��� ���$���)���&$��$�9��78D�

�
2�""�9!�,�)$&��$����$���$�)�$�����0$)�&������ !""���4�")'�9�'�1��������$�
0��$���)�9�'�4!.!+'!48�
�
2�""�9!�,� �����$�� )$&��$�� ���� !""��� 3�'���� 5$ 7� ������ ��)� ���� !""���
%"!&��� ����)���������������� 1�� $)���"����!��B� L����� ��)$�� 5�� $)��$�
��"$�A88�����$�+�$'�!���&$���9�1��8D����$�1�� $)���"����!���9�'�1��������$�
0��$���)�9�'�+:$!!4��
�
��$�'�&'����!0$����!����'�1�!��$)�!����$��,$�)��9�'���$��1��������$�0��$���)�
9�'�+:$!!48��%  ��)!�,"���!��9�'B6�
�
����������
�
�)1%��-/&012�&-'!%�')+'(�
�
�� ��$� !�1����� $����$� ����,!�,��'$����1�&"! � ����'1���� ��� "!�!�� 1�""��!��� !��
���)�����)����'�0$�����'$������''!"���$"'�9�! ��!� �$�'$�,"�&�"�9���!�,�
�
	��1$�1"$����"�9$��!� ��$'���$�1���! �"��"��)$1$�)$������1�&"! �����'1�������
$�'��$���$�� ���,�!���  $''�������$�'$"0$'���)���$!�����!"!$'������$�&$�$�!�'�
���"!0!�,�!�����)���
�
<�������1$�1"$���0$�'$$�������$�'$$!�,�����!'$�!����$!��!� ��$'�)$'1!�$���$�
�� ��!��"��!���!'��0$��
F���)���!'�!'� ���!�,���$!��"!0!�,�'���)��)'�
�
A�������������������)���-��!'�3���'���!'� ���!��$)������!'!�,����$'����1�&"! �
����'1���� !�����)����$�������$���&��F��&�0$�!��"��!����)$'1!�$���""!�,� "!0!�,�

Page 10



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

>�

'���)��)'� ���������� 1���! �"��"�� ��� "�9$�� !� ��$'�� ��''� ��$�  �1!��"� ��)� !��
��9$��#��"$�'�!��1���! �"���
�

�� ($���!0!�,'���$�� ��$� ��"��  ��)!)��$�9��� �$�"!'�! �""��  ��� &$� $@1$ �$)� ���
�$1"� $���$������������-��!'�3���'���!��$"$ �!��'�!������	�	����'�1���!'$)�
����$)� $����$'�&��
F�!��$"$ �$)�9!������!� �$�'$�!�����$'�!��	�<8�
�
�)1%��-/&012�#!21!;!%�')+'(�
�
�� ��$� �!'$� !�� ���$'� 1��1�'$)� &�� ��$� ����������� -��!'� 3���'���9!""� ��0$� ��
'$0$�$�$��$ �������$�"!0!�,�'���)��)'�!�����)���1���! �"��"��������'$����"�9$��
!� ��$'�
�
	����$��!'$�!�����$'�1��1�'$)�&�������������-��!'�3���'���9!""�)!' ����,$��'$�
���1�&"! �����'1����
�
<�����$)� �!���!�����$'�����$����������!� �$�'$�!'�&���������)�&"$���)�)$'!��&"$�
�
�)1%��-/&012�%/**-$'%(�
�
��$�1"��'������� $)�&��($���!0!�,'���$�����$)� $����$'�!��$"$ �$)��$@������
�
�
���C� �/**-$'�8!&��1;1&:%'-&!@%�.+1$�4!+2�.-$�'$+&%*-$'��
�
���� !""��� ��&!��� (���� ������� ��)� ���� !""��� ����!+�"� #�+�$�
������������$����!����'�1�!��$)�!����$��,$�)�8�
�
���� !""��� 5$�$��4�")'�������� ��)����� !""��� �!��%� �$������������ ��
'+#2!4���$�)�$��������$����!��8����$��$@�������$���$�)�$���9�'���$�'��$�
�'��������0$)�&������ !""���4�")'�������!���	8��&�0$8���
�
2�""�9!�,�)$&��$����$���$�)�$�����0$)�&������ !""���4�")'�9�'�1��������$�
0��$���)�9�'�4!.!+'!48�
�
2�""�9!�,������$��)$&��$����$�'�&'����!0$����!����'�1�!��$)�!����$��,$�)��9�'�
��$��1��������$�0��$���)�9�'�+:$!!48��%  ��)!�,"���!��9�'B6�
�
���������
�
�)1%��-/&012�&-'!%(�
�
8�����������3�������	�	���$�$���'�&$$����'�$$1��!'$� !��&�'�� ��&$���)���!"�
���$'���)$�������������-��!'�3���'���
�
	8��������)$����$��������������$� �'�������'!�,"$�&�'��! 7$����'��!'$��&����
��''!0$�
��1$�� $���'!� $�	��?��9�!"'����$�1�! $�����������"��.��$�6	�
���0$" ��)�!'��1�	F� �'�!�,�N	<�8A��1$���$������$����)���$�1�! $����.��$'�
6=����0$" ��)�!'��1����!���8�
�

Page 11



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

��

<8��������7$��1������� ��$� Q��$���9$��#��"$�'Q�������!���5"��� !'� ��� �� 7"$�
1�0$������)�1���$ ����$�$�0!����$�����)�1$�1"$'R��$�"��8�
�
A8� ����� !� �$�'$'� !�� 1�&"! � ����'1���� ���$'�  ��� �)0$�'$"�� !�1� �� ��� '� !�"�
!� "�'!���� ��&!"!�����)� 1$�1"$R'� $ ����! � 9$""� &$!�,�� 1���! �"��"�� ���� 1���$��
'$ �!��'�������� �����!��8�
�

8������!� �$�'$'�!��&�'����&$�����!����)��������$'� ����"'��$� ����,$����$�
1$�1"$� ��� �'$�  ��'� ����$�� ����� 1�&"! � ����'1���� ��)� ��$�$���$�  ����!&��$� ���
!� �$�'$)� ��,$'�!�����)�1���$���!��+��"!��8�
�
�)1%��-/&012�#!21!;!%(�
�
8������-��!'�3���'��J'�����'1����1�"! $'���$�����!�,������$'!)$��'8�

�
	8������9$�'���")�'�11���� !�!�!��!0$'� �����'$$7'� ����$)� $���$� �'�'�����'!�,�
1�&"! �����'1���8�
�
<8������($���!0!�,'���$J'����!�$'���1"$),$���� ������$'�!��$)!��$"��&��;F�����
��$$.$� ��$�� ��$� �$@�� �$��� ��)� '�0!�,� ��$� �0$��,$� ���)��� ����'1���� �'$��
N�����0$��A��$��'� !'�,��)��$9'� ���� �$'!)$��'� !����9$��#��"$�'���)� ���&$�
9$" ��$)8�
�
�)1%��-/&012�$!%-2;!%(�
�
��� '�11���� ($�� �!0!�,'���$J'�  ��1�!,�� ��� ��7$� ���$'� �����)�&"$� ����
���)��$�'8�
�
�
=��� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��$��!&��241%(�
�
���")���$��������1)��$��$�����!'� ��0$�'��!��'�9!�������4��$,��)!�,���$�
 �����0$�'!�"�'1��'��'�!1������$��"��1! �4��$'�&����9���$�! �"K��
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��+&1+�8)+&���+#1&!'��!"#!$�.-$��/2'/$!�
�
����7� ���� �$�� ���� ����� +�$'�!��8� � ��$� !''�$� ��� ����4� �  $1�!�,�
'1��'��'�!1� �������9� ���$�! �"� !'�  ��'!�,�9!)$'1�$�)�  �� $��� !�� 0!$9����
��9J'�  ���$ �!��'�9!��� ��$���!������&!)$� 6�-��1�"�)!'�'�$��9�! �� �'�� ��$�
"!0$'�����1����	
�����1$�1"$8�
�
%�*�!���"$��$��9�'�'$������&$��"�������$���������""��3�'��5$ 7����&����4���1���
2�.�"� �!��� ��$'1$ �� 4���1�� ��)� ��$1���!$� ������ ��!&� �$������ ���)� ��$�
$@1�$''!�,���$�0!$9������!��&$'�!� �$)���$��$1����!��������$��"��1! '�����!�����
��0$������''� !��!���9!�����9���$�! �"'8�
�
����������$"������)���$J'� "$��$�� !���$'1��'$��!,���9$""���0$�&$$��9�!��$������
�!��&����9���$�! �"J'�1�&"! ��$"��!��'�)$1����$��8��
�
����!'��$1"�����)���$�'���$)��������9���)�����$'1��'!&!"!�!$'�!���$"��!��������$�
-��1�"� )!'�'�$�� �'� L��$�� )!)� ���� �9�� ��� �1$���$� ��$� ��!��� ���&!)$� ��)!��

Page 12



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

�

�!�!�$)�5"���������9�'���$�'!�$������$�>?A�)!'�'�$�J8��#$�,�$'�������'��������
L��9�!'����!�)�'����"$�)$��!���$��'�����1$���!�,�9!�����$��!,�$'��'���)��)'����
$��! '� ��)� '�'��!��&!"!��J� ��)� ����� ����4� L'���)� &$�!�)J� ��9� L&���� �'� ��
9��")9!)$�'1��'��������$��"��1! ���0$�$�����)��'���'�11"!$���������4J8���
�
��$� �� �� !'� �������9���$�! �"� &��,�����!������&!)$� ��$�� 7�$9� �������!���
���&!)$�9�'�9���$)���� �!�!��"� ���,$'�1$���!�!�,������$�-��1�"�)!'�'�$�8�����
!'� ��� 0!$9�� ��)� ����� ��� �� 9!)$� ������ ��� 1�&"! � �!,��$'� !�� ��!'�  ������� ��)�
!��$����!���""��� ����� ��9� ��$�$���$� ��'� �� �$'1��'!&!"!��� ��� ��$� 0! �!�'� ��� ��$�
-��1�"�)!'�'�$�8�
�
���!"�!��������'�������$'1��'!&!"!��������''� !��!���9!�����9�1��'���&"$�!'�����
��$�	�	��"��1! '�9�! ��9$���$��""�"��7!�,����9��)�������)�9�! ��9$��""�9����
���$�'��$���$���,�$���'�  $''8���
�
��$� �"��1! � !)$�"� �'1!�$'� ��� ��$� &$'�� !�� ��!�� 1"��� ��)� $��! '8� ����4J'�
�''� !��!���9!�����9�)!�!�!'�$'����'$��!,��!)$�"'���)��'1!���!��'8�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��$��!&��241%�
�
�� ��0$� 0!'!�$)� S!$����� ����� �!�$'� �0$�� ��$� �$��'� ��)� ��0$� '$$�� �����
1$�1"$� ���$ �$)� ���$�� ��$� 9��� ��$�$� &�� $@1�'��$� ��� %,$��� ����,$� ����� 9�'�
1��)� $)�&����9���$�! �"8������0$�'!� $���!'$)���!'�9!�����$���������)����$��
�,$� !$'����&$��"�������,��!'��!��'� !��S!$�����9���9$�$��$+�$'�!�,��$"18� ���
���7� �� "$��$�� ����� ���'$� ��,��!'��!��'� ��� ���)���$J'� ���! $� �'7!�,� �������9�
��$�! �"�&$�)��11$)��'�����"��1! �'1��'�����'���$����)�&$$��!�'����$���"�
!��  �$��!�,� ���$$� ,$�$���!��'� ��� )!'�&"$)� 1$�1"$� !�� S!$����8� � ��$!��
'1��'��'�!1� 9�'� �$,��)$)� &�� ��$� S!$����$'$� 1$�1"$� �'� ��� �������8� � ���)�
��$J'��$'1��'$�9�'���$�$���$��"'�����!�'�"�������$�8��
�
�
�)+&:!�'-��$4!$�-.��/%1&!%%�
�
%����!'�1�!�������� !""���%"!&�������)�������������)����� !""������!��(����
���������� ��1�� $)���"����!���E� C�������)$��5�� $)��$���"$�A88<� ��$�
��)$����� &�'!�$''�&$�0��!$)� ����""�9����!���	8<� ���&$� ��'!)$�$)��'��$@��
&�'!�$''8D�
�
��$�1�� $)���"����!���9�'�1��������$�0��$���)�9�'�+:$!!48�
�
�
������ �-D��)!"10+2���)-*+2�+&4�')!��25"*10��+$,�
��
���� !""��� ������ -$,���������� ��)� ���� !""��� ���!�� (��������������
��$����!����'�1�!��$)�!����$��,$�)�8�
�
%��$�� )$&��$�� ���� !""��� ���!�� �.6/����� ������� ��)� ���� !""��� 3�'����
5$ 7� ���������� �� 1�� $)���"� ���!��� E� C����� ��)$�� 5�� $)���"� ��"$�
A88����$�+�$'�!���&$���9�1��8D����$�1�� $)���"����!���9�'�1��������$�0��$�
��)�9�'�+:$!!48��
�

Page 13



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

	�

��$� ���!��� �'� 1�!��$)� !�� ��$� �,$�)�� 9�'� ��$�� 1��� ��� ��$� 0��$� ��)� 9�'�
+:$!!48��%  ��)!�,"���!��9�'B6�
�
���������
�
�)1%�"!!'1&:�&-'!%(�
�
8����������$ $�&$��	�	������������������������""��3�'��5$ 7����&����
4���1���2�.�"��!��� ��$'1$ ��4���1����)���$1���!$������� ��!&��$���'$�����
*�!��� "$��$�� ��� ���)� �$&�'�!��� ��$�� ���!����� ��� ��$� ���)��� ��,��!'!�,�
����!��$$� ��� ��$� �"��1! � 4��$'� ��)� 5���"��1! � 4��$'� �����4��
$@1�$''!�,�  �� $��� �0$�� !�'� )$ !'!��� ��� �  $1�� '1��'��'�!1� ���� ��$��"��1! �
4��$'� ����� ��9� ��$�! �"�� !�� "!,��� ��� !�'� �''� !��!��'� 9!��� ��$� ��!���
���&!)$�-��1�"�)!'�'�$�8�
�
	8������ !�����$1"���������� "$��$�����)���$�'���$)�L��9�!'���� !�)�'���� "$�)$�� !��
�$��'�����1$���!�,�9!�����$��!,�$'��'���)��)'����$��! '���)�'�'��!��&!"!��J���)�
���������4�L'���)�&$�!�)J���9�L&�����'���9��")9!)$�'1��'��������$��"��1! �
��0$�$�����)��'���'�11"!$���������4J8��
�
<8� ����� ���)� ��$� �"'�� '���$)� ����� ��9���$�! �"� ��)� ��� �$'1��'!&!"!�!$'� !��
�$"��!��� ��� ��$� -��1�"� )!'�'�$�� �'� L��$�� )!)� ���� �9�� ��� �1$���$� ��$� ��!���
���&!)$���)!���!�!�$)�5"���������9�'���$�'!�$������$�>?A�)!'�'�$�J8�
�
A8������)�$���� ��1�!,��1�$''��$���9���$�! �"���'��,�$$)�����$��0$��""�!�'�
&���)!�,������-�!��!�J'��"��1! �'��)!��8�
��
�)1%�"!!'1&:�#!21!;!%(�
��
8� ����� 9�$�� ��9� ��$�! �"� &��,��� ��!��� ���&!)$� ��$�� 7�$9� ����� ��!���
���&!)$�9$�$�9���$)���� �!�!��"� ���,$'�1$���!�!�,������$�-��1�"�)!'�'�$�8��
�
	8� ����� ��9� ��$�$���$� ��'� �� �$'1��'!&!"!��� ��� ��$� 0! �!�'� ��� ��$� -��1�"�
)!'�'�$�8�
�
<8� ����� ���� �''� !��!���9!�����9� ����!'�$'� ��$� ���$� ��)� �$1����!��� ��� ��$�
�"��1! '8��
��
�)1%�"!!'1&:�$!%-2;!%(�
��
�����!���!��1�$''��$��������4����)��1���9���$�! �"��'���1����$��������$�
	�	��"��1! '8�
�
�
�
=��� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��%��+')!$1&!��/1''(�
�
��� "!,������ ��$���$1�$����9�$� $� �'$� �� "�)!�,�9!����9�� ��0! �!��'��9����
�����$�� '�$1'� 9!""� ��$������� &$� ��7!�,� ������!����� ��)� $��)! ��$�� �� !�"� ��)�
���$� �!�$���)�1�����$�$+��"!���!����$�&����,�K��
�

Page 14



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

<�

�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��)14��)"!4���!*/'5��+5-$�
�
�� 7"!�,� )!' �!�!���!��� ��)� ���$� !'� �� ���)��$���"� 1���� ��� ��$� ���� !"J'�
�11��� �����&�!")!�,���$���9$��#��"$�'8�����)$0$"�1!�,�����9��7������ 7"!�,�
���$� �!�$�9$���0$���7$�������$��$ ���$�)��!��'������$�� 5�$�'����$1����
!���� ��$� )$���� ��� ��$1�$�� ��9�$� $8� � ��$� ��� ��$� �$ ���$�)��!��'� ��� ��$�
� 5�$�'��� �$1���� 9�'� ��� 1��0!)$� �))!�!���"� �$1���!�,� �$��'� ���� 0! �!�'� ���
�� !'�8����
�
����$'1��'$������!'�9$���0$�9��7$)�9!�����$�"� �"�5�"! $����)$0$"�1�	���!�)�
5������$1���!�,��$���$'�!����$�&����,�8����$'$���$�7$��'!�$'�!����$�&����,��
9�$�$�0! �!�'���$�"!7$"��������$�)8��:$�9!""� ���!��$������!���!����$'$� $���$'�
��)�1��0!)$��$,�"��� ���!�!�,� ��� ��$��$���$�'�����'�� ����� ��$�� ��� ��7$��$1���'�
'$�'!�!0$"�� ��)� �11��1�!��$"�8� :$�  ���!��$� ��� 1�����$� ��$�  $���$'� �����,��
$��$ �!0$�1�&"! !�����)�����$� ��9��78�
�
��!'�9��7�!'� ��1"!�$��$)�&���������5"� $�����#��$�1"$),$�9�! �� ���!��$'�
��� ,�!�� '�11���� ����� !�)!0!)��"'� ��)���,��!'��!��'� !�� ��$� &����,�8� � ��� ��'� ��
7$����"$�!��$� ����,!�,�$0$����$�!����$�"� �"� �����!������*�!����� $'�9!�����$�
���� !"���)���7$���'���)��,�!�'�����$� �!�$8���
�
��9$�� #��"$�'� ��'� �� '����,� �$�9��7� ��� ��� 5"� $� ���� #��$� ����1!��'�� ��
�$�9��7����1$�1"$����!�$)�!��#��$���!�$���)�'�11���$)�&����$����� !"������7$�
� �!���������$� �!�$8�����$����0$���)������'�  $''$'�!����!'!�,��9��$�$''�
��� ���$�  �!�$��1�����!�,� �$1���!�,� ��)�$�'��!�,� ����� ��$��$''�,$� !'�9!)$"��
'1�$�)�!����$� �����!��8����������5"� $�����#��$�����$� ��9��7��$� �$'�����
��)� 9!)$�� �����,�� ���$�)!�,� 7$��  �����!��� $0$��'� ��)� �����'� � ��''� ��$�
&����,��� �$� �!�,� ���)�$)'� ��� )!��$�$��� ,���1'� ��� 1$�1"$� $� �� �$��8� � ��$�
��9$�� #��"$�'� ��� 5"� $� ���� #��$� -���)� $�'��$'� ����� ��$�$� !'� ��� $��$ �!0$�
1����$�'�!1�'��� ���$�!��1"� $����)$�"�9!������$� �!�$8��������!���!�'����� �!���
1"������9��7�������$� �!�$�����9�! ������ !"���)�1����$���,$� !$'� ����!&��$8���
�
��$������"����9$��#��"$�'J�#��$��� !)$��'�5��$"��#�5���$$�'������"����)�!'�
'$$���'�����)$"� ��� &$'�� 1�� �! $� !�� �!�!�,� ���  �6��)!���$� ��)� �$0!$9��� ��1�
+��"!��� '$�0! $� 1��0!'!��� � ��''� 1����$�'�� ���� ���$�  �!�$� !� !)$��'8� ��� �"'��
1��0!)$'� �� ������ ���� $��$ �!0$� !�������!��� '���!�,� ��)� $��&"$'� �11��1�!��$�
� �!��'����&$���7$�����!� �$�'$�1�&"! �'��$��8��
�
���$��7$���'1$ �'��������9��7�!� "�)$���$�1��0!'!��������	A������2�$$�1���$�
�$1���!�,��� !"!�������0! �!�'�������$� �!�$���?���<?��
	�8���
�
2����$��9��7�1"���$)�����	�	�!� "�)$'B�6�
�
•� 5��)� �!�����)�)!'��!&��!����������1����)��$�#��$���!�$������"�9�! ��

�''!'�'�1���$''!���"'���)�0�"���$$�'����!)$��!������$� �!�$�������$��"��
'��,$���)�'!,��1�'��0! �!�'��11��1�!��$"�8�
�

•� 5��0!)!�,��$��$'�$��#��$���!�$����!�!�,�������$����� !"���""��$���$�'�����
9�����'9$����$�#��$���!�$����"!�$8��
�

Page 15



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

A�

•� 5��0!'!������#��$���!�$����!�!�,�9!""�&$���)$��0�!"�&"$�����""����� !"�'����8��
��
�

•� ���!�!�,����'�����!�� ���!�!$'���)�0�"���������,��!'��!��'�!����$�&����,��
!� "�)!�,���9$��#��"$�'��������$���"��$�"��� ���!���8���
�

•� ���!�!�,����5�"! $���)����$��7$���,$� !$'������9������7$��$�$���"'������$�
#�5�

�
•� :$�9!""� ���!��$����)$0$"�1������11��� ��!���$'1��'$������$�)'�!)$��!�!$)�

�����,�����"�'!'�������$� �!�$�)������)�$�,�,$�$���9!��� �����!�!$'8��
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��%��+')!$1&!��/1''�
�
����7�������������� ���$��'�E��'�������0$��$��!��$)�����1�+��"!���'$�0! $�
)$"!0$���� �������0$�������''���� $��������$�$�9!""�&$�!� �$�'$)��$'��� $'����
��!���!����$�"$0$"������!'�� �!0!���!����$�-����,�K�����7!�,����!''�$'�!� "�)$)�
��� ����� �,$�)��� �� $� ��)� ���$�  �!�$� !� "�)$'� ���!6�$�!�!'�� �'� 9$""� �'�
�'"���1��&!����)������������! 7!�,8�
�
�/""+$5� -.� �-/&0122-$� �)14� �)"!4@%� $!*25� '-� ')!� %/**2!"!&'+$5�
?/!%'1-&�
�
�� ����''��$�����������""��$ $''�����$'��� $'�9!""�&$���)$��0�!"�&"$8�
�
�
�)+&:!�'-��$4!$�-.��/%1&!%%�
�
%�� ��!'� 1�!���� ���� !""��� %"!&��� ����)����� ������ ��)� ���� !""��� ��!)�
%��$)� ���������� �� 1�� $)���"� ���!��� E� C����� ��)$�� 5�� $)��$� ��"$�
A88<���$���)$�����&�'!�$''�&$�0��!$)�����""�9����!���	8����&$� ��'!)$�$)�
�'��$@��&�'!�$''8D�
�
��$�1�� $)���"����!���9�'�1��������$�0��$���)�9�'�+:$!!48�
�
�
������ �!"!"#!$1&:��'!*)!&��+D$!&0!��
�
���� !""��� %&)�"� %'�)�������� ��)� ���� !""��� (�&!�� %��$)�����������
��$����!����'�1�!��$)�!����$��,$�)�8�
�
%��$�� )$&��$�� ���� !""��� %&)�"� %'�)�������� ��)� ���� !""��� (�&!�� %��$)�
������������1�� $)���"����!���E�C�������)$��5�� $)���"���"$�A88����$�
+�$'�!���&$���9�1��8D� ���$�1�� $)���"����!���9�'�1��� ��� ��$�0��$���)�9�'�
+:$!!48��
�
��$����!����'�1�!��$)�!����$��,$�)��9�'���$��1��������$�0��$���)�9�'�+:$!!4�
9!�������$�&$��0��!�,��,�!�'�8��%  ��)!�,"���!��9�'B6�
�
�
�

Page 16



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�


�

���������
�
�)1%��-/&012�&-'!%(�
�
8� ����� ���$�� $!,��$$�� �$��'� ��$� ��$1�$�� ��9�$� $�  �'$� ��'� �!��""�� '$$��
'��$��$'�"��!���9!����9���$�� ��0! �$)������!'����)$�8�
�
	8���$�)!,�!���9!���9�! ����$���9�$� $����!"����0$�"$)���$!�� ��1�!,�8����
�
<8��������$1�$����9�$� $J'����)$���!,�"!,��'��������$�$���$�1$�1"$���"&$!����
�!����!���!����9������&������)$$1��� !'����)�����$0$��&$� �1�&"$�����$��!&"$��
0!�"$���� �'8��
�
A8���$��� ���������9$��#��"$�'�!'�����"�!� �"����"����"�!��� !�"�&����,���9�$�$�
��$� �0$�9�$"�!�,���*��!��� ��� 1$�1"$�9��7� ��)� "!0$� ��,$��$�� ��11!"��� '���")�
�����""�9��������� ��1"� $� �8��
�

8� ����� ��$� ��$1�$�� ��9�$� $�  �'$� �"'�� �!,�"!,��'� ��$� !�'!)!��'� �����$� ���
�� !'����)���9�!�� ���!��$ ����)�)!'�������$�9��7!�,'����!�'�!���!��'8��
�
=8����������,���$��!�)!�,'������$��� 1�$�'�����+�!���9�'��� "$��� �� "�'!���
�&���� ��$� $@!'�$� $� ��� !�'�!���!���"� �� !'�� !�� ��$� 1�"! $� '$�0! $� ��)� ���$��
1�&"! �'$ ������,��!.��!��'8�
�
;8��������$���$1�$����9�$� $��$���$�!���$1����)�!'��� !�,� "�'��$�)�$����"� 7�
������)!�,8�
�
�)1%��-/&012�#!21!;!%(��
�
�����9$��9$� !�� �����$� "$,� �������$1�$����9�$� $���)���$����)�9��7���� ��$�
��9�$� $� ���!"����� '��$�,��$������  ���!��$��� ��� �� 7"!�,� !�'�!���!���"�
)!' �!�!���!��� ��)� $@ "�'!��� ��)�  �������!�,� �""� 1�$*�)! $'�� !�$+��"!�!$'� ��)�
����!����$���$���9�$��$���'����$'�"�����,$�)$���'$@��"!�����,$���� $��)!'�&!"!����
�$"!,!��'����!"!��!����&$"!$����� "�''8��
��
�)1%��-/&012�$!%-2;!%(�
�
8� ��� 9�!�$� ��� ��$� ��9�$� $� 2��!"�� ��� &$��"�� ��� �""�  ��� !""��'� !�� ���
$@1�$''!������'�11������)�'�"!)��!��8�
�
	8���� ���!��$���� ��1�!,���,�!�'���""�����'����)!' �!�!���!�����)�����$)8�
�
<8����$@1"��$��""�9$� ���)������$"1���$���$1�$����9�$� $��$���$���� ���!��$�
!�'�!�1�������9��78�
�
�
=� � >/!%'1-&�.$-"��%��5!4+��+%1"+(�
�
:����'�$1'� !'� ��$������� ��7!�,� ��� �$'1��)���� ��$�)$���)� !�� ��$� �����!���
���� -$�,�"!� "��,��,$� �$� �!�,� !�� ��!�'��$��� 1�!����� ' ���"'� !�� ��9$��
#��"$�'K�

Page 17



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

=�

�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��21/$��+)"+&���+#1&!'��!"#!$� .-$��)124$!&@%�
�!$;10!%�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�������1"$�'$)����'$$���$�$����'!�'�����1��$��'�
���� ����$�6���,�$� �$� �!�,� !�� ���� 1�!����� ' ���"'8� ��!'� ��'� &$$�� ,�$��"��
$@1�$''$)������,�������&$�����'!,�$)�1$�!�!���'�$$�'��))�$''$)����!�)!0!)��"�
' ���"'�!����$�&����,�8����
�
���� �$�&$�'� ��$� ��"7!�,� ��� '$�!��� ���! $�'�� ' ���"'� ��)� ,�0$����'� �&����
�$��$'�!�,� � ��$�  ���$��� '����$,�8� � 2����"�  ��'�"���!��� 9!""� ��7$� 1"� $� ��� ��$�
#$�)��$� �$�'J�2�������)�#$�)'����'�"���!0$��$$�!�,���!'��$��8�
�
����&����,�� !'� !����)� !�,��$0$"����)��$0$"�	� ���'$'� !��-$�,�"!� ���� "�''�
�$� �$�'� ��)� �$�!��� �$�)$�'�!1� �$��� ������ ��� &�!")� ' ���"'J�  �1� !��8���
#�9$0$���9$��'����� �"�%�����!�����0$����1�9$�� ��� !�'��� ��' ���"'���� ��$�
!''�$� ���  ���'!�,� �� '�&*$ �8� ��� !'� ��� !��$���"� ����$�� ��)� ' ���"'� )$ !)$�
!�)$1$�)$��"���!�� ��'�"���!���9!�����$!��'������1��$��'���)�,�0$����'8��
�
���������	
	�������	�����������	����
�
�

��� �����E����������
�
��$� ������ ��)$� �!'� �$1���� ��� ��$� ���� !"� �$$�!�,�� �$�$��!�,� �!�'�"�� ��� ��$�
�$ $�����!")�5�0$����% �!����$1����9�! ��'��9$)������
	F���� �!")�$�� !�� ��$�
-����,�� "!0$)� &$"�9� ��$� 1�0$���� "!�$8� � ��$������� '���$)� ����� ��!'� ��'�� &$�
�$)� $)��'���1�!��!��� !''�$���)� �����1�$0!��'� �$)� �!��'� !��1�0$���� �������)�
&$$��$��&"$)���)$������&����4�0$���$���9$�$���)$�����$���&$ ��'$���� ��'�
��)$�&����$����'$�0��!0$6"$)��)�!�!'����!��8���
�
��$� ������  ��'!)$�$)� ����� �� �����$�� ��!�� 1�!��!��� ��$�� ��'�� &$� ��� 1���$ ��
�$'!)$��'� ��� ��$� -����,�� ����� ��$� ��'�$�!���  ��'�� ��� 1�����$� *�&'� ��)�
$)� ��!�����@!�!'$�$�����!�����11�$��! $'�!1'8��#$��))$)������?=?��"��1! '�
*�&'���)�&$$��'$ ��$)�����"� �"�1$�1"$���)��!'��)�!�!'����!���9�'�9��7!�,����
� �!$0$����$8���
�
��$�������1�!��$)�����������'!� $���$�"�'������ !"��$$�!�,���9�������$�7!""$�'�
�����$1�$����9�$� $���)�&$$�� ��0! �$)���)��$�9�'�1"$�'$)����'�11������$�
�$"��$)� ���!��� ��� ��$� �,$�)�8� � #$�  ���$�)$)� ��$� )!,�!��� '��9�� &�� ��$�
��9�$� $����!"���0$����$�?��$��'�'!� $���$1�$�J'����)$�8���
�
����� 1$�!�)� ��)� �"'�� '$$�� �� �� 9��7� ���  ���,!�,� 5�"! $� !��$�� �!��� 9!���
�!���!�!$'���)� ��$�������1���! �"��"���$��!��$)� ��$��$9��$���1�"!����5�"! $�
����!''!��$�J'� 1"��'� !�� �$"��!��� ��� '��1� ��)� '$�� �� �$�'��$'8� � �� ��
1��,�$''���)�&$$����)$������ 7"!�,��� !'��&���!��9�'�'�!""�$''$��!�"�����$��!��
0!,!"���8�
�
��$������� ���$��$)������������$� ��!�,�������9��")�'$$���$�'����������$�
��!�$'$� T$��� ��� ��$� ���,��� ��)� �$� �))$)� ����� ��$� -����,�� ��)� &$$��
$��! �$)�&����$�1�$'$� $������$���!�$'$� �����!��8�

Page 18



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

;�

�
��$��$�)$����� ��$���*��!���4���1���)��$�)$�'���� ��$��!���!���4���1'�$� ��
�$'1��)$)�&�!$�"�������$������J'��$1���8�
�
�

F�� ������������������>��������������������������
�����������
�
��$��1$�7$�� !�)! ��$)� ����� ��$��$$�!�,�9��")���9���0$� ���+�$'�!��'� �����
���� !""��'8���
�
���� !""��� 3�)!���4��)!�$�� 1��� ��$� �!�'�� +�$'�!��� ��� ��$� ��)$��1�1$�� ��)� ��$�
������!�)! ��$)���������� !""�����&!���(����9��")��$'1��)8���
�
�-1&'�-.��$4!$�
�
%�� ��!'� 1�!���� ���� !""��� 5$ 7� '���$)� ����� !�� �  ��)�� $� 9!��� )$ !'!��'�
�$,��)!�,���$����'�!���!�����)$������$�"�'������ !"��$$�!�,����$�������'���")�
�$'1��)� 1$�'���""�� ��� �""� +�$'�!��'� �'7$)�� ����$�� ����� ���!���!�,� ��&!�$��
�$�&$�'����)��'�8�
�
2�""�9!�,� )!' �''!��� ��� ��$�����$��� ��$� �1$�7$�� ��� C���� *�"�� )$ "��$)� ��$�
�$$�!�,�+4G-/$&!4�'����������! $�'J��)0! $��!,���&$��&��!�$)8����$��$$�!�,�
$!0-&;!&!4����C� �� *�"�� ��'� �'�&$""�� 2�$$����� %''!'����� ��!$�� �@$ ��!0$�
��$,�"� �$�0! $'�� �)0!'$)� ��$� ���� !"� ������ !�� �  ��)�� $� 9!��� ��$� 0�"!)�
��$�)�$��'������$����'�!���!�����)$���� ��$� "�'���$$�!�,�� ��$����� !"� ��")�
�$+�!�$� ����� +�$'�!��'� ��$� 1��� ��� ��$� ������ ��)�  ��")� 1�$0$��� ��&!�$��
�$�&$�'� ����� �$'1��)!�,���� ��$������J'�&$��"����"����,�� ��$�������  ��")�
����&$��&"!,$)������'9$��+�$'�!��'�1$�'���""�������$��$$�!�,8�
�
��$�������  ���$��$)� ������$���)��11�!��$)� ��� ��$���&!�$�� 0$����&"$���)�
$@1$�!$� $)� �$�)� �$�&$�'� ��� ��7$�  ���,$� ��� '$�0! $� 1��0!'!��� ��)� 9���
9��")�&$�!�0�"0$)�9!����!��!���))�$''!�,�����$�'� !� "�)$)�!����$!��1�����"!�'8��
#$���,$)����� !""��'����9��7�9!����!��������$�&$�$�!�������$�9!)$�� �����!��8��
#�9$0$��� !�� ��$� ���� !"� 9��")� ���� �,�$$� ��� ��&!�$�� �$�&$�'� �$1"�!�,� ���
+�$'�!��'� !�� ��$� ����&$��� �$� 9��")� 1�&"!'�� 9�!��$�� ��'9$�'� ��� �$�&$�'J�
+�$'�!��'��������11��1�!��$��!�$�����!'� ���'!�,8�
�
�
�$-0!4/$+2��-'1-&�
�
%�� ��!'� 1�!���� ���� !""��� %"!&��� ����)����� ������� ��)� ���� !""��� ��!)�
%��$)� ���������� �� 1�� $)���"� ���!��� 6� � C����� ��)$�� 5�� $)��$� ��"$�
A88A����"$�<8�&$�'�'1$�)$)� ����""�9� ��$� ��""�9!�,���,$������!��� ���&$�
)$&��$)B6��
�
C:$� ��)$���&������$��������)���&����,���1'�������$!���!�$�9�'�!�,��� �! '�
��)�&"������)!'�$,��)�������$�1�&"! �9�����0$� ��$����"!'�$��������� !"�����!�'�
��������$ ����$!��"!0$'8D�
�

Page 19



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

?�

���$� ��������$�&$�'� ��'$� ����� ��$!�� '$��'� ��� �$+�$'���� �$ ��)$)�0��$����
��$�1�� $)���"����!��� !���  ��)�� $�9!���5�� $)��$���"$�;8A8� �%� �$ ��)$)�
0��$�9�'���$�$���$���7$����)��$�&$�'�!�)! ��$)���$!��0��$'��'���""�9'B6�
�
2�����$����!����
����� !""��'��
�
���� !""���(�&!��%��$)��
���� !""�����!)�%��$)�
���� !""������!+�$��))!��%��$)�
���� !""�������$)�%"!�
���� !""���%&)�"�%'�)�
���� !""���������-$,���
���� !""���%"!&�������)�����
���� !""�������!+�"�#�+�$�
���� !""���%�!����(����
���� !""�����&!���(����
���� !""������!��(����
���� !""���2�.�"��!���
���� !""���#������!���
���� !""�����!����!���
���� !""����"!����������
�
%,�!�'����$����!����<<����� !""��'��
�
���� !""���3�'����5$ 7�
���� !""���5$�$��4�")'�
���� !""���#$"�"�%&&�'�
���� !""���(��"$'��))!��%��$)�
���� !""�����*!&�%��$)�
���� !""����!������%� �$��
���� !""������!,�%'����
���� !""���/������0!'�
���� !""�����$1���!$�������
���� !""�����0!)��),���
���� !""������ �2��� !'�
���� !""���3�)!���4��)!�$��
���� !""������"��4!&&'�
���� !""������"!�#��1$�65$�����
���� !""����!��*�"��'"���
���� !""���%���3� 7'���
���� !""����$�!'$�3��$'�
���� !""�����������3��$'�
���� !""���%�9���(����
���� !""�����!�!��(������
���� !""���%��$)���$��
���� !""����$'"$��5�0!���
���� !""���/$�!����������
���� !""����� ��$"�����)$�'�
���� !""�����0!)����9)���
���� !""���4"��!����!$�$"�
���� !""���-!""�����$��

Page 20



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

>�

���� !""���#$"�"��))!��
���� !""���(�'����))!��
���� !""���%&)�"��""���
���� !""������!���.6/�����
���� !""���%���:�!�$"� 7�
���� !""����!.���������)�������1$�7$��������� !"��
�
%&'��!�$)���!"����� !""��'��
�
��$�1�� $)���"����!���9�'��  ��)!�,"��4!.!+'!48�
��
�
��$���""�9!�,�+�$'�!��'����)�9�$�$�!�)! ��$)��'�11"$�$������+�$'�!��'��9$�$�
��$��1���&���$�&$�'8� ���$��!���$�&$"�9��"'�� �$ ��)'� ��$�9�!��$�� �$'1��'$�
1��0!)$)�'�&'$+�$��"��&����$������8���
�
O���$B� �U�$'�!��'�?8		� ���?8	
�9$�$�����1������ ��$��$$�!�,�)�$� ��� ��$� �!�$�
"!�!��������$�!�$����0!�,�$@1!�$)8P�
�
�
F��� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��/41')�	+$41&!$(�
�
��$�4�0$���$�����'� �$ $��"�������� $)� ����� !��9!""� &$�  ���,!�,� ��$� "�9� ���
��7$���������!'$)� '�&"$��!�,� ��  �!�!��"� ���$� $8� �:���� $@�����$�'��$'�9!""�
��$�������&$���7!�,���� �� 7�)�9�������!'���)����$���&�'$'������$��""� ��!���
1�� $''����$�'��$���������'$�!��,$��!�$����'!�,��$$)���$�����)!'�)0����,$)�
�����7$���)0����,$����&�� �$��'K�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��/41')�	+$41&!$�
�
:���)�$'� ��$������� �$$"� !�� !'�'�����)� �����'9$�� !��1�&"! ���'!�1"$�+�$'�!���
����� 9!""� ���$ �� ��$� "!0$'� ��� ����� �$����'� !�� ��$� -����,�K� � �'� !�� &$ ��'$� !��
���$ �'��� ��� !""��� "�'$�����!��9���!'��&'$����������)��J'��$$�!�,K�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��+#1&+�8)+&���+#1&!'��!"#!$�.-$�
-/%1&:�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
��$���������)����$,��)���$���������!'$)�'�&"$��!�,�������� !"�#��'!�,��'����
$@��$�$"��'$�!��'� �� $��8����&$"!$0$���������� !"�#��'!�,�'���")��"9��'�&$�
�'$)�&�����'$�9����$$)�!����$���'�8������&����,��'� ���'����'�9!�������,$�
�$$)����������)�&"$����'!�,� !�� !'�0!��"� ������""��������'!�,�,�$'� ��� ���'$�9!���
��$��!,�$'���$$)8��
�
��!'� !'� 9��� 9$� ��0$� �� )$)! ��$)� 2���)� �$��� 9��� �� 7"$� ��������!'$)�
'�&"$��!�,8� ��$� �$��J'� $�����'� '!� $� � ��&$�� 	��� ��0$� �$'�"�$)� !�� =>�
1��1$��!$'�&$!�,�!)$��!�!$)��'�'�&6"$�����'�&'$+�$��"���&��)��$)����$'$�&$!�,�
�$ �0$�$)� ���� �$����� ��� ��$� �$��!�,'� 5��"8� � ���� �$��� !'� �$ �,�!'$)� �'� ���
$@��1"$����,��)�1�� �! $���)���'��"'��1��0!)$)����!�!�,����'�����9!��!����9$��
#��"$�'�#��$'���)�!'�9��7!�,�9!������$��"� �"�������!�!$'8��
�

Page 21



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

	��

��� ��1"$�$��� ��$��&�0$�� ��$�#��'!�,��1�!��'��$�0! $���'� !�'��9���2���)�
�$��� ����� �� �'$'� ��� '�&6"$��!�,� ��� #��$"$''� �$�1������ %  ����)��!��8�
��$� #��$"$''� �$��� ��'� '$1����$"�� !)$��!�!$)� ��)� �$ �0$�$)� 	;� ��!�'� ���
�$�1������ �  ����)��!��8� ��$�� ��0$� �"'�� 1��0!)$)� '��9 �'$� ���!�!�,� ���
���$�����)���&����,�'8�
�
��$� �!�!��"!'��!��������������!'$)�'�&"$��!�,���9$0$��9!""�,!0$���$����� !"����
$@����1�9$�'� ��� �� 7"$���������!'$)�'�&"$��!�,8� ����� �� $��$)������ ��!'� !'���
7�$$� *$�7� �$� �!��� ����� ��$����'$�0��!0$�,�0$���$���9�! ��9!""� ����� ���""��
�$)� $� "$0$"'� ��� '�&"$��!�,8� ��� 9��")� &$� ���$� �$"1��"� ��� 1��0!)$� ���$�
�$'��� $'�������� !"'J�2���)��$��'������ 7"$���!'������,�� ����$"'�1��0$�����
9��78��
�
���$��11�'!�!��� ��� !""��'���0$� "�!�$)��������$�������!'���9!""!�,����
1��0!)$���$��9!�����'9$�'������$�+�$'�!��'��'7$)����2�""����� !"8�
�
��!'�!'�������$� �'$8�
�
%��2�""����� !"��$$�!�,'����$������J'��11��� ����'��"9��'�&$$�����)$"!0$����
0$�&�"�'���$�$����1)��!�,��$�&$�'������$�1��,�$''��!'��)�!�!'����!���!'�
��7!�,����)���$���""�9��!'� �&!�$���$�&$�'������'9$��+�$'�!��'�'1$ !�! ����
��$!��1�����"!�'8�
�
:$���$���'����,� �&!�$���9���!�0$'��"��,�����'���$���7�&"$�!��$""$ ����)����)�
9��7�)$�"!�,�9!���!''�$'�!���!���$�)$��!"������)������)���&�'!'8�:$���$�9$""�
1"� $)���)�9!""� ���!��$������'9$��+�$'�!��'�'1$ !�! ��������1�����"!�'8�
�
�
F��� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��!'!$�	-24%(�
�
��$'���$�������'�11���� ��$�4�0$���$��J'������� $�$�������� !��9!""�'$$7����
 �!�!��"!'$�'�&6"$��!�,����'� !�""���$��$)�1��1$���K�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��!'!$�	-24%�
�
��� �))!�!��� ��� ��$�  �'$� ��� ��$�  ��� !""��� �"�$�)�� �$��!��$)�� 9���� ��$� �����
 ���$��'� ��� ��  �'$� !�� ��&"$� ���$$�� 9�$�$� �� �$'!)$���  ��1"�!�!�,� ��� ���
!""$,�"� '�&6"$��!�,� 9�'� !�����$)� &�� �� !�"� �$�0! $'� ����� 1$�'��'� ��0!�,�
����!���$�!�������"���9$�$���$��$����J'� ��$�'K��%�)���9�)�$'���$�������*�'�!���
���!""!���!�$� "!0!�,� !�� �� 5$�&�)�� #��'!�,� 1��1$���� 9��� �"'�� �9�'� �� ���'$�
$"'$9�$�$K�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��+#1&+�8)+&���+#1&!'��!"#!$�.-$�
-/%1&:�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
��$�4�0$���$��� 1��1�'�"'� ��"����0$�����$�'� ����� ��$�  !0!"� ��� ��$�  �!�!��"�
��$�����)�)�������))����$�1�9$�'����� ��$� ��� !"� ���)$�"�9!�����������!'$)�
'�&6"$��!�,8�
�

Page 22



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

	�

��$������� ��)� �� ��7$����� '� ���&�'$�$@��$�$"�� '$�!��'"�� ��)�9!""� &$� 0$���
!��$�$'�$)� ��� '$$� ��$� )$��!"$)� 1��1�'�"'� ��� '$$� !�� ��$�� 9!""� � ���""�� )$�$��
�$����'������'�&6"$��!�,���$!�����$'�9!������ ��'$��8�
�
%""�#��'!�,�%''� !��!����$��� !$'���$� �0$�$)�&��'�����$������&"����$�#��'!�,�
% �'� ��� >??� ��)� >>=� 9!��� �$,��)� ��� '$ ��$� ��)� �''��$)� �$��� !$'8� � %""�
#��'!�,� %''� !��!��'� ��$� �$+�!�$)� ��� $��$�� !���� �� �$��� �� �,�$$�$��� 9!���
!�)!0!)��"� �$����'�� 9�! �� 9!""� '$�� ���� $� �� '!)$J'� �!,��'� ��)� �$'1��'!&!"!�!$'�
�����,����'$������$��'���)� ��)!�!��'8�
�
���)!�!��'��$"��!�,����!� ��$���)�1��1$�����9�$�'�!1����������$ $''��!"��&$�
 �0$�$)�&����$��$��� ���,�$$�$��'8�����9!""�&$���$��$'1��'!&!"!������ !�)!0!)��"�
#��'!�,� %''� !��!��'� ��� ��7$� "$,�"� � �!��� �,�!�'�� �� �$����� !�� ��$�� ��$� !��
&�$� �������$!���$��� ���,�$$�$��8�
�
:!����$,��)������$���&"$����$$������$��������!'$�9!������$@� ��)$��!"'���!'� ���
����&$�0$�!�!$)����!�0$'�!,��$)������$�8�
�
�
F��� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��-'1&��3HI+"+&(�
�
#��'!�,�-$�$�!�� ���,$'�9!""���0$���1������)�!�1� ����������$'!)$��'���)�!��
9!""�"$�)����'��$���0!�,����"$�0$���$�&����,��&$ ��'$���$����'!�,��""�9�� $�
9!""����� �0$����$!����""��$��8�������$�������!��������$����� !"���$����&$�����
�$$�!�,'� �$� ��'� ��)� 9!��� ��$� �!�!'�$�� �$'1��'!&"$� ������$'$�  ���,$'� ���
�!,�"!,�����$�!�1� ������$'!)$��'������9$��#��"$�'K�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��-'1&��3HI+"+&�
�
%'������'9$����'�&$$��,!0$�����'��""��''��$���$�$�9�'�����$$�!�,8����)������
�$$"� !�� !'� �11��1�!��$� ���� ��$������� ��� '!�� ��$�$� '�!"!�,� ��)� ���� ��'9$�� ��$�
+�$'�!��'8������$�)�$'�����9���������'9$���$� �����7$���&�$�7���)�"$�0$���$�
���� !"� ����&$�8� � ��$� 5�!�$� �!�!'�$�� ��)� ������ ��� ���)��� ��'9$��
+�$'�!��'�1$�'���""���9���!'���$��������$��'!�,����)��'�K�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��+#1&+�8)+&���+#1&!'��!"#!$�.-$�
-/%1&:�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
��$���������)�����$�$@��$�$"�� �� $��$)�&����$� ���,$'�������'!�,�&$�$�!�8��
%"��'���� �$����,���'���&!�$���$�&$�� ����#��'!�,� ��1�$'$��$)������!��� ���
��!'����� !"�9�! �� "�!)������7$��)�9����� ��!'��)�!�!'����!��J'� 0!$9'���� ��$�
���"!�!��J'��11�""!�,��$�'��$'8��
�
:$� ��$� �"�$�)�� '$$!�,� ��$� !�1� �� ��� ��$'$�  ���,$'� ��� ���!"!$'� !�� ��$�
&����,�8����$����!"!$'���$��"�$�)���$"� ����������0$����"��,$�����$'�)�$����
��$� ���'!�,� �""�9�� $�  �1� ��)� ��$�  ���'!�,� ��� '���� !�� �0$� ��9)$)�
 !� ��'��� $'8��
�
��$'$� ���,$'�9!""�!�1� ��� ��''��""���$�'$�0! $'�!����$� ��� !"��'�9$""��'�����
1����$����,��!'��!��'8���!'�!'�9�������0$��'7$)����� $����"��$'$�� ���$������

Page 23



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

		�

 ���)!���$� �� �!,�� "$0$"� ��)� !���0��!0$� ,���1� ���  �""��$� ��$� !�1� �� ��!'� !'�
��0!�,�� ��''��""����� !"���)�1����$��'$�0! $'8��
�
����0$��"'����)�'$0$��"��$$�!�,'�9!�����,��!'��!��'�'� ���'���$"�$���������
��)� /	(� ��� )!' �''� ��  ���)!���$)� �$'1��'$8� � �� ��0$� �"'�� $�'��$)� ����� ��$�
�$����J'�2$)$���!�����$���""���9��$������$� ���,$'���)���0$��$")�9��7'��1'�
9!�����$�8��
�
�$@��������9$���$���")!�,��� ��,�$''�9!���7$��5����$�'��!� "�)!�,����'����$�
5�"! $��� ���"'����$���!�)��$ ������)����"��7������$�!�1� �������!'�!������"!'�! �
9�����)�1"���9��'�9$� ��� ��&��� ��$� ���,$'���)��!�!,��$� ��$� !�1� �� ���
�����$'!)$��'8����!'�1�� $''�!'����&�!")��� ��"!�!������ �� $��$)�!�)!0!)��"'���)�
!�'�!���!��'�� 9���  ��$� )$$1"�� �&���� ��$� �$'!)$��'� ��� ��!'� &����,�8� �:$� 9!""�
 �""$ ����'�"!)�$0!)$� $�&�'$������$�!�1� ��� ��''���$�&����,�8�
�
:$�7��9�������!""!���!�$��!�!'�$�'���$��$'1��'!&"$�����1�'�!�,������,����$'$�
�$����'8���$����0$����!)$����9���'��1$�1"$�!����!'� �������"!0$8������ �����)�
2�$�)����$��!�!'�$���$'1��'!&"$�����&$�$�!�� ���,$��!'�J��$0$��$"$ �$)8��
�
:$�9!""���0$��������$�������!�1� ��9��7!�,���,$��$�8�:$�9!""�)$���'����$������
!�)!0!)��"'���)���,��!'��!��'������� ��''� ��!'�&����,���11�'$���$'$�0! !��'�
 ��'8� �%�)�9$�)��'�������'!�1"�������9�!���&���&$ ��'$���$����$�)���,!�,�
���� �����!�����)������$'!)$��'8��
�
���!'�������$� �'$��������$�������!'���9!""!�,����1��0!)$���'9$�'������$�
+�$'�!��'��'7$)����2�""����� !"8�
�
%��2�""����� !"��$$�!�,'����$������J'��11��� ����'��"9��'�&$$�����)$"!0$����
0$�&�"�'���$�$����1)��!�,��$�&$�'������$�1��,�$''��!'��)�!�!'����!���!'�
��7!�,����)���$���""�9��!'� �&!�$���$�&$�'������'9$��+�$'�!��'�'1$ !�! ����
��$!��1�����"!�'8�
�
:$���$���'����,� �&!�$���9���!�0$'��"��,�����'���$���7�&"$�!��$""$ ����)����)�
9��7�)$�"!�,�9!���!''�$'�!���!���$�)$��!"������)������)���&�'!'8�:$���$�9$""�
1"� $)���)�9!""� ���!��$������'9$��+�$'�!��'�'1$ !�! ��������1�����"!�'8�
�
�
F� � >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��-3-2��1+)(�
�
:!""� ��$���������)� "$�)��$�&$�� $"$&���$�9!����$���$�&�!�,!�,� ��� *�'�! $����
�9�� ��� ��$1�$�� ��9�$� $J'� 7!""$�'� ��)�  ��,����"��$� �""� ���'$� !�0�"0$)� !��
� �!$0!�,� ��!'� ��)��&�0$��""��$0!""$� ��)����$$����9�$� $�� � &��� �"'�� �$,�$��
����� 1�"! $� !� ��1$�$� $�� �� !'�� ��)� ���&$� $0$��  ����1�!��� &�� �$)� ��$�
��!,!��"� $�+�!��� ��)� ���� "$�)� ��� �!'� ���$�� ���)$�$�'�  ���!��!�,� ��� $0�)$�
*�'�! $�� ��)� 9!""� ��$�� �"'�� �,�$$� ������ 9�!"'�� ��$�$� ��0$� &$$�� '!,�!�! ����
!�1��0$�$��'� !�� 1�"! !�,� !�� ���)��� '!� $� ��$� "��)���7��� 1�$�'��� �$1�����
��$�$���$�'�!""�'$�!��'�1��&"$�'������$@��1"$�!����$��&�'$����C'��1���)�'$�� �D�
1�9$�'���)�!����$�"� 7����$���! ��!���!����11�!���$������'$�!�������,$�$���
1�'!�!��'� !�� ��$� �$���1�"!���� 5�"! $�� ��)� 9!""� ��$�� �,�$$� ��� ��7$�
�$1�$'$����!��'� ��� ��$� �$9�����!''!��$�� � ��)� ��� ��$� &����,��  �����)$��
�������$� �� $1�����C����"D�1�"! !�,�'���")�!� "�)$���7!�,���$�1�"! $��$�"$ �����

Page 24



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

	<�

�""� "$0$"'� ��� ��$� ��� $� ��)�� �&�0$� �""�� �$'1$ �� �""� ��� ��$�  �����!�!$'� ��$��
1�"! $K�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��-3-2��1+)�
�
���+�$'�!���9�'��"'��)!�$ �$)������$���&!�$���$�&$�8�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��)14��)"!4���!*/'5��+5-$�
�
����7������""���!������������+�$'�!��8���
�
��$���������)��""� ��� !""��'�9$" ��$���$� ��0! �!������ �9����� ��$�7!""$�'����
��$1�$����9�$� $8�
�
�0$����$� �"'�� �$$"'� �� '$�'$� ��� �)�!���!��� ���� ��$� ��9�$� $� ���!"�� ���� ��$�
�$�� !���� ����,$���)�)!,�!���9!���9�! �� ��$����0$� ��)� �$)� ��$�'$"0$'� !��
��$�?��$��'�'!� $���$1�$�J'�)$���8�
�
���!'����$ �,�!'$)��� �������"$�'��9!��!����$��$���1�"!����5�"! $�!�'$"��������1�"! $�
!� ��1$�$� $��  ����1�!��� ��)� !�'�!���!���"!'$)� �� !'��  ��&!�$)� ��� )$��� ��$�
��9�$� $����!"��*�'�! $������$��!�$������$1�$�J'����)$�8��� ��9��7���'�&$$��
)��$����!�1��0$���$��$���1�"!����1�"! $�&����'���$��$ $���$0$��'�'������)!�,�
��$�7!""!�,�������7���,,�����)���$�$�'�!�,��!��'� !������$��������$�$� !'�9��7�
'�!""����&$�)��$8��
�
��$� ��$�� ����� )$�!�!�$"�� �$$)'� �))�$''!�,� !'� ��$� 9!)$'1�$�)� '$�'$� ���
,�!$0�� $�!����$�&"� 7� �����!����0$����$��'$����'��1���)�'$�� �8���9$" ��$�
��$�  ���$��'� ��� -$����)� #�,��6#�9$�� ��$� �$���1�"!���� 5�"! $�
����!''!��$���!��9�! ���$�$@1�$''$)��!'� �� $����&������$�)!'1��1���!����$�
�'$� ��� '��1� ��)� '$�� �8� �� 9$" ��$� �"'�� �!'� 1"��� ��� ��"0$� ��$� ���&$�� ���
���)���'��1'���)�'$�� �$'�!�� ��)� �'�!��������$�1�����!�1��0$��$"��!��'�9!���
&"� 7���)����$��$���! ��!���!��� �����!�!$'8�
�
%��� 1$� $1�!��� ����� 1�"! !�,� !'� ���,$�!�,� ��� )!' �!�!���!�,� �,�!�'�� ����
 �����!��� !'� �&0!��'"�� )$��!�$���"� ��� 1�"! $6 �����!��� �$"��!��'� ��)� ��$�
���� !"8�:$���$�'$�'!�!0$����1! 7!�,��1���� �� $��'��&����'��1���)�'$�� ��!��
��$� &����,�8� ��$� ��9$�� #��"$�'� ���1� V� �$�� �� 2�����  ���!��$'� ����$$��
+����$�"�� ��)� $�,�,$'� �$1�$'$����!0$'� ��� ��$�  �����!��� !�� ��  ��'��� �!0$�
)!�"�,�$�9!�����$�5�"! $������)����1���)��$�� �8������$0!$9'���$�)�������'��1�
��)�'$�� �� !�� ��$�&����,����)� !'��&"$���� ��""$�,$���$�5�"! $��������$�'����
 �� $��8� � ��� !'� ���$�)$)� &�� �� )!0$�'$� ���,$� ��� !�)!0!)��"'�� !� "�)!�,� ���'$�
�$1�$'$��!�,�-�����)������� �����!�!$'8�2����$��9��7�!'� ���$��"����)$�9���
��� )$0$"�1� �� ��9$�� #��"$�'� '��1� ��)� '$�� �� ������ '1$ !�! �""�� ���� ����,�
1$�1"$8�
�
��$�5�"! $���$�'$"0$'�� 7��9"$),$���$���!"!�,'������$�1�'����)���$��� �������
��$��'�!""���0$�9��7� ���)�8���"��&��9��7!�,����$� "�'$"��9!��� ��$�5�"! $� ���
9$� �$"1� ��$�� ��� ��!'� *����$�8� ��$� ���� !"J'� ���$'�! � S!�"$� $� ��)� #��$�
��!�$��$���9��7� "�'$"��9!�����9$��#��"$�'�5�"! $�������!������$�����!���
9��� ��7$� �""� ����'� ��� ���$�  �!�$� 0$��� '$�!��'"�� ��)� ��$� 1����$�'�!1�
�$"��!��'�!1� !'� 0$��� '����,8� � ��$�� ��$� )$)! ��$)� 1����$�'� !�� ���$�)!�,� ��)�

Page 25



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

	A�

 ����!&��!�,� ��� ��$� ���� !"� ���� #��$� �� !)$��� 5��$"� ��)� �"'�� ��$� �����$,! �
��9$��#��"$�'����5"� $�����#��$�2����8���
�
�
F��� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��!%2!5��+;1''(�
�
������$�������1"$�'$��$""��$�9�����$����&$����� ��1"�!��'��&������$����1�
���1'�9$����1�&��	>F�!����$��!�'����"�����	��	K�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��!%2!5��+;1''�
�
��9$��#��"$�'�1$�1"$�)��J�� ��1"�!����"$''���$����0$��$�"� ��'$8��:������$�
���� ,�!�,� ��� )�� �&���� ��$� !�$0!��&"$� !� �$�'$� !��  ��1"�!��'� 9�$�� ��$�
��'��$�)� ���! $� !'�  "�'$)� ��)� 1$�1"$� 9!""� ��0$� ��� ���0$"� �� �� �����$�� ���
�  $''����� !"�'$�0! $'K�
�
�!%*-&%!� #5� �-/&0122-$� �21#-$� �)-/4)/$5�� �+#1&!'� �!"#!$� .-$�
�!%-/$0!%�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
�0$����$�"�'���9���$��'���$�$���'�&$$�����)!' $��!&"$�!� �$�'$�!�� ��1"�!��'�
�$,��)!�,� ��$� '��1� '��1'8� ��)$$)� ��$���'�� �$ $��� +����$�� �$�)!�,� <� �$ �
	�����)���$��$9$'�����&$����� ��1"�!��'�����	�������'��*�'��>�8��
�
��$��!,�$'�����&$����� ��1"�!��'� �$ $!0$)� !�� ��$�1�$ $)!�,�1$�!�)�9�'�?8�
��!'�9�'� !�� ��$�'$ ��)�+����$�����	���8���$��!�'��+����$�����	��	�'�9�
;� ��1"�!��'��&�����!'�)��11$)����*�'����!����$�'$ ��)�+����$�8���$�$�!'��"'��
��� )!' $��!&"$� 1���$��� ��� ��$� �����$� ���  ��1"�!��'� �$ $!0$)� ����,�� 1��7!�,�
�$"��$)�+�$'�!��'��'��""���  �����������$���*��!������ �� $��'8�
�
:�!"$��""�  ��1"�!��'���$���'��� $����)!'�11�!���$�����)� "$���!�,���$�&$�'�
'���")� )��9� '��$�  ������� ����� ��$� �� �� ����� ��!'� �!��� !�"� �$��� 9$� ��0$�
�$ $!0$)�*�'��<?� ��1"�!��'��&����������$�'��1�'��1'8��
�
%��$��  ��'�"���!��� 9!��� ��$� ���)$� ��!��'� ��)� �$'!)$��'� ��$�$� !'� ��9� ���
'1$ !�! �1��1�'�"���� "�'$���$���$����1����1������'��$�)8�
�
�
F�=� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$�I+$+��+;1%(�
�
:�����'���$�������!,���$)���$����!����,�$$)�&��2�""����� !"� !���$1�$�&$��
	��� 9�! �� �$'�"0$)� ����� C�!�� 3���� � ���,�"� 4��)$�'�� �!""9�""� 5��7� ��)�
�'"��)� 4��)$�'� 9!""� �$��!�� '�"$"�� ���� ��$� �'$� ��� �$'!)$��'� ��)�  �����!���
,���1'�������$�1��1�'$'�����$ �$��!����"$!'��$���)�'1���'K�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$�I+$+��+;1%�
�
��� !'�)!'�11�!��!�,� ��$�������9!""����� *�'�!����!'�� �!��'� !��0!$9���� ��$�1$�!�!���
'!,�$)� &�� ����� ���)�$)'� ��� �$'!)$��'8� � #�'� �$�  ��'!)$�$)� ��$� ��""�
!�1"! ��!��'� ��� �!�!�,� ���� 1��7'�� '� �� �'� )���,$�  ��'$)�� �$'��! �!��� ���

Page 26



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

	
�

�$'!)$��'J� �'$�� ��$�'� &$!�,�  ��)��$)� ���� ��)� ���'� ��7!�,� !�� ���)$�� ����
�$'!)$��'� ��� '���� � �!0$I� ��)� ��$� "!7$"�� !� �$�'$� ���  �!")���)� �&$'!��� �����
�$'�"�!�,�"� 7����$@$� !'$K�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��+&1+�8)+&���+#1&!'��!"#!$�.-$��/2'/$!�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
��$�2�""����� !"����!�����)��!��� !�"�!�1"! ��!��'���)�9�'���$�$���$��$�$��$)�
&� 7������&!�$������ ��'!)$���!��8�
�
:�!"'�� 9$� ��)$�'���)� "� �"�  �� $��� 9$� �$��!��  ���!��$)� ��� �'!�,� 1��7'�
� ��''���$�&����,������$0$��'8��
�
�������$�''��$�������������&$�����1�!��'B�
��
•� ��$����� !"�!'� ���$��"�� ����!�,��������$�'!&!"!���'��)�����"��7����9�! ��

1��7'�����&$�'�!��&"$�����)!��$�$�����1$'����� �!0!��8����9!""�$�'��$������
�$'!)$��J'� �� $��'������$���1$'����$0$��'���$���7$��!�����  ����8��

•� �0$��'�9!""�&$��$")�!��1��7'�� ��''���$�&����,�������*�'��!���'"$������,'�
1��7'8��

•� ��$����&$�����$0$��'���7!�,�1"� $�9!""�&$�'�&*$ ���������11$��"!�!�8��
•� ���1��7�9!""�&$� ��1"$�$"��'���������$�1�&"! ���������!�$��'��!�$'�9!""�&$�

�$'��! �$)����)$'!,���$)���$�'�9!��!����$�1��78��
•� %����$ $''�����$1�!�'����,��''���$�'�������$��)���,$�9!""�&$� �0$�$)�&��

)$1�'!�'���7$���������$��!�$�8��
•� %� ����!&��!�������""�!� ��$���!'$)�9!""�&$�'1$������!�1��0!�,���)�

��!���!�!�,���$�1��7'�'��������$'!)$��'�9!""�&$�$�!���������$'$�$0$��'8�
�

����� ���$�� ���)���&����,�'� ��0$� '!�!"��� 1�"! !$'�9�! ����7$�  ���$� !�"�
�'$������$!��1��7'8��
�
��9��")��"'�� "!7$� ��� ��7$� ��!'��11�����!��� ����$�!�)� ��� !""��'�9���9$� !�� ��$�
���� !"���0$�&$$����� $)����"��7��������1��7'���)����$���''$�'���)��!�)�9��'�
9$�  ��� ��7$� ���$� �$0$��$� ����� ��$�8� ��!'� !'� ���� �� 1�'!�!��� 9$� 9��")�
 ���'$����&$�!�8���$����'$�0��!0$�"$)� ��"!�!��� ��'���0$��$)� $)��������)!�,�
&�� N;	�8���!'� �)�!�!'����!��� !'�  ���!��$)� ��� $�'��!�,� ��$�$� ��$� ���  ��'� ���
�����"!�$�'$�0! $'8�:$���0$���!���!�$)�����T������$�0! $����!")�$�J'��$���$'�
��)� �)$�'� ����$'8� :$� ��$�  ���!��!�,� ��� &�!")� ��)� !�1��0$� ����  ��� !"�
���'!�,8�%""���$'$���$�'$�0! $'�9�! ��9$�7��9���$�$@��$�$"��!�1��������������
�$'!)$��'8�#�9$0$��!����)$����� ���!��$����'�11������$'$�'$�0! $'�9$���0$����
�!�)�9��'����!� �$�'$��$0$��$����������$@!'�!�,��''$�'8��
�
����0$� ��'!)$�$)���$�!�1"! ��!��'���)�&$"!$0$�!��!'�&$��$�������0$�!� ��$������
$0$��'������ ����!&��$���� �����!��� ��$'!�������������7$� ��'����$''$��!�"�
'$�0! $'���)� "� �"�1$�1"$� *�&"$''8���$�$�9!""�&$�&��)������,$�$��'� !��1"� $�
���$�'��$�������'���")�����)���,$��  ����!��9!""�&$��$1�!�$)�����$��!�$�'� �'�8�
��$�$�9!""��"9��'�&$�1�&"! ��  $''�'�������$��$$)��!''����������$!��$@$� !'$8��
�
�
�

Page 27



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

	=�

F��� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��)1$1+�8)+'/&(�
�
������$��������$""���!'����� !"�9����!'�&$!�,�)��$����!� �$�'$��$ � "!�,�!����$�
&����,�K�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��)1$1+�8)+'/&�
�
��$'� ��$������� '���$����  �� $��� ����� ��$� 1��1�'$)� N
�  ���,$� ���� &�"7��
9�'�$�  �""$ �!��� �!'7'� "!��$�!�,� ��$�-����,��9!���)!' ��)$)������$''$'�� '���'�
��)����$��1�""��!�,�)$&�!'K�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��)+)!4��21���+#1&!'��!"#!$�.-$��&;1$-&"!&'�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
��!'��)�!�!'����!��� !'�  ���!���""�� '��!0!�,� ��� !�1��0$� ��$� &����,�J'� �$ � "!�,�
1$������� $8�
�
���� ���$��� �$ � "!�,�1$������� $�����U� !'�	>8
F��,�!�'���� ���,$��0�"�$����
	;8	=F8�
�
:$���0$���)$���7$�����$0!$9�������� �$ � "!�,�)!'1�'�"� ����� �� ����""�9���$�
���� !"� ���  �""$ �� �� ,�$��$�� ���,$� ��� ���$�!�"'� ����� 1�$0!��'"�� 9��")� ��0$�
,��$����"��)�!""8��
�
%� �$ � "!�,�  ��1�!,�� 9!""� &$� "��� �$)� ����� '�11���'� ���� �0$��""� �$ � "!�,�
'����$,�8��
�
����))!�!��������!'��9$���0$�'�  $''��""��'$ ��$)�$@�$���"����)!�,����!�1��0$�
�$ � "!�,� � ��''� ��$� &����,�8� 5���� ��� ��!'� 9!""� &$� �'$)� ��� 1�� ��'$� �� �$9�
�$ � "!�,��$��'$� �""$ �!���0$�! "$8�
�
��$��$��!�)$�������!'����)!�,�!'�&$!�,��'$)�!��1����$�'�!1�9!���5�1"���#%��%�
��B�
�
•� ��1��0$���)$�,����)��$ � "!�,�'����,$��� !"!�!$'�
•� �@�$�)���$��0�!"�&!"!��������)$�,����)��$ � "!�,�'����,$��� !"!�!$'�
•� ��!�!��$����$)� ��!���1��,������ �'$)����)$ �$�'!�,� �����!���!������

�$ � "$)�9�'�$�
•� %�)� ��0�'��$'!)$��'�����$0!$9���$�"� ��!�����)��0�!"�&!"!���������'��$$��

�$ � "!�,�&!�'�
�

�$ � "!�,� $��$ �!0$"�� !�0�"0$'� ��  ��&!���!��� ��� ��0!�,� �'$��"� �$��'� ���
�$ � "!�,� �'� 9$""� �'� !�����!�,� ��)� $�,�,!�,� �$'!)$��'� ���� ��$� ��@!����
!�1� ��� ��''���$�-����,�8�
�
����� ���!)$��� ����� ��$�-����,�J'� �$ � "!�,�1$������� $�9!""� �����$�� !�1��0$�
9!�����$�'����$,!$'�&$!�,�!�1"$�$��$)8��
�
��)��������0$����� �� $��'� ����� !����)� !�,���0$�����)$'�� ���,$� ����&�"7��
9�'�$� 9!""� !� �$�'$� "!��$�!�,� !�� ��$� -����,�8� %� ��*��!��� ��� ���)��� ���� !"'�

Page 28



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

	;�

��0$� �"�$�)�� !����)� $)�  ���,!�,� ���� &�"7�� 9�'�$� ��)� ��0$� ���� '$$�� ����
!� �$�'$'�!���"���!11!�,����"!��$�!�,8����'���")��"'��&$����$)��������$����� !"���'�
���$@ $""$���$���� $�$���1�"! �������!'��'$)�9�$���$ $''���8����
�
�
F�F� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��+1/"��1+)(�
�
������$�������!��������$����� !"����9�$��$����$��! ���!@��$���$���'��$1�!)�
!�'� N?
������ '����6�$��� "����� �'� �,�$$)� &�� �! ��$"� ($!��� 9�$�� �$� 9�'�
���� !"��$�)$�K�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��+1/"��1+)�
�
:!""���$���������'9$�����+�$'�!��K�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��+&1+�8)+&���+#1&!'��!"#!$�.-$��/2'/$!�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
��$� �$,�"� �$1����$��� !'�  ���$��"�� 9��7!�,� ��� ��!'� ����$��� ��9$0$�� ���
�$1���$�����'�&$$����)$��'�����$�8��
�
%��2�""����� !"��$$�!�,'����$������J'��11��� ����'��"9��'�&$$�����)$"!0$����
0$�&�"�'���$�$����1)��!�,��$�&$�'������$�1��,�$''�����!'��)�!�!'����!������)�
��$�� �""�9�  �&!�$�� �$�&$�'� ��� ��'9$�� +�$'�!��'� '1$ !�! � ��� ���� 1�����"!�'8�
�
:$���$���'����,� �&!�$���9���!�0$'��"��,�����'���$���7�&"$�!��$""$ ����)����)�
9��7�)$�"!�,�9!��� !''�$'�!���!���$�)$��!"������)������)���&�'!'8�:$���$�9$""�
1"� $)���)�9!""� ���!��$������'9$��+�$'�!��'�'1$ !�! ��������1�����"!�'8��
�
�
F�C� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$�
!2+2��441&(�
�
#�9�)�$'���$�������*�'�!�����$��$ $��"�������� $)�'!,�!�! �����$����!'$��9�! ��
9!""� �!�� �$����'� �"�$�)�� '���,,"!�,� 9!��� �!'!�,�  �'�'� !�� ���$�� ��!"!�!$'�� ��""!�,�
9�,$'���)�&$�$�!�� ���,$'����)��!'!�,��$$'���)� ���,$'�����1��7!�,���)����$��
���� !"��$�0! $'����)�9�����$�'��$'�9!""��$�&$���7!�,�����!�!,��$�!�'�$��$ �K�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$�
!2+2��441&�
�
��9��")���0$�$@1$ �$)���$������������0$�'�!)�9����� �!����$�9!""�&$���7!�,8��
�������$�$���$��''��$���$�$���$�����$�'��$'�1"���$)K�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��+#1&+�8)+&���+#1&!'��!"#!$�.-$�
-/%1&:�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
��$���������)� �� ��$�$@��$�$"��  �� $��$)�&�� ��$� �!��� !�"� )!��! �"�!$'� �� !�,�
�����$'!)$��'��'��� ��'$+�$� $����4�0$���$���1�"! �8���!'� !'�9���9$���0$�
��7$����$�)$ !'!��������$$.$���$����� !"���@�������$�'$ ��)��$���!��'�  $''!���
E�9!�������0$��,$�'�0!�,�����0$��NA������$� �����'$��")8�

Page 29



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

	?�

�
#�9$0$�� ����'�� �$�!�)����� !""��'� ����� ��$�#��'!�,��$0$��$�%  ����� !'���
'$1����$� �  ����� 9�! �� ��'�� &$� &�"�� $)� 9!������  ��''� '�&'!)�� ����� ��$�
,$�$��"����)8�
�
��!'� 4�0$���$��J'� 1�"! �� ��'� ��� $)� �'� ��� !� �$�'$� �$��'� �����,�� ��$!��
���!���"�'� !�"��$���1�"! ���9�! ����'��''��$)���9$��#��"$�'�9!""�!� �$�'$�!�'�
�$��'�E��$@�� �$�����)� !�� �����$� �$��'��9$""� !��$@ $''���� ��$� ���$���� !��"��!��8�
:������ ����"'���''��$��$�&$�'� !'������ ��$�� ���"��$��� !� �$�'$�9!""�&$�9$""�
&$"�9� ��!'�4�0$���$��J'� ,�!)$"!�$� �$��� !� �$�'$8����$�0$�� �""� ���� !"'� ��$�
&$!�,���� $)������!'$��$��'���)����'���$�����,'����$�"�9$'��!� �$�'$'8�
�
2!��""����""����� �$'!)$��'����#��'!�,�-$�$�!��9!""�'�!""���0$� ��$!�� �$��� �0$�$)��
$0$��9!����$����"�4�0$���$��� ��'8����"!�!���$����!'$'�9$���0$�$�'��$)������
�##�)$"!0$�'�'!,�!�! ����'�0!�,'��9!������)���,!�,���$�)$"!0$�����������$ $���
#��$'�5��,����$8��
�
����� ���!)$����������""�9!�,���$� ���,$'���)$������$��##�-���)�9$�9!""�'$$�
���!�1��0$�$���!��$��! !$� !$'8�
�
��$� ������ ��)� �� ��0$� 9��7$)� ��� $�'��$� ����� ��$� �$��� �!'$� !'� �'� "�9� �'�
1�''!&"$�� ,!0$�� ��$� '$��"$�$��� �����  $����"� ,�0$���$��� ��)� ���� ��&!�!��'�
!�1��0$�$��'� 1��,����$8� ��$� �����J'� 1��1�'$)� &�),$�� !'� )$'!,�$)� ���
1���$ ��'$�0! $'���)�7$$1����$����$��!���$'!)$��'J�1� 7$�'B�:$���0$����.$��
���� !"���@I��$'!)$��'��$$'���)� ���,$'���0$�&$$��"��,$"�����.$�������$���"��
�!'!�,�!�"!�$�9!���!��"��!��I�9$���$�!�0$'�!,��!�,���$� �$��!���������$�$�,�� �6�1�
9�! �� 9!""� �$)� $� �$'!)$��'J� &!""'� ��)� 9$� ��$� $@�$�)!�,� ���� ���)��� �!0!�,�
:�,$�1�"! ��������� ����� ���'8��
�
�
F���� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��+;14��&-D4-&(�
�
:!""� ��$� ������ 1"$�'$� ���"!�$� 9���� �$�'��$'� �$� !'� ��7!�,� ��� 1�����$� ��$�
�$� �!�,�����!'�����!����9$��#��"$�'�' ���"'K�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��+;14��&-D4-&�
�
�!)���$�������'��)��4�����!'��������' ���"K�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��21/$��+)"+&���+#1&!'��!"#!$� .-$��)124$!&@%�
�!$;10!%�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8��
�
���,�$$��������$��$� �!�,�����!'�����!��' ���"'�!'�$@��$�$"��!�1������I���9$0$��
��$��$'1��'!&!"!���������!'��$'�'�9!�����$�' ���"'8�
�
����������$"�� 9$� ��0$� ��� ���)!�,� ��� �$'��� $'� ��� 1�����$� ��$� '1$ !�! �
�$� �!�,�����!'�����!������' ���"'8��
�

Page 30



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

	>�

#�9$0$��9$���0$����)$)�B���!�!������&����4������)�%6"$0$"������""�'�&*$ �'8�
:$�7��9��������!'�'�11�����$"1'�1�1!"'�����$$"��&"$������7$����'�&*$ �'�9�! ��
��$����$�!��$""$ ���""�� ��""$�,!�,��!� "�)!�,��!'����8��
�
��$�������'��)!$)�&�����6�$0$"���)�%6�$0$"�#!'����8�
�
�
F���� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$�8-%$/��441&(�
�
2�""�9!�,���$� ���� 0!'!�� ��)� ��$� �!��'� "�'�� �$��� ��)� "� 7� ��� !�0�"0$�$��� ���
�#��'� !�� '�11���!�,� ��$� &����,�R'� �$'!)$��'�� ��'� �� �$0!'$)� '����$,�� &$$��
�,�$$)� !�� �$��'� ��� �#��'� !�0�"0$�$��� !��  �����!��� '��$��� !�� �����$�
)!'���&�� $'������$�' �"$�9!��$''$)�"�'���$���9$�$����&$��$1$��$)K�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$�8-%$/��441&�
�
N	
?�=�����'�&$$�� !)$��!�!$)� ���� ���)!�,�� �!0!�!$'� !�� ��$�-����,����� ��&���
��$��!,�$'��"$0$"'����,��,���)�������0!�"$� $�����	���$��'8�����9����!���0��!0$�
9��'�9!""���!'�&$�'1$�����)���9�9!""�0�"�$��������$��&$�� �!$0$)K�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��)14��)"!4���!*/'5��+5-$�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!���&���!��!'����� ���$ �������!���!��������#��J'�9$�$�
����!�0�"0$)�!��'�11���!�,���$�-����,�'��$'!)$��'�)��!�,���$�����0!'!�������$�
�!��'8�
�
���!'�!�1�����������$�$�&$��������#��J'���$������!���1�"! $8���!'�!'���'1$ !�"!'��
1�"! $���"$8��
�
-��� )��!�,� ��$'$� !� !)$��'��#��J'� 9$�$� )$1"��$)� !��  ��'�"���!��� 9!��� ��$�
5�"! $������)$���7$��!,��0!'!&!"!���1����"'� !����$�'���� ��$�-����,����$1��������
1��&"$�'������,��1�$������,$)� �����)� ����$"'���)�1��0!)$��$�''���� $�
��� �$'!)$��'8�%""� )$1"���$��� )$ !'!��'� ����� 1���� ��� �� *�!��� ��'7!�,� 1�� $''�
!�0�"0!�,���$�5�"! $8��
�
%����$��$!,��������$��!���)!'���&�� $'���$�1�"! $���")�$0$��&�)�����'����������$�
'��$$�� '�� ����� '1$ !�""�� ���!�$)� 1�"! $� ���! $�'�  ��")� )$�"� 9!��� ��$� '��$$��
0!�"$� $8��
�
��$� �$�0! $� #$�)� ���$�� ������!�!$'� 9�'� !��  ��'�����  ���� �� 9!��� ��$�
-����,�� ������)$�� ��)� �!'� �$��� �$�)$�'� �����,����� ��$� $1!'�)$��
�''$''!�,� ��)� 1��0!)!�,� ��$� "� �"� ������!��� �$'1��'$8� %�� ��$� $�)� ��� ��!'�
$1!'�)$� ��$� �$�0! $� #$�)� �$�� 9!��� ��$� '$�!��� 1�"! $� '����� ��� �''$''� ��$�
&����,���$'1��'$8��
�
:�!"'�� !�� !'� �$ �,�!'$)� ����� ��$� 1�"! $� '$�0! $� '���,,"$)� ��� 1��0!)$� '���! !$���
1�"! $����! $�'�� ��''����)���)��!�,���$��!���� !��9�'��$ �,�!'$)��������$�"� �"�
������!�����)�1$�����$)�9$""�� ��''��� ���,$������$�'� !� "�)!�,� ��$��#��R'��
��$��!0!"�����!�,$� ���$�������S����1!)��$'1��'$��$������)�$�$�,$� ��
�$'1��'$��$��8�
�

Page 31



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

<��

�
F���� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��'!*)+&1!��+'-&�'-�')!��!*/'5��+5-$(�
��
:��")� ��$��$1���������� �,�$$� ����� ��$� AF� !� �$�'$� !�� &��,"���� �0$�� ��$�
1�'��	������'�!��-$����"�4�$$��������!'���'$�!��'� �� $�����)�9��")��$�*�!��
9!����$������,$���$�-����,��������)$����)���$�-4�����$���$!,�&������)�
�$��������)$���7$����!��$)!��$��$0!$9������$�9��)���)�!�1"$�$���&��,"����
1�$0$��!����$�'��$'�!����$�9��)K�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�#5��-/&0122-$��'!*)+&1!��+'-&�
�
�'���$��$1�����������9��$��������$��$��$'��&��� �����S! �!����11����!'�&�'$)�
���:�"����� 2��$'�� ��)� )�$'� �$� '�11���� �� &��� �� &$!�,� �1$�$)� �$��$�� ���
��9$��#��"$�'K�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��)14��)"!4���!*/'5��+5-$�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
%��� !� �$�'$� !�� &��,"���� !'� �&0!��'"�� ��  �� $��� ��)� ��$� ���� !"� ��)� !�'�
1����$�'���$�9��7!�,��!�$"$''"������))�$''�!�8��
�
��$�$���$������&$������� ���'�9�! ��!�1� ���1�����!'�1���! �"���1$������� $�
!�)! ����8���$� ���$���$ ����! � "!���$���)�"$0$"'������$�1"���$�����$� *�'��
�9�������$'$��� ���'8��
�
���!'�$� ����,!�,�������$��������$��0$��""���$�)�����&��,"����'!� $�%�,�'��	��
��'�)$ �$�'$)�&��	<F��$'�"�!�,�!����$�-����,��1$�����!�,�&$��$������������
���$�����)���%�����!�!$'8��
�
�����,�� ��$�  "�'$� 1����$�'�!1� 9��7!�,� 9!��� ��$� 1�"! $� �� ���&$�� ��� �$9�
!�!�!��$'���0$�&$$��"��� �$)B�
�
•� ��)$)! ��$)�&��,"�����$1���!�,�'�'�$���
•� �� 1��*$ �� ��� 1��� �!0$"�� )$�$ �� ���$�)$�'� ��)� !�1��0$� !�0$'�!,��$�

�$ ��!+�$'��
•� ��1��,����$�����!,��!�1� ���1$���!��'�1"���$)��0$����$��$@��=������'��
•� ���$9����$�)$������,$�$�����!��9�! ����'���1���! �"����� �'�������,$�!�,�

L��1����$�)$�'J�!����$�-����,���
�
:�!"'�� !�� !'� )!'�11�!��!�,� ����� ���$'� ��� &��,"���� ��0$� !� �$�'$)� !�� -$����"�
4�$$��������$0$���$������!'�&$!�,���)$�����))�$''���!'���$�)8��
�
�� ��!'$)� ��!'� !�� ���$$�!�,� 9!��� ��$� -����,�� ������)$�� �$ $��"�� ��)� ��0$�
��,$)��!������$1����&� 7�����$�!��)�$� ���'$���$���� ��$'������$��$�'��$'���
��0$� �$�$��$)� ��� �&�0$� ��)� �� 9��")� &$� ��11�� ��� �$$)� ��$� �$'�"�� ��� ��!'�
 ��0$�'��!���&� 7�������8�
�
-������$����� !"���)���$�5�"! $�9��7�$@ $1�!���""�� "�'$"��9!���0! �!��'�11����
��������&$����� "$0$"'8� �%'����%�����!���9$� ���)�'1$ !�! ����$'�! �S!�"$� $�
%)0!'��'�'1$ !�! �""������0! �!�'������9$��#��"$�'���)���!'�9��7�!'���)$���7$��

Page 32



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

<�

!�� ��$�-����,�8� ����))!�!��� ��$�1�"! $�9��7� "�'$"��9!��� ��$�'$�0! $� �$�$��!�,�
0! �!�'���� �!�$������$�8��
�
:$�9!""� ���!��$�������)����$'�! �S!�"$� $�%)0!'��'8�
�
�
F���� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��+$2-�	1##%(�
�
���� ��$� ������ 1"$�'$� �$""� �$� ��9� ����� 0!'!�'� 9$�$� ��)$� &�� �$'!)$��'�
�����'��$�)���$����1����1�"�'���$����$,��)!�,�#��'!�,�-$�$�!�K�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+2�?/!%'1-&�#5��-/&0122-$��+$2-�	1##%�
�
�$'!)$��'����$�)!�,���$��$$�!�,���$�)!'���$)��������$'$�+�$'�!��'���$�&$!�,�
��)$� �� *�7$8� � 5$�1"$� ��$� �� !�,� �� '!,�!�! ���� "�9$�!�,� ��� &$�$�!�'� ��)� ��$�
"�'!�,�����$����1����1�9�$�$���$�� ��")��&��!���)0! $8��:!""���$���������7$�
�� ���!��$�������$0!$9���$�)$ !'!������ "�'$���'��$�)���$����1����1K�
�
�!%*-&%!� #5� �-/&0122-$� �21#-$� �)-/4)/$5�� �+#1&!'� �!"#!$� .-$�
�!%-/$0!%�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
%� ����"� ��� 	��=?����'!�,�&$�$�!�� $�+�!�!$'���0$�&$$������,$)� �����,�� ��$�
��'��$�)� ���� !�� 	��	8� ��$�&$�'� '���")� &$� �9��$� ����� ��$� �����"��
�0$��,$����&$�����0!'!�'���'���"0$)��0$����$� ���'$������$��$��8�
�
%��$��  ��'�"���!���9!��� �$'!)$��'� ��)����)$���!��'� ��$�$� !'� ��9���� '1$ !�! �
1��1�'�"���� "�'$���$���$����1����1������'��$�)8�
�
�
F�� � >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$�	2-$1+��)1!&!2(�
�
���'!)$�!�,� ��$� �!'!�,� !� !)$��'� ��� �$��"� ��$��� ����� 1�&"! � �$���!�"'I� ��9�
����� !� !)$��'�����$��"� ��$��� �������1�&"! ��$���!�"� !����9$��#��"$�'���'�
��7$�� 1"� $� !�� ��$� "�'�� �$���� 9!""� ��$������� 1"$�'$� !������ ��$����� !"� 9����
�$�'��$'� �$� ��'� ��7$�� ��� $�'��$� ����� 9��� �$���!�"'� ��$� 1���$ �$)� !�� ��$�
���)���-����,�������9$��#��"$�'K�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$�	2-$1+��)1!&!2�
�
:!""� ��$� ������ "��7� ��� ��7!�,� 1���� !�� ��$� 1!"��� !�!�!��!0$� ����� 9!""� '��1� ' ��1�
)$�"$�'������)$�"!�,�!�� �'������' ��1��$��"K�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��)14��)"!4���!*/'5��+5-$�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
2!�'�"��� �� 9��")� "!7$� ��� '��$''� ����� ��$� ������ ��)� �� ��7$� ���� )!'�$'1$ ���"�
&$��0!���� ��9��)'� :��� �$���!�"'� $@��$�$"�� '$�!��'"�8� �� ��� '��$� ����� �""�

Page 33



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

<	�

�$�&$�'�9!""��,�$$�9!����$� ����� ��$�1$�1"$�9�����)$���7$� ��$'$� ��$��'���$�
 ��1"$�$"��)$'1! �&"$8�
�
:�!"'�� ��$�$���$�0$����$9�:����$���!�"'� !����$�-����,���������$�������� !"�
"��)� ��)� ��$�$���$� ��$� �$'1��'!&!"!��� ��� ��$� ���� !"� 9$� 9!""� 9��7� 9!��� ����
�#��'�����S��$�9��7���)� ��$�5�"! $� ���$�'��$� �����9$���!���!�� 0!,!"�� $�
��)� ���!��$����1���$ ����$'$�!�1��������$���!�"'8�
�
��9��")�"!7$�����$�''��$��$�&$�'����������0$��$ $!0$)�����$1���'������$��'����
��!'������$8�

����!�7�!������&$��$"1��"����'$��������$��$+�!�$�$��'�9$��"�$�)����0$�!��1"� $�
���� �����""!�,�' ��1��$��"8���$�"!�,�!��' ��1��$��"�!'� �����""$)�&����$�� ��1�
�$��"��$�"$�'�% ��>=A���)��""�' ��1��$��"�)$�"$�'����)!�,�!����9$��#��"$�'�
��'�� �$,!'�$�� 9!��� ��$����� !"8� � �$,!'����!��� "�'�'� ���$$� �$��'� ��)���'�� &$�
�$�$9$)�!����$��$,!'�$�$)�1$�'���9!'�$'���� ���������'���)$�"$�8�

��� �$,!'�$�� �� )$�"$�� ��'�� 1��0!)$� ��$� ��""�9!�,� !�������!��B� ��""� ���$� ��)�
�))�$''������$��))�$''������$�1�!� !1�"����! $I���$��))�$''����$� ��1"� $�!����$�
&����,�������!'�&$!�,��'$)����'���$�' ��1��$��"I�!����$�&�'!�$''�!'� ���!$)�����
��������$'!)$� $���)�!��1�$�!'$'���$��'$)�������' ��1��$��"�&�'!�$''�&�������
�'���' ��1��$��"�'���$�����! $���� ��!'���)���$��))�$''���� ��$�1�$�!'$'8� �%���
�"�$���!��'������!'�!�������!�����'��&$����!�!$)�9!��!��	?�)��'8�

�0$���' ��1��$��"�)$�"$����'��7$$1���&��7�)$��!"!�,��""�' ��1��$��"��$ $!0$)�
��� ����� 1"� $� ��)� �""� ' ��1� �$��"� $!��$�� 1�� $''$)� ��� )!'1�� �$)� ����� �����
1"� $8� � ��$'$� )$��!"'� !� "�)$� ����� �""� �$��"� �$ $!0$)�� ��$� )$' �!1�!��� ��)�
9$!,������ ��$��$��"�� ��$�)��$���)��!�$�����$ $!1�������$��$��"I� ��$����$���)�
�))�$''������$�1$�'�����$��$��"�!'��$ $!0$)�������$!��$����$�1�! $������$�' ��1�
�$��"���� !�'�$'�!���$)�0�"�$���)���$��$,!'����!������7��������0$�! "$��'$)����
)$"!0$����$�' ��1��$��"8�

�$��!"'� �"'�� ��0$� ��� &$� 7$1�� ���� 1�� $''$)� ' ��1� �$��"�� !� "�)!�,� ��$�
)$' �!1�!��� ��)�9$!,��� ��� ��$��$��"�� ��$�)��$� ��� )!'1�� �� ���1�� $''!�,���)�
��$�1�� $''��11"!$)��9�$�$�' ��1��$��"� !'�)!'1�� �$)� ���� '�"$����$@ ���,$��
��$����$���)��))�$''������$�1$�'������9����!��!'�'�")����$@ ���,$)���)���$�
 ��'!)$���!��� ���� 9�! �� !�� !'� '�")� ��� $@ ���,$)� ��)� 9�$�$� ' ��1� �$��"� !'�
)!'1�� �$)����1�� $''$)����$�����������'�"$��!�'�$'�!���$)�0�"�$�&$���$�&$!�,�
)!'1�� �$)����$@ ���,$)8�

��$�4�0$���$���!'�"��7!�,����'��$�,��$����$'$��$+�!�$�$��'��$'1$ !�""��9!���
�$,��)� ��� ��$� ��� $�&!"!��� ��� &���� ��$����$�!�"'� ��)� ��$� '$""$�8� � ���� ���)!�,�
����)��)'� �$��� ��'� &$$�� !�0�"0$)� !�� 1����$�'�!1� � �!��� 9!��� "� �"� ��)�
����'1����1�"! $� �����)!����)� !�'1$ �� "� �"�' ��1��$��"�)$�"$�'���)�9��")�&$�
9!""!�,� ��� &$� !�0�"0$)� !�� ���� �����$�� � �!��� ����� '$$7'� ���  ����!"� ��$� '�"$� ���
'��"$���$��"8�

�
�
F���� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$�8)+2!%��441&��)"!4(�
�
���� ��$������� �$""��$���9������ *�&'�'�� ������0$�&$$�� ��7$���1�&����9$��
#��"$�'��$'!)$��'��'����$'�"�������$�)$�"���)$�&$�9$$���!����)�����4K�

Page 34



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

<<�

�
�/""+$5� -.� �/**2!"!&'+$5� ?/!%'1-&� .$-"� �-/&0122-$� 8)+2!%� �441&�
�)"!4�
�
%����$�"�'��2�""����� !"��$$�!�,����$��$�)��$�&$��'�!)��������"��<��*�&'���)�
&$$��'$ ��$)�E�9����!'���$�1�'!�!�����9K�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��)+.1?/2�
+?/!���+#1&!'��!"#!$� .-$��-#%�+&4�
�,122%�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8��
�
�����1"$�'$)����&$��&"$�����$1����������'������$�����3�������	�	��'!@����)�$)�
��)�'!@������$$��==<��*�&����$�'���)�&$$����)$������9$��#��"$�'��$'!)$��'�&��
����4� ����� ���'8�
�
������"'��1"$�'$)�����$1���������!���))!�!��������$�*�&����$�'���)$�&��4��$'�
 ����� ���'� �9�� ���)�$)� ��)� �!0$� �	�
�� ��9$�� #��"$�'� �$'!)$��'� ��$�
$�1"��$)� )!�$ �"�� &�� ����4� 9�! �� �$1�$'$��'� ?8;F� ��� ����4J'� ����"�
9��7��� $8�
�
:$���$���")!�,������$���"��1! �3�&�2�!��"��$����!'�����������$"1��$'!)$��'����
�11"�8��
�
�
F��=� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$�
+$/&��1+)(�
�
:!""� ��$���������)���$� "$�)��$�&$���,�$$�9!����$������ ��$�5�!0��$�2!��� $�
��!�!��!0$�9�'�������$ $''�����  ����!�,���! 7�9�! ����'�����1��)� $)�0�"�$�
�������$��������$���@1��$��&�����'�!�'�$�)�"��&$�$)���@1��$�'�9!���0$���"��,$�
��)�1��$��!�""����'�'��!��&"$� �����$�)$&�'���)� ��")� ��$�� ���!���9�! ��52��
' �$�$'� !�1�'$)� ��� ��9$�� #��"$�'� ' ���"'� ��0$� ���� !���� �!��� !�,�
1��&"$�'��9������$�!�1"! ��!��'���$������$'$�1��&"$�'���)�9������$� ��� !"�!'�
)�!�,����'������$'$�1��&"$�'����K�
�
���������	
	�������	�����������	���
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��+&1+�8)+&���+#1&!'��!"#!$�.-$��/2'/$!�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
52��9�'����)� ���!��$'����&$������1�!�������'$ ��!�,�'!,�!�! ����!�0$'��$���!��
1�&"! �'$ ���� �1!��"�1��*$ �'8����)!0!)��"�1��*$ �'��$$)����&$��''$''$)������$!��
�9���$�!�'�����0�"�$��������$�8�
�
��$�$���$� ���$��"����� �!��� !�,�1��&"$�'��$"��!�,� ���52��' �$�$'������9$��
#��"$�'� ' ���"'8� ��$�$� !'� ��9$0$�� ��� !''�$� 9!��� �1)��!�,� ��$� �!��� !�,�
��)$"����$�'��$���$��!,���"$0$"����' ���"'� ����!&��!��'���)� ����!&��!��'������
��$��$)! ��$)� � ���"'�4����� ���� ��$� �!��� !�,� ��� ��$�4���1$)�� ���"'� 52��
 ����� �8��
�

Page 35



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

<A�

���! $�'� ��0$� &$$�� )!' �''!�,� ��$� �1�!��'� 9!��� ��$� 	A� ' ���"'� !�� ��$� 52��
 ����� ����)�9!���� ���"'�2����8����$'$�)!' �''!��'�9!""�'����"��&$�&���,���
����� �� "�'!�����)����! $�'�9!""�&�!�,����$1���������&!�$��&$���$���$�$�)������$�
�!��� !�"� �$���� ��� �$,�"��!'$� ��$� 1�'!�!��� ��� $�'��$� ����� ��$� 52�� �  �����
&�"�� $'�&�� ����� ��$�)�!��	�	;8�
�
�
F���� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��&&+��5&0)(�
�
���� ��$� ������ �$""� �$� ��9� ����� �!�$'� �$� ��'� �$�� �!�!'�$�'� ��� ��$�
�$1����$��� ���� #$�"���!�� ��$� "�'�� '!@� �����'����� 9���� �  �'!��'� ��)� 9����
!''�$'��$���!'$)����$� ���  �'!��K�
�
����� � ��	� ���	� ��	������ ��� ���� ���� �� ��	� 
		����� �� �����������  ���
!�����������������	����	��
�
�!%*-&%!� #5� �-/&0122-$� �#4/2� �%+4�� �+#1&!'� �!"#!$� 
!+2')� +&4�
!22#!1&:�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
��$���������'������$��9!����!�!'�$�'������$��$1����$������#$�"���!����$�"�'��
'!@������'8�
�
��$� ������ ��'� '$��� �� *�!��� "$��$��� 9!��� %���� ��"0!�� ��� ��!'$�  �� $��'�
$@1�$''$)�&����&!�$����)����������)���$�1��1�'$)��$�,$�����-���'���)���$�
���)����:�!11'����''���)��$9����4$�$��"�#�'1!��"'8�����1���! �"������$�"� 7�
��� ��'�"���!���9!�����$� �����!�����)� �� $��'��0$���$)� �!������'$�0! $'8��
�
�
F��F� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��$+1:��%'-&(�
�
:!""� ��$� ������ 1��0!)$� ��� �1)��$� ���$�$�,�� $��! !$� �� !�� ��$� ��9�� #�""�
&�!")!�,K�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��$+1:��%'-&�
�
�����$�'���)��)�����1$���$�$�,�����!�,�' �"$����%64����!'�&�!")!�,�!'�!��-��)�
48��:������$���$�!�1"! ��!��'������!'�!���$��'����$@����$�$�,�� �'�'K�
�
�!%*-&%!� #5� �-/&0122-$� �21#-$� �)-/4)/$5�� �+#1&!'� �!"#!$� .-$�
�!%-/$0!%�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
���� ��9�� #�""� ��'� ��� ����������$"�� "�9� "$0$"� ��� $�$�,�� $��! !$� �8� ��� !'�
 ��'!)$�$)���L4J��  ��)!�,������$��!'1"�����$�,���$��!�! ��$������8����!'�!'���
��1! �"����!�,�������!'���1$����&�!")!�,���)� ��'��� �!�����1$8��
�
��$� ��� !"���'������&�������,$�$���5"���!��1"� $���� !�1��0$���$�$�$�,��
$��! !$� ����)��$)� $�$�$�,���'�,$�!���""����!�'��1$���!���"�&�!")!�,'8���

Page 36



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

<
�

�
��$� �$���&!'��$��� ��� ��"&$���� 5"� $� 9!""� !� "�)$� $�$�,�� $��! !$� ��
!�1��0$�$��'� '� �� �'� "�9� $�$�,�� "!,��!�,'�� $�$�,�� $��! !$��� 0$��!"��!���
'�'�$�'���)�&$��$��-�!")!�,���$�,������,$�$�����'�$��������$�1"��������8�
��!�!�"�)!' �''!��'�9!�����$� ����� ���'���0$�!�)! ��$)���������$�$�,���$)� �!���
���<�F� ��")�&$�� �!$0$)8���$��$9�����'�'�$�'�9!""�'!,�!�! ���"���$)� $���$�
$�$�,�� ��'��1�!���&����$� ���$������$+�!1�$��8��
�
%'���$� ��� !"�)�$'������9����"&$����5"� $��!��!'�"!�!�$)������$�!�1��0$�$��'�
!�� ��")���7$���7!�,�!����� ��'!)$���!�����$�1���&� 7�1$�!�)�������$�!�0$'��$���
��)���$�"$�,�������!�$��$��!�!�,�!����$�"$�'$8�
�
2��� ���'$� &�!")!�,'� ����� ��$� !�� ��$� �9�$�'�!1� ��� ��$�  ��� !"� 9$� ��$�
!�0$'�!,��!�,� ��$���B�2���1��*$ ������,$)�&�� ��$���%8���$���B�2���1��*$ ��
1��0!)$'��� ���$� !�"���)$"�����1�&"! �&�)!$'����!�1"$�$���$�$�,��$��! !$� ��
!�1��0$�$��'� ��� ��$!�� &�!")!�,'�� �$)� !�,� $�$�,��  ��'��1�!��� ��)�  ��&���
$�!''!��'�
�
��$�L4J����!�,������$�)!'1"���$�$�,�� $��!�! ��$� !'���� !�)! ��!��������9��� ��
$�$�,�� !'�&$!�,��'$)� ����1$���$� ��$�&�!")!�,�� !�� )�$'�����)!�$ �"�� �$"��$� �����
&�!")!�,J'�$�$�,�� �'��$��$ �!0$�$''8�
�

��$���1! �"�&$� ����7����!�,� ������&�!")!�,� "!7$� ��$���9��#�""�9��")�&$����
9�! ��!'���L�J����!�,��1�$'$��"����"&$����!'�'��9!�,�;<8����$��$���&!'��$��'��
9�! ��9!""�!� "�)$���$��!,��$�$�,�� ��'��$�'�'� ���'�"!,��!�,��0$��!"��!�����)�
��� '�'�$�'�� 9!""� �""� ��0$� ��� !�1"! ��!��� ��� $�$�,��  �'�� &��� &$ ��'$� ��� ��$�
�����$���� ��!'� ��1$����&�!")!�,�9$�9��")�����$@1$ ����'!,�!�! ���� �$)� �!��� !��
���!�,8� ���$� �$���&!'��$��'���$���"!7$"�� ���,$�$���$��� �$�"�1�! $� �$)� �!��� !��
$�$�,��  �'�'� &$ ��'$� ��� ��$� 0�"��!"!��� ��� ��$� ���7$�� ��)� 1�$)! �$)� 1�! $�
!� �$�'$'8�
�
�
F��C� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$�I!&1')��+)"+&(�
�
4!0$����$��$)� �!��'��$���'��"�$�)����)$�!��'��$$�� "$��!�,�!����$�&����,���
9���� �$�'��$'� !'� ��$� ������ ��7!�,� ��� $�'��$� ����� ��$�!� �$�'!�,"�� �!"����
'��$$�'�9!""������$,��!0$"��!�1� �������9$��#��"$�'�'$ ��!�,��!��������'K�
�
�������	����	���	���������������������	�
		������
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��)+)!4��21���+#1&!'��!"#!$�.-$��&;1$-&"!&'�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!���&��� ��&$"!$0$�������$��!'��7$�8�������"��)�� ��$�
'��$$�'� ��� ��9$�� #��"$�'�  ���!��$� ��� &$�  "$���� ��$�$� ��'� &$$�� �� ���7$)�
!�1��0$�$��� !�� ��$� "$0$"����'��$$�� "$��"!�$''��0$�� ��$�1�'��	������'8� � � ���
�� �� �������11�� ��������� $����������'��$$�'���$�)$���'���&"�� "$��$�� �����
��$�� ��0$� $0$�� &$$�� &$���$8� � ���  "$��� !�� �� �� ����� ��$� �!��� ��� 5��!'� ��'�
�$ $��"�� '$��� �0$�� �� )$"$,��!��� ��� '$$� ��9� !�� !'� )��$� ���� ��$����$�8� �� ���
 ���!)$��� ����� ���� '��$$��  "$��'!�,� '$�0! $� 9!""� 1"��� !�'� 1���� ��� !� �$�'$� ����
 ��� $'����,�!�!�,� !���'����'8��
�

Page 37



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

<=�

�� �$ $!0$� �$,�"��� �$1���'�)$��!"!�,� ��$����� !"J'�1$������� $� !��7$����$�'����
'$�0! $�)$"!0$��8��
�
��$���������'��$1$��$)"����)$�!�� "$����������$� "$��"!�$''����'��$$�'�!'���$�
�����!'����� !"J'���!��1�!��!�!$'8��������!�� !'�1"$�'!�,�������$����������1����$�'�
S$�"!����0$� ��'����"���$����$!�����,$�'��������0$�&$$��'$��������$�8�
�
���� ��"�� )�� 9$� '$��  ��""$�,!�,� ���,$�'� ���� S$�"!�� &��� 9$� �"'�� ��)$���7$� ��
���&$�� ��� $)� ��!���"� ��)� 1�����!���"� � �!0!�!$'� ��� )!''��)$� 1$�1"$� �����
"!��$�!�,8��
�
��$���������'��"'���$ $��"�� !�0$'�$)� !��	��� "!��$��&!�'�� ��''� ��$�-����,��
��)� !����)� $)���$��$9� L�!�)� !�� �!@� !�J� �$��'�����$� �� ��� "!��$�!�,�����'1��'� �����
�����  ���!��$,�"��"��� ��''�����-����,�8�
�
���� &!)� ���� �!��� �����'� 9!""� ���� '!�1"�� &$� &�'$)� ��� ��$� $@ $""$��� 1�&"! �
'$�0! $'� 9$� 1��0!)$� &��� �"'�� ��� ��$� &�'!'� ����� ��9$�� #��"$�'� !'�� ��)� ��'�
&$$�� ����  $����!$'�� ��� $�,!�$� ����� ���� ��$� $ ������ ��)� 9$""&$!�,� ��� ��$�
��!�$)�(!�,)��8�
�
���!'�!�1������������'�������$��������!'�&����,��!'���$������$�<� $����"�&�'!�$''�
)!'��! �'�!����$��$����������)����"��,�'!)$�:$'��!�'�$�����)���$�'+���$��!"$����
��$����1����!���������)����&�������9�! ����$��"�$�)�� !�!$'8��
�
:$�$@1$ ����$��$'�"��������� !���'����'�'�&�!''!������&$�7��9��'����"�8�
�
�
F���� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��/'.+��!:/"(�
�
:������'�&$$��)��$�����$"1��0$� ��9)$)����!"!$'�9�����$��$"� ����������0$�
�������2�$$�5��1$��!$'K�
�
�/""+$5�-.�%/**2!"!&'+$5�?/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��/'.+��!:/"�
�
���$� '� !�"� ���'!�,� )$0$"�1�$��'� ��0$� ��$!�� �9��  ��� 1��7!�,8� � :!""� ��$�
������'$$7����!� "�)$���!'�!��'��$$��1��7!�,����� �!$0$����$�'1� $'K�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��+#1&+�8)+&���+#1&!'��!"#!$�.-$�
-/%1&:�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
��$������� �$+�$'�$)� ��$� )$0$"�1�$��� ��� ��5$��!�� ����'�$��� �$�$� �5����
9�! �� 9�'� !����)� $)� !�� �$1�$�&$�� 	�8� � ��!'� ' �$�$� �""�9'� ���� ���'$�
���!"!$'�9�����0$�����$��!����$���6'��$$���$'!)$��� ���1��7!�,�1$��!��'�&*$ ��
��� $���!�� �!�$�!��&$!�,��$�8�
�
��$� !����)� �!��� ��� ��$� 5��� ��"�!"'� �� ������"� 1�!��!��� ��� �$"1� '��$� "��,$��
���!"!$'� ��0$� ����� �0$� ��9)$)� �  ����)��!��� !���� ���$� '�!��&"$� '� !�"�
�$��$)�  ��� ��$$� ���$'�� 9�!"'�� ��� ��$� '��$� �!�$� &�"�� !�,� ��$� �$$)� ���
$� ����,$��$�"��!$���,�$$�$��"!�$'��"$'����!�1��0$���$�+��"!������"!�$������""�����
 �����!�!$'�"!0!�,���)�9��7!�,�!����$�&����,�8��

Page 38



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

<;�

�
%))!�!���""���9�$�$���6'!�$� ���1��7!�,�!'�1��0!)$)�!�������$����'!�,�' �$�$'��
!��!'���$�!��$��!��������,����$�1"���!�,�1�� $''�����""� ��$��������$��!�'���!�$�����
$+�!��&"$�1��1���!�����������)�&"$����!"�����$'8�
�
��� �))!�!��� ��� ��$� 5���� ��$� ���� !"� !'�  ���!��!�,� ��� 9��7� ��� !�1��0$� �""�
����'1���� ��)$'� !�� ��$� &����,��� !� "�)!�,� $@1��)!�,� ����  ���  "�&�� 9�"7!�,�
��)� � "!�,��$�9��7'���'�9$""��'�9��7!�,�9!����������!�1��0$�1�&"! �����'1����
!����$�&����,��
�
:�!"'����$��""� ��!������)$'!,���$)�1��7!�,�&��'�������'!�,�$'���$'���$���)$��
��$�  �����"� ��� ��$��$,!'�$�$)� �� !�"� ���)"��)'�� $� ����,!�,����'� ���9!)$��
��$� �'$� ��� ��$!�� 1��7!�,� '1� $'� 9��")� &$� ��� &$�$�!�� ��� �$'!)$��'� !�� ��$�
&����,�8���$����� !"J'�1��7!�,�'$�0! $� !'�'$$7!�,���)!�"�,�$�9!��� ��$����J'�
��� �� ���&$�� ��� !''�$'8� ��$� ������ ��)� �� ��0$� �'7$)� ��$�� ��� ��!'$� ��$�
1�''!&!"!������!����)� !�,�'���$)�&��'����$'���$����)'�9�$�$����'��$$��)$���)�
����1$��!��&��'��$,�"��"��$@ $$)'�'�11"�8��
�
��� 9��")� &$� ���� ��$� ���� !"�� �����,�� ��9$�� #��"$�'� #��$'� ��)� ��$�
�$,!'�$�$)�5��0!)$�'���5'��!����$�-����,�����)$ !)$�9�$��$����$��9!'�$)����
)$'!,���$�1��7!�,�&��'����$'���$� ���)'� �����'$�&����9$��#��"$�'���6'��$$��
�$'!)$��'R�1$��!����")$�'8� ���$����� !"R'�5��7!�,��$�0! $�9!""� &$� !��)!�"�,�$�
9!��� ��$� �5'� ��� �� ���&$�� ��� !''�$'� ��!'$)� !�� ��$� �$ $��� 5��7!�,� �$�0! $�
� ���!�����)�����0$��'7$)���$�������!'$���$�1�''!&!"!������ !����)� !�,�'���$)�
&��'��$'���$�1$��!�������6'��$$���$'!)$��'R�1$��!������$'���$����)'�9�$�$���6
'��$$�� )$���)� ���� 1$��!�� &��'� �$,�"��"�� $@ $$)'� '�11"�8� � �$'1��'!&!"!��� ����
$���� !�,�����'� ��&��'�9��")��$��!��9!�����$��5'8���$�&$�'�9!""��$ �""������
 ���$��"���9�!"$� ��$�$����� &$� "� �"� 0��!��!��'�� !�� $� �� ��� ��$�-����,�'� �����
�5/'� ��$�$� !'����$���� "$''�1��!���&$�9$$�� ��$����&$����� �$'!)$��J'�1$��!�'�
��)���6'��$$��&��'�9�$�$���$�� ���&$��'$)8�
�
%'� 1���� ��� ��$� �-�#�  ��'�"���!��� )����� ����,!�,� �$0$"�1�$��� 5"���
�� ��$�������5����9�$�$���6'!�$� ���1��7!�,� !'�1��0!)$)�!�������$����'!�,�
' �$�$'�� !�� !'� ��$� !��$��!��� �����,�� ��$� 1"���!�,� 1�� $''� ��� �""� ��$� ���
$+�!��&"$�1��1���!��������$'$�1��7!�,�'1� $'���������)�&"$����!"�����$'8�
�
��� �))!�!���� ��$� ���� !"� !'� �"'��  ���!��!�,� ��� 9��7� ��� !�1��0$� �""� ����'1����
��)$'� !�� ��$� &����,��� !� "�)!�,� $@1��)!�,� ����  ���  "�&�� ���� �� "$� #!�$�
� �$�$��9�"7!�,���)� � "!�,��$�9��7'���'�9$""��'�9��7!�,�9!����������!�1��0$�
1�&"! �����'1����!����$�&����,�8�
�

�

F���� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��1"��$0)!$(�
�
:!""���$�������1��0!)$�����1)��$������$�1��,�$''������$����!����,�$$)�&����""�
���� !"����
��$1�$�&$��	�������&�!�,���$�#$��������$�'����$�&� 7������$�
&����,�� ��)� $@1"�!�� ��� ��$� ���� !"� 9��� ��!'� !'� ��7!�,� '�� "��,�� 9����
�$$�!�,'�)!' �''!��'���0$���7$��1"� $���)�9!""���$�'����$�&$�&� 7�!���!�$�����
��$��"��1! 'K�
�
�

Page 39



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

<?�

�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��+&1+�8)+&���+#1&!'��!"#!$�.-$��/2'/$!�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
��$�T��7'�!�$�� �"1���$�5��7�9�'��)0!'$)������$����� !"J'�!��$��!��������7$�
�"�$����!0$������,$�$��'� ���� ��$�' �"1���$���)� !�!�!�"�)!' �''!��'���0$� ��7$��
1"� $�9!����������:���������,$�$���4���18���
�
%"�$����!0$� "� ��!��'� ��$� '�!""� &$!�,� $@1"��$)�� ��$� ��'�� �11��1�!��$� &$!�,�
S! ���!��5��7�9�$�$�9��7'���$�'�!""���)$�9��8���
�
���0!$9������$�0$����$�"��!'7������$���������9��7'�����' ��1��$��"I��'�$0!)$� $)�
&����$��$ $�����$�������� "��,$�-��&����#$19�����' �"1���$��������"9! ��5��7�
!�����������)������)� !�)$$)� ��$�+�$'�!���&���""����!$�$"��9$�9!""�������7$�
�$9������,$�$��'�������!'�' �"1���$����!"�9$���$��&'�"��$"�� $���!�������9$���$�
��7!�,���$��!,��� ��! $8�
�
������������ ��
�����  ���	�� ���	�� ���� �	� ������ �	��� � �����	
	�����
��	�����������	�"������������	��#��
��
�
�
F���� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$�8+#1$��)"!4(�
�
���")���$��������$""��'�9������'�&$$����$�!�1� ������!'�'!,�!�! ����!�0$'��$���
!���� 7"!�,�)��,'���)����!6'� !�"�&$��0!���K�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��)14��)"!4���!*/'5��+5-$�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
��$����� !"�2��)$)�5�"! $�5����$�'�!1���'7��� $���'�9��7$)� "�'$"��9!�����$�
��9$�� #��"$�'� ����� $�$��� ���! $�'� ��#��'�� ��� &�!�,� �&���� '!,�!�! ����
�$)� �!��'�!��%��!6�� !�"�-$��0!���8���
�
-�� 5�"! $� ��)� ���� !"� �$�'��$'�� ���� $@��1"$�� ��$� "�'�� ��""� �����'� )����
��$ $�&$��� '��9'� �� )$ �$�'$� !�� ���!6'� !�"� &$��0!���� �%�-�� ��� 		8AF8��
:!��!�� ��!'� ��$� '!,�!�! ���� �$)� �!��'� !�� 1���! �"��� ��$�'� '� �� �'� ��� ?F�
)$ �$�'$�!��%�-��$"��$)����'��$$��)�!�7!�,8�
�
��$� �$��� ��)$���7$'� �$,�"��� )��,'� ��)� 9$�1��'� '9$$1'� �����,�� 9�! �� !��
��'��$ �0$�$)����$���)��,'���)�9$�1��'8�
�
�����$�"�'���������"��$����$��$�����'�'����)�9��<� ����&!'��� ���!$'��'$!.$)�
>�0$�! "$'���)��$ �0$�$)�)��,'�9!�����'��$$��0�"�$����N������8�%����&$�����
1��&"$�� "! $�'$)�1�$�!'$'���0$� ��)� ��$!�� "! $�'$'� �$0�7$)� ��)���0$� &$$��
'����)�9�8�
�
��� ����"�'!� $� ��$� "��� ����� ��$���'7��� $�� ��$�1����$�'�!1���'�� �!$0$)�	?=�
���$'�'��	=;=�'��1���)�'$�� �$'��;	� ����&!'�9���!�,'��	A�1$��"������! $'�
����)!'��)$����)�>�'$!.$)�0$�! "$'8�
�

Page 40



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

<>�

��� ��'� �$ $!0$)� 1�'!�!0$� �$$)&� 7� ����� �$'!)$��'�� ���� $@��1"$� �$ $��"��� � !�'�
9��7����)��,�)$�"!�,������)�-$�������'+���$8���
�
%� �$ $��� 5�"! $� �1$���!��� !�� ��$� -����,�� �$'�"�$)� !�� �� )��,� )$�"!�,� ,��,�
&$!�,����$'�$)���)��$ $!0!�,�������"����
<��$��'�!�1�!'���$��8�
�
�$�"$����)����$��!�'���1�!��!�����)����)��$� !�� ��$� ���$��� �!��� !�"��$���	>?�
)$�"$�'���0$�&$$�����$'�$)8���
�
�
F���� >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��$��""+��-&!%(�
�
#�9������1$�1"$�'� 7$)��������9$��#��"$�'�$�1"���$�����0$��  !)$���""��
 ���!��$)����&$�1�!)�!����$�1�'���$��K�
�
�!%*-&%!� #5� �-/&0122-$� �21#-$� �)-/4)/$5�� �+#1&!'� �!"#!$� .-$�
�!%-/$0!%�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
��$�$���0$�&$$������0$�1���$��'����)!'�!''$)�$�1"��$$'8�
�
�
F�� � >/!%'1-&�.$-"��-/&0122-$��"1&/$�8)+&(�
�
#�9���'���$�������1��,�$''$)�����!'�1"$),$������7$�'��$��$,!'�$�$)��� !�"�
���)"��)'�)$"!0$�������$!��'$�0! $��,�$$�$��'K�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��+#1&+�8)+&���+#1&!'��!"#!$�.-$�
-/%1&:�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
:$� �'$� �� 0��!$��� ��� �$���)'� ��� $�'��$� ����� �$,!'�$�$)� 5��0!)$�'� ��5'��
9��7!�,�!����9$��#��"$�'���$�)$"!0$�!�,������$!��'$�0! $��,�$$�$��'8��
�
�5'� 9��� �$ $!0$)� '�� 7� ����� ��$� ���� !"� ��)$�� ��$� #��'!�,� ���! $�
1��,����$��'�&�!����)$��!"$)����!���!�,��$����������$� ��� !"��� $�$0$���'!@�
�����'8���!'� �$1���� !�)! ��$'� ��$� 1��,�$''� ����� $� ���5� !'���7!�,� ��9��)'�
)$"!0$�!�,� ��$� 1���!'$'� ��)$� ��� �$����'� ��)� "$�'$��")$�'�� 9�$�� ��$�
�9�$�'�!1� ��� ��$� $'���$� 9�'� ����'�$��$)� ����� ��$� ���� !"8� ��)! ����'�
���!���$)�!� "�)$�1��,�$''����)$"!0$�!�,���$�!�0$'��$���1���!'$)��)$"!0$�!�,�
��$� �$ $��� #��$'� ����)��)�� 1��,�$''� ��� �$9� &�!")� )$0$"�1�$��'�� $'���$�
!�1��0$�$���9��7'����)�4�0$���� $������,$�$��'8��
�
��� ���� 	���� ��$� ���� !"� '$"$ �$)� =� 1�$�$��$)� )$0$"�1�$��� 1����$�'�
��""�9!�,��� �!,����'�'$"$ �!���1��,�$''8���!'� !�!�!��!0$�$��&"$'� ��$����� !"� ���
��0$�&$��$�� �����"��0$����$�+��"!������1��1$��!$'�&$!�,�&�!"��!����$�&����,���'�
9$""� �'� ��7!�,� �$,!'�$�$)� 5��0!)$�'� ���$� �  �����&"$� ���� ��$� '$�0! $'�
)$"!0$�$)� ��� ��$� �$'!)$��'� ����� �  �1�� ��$�8� ���� !"� �$1�$'$����!0$'� �$$��
9!��� )$0$"�1!�,�1����$�'� ����� �$,�"���&�'!'� ������!���� ��$� 1��,�$''� ��� ��$!��
' �$�$'���)�)!' �''���������,$�$���!''�$'�&���,�������������$��!��8�

Page 41



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

A��

�
:�$�$���$�'������)$��1$������� $���$�!)$��!�!$)��9$�9��7�!��1����$�'�!1�9!���
��$��5�&����!�)!0!)��""����)� �""$ �!0$"�����!�1��0$���$!��'$�0! $'���)����!����
��$!�� 1��,�$''8� ��� ��� !�)!0!)��"� "$0$"�� 9$� � �!$0$� ��!'� �����,�� �$,�"���
�$$�!�,'���)�)$0$"�1!�,�� �!���1"��'�����!�1��0$�$���9�! ��!'����!���$)����
���$,�"���&�'!'8�
�
��""$ �!0$"��9$� !�1��0$�'$�0! $�1��0!'!��� �����,�� ��$�9��7�9$�)���'�1�������
��$���9$��#��"$�'�#��'!�,�2�������##2�8�:$���$�,�!�,����9��7�9!����##2�
��� )$0$"�1� �� '$�� ���  ������ ���'!�,� ����,$�$��� '���)��)'�� 9�! �� 9!""�
$��&"$� �'� ��� ��")� 1��0!)$�'� ��� �  ����� ���� ��$!�� 1$������� $� ��� ��
'���)��)!'$)�&�'!'8��
�
��$����� !"���'��"'���,�$$)������,$����L"� �"����$�'J�9!����5'�!����$�-����,���
9�! ��'$�������� "$���'$�����'���)��)'�9�! ���""��5'����0$��,�$$)�)$"!0$������
��9$�� #��"$�'� �$'!)$��'� !�� '1$ !�! � '$�0! $� ��$�'� 8� ��$'$� L���$�'J� 9$�$�
)$0$"�1$)�9!����$'!)$��'�&�'$)������$���$�'������$�'$�0! $�)$"!0$�����$��9$�$�
��'�� �� $��$)��&���8����$'$�L���$�'J���$� ���$��"��&$!�,����!���$)������,����
�$'!)$��J'� � ���!���5��$"�9�! ���$$�'� ����� �$,�"��� &�'!'� ��� �)0!'$� ��� ��$�
��9� ��$� �� �"� ���$�'� ��$� &$!�,� !�1"$�$��$)� !�� ��$� 0��!��'� #��'!�,�
%''� !��!��'���)���7$��$ ���$�)��!��'�����!�1��0$�$��8�
�
�
F���� >/!%'1-&� .$-"��-/&0122-$��)+.1?/2�
+?/!� '-� ')!��+#1&!'��!"#!$�

.-$�
-/%1&:(�
�
����� ���'!�,� $'���$'� !�� ��$� &����,�� ��$� &$�$�!�!�,� ����� �$,$�$���!��8� � ��
9��")� "!7$� ��� ����7� ��$� ������ ���� &�!�,!�,� ��!'� �� �� �$$)$)� !�0$'��$��8��
#�9$0$�� ����� ��� ���� "$�'$��")$�'� ��$� '���$�!�,� !�� ��$�  ���$��� �!��� !�"�
 "!���$��9!���!� �$�'!�,�!��"��!������$"�1�! $'���)�9���!$'������)�$�1"���$��8��
#�9� ��$�9$� $�'��!�,� ����� "$�'$��")$�'�9!""� &$�  ���,$)� ��!�"�� ���� ������*���
9��7'K�
�
�!%*-&%!�#5��-/&0122-$��+#1&+�8)+&���+#1&!'��!"#!$�.-$�
-/%1&:�
�
����7��������������+�$'�!��8�
�
2����$,$�$���!���!�!�!��!0$'����&$�'�  $''��"�!����$�&����,�����$�!��$�$'�'�����""�
�$'!)$��'���$� ��'!)$�$)��'� ���'��$����'���)�1�!0��$����$��9�$�'��!� "�)!�,�
 ��� !"�"$�'$��")$�'8��

�
�����$� ���$����!��� !�"� "!���$����$�$���$� ��""$�,!�,����)!�,�!''�$'��&����"'��
'����$,!$'����$�'��$��������'������'�1�''!&"$��9�!"'�� "�'�!�,� !�1��0$�$��'���$�
��)$����$�$@!'�!�,� �����!�!$'���$�����)!'�)0����,$)8�
�
��� !'� �$ �,�!'$)� ����� "$�'$��")$�'� ��0$� '1$ !�! �  �� $��'� !�� ��$� 1�$'$���
$ ����! � "!���$��9�$��$����$��"!0$�!����$����$'���$���9�����'�&6"$����$���'�
1�!0��$�"��)"��)'8�
�

Page 42



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

A�

�� �� '� !�"� "��)"��)�� 9�$��$�� ��9$�� #��"$�'� ���� !"� ��� �� �$,!'�$�$)�
5��0!)$�� �#��'!�,� %''� !��!����� 9!""� 9��7� 9!��� ��$� ���$�9�$�'� ���$ �$)� &��
!�'��$,$�$���!���!�!�!��!0$'8�
�
�$�'$��")$�'���$��$+�!�$)����1�����1��6�����1��1���!��������$� �'�����+��"!��!�,�
9��7'���)$����$��$��'������$!��"$�'$'8�-$���$�9��7'� ���$� $�"$�'$��")$�'�
��$�1�$'$��$)�9!������!�)! ��!0$� �'�������$�9��7'����&$�)��$������$!��1���! �"���
&"� 7'� 6�'�&*$ �� ��� ��$� �!��"��  ������1��� ��1"$�!������ ��$�9��7'� 6� �����,��
��$�'���)��)��$ �!���	�����! $8��$�'$��")$�'���$����0$���$��!,�������$'1��)�
�����$!��1���! �"���"��)"��)��������!''�$'�����&'$�0��!��'���$��9!'�������!'$8��
�
�$�'$��")$�'� '���")� �"'�� &$�$�!�� ����� �$)� $)� ��$"�  �'�'� 9�$�$�9��7'� ��$�
)$0!'$)������7$����$'�!��&"� 7'����$�$�$�,��$��! !$��8�
�
�

C�� ��������������
���9�������������
���������E��������������
�
�

C��� �/#%'+&0!��1%/%!��'$+'!:5��
�
��$� ���� !"�  ��'!)$�$)� ��$� �$1���� ��� ��$� ��&!�$�� ��� !�'� �$$�!�,� )��$)� ;���
�$ $�&$�� 	��� !� ��1����!�,� ��$� �$1���� ��� ��$� ���1����$� �!�$ �����
������!�!$'�� �� �"!�!$'� ��)� ��"���$�� 1��1�'!�,� ��$� �)�1�!��� ��� �� -����,�6
9!)$���&'��� $��!'�'$������$,�8�
�
���� !""�����!)�%��$)���������)����� !""���(�&!��%��$)������������$�
�$ ���$�)��!��'��'� ����!�$)�!����$��$1���8�
�
%��$��)$&��$����� !""������!���.6/�������������)����� !""���3�'����5$ 7�
���������� �� 1�� $)���"� ���!��� E� C����� ��)$�� 5�� $)���"� ��"$� A8� ��$�
+�$'�!���&$���9�1��8D� ���$�1�� $)���"����!���9�'�1��� ��� ��$�0��$���)�9�'�
+:$!!48�
�
��$��$1�����$ ���$�)��!��'�9$�$���$��1��������$�0��$���)�9$�$�+:$!!4�9!���
����$�&$��0��!�,��,�!�'�8��%  ��)!�,"���!��9�'B6�
�
���������
�
�������$���&'��� $��!'�'$������$,��&$��)�1�$)��'�'$���������%11$�)!@�����
��$��$1������� ��$���&!�$����%-��
A�	����)�!� "�)$)����1�,$'�;����
=����
��$����� !"��,$�)�8�
�
�
�$-0!4/$+2��-'1-&�
�
%�� ��!'� 1�!���� ���� !""��� %"!&��� ����)����� ������ ��)� ���� !""��� ��!)�
%��$)� ���������� �� 1�� $)���"� ���!��� E� C����� ��)$�� 5�� $)���"� ��"$�
A88<���$���)$�����&�'!�$''�&$�0��!$)�����""�9�!�$��8������!'��,$�)�����&$�
 ��'!)$�$)��'���$��$@��&�'!�$''8D�
�
��$�1�� $)���"����!���9�'�1��������$�0��$���)�9�'�4!.!+'!48�

Page 43



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

A	�

�
�

C��� �-&4-&��-0+2� �/')-$1'1!%� +&4��$+&%*-$'� .-$� �-&4-&��0'� ����� 6�!0'1-&�
�=7�H�$!*-$'�-.�')!��+#1&!'��!!'1&:�-&���')��+&/+$5�������
�
��$� ���� !"�  ��'!)$�$)� ��$� ��&!�$�� �$1���� )��$)� ��� 3������� 	�	��
!� ��1����!�,� ��$� �$1���� ��� ��$� ���1����$� �!�$ ����� ������!�!$'�� �� �"!�!$'�
��)� ��"���$�� !�� �$"��!��� ��� �$ �!��� =� ��� ��$� ���)��� �� �"� %�����!�!$'� % ��
	��<�� �� $��!�,�0$�! "$'�)�!0!�,��0$����$�����9��8�
�
���� !""�������$)�%"!������� ��)����� !""�������!+�"�#�+�$�����������
��$��$ ���$�)��!��'��'� ����!�$)�!����$��$1���8�
�
%��$�� )$&��$�� ���� !""��� ���!�� �.6/����� ������ ��)� ���� !""��� 3�'����
5$ 7� ���������� �� 1�� $)���"� ���!��� E� C����� ��)$�� 5�� $)���"� ��"$�
A88����$�+�$'�!���&$���9�1��8D�
�
��$�1�� $)���"����!���9�'���$��1��������$�0��$���)�9�'�+:$!!48�
�
��$��$1�����$ ���$�)��!��'�9$�$���$��1��������$�0��$���)�9$�$�+:$!!4�9!���
����$�&$��0��!�,��,�!�'�8��%  ��)!�,"���!��9�'B6�
�
���������
�
����� !�� &$� )$�$��!�$)� ����� �$ �!��� =� ��� ��$� ���)��� �� �"� %�����!�!$'� ��)�
����'1���� ���� ���)��� % �� 	��<� 9!""�  ��$� !���� �1$���!��� !�� ��$� ���)���
-����,�������9$��#��"$�'����'������	�	8�
�
�

C��� �$-*-%!4� +"!&4"!&'%� '-� ')!� �-/&012E%� �-&%'1'/'1-&� H� $!*-$'� -.� ')!�
	!&!$+2��/$*-%!%��-""1''!!����')��+&/+$5�������
�
��$� ���� !"�  ��'!)$�$)� ��$� �$1���� ��� ��$� %''!'����� ��!$�� �@$ ��!0$� ��$,�"�
�$�0! $'�� 1��1�'!�,� ��$�)�$��'� ��� ��$� ���� !"J'� ���'�!���!��� �'�
�$ ���$�)$)�&����$�4$�$��"�5��1�'$'�����!��$$����!�'��$$�!�,��$")����;���
3������� 	�	8� � ��$� �$1����� 9�! �� 9�'�  !� �"��$)� 9!��� ��$� '�11"$�$������
�,$�)��� '�1$� $)$)� ����� 9�! �� ��)� &$$�� !� "�)$)� !�� ��$� ��!,!��"� �,$�)��
1�1$�'8��
�
��$����� !"����$)��������$�'�11"$�$�������$1������)�����&$$�� !� �"��$)�9!���
��$� ���� !"� �,$�)�� !�� �  ��)�� $� 9!��� ��$��!�$' �"$'� '$�� ���� !�� ��$�
%�����!��J'�  ��'�!���!��� &$ ��'$� ��$� �$$�!�,� ��� ��$� 4$�$��"� 5��1�'$'�
����!��$$� �$1���$)� ��$�$!�� ���7� 1"� $� ���$�� ��$� �,$�)�� 9�'� '$��� ��� 1�!��8��
��$� �$1���� 9�'� �$0$���$"$''� �$ ���$�)$)� ����  ��'!)$���!��� ��� ��!'�
�$$�!�,�&$ ��'$� ��$�  ��'�!���!���"� ����$�'� '$�� ���� !�� ��$� �$1���� �$+�!�$)�
��,$��� �$'�"��!��� ��� $��&"$� ��$� !�1"$�$����!��� ��� ��$� )$ !'!��'� 1�$0!��'"��
��)$� &�� ��$� ���� !"� ��)�� !�� �$"��!��� ��� ��$� -�),$�� ���� !"� 1�� $)��$'�� ���
$�'��$���$'$�9$�$�!��1"� $�&$���$���$�-�),$������ !"��$$�!�,�	�	8��
�
��$��$1����9�'�!����)� $)�&�����3�����8�:!""!��'���$�0! $�#$�)���$�� ���! �
�$�0! $'� ��)� �11��1�!��$� �)0! $� 9�'� 1��0!)$)� &�� �'� �'�&$""�� 2�$$�����

Page 44



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

A<�

%''!'�������!$���@$ ��!0$���$,�"��$�0! $'���!��1���! �"���)��9!�,���$����� !"J'�
���$��!��� ��� ��$� '��������� ���! $�'J�  ���$��'� ��� ��$� 1��1�'�"'� �$,��)!�,� �!��
�$ ��)$)�0��$'���)��!!��0!�$�$��'8�
�
���� !""��� ��!�!�� (��������������)����� !""��� 3�'���� 5$ 7����������
��$� �$ ���$�)��!��'���� ��$�4$�$��"�5��1�'$'�����!��$$��'�'$������ !�� ��$�
�$1���� !� �"��$)�9!�����$�'�11"$�$�������,$�)�8���
�
��� '$ ��)!�,� ��$����!���� ���� !""��� 5$ 7������� �� '+#2!4���$�)�$��� �'�
��""�9'B6�
�
C�$"$�$�1�!��'�8
���)�8=���)�!�'$��B6�
�
L��!'����� !"�!�'��� �'���$����$�!����!$���@$ ��!0$������7$������,$�$��'�������
9��7!�,�,���1� ��1�!'!�,����$1�$'$����!0$������$��@$ ��!0$����$���*��!�����)�
��$� ���$�� 1�"!�! �"� ,���1!�,'�� '$�!��� ���! $�'� ��)� ��� !�)$1$�)$��� �)0!'$�� ���
 ��'!)$�� ��$� &�),$����7!�,� ��)� 0!�$�$��� �����,$�$��'� ��� ��$����� !"� ��)�
��7$� �$ ���$�)��!��'� ��� �� �$$�!�,� ��� ��$� �$@�� ���6&�),$�� 2�""� ���� !"�
�����,����$��11��1�!��$� ����$"J8D�
�
���� !""��� ��0!)� �),��� ��������� ��$� ��$�)�$��� ��0$)� &�� ���� !""���
5$ 78�
�
���� !""������!,�%'�������������)����� !""�����0!)����9)�������������
�������$����&"$)���$�)�$����'���""�9'B6�
�
C8���������$�1��1�'$)���$�)�$���������� !"�5�� $)��$���"$�;8A����1����A8�
�����$����'�!���!���&$�)$"$�$)8�
�
	8�����)$"$�$���$�9��)�L�$�J�!������ !"�5�� $)��$���"$�;8A����1����A8������$�
���'�!���!�����)�'�&'�!���$���$�9��)�L'!@J8�
�
<8� ������$�)����� !"�5�� $)��$���"$�;8A����1����A8���� ��$����'�!���!������
�))������$�$�)B�
�
L����$ ��)$)�0��$�����&$� �""$)�������!��'���)$������ !"�5�� $)��$���"$'�
A88���
88A���)�
8	8�������!'�����!��'��������$�+�$'�!���&$���9�1���J8D�
�
�
�<'!&%1-&�-.�'1"!�21"1'�.-$�')!�"!!'1&:�
�
���� !""�����0!)����9)�����������)����� !""���/������0!'�������������
1�� $)���"� ���!��� E� C����� ��)$�� 5�� $)��$� ��"$� 
88;� ��$� �$$�!�,� &$�
$@�$�)$)����!"� ��1"$�!��������$� ���$����,$�)��!�$�8D����$�1�� $)���"����!���
9�'�1��������$�0��$���)�9�'�+:$!!48�
�
�
�$-0!4/$+2��-'1-&�
�
2�""�9!�,� )$&��$�� ���� !""��� ���!�� �.6/����� ������ ��)� ���� !""��� -!""�
����$�� ���������� �� 1�� $)���"� ���!��� E� C����� ��)$�� 5�� $)��$� ��"$�

Page 45



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

AA�

A88����$�+�$'�!���&$���9�1��8D����$�1�� $)���"����!���9�'���$��1��������$�
0��$���)�9�'�+:$!!48�
�
��$� �$�0! $�#$�)�� �$�� ���! � �$�0! $'� �)0!'$)� ��$����� !"� ������$�&$�'�
'���")���9� ��'!)$����)�0��$� !�� ��������$� ���$ ���$�)��!��� ����!�$)� !��
��$��$1���8� �%�$�)�$��'� ���$� ���$ ���$�)��!��� ��")�&$�1��1�'$)� !����$�
�'��"�����$�8��
�
%�� ��$��11��1�!��$�1�!���)��!�,� ��$����� !"J'� ��'!)$���!���� ��$���$�)�$��'�
1�$0!��'"����0$)�&������ !""��'�5$ 7���)����9)����$'1$ �!0$"��9$�$�1������
��$�0��$8�
�
��$���$�)�$�����0$)�&������ !""���5$ 7�9�'�+:$!!4��
�
��$���$�)�$�����0$)�&������ !""������9)���9�'�4!.!+'!4��
�
�� ��'$ �!��������$�'�&'����!0$����!����'���$�)$)�9�'���$��1��������$�0��$�
!���������)�9�'�+:$!!4���%  ��)!�,"��!��9�'B6�
�
���������
�
8� ����� ��$� )$�)"!�$� ���� ��$�)�$��'� ���� ��$� -�),$�� ���� !"� �$$�!�,� &$�

&���,��� ���9��)� ��� >8
� �8�8� ��� ��$� 9��7!�,� )��� &$���$� ��$� &�),$��
�$$�!�,� ��)� ��$� ��$�)�$��'� &$�  !� �"��$)� ��� ��$� ������ ��)� �""�
���� !""��'�� 9!��� ���� ���! $��  ���$��'� ����� ��$� �0�!"�&"$�� ��� "$�'�� 	A�
����'�&$���$���$��$$�!�,8��

�
	8� �������$�-�),$������ !"�5�� $)��$���"$'����1���,��1��A8	����5����A8����

��$� ���'�!���!��� &$� ��$�)$)� �'� ��""�9'� !�� �$"��!��� ��� ��$� �!�'�� -�),$��
���� !"��$$�!�,B�

�
���� � ���$�� ����� ��$�)�$��'� ���!�!$)� !�� �)0�� $� �'� �&�0$�� ��� �����$��
'�&'����!�"� ��$�)�$������������""��&$���0$)���� ��$�&�),$���$$�!�,�
&��� ��$� ���� !"� ����� '�&*$ �� ��� ��$� �)0! $� ��� ��$� ���!���!�,� ���! $���
�$ �!���
����! $����)�#$�)����5�!)��$�0! $���,�$$�����������$�)�$���
9!���������! $� ���&$�)$&��$)8���

�
�&�����$��1$�7$��9!""��$�!�)���$����� !"������$�'����������$��$$�!�,������$�
!�1����� $� 9�$�$� 1�''!&"$� ��� �""� ��$�)�$��'� &$!�,� ��0$)� ��� ��$�
&$,!��!�,���� ��$� )$&��$� ����'� '�����'� ��$��$$)� ���� ��$� ��$�)�$��� !'�
!)$��!�!$)I���)�&$���$���0!�,������$�L�!,�������$1"�J���)�0��!�,�'��,$������$�
�$$�!�,�9!""�,!0$����!��"�!�0!���!����������������$����$�)�$��'8�������$9�
��$�)�$�������&$�1��1�'$)��� $���$� �""�������$�0��$���'� ���$� $)8�
�
� ����%����$��!�'��-�),$������ !"��$$�!�,��!�����$9���$�)�$���!'���0$)�
)��!�,� ��$� �!��"� <�� �!���$'� ��� ��$� �!�$� �""� ��$)� ���� ��$� �$$�!�,�� ��$�
�$$�!�,� 9!""� �������! �""�� &$� $@�$�)$)� &�� �1� ��� <���!���$'� ��� $��&"$�
����� ��$�)�$��� ��� &$� )$&��$)� &$���$� ��$� ,�!""��!�$� 1�� $)��$�  ��$'�
!�����1$���!��8� ���!'�9!""��11"��$0$��!����1�$0!��'�$@�$�'!�����'��"�$�)��
&$$���,�$$)8���
�

Page 46



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

A
�

�)�� � %�� ��$� $�)� ��� ��$� <�� �!���$'� !�� ��$� )$&��$� !'� ����  ��1"$�$�� ��$�
,�!""��!�$�1�� $''�9!""� ��$�!�����1$���!���!����$������"�9�����)���$�0��$�
9!""�1�� $$)������$���$�)�$��'���)�'�&'����!0$����!�����$��$$�!�,�9!""�
 �� "�)$�� ��"$''� ��$����!���!�,����! $�� ��)��$ �!��� 
� ���! $�� �)0!'$�
��$��1$�7$���������$�����$����'�����&$$��'���! !$��"��)!' �''$)�E�!����!'�
 �'$� ��$� �$$�!�,� 9!""�  ���!��$� ���  ��'!)$�� ���� ���'���)!�,�
��$�)�$���'����)����������$����$�)�$��'������������!'$�)!�$ �"���'���
 ��'$+�$� $�������'$���$�)�$��'���"�8�
�
�$�������!�,�!����$��&�0$�1��0!'!��'�'���")�$@�$�)���$��$$�!�,�&$���)���
����"� )����!��� ��� �!0$� ����'�� ��� 9�! �� 1�!��� ��$� ,�!""��!�$� 1�� $''� '��""�
 ��$�!�����1$���!��8�

�
<8� ������ ��$�-�),$����)�5�"! ��2���$9��7�5�� $)��$���"$'����5����A8<����

��$����'�!���!���&$���$�)$)��'���""�9'B6��
�

�������$��)�1�!�������11��0�"������$�1"������'����$,��!'���$��$'1��'!&!"!���
�����$���""����� !"I��

�
�&�����$��������'���$��@$ ��!0$���'��$'1��'!&!"!�������1�$1��!�,���$�)�����
1"������'����$,������'�&�!''!��������$���""����� !"I���)�
�
� �� � ��� ��$����� !"�9!'�$'������$�)���$������J'�1��1�'�"'� !���$"��!������
��$� !�$�'� !� "�)$)� !�� ��$�-�),$����)�5�"! ��2���$9��7���"��� ��$��� �"�
%�����!�!$'� �����)!�,� ��)$�'�� ���,"��)�� �$,�"��!��'� 	��� '$�� ���� ��$�
)!'1��$� �$'�"��!��� 1�� $)��$� ��� &$� ��""�9$)8� � ��$����� !"���'�� !������
��$� ������ ��� ���� �&*$ �!��'� 9�! �� !�� ��'� ��� �!'� 1��1�'�"'� �!8$8� ��$�
��$�)�$��'� !��9!'�$'� ����,�$$����)���'��,!0$� ��$���������� "$�'�� �!0$�
9��7!�,�)��'�����$ ��'!)$���!'�1��1�'�"'���)��$6'�&�!����$�����$�)$)�
��� ����� 9!��� �$�'��'�� ��� �� �����$�� ���� !"� �$$�!�,8� � ��� ��� ��!'� �����$��
�$$�!�,���$����� !"�'�!""�9!'�$'������$�)���$������J'��$0!'$)�1��1�'�"'��
'� �� �� )$ !'!��� �$+�!�$'� �� �9�6��!�)'���*��!��� ��� ��$��$�&$�'� 1�$'$���
��)�0��!�,8� � ������0�"!)���$�)�$������ ��$������$���$$�!�,��$ $!0$'��9�6
��!�)'� '�11����� ��$� �����J'� 1��1�'�"'� ��$� )$$�$)� �)�1�$)� !��
�  ��)�� $�9!�����$��$,�"��!��'8�

�
A8� �������$�1�'!�!�������$1�������!��������� !"�&$��$6)$'!,���$)��'�L�$1����

�1$�7$�J8�
�

8� ��������� !"�5�� $)��$���"$�	;8�&$���$�)$)����'���$B6�
�

L��� 1����,��1��� ��� 0!)$�� ��� ��)!�� �$ ��)!�,� ��� ���� 7!�)� &���$�&$�'��
,�$'�'�����$�&$�'������$�1�&"! �������7$�1"� $������������ !"��$$�!�,�
9!������ ��$� $@1�$''� 1$��!''!��� ��� ��$� �1$�7$�8� � ��$� ���� !"� ����
)$�$��!�$� ����� ��$� 1�� $$)!�,'� ��� ��$� ���� !"� �$$�!�,� '��""� &$� ��)!��
�$ ��)$)�&����$����! $�'���)����'$��$ ��)!�,'�'���$)�!���  ��)�� $�9!���
��1�"! ���,�$$)�&����$����� !"���)��  $''$)�&�������$�&$������$+�$'���
���� ��$!�� �9�� �'$�� !� "�)!�,� 1�&"! ��!��8� � �� �� �$+�$'�'� ��� &$���)$� !��
9�!�!�,������$����!���!�,����! $�8J�
�

Page 47



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

A=�

=8� ��������� !"�5�� $)��$����� !"�5�� $)��$���"$�;8A����1����A8���� ��$�
���'�!���!���&$���$�)$)��'���""�9'B�

�
L�!0-$4!4�;-'!�������9$�����$�&$�'�1�$'$��������$��$$�!�,��$+�$'��!��&��
�!'!�,� ����� ��$!�� '$��'�� ��$� ���$'� ���� ��)� �,�!�'�� ��$� ���!��� ���
��$�)�$�������&'��!�!�,� �����0��!�,�9!""�&$� ��7$��)�9�� !��9�!�!�,���)�
$��$�$)�!������$��!���$'8J�
�

;8� ����� ��$� �$ ���$�)��!��'� ��� ��$� 4$�$��"� 5��1�'$'� ����!��$$� !��
�$"��!��������$�2!��� !�"�5�� $)��$���"$'��'�'$������ !��5���,��1�'�8
�
��)�8=������$��$1����&$�)$"$�$)I���)��

�
?8� ����� ��!'� ���� !"� !�'��� �'� ��$� ���$�!�� ��!$�� �@$ ��!0$� ��� ��7$�

�����,$�$��'� ���� �� 9��7!�,� ,���1�  ��1�!'!�,� �� �$1�$'$����!0$� ��� ��$�
�@$ ��!0$�� ��$���*��!�����)� ��$����$��1�"!�! �"�,���1!�,'��'$�!������! $�'�
��)����!�)$1$�)$����)0!'$����� ��'!)$����$�&�),$����7!�,���)�0!�$�$���
�����,$�$��'������$����� !"���)���7$��$ ���$�)��!��'�������$$�!�,����
��$��$@�����6&�),$��2�""����� !"������,����$��11��1�!��$� ����$"8�

�
>8� ����� ��$� %''!'����� ��!$�� �@$ ��!0$� ��$,�"� �$�0! $'�� &$� ������!'$)� ���

��$�)� ��$� �$@�� ��� ��$� ���'�!���!��� �'� �$ $''���� ��� ,!0$� $��$ �� ��� ��$�
 ���,$'��,�$$)����6?��&�0$8�

�
O���$�������"$�7B��2�""�9!�,���$��$$�!�,������ !""��'��!��%� �$������!,�%'�����
/������0!'��5$�$��4�")'����������3��$'����0!)����9)�����)�4"��!����!$�$"�
$� ���$+�$'�$)������ ��$!��0��$��,�!�'���$'�"��!���=��&�0$�&$��$ ��)$)�!����$�
�!���$'������$��$$�!�,8P���
�
�
�1"!�21"1'�.-$�')!�"!!'1&:�
�
%����!'�1�!������$��$�0! $�#$�)���$�� ���! ��$�0! $'�!�����$)���$����� !"������
��$� �!�$� "!�!�� ���� ��$� �$$�!�,� ��)� &$$�� �$� �$)8� � ��� �  ��)�� $� 9!���
5�� $)��$���"$�>8	����$����� !"���$��0��$)����$� ���$��!�!�,�!�$����������"�
&�'!�$''��$@ $1�����!��'�������! $�����,$�)��!�$��	��9!�����������$��)$&��$�
��)���$��1$�7$����$��)$ "��$)���$��$$�!�,� "�'$)8�
�
�

C� � �!0$/1'"!&'�-.��)1!.��<!0/'1;!�H�/*4+'!��
�
��$����� !"� �$ $!0$)� ��$� �$1���� ��� ��$�#������$'��� $'�����!��$$� )��$)�
?��� 3������� 	�	��  �� $��!�,� ��$� 1��,�$''���)$� !�� ��$� �$ ��!��$��� ��� ��$�
1�'�� ��� ��!$�� �@$ ��!0$� ��)� 1��1�'!�,� ��$� $@�$�'!��� ��� ��$�  ���$��� !��$�!��
�11�!���$���1$�)!�,� ��1"$�!�����������1�� $''8�
�
��$� �$1���� ��)� ���� &$$��  !� �"��$)� 9!��� ��$� ���� !"� �,$�)�� !�� �  ��)�� $�
9!�����$��!�$' �"$'�'$������!����$�%�����!��J'� ��'�!���!���&$ ��'$���$��$$�!�,�
��� ��$� #����� �$'��� $'� ����!��$$� �$1���$)� ��$�$!�� ���7� 1"� $� ���$�� ��$�
�,$�)�� 9�'� )$'1�� �$)8� � ��$� �$1���� 9�'� �$0$���$"$''�  ��'!)$�$)� ��� ��$�
�$$�!�,�!����)$�����$�'��$��������$�$�9�'����)$"��������$��$ ��!��$���1�� $''�

Page 48



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

A;�

���� ��$� 1�'�� �����!$�� �@$ ��!0$� ��)� ��� $�'��$�  ���!��!��� ��� ��$� !��$�!��
�11�!���$��8�
�
���������
�
8� ����� ��$� �1)��$� ��� 1��,�$''� ��)� ��$� �$0!'$)� �!�$��&"$� ���� ��$�

�$ ��!��$��������$�1�'�������!$���@$ ��!0$�&$����$)8�
�
	8� ����� !�� 0!$9� ��� ��$� �$0!'$)� �!�$��&"$�� ��$� �11�!���$��� ��� %������"0!��

���1����$� �!�$ ����� �$0$"�1�$��� ��)� �$�$9�"�� �'� ���$�!�� ��!$��
�@$ ��!0$� �#$�)� ��� ��$� 5�!)� �$�0! $�� &$� $@�$�)$)� ���!"� ��$� %����"�
���� !"��$$�!�,�!������	�	8�

�
���� �����������������������>�����������������������	�������

�����9���������	�����������6������7��
�
��$�$�9�'����&�'!�$''���)$����!'��$�)!�,8�
�
�

���� ��
�������������
�
�

����� �$!+%/$5��+&+:!"!&'��'$+'!:5��'+'!"!&'���1&1"/"��!;!&/!��$-;1%1-&�
�-2105��'+'!"!&'�+&4��&&/+2��&;!%'"!&'��'$+'!:5�����J����
�
��$� ���� !"� �$ $!0$)� ��$� �$1���� ��� ��$� ���1����$� �!�$ ����� �$'��� $'�
1��1�'!�,� ��$� �)�1�!��� ��� ��$� ��$�'���� ����,$�$��� �����$,�� ����$�$��I�
�$0!'$)�%����"���0$'��$��������$,����)��!�!�����$0$��$�5��0!'!���5�"! ��
����$�$��8�
�
���������
�

8� �������$���$�'��������,$�$��������$,������$�$���&$��)�1�$)��'�'$������
!�� '$ �!��'� =6�� ��� %11$�)!@� � ��� ��$� �$1���� ��� ��$� ���1����$� �!�$ �����
�$'��� $'8�

�

	8� ����� ��$��$0!'$)� %����"� ��0$'��$��������$,�� &$� �)�1�$)� �'� '$�� ���� !��
'$ �!��� � ��� %11$�)!@� � ��� ��$� �$1���� ��� ��$� ���1����$� �!�$ �����
�$'��� $'8�

�

<8� �������$��!�!�����$0$��$�5��0!'!���5�"! ������$�$���&$��)�1�$)��'�'$��
���� !�� '$ �!��� 	� ���%11$�)!@� � ��� ��$� �$1���� ��� ��$����1����$��!�$ �����
�$'��� $'8�

�
�

���� ���������������������������������������������
�����������
�
���!��'�	8��	8>��	8��	8<���)�	8A���)�&$$��)$&��$)�$��"!$�� !�� ��$�
�$$�!�,8��

Page 49



���������	
���	�	� ���������������������������
�

A?�

�
���!��'� 	8	I� 	8<I� 	8AI� 	8
I� 	8=I� 	8;I� 	8?I� 	8�I� 	8	I� 	8
I� 	8=�
��)�	8;�9$�$����� ��'!)$�$)�)�$� ��� ��$� �!�$� "!�!��&$!�,� �$� �$)8� ���&"$)�
��$�)�$��'� ������!��'�	8AI�	8
I�	8=I�	8����)�	8	�9$�$�������0$)��
�  ��)!�,"�8�
�

�
�

��$��$$�!�,�$�)$)����8	��18�8��
�
�
�
�

���!����
���� !"�

�

Page 50



������������	
���������
�������
�

������������
��������������	���������	��
�


�����������������������������������������������
�

�
�����������
����������������������
�����������������������
��� ����������������������!���	�

�
�"#$"%&��%"&"'()�
�
��������	
���������
�����������������������
�����������������������������
����������������������
���������������������
����������������������
�������������
������������
����������������������
���������������������
����������������������
��������������� ���	���
�������������	
��!� ��
�������������"�������������
����������������������������
�����������#����$�%���
������������	�&������'�	���
�����������$�%���'� ���
����������������(�������
�����������)���	��*��������
�����������������*�����
�����������+�	���*�����
��������������
�����������
��������������������&��,+�����
�������������������-����
���������������)��.����
�����������$������)�����
�

�����������$�/�'��)�����
�������������0��������
����������������������
�����������������������
����������������������
���������������������	���
����������������������
�������������/�����������
����������������������
�����������(�"��������
��������������������������.�	��!'�
������������������������
������������������+�%�		�
�����������)������+��.�
�����������#���	��������
�����������������������
����������������������������
�����������$�%������0����
�����������*��������������
�����������!�����������
�����������������������
�����������������������
�����������������������
�������������	����",#����
��������������1��	����.�
�

�
������	�� ����������	�2/34�&//�
�

�*"��+",-"%�./��.0'123���.0'1233.%��24,'0%��*,05*0%6��2'�(*"��*,2%�
�
!�
����������� �	���
���������������
�	�����	�� 5�	����&��.�����������	��
�����������	�������&&��	�
������6���&��	���&�	������5�	����&������������	�������������
3��������� 7897� ��� ���� �
� 	��� :�	���0��� 	�� ���%��;�������� 0����� ��������� �
� ����
	�����0�����������	���!�	�����*�����������	�	���������	������3���������9<=3/�

�
�

��� �����	�����������������
�
>���&��� ����
�����������0���������%��/�

Page 51



�
��� ��������������������������

�
������������������	����	������	���������������	���� �����
���	�����	�� �
���
����0�?,�
�

�.0'1233.%�
�

�("#� �6+"�./�2'("%"&(� �",&.'�

�����������
�����
�

@/9� +�������� 1��������������5�'��	�
-�����A����������
B����������������	���	C�

������������
�����

@/9� +�������� '&��������������	��
���%����&��%�����

�������	
��
!� ��
�

@/9� +�������� 1��������������5�
�������������������
�
���>�����>���

����������
(�������

@/9� +�������� �������,�&&���	���
��&�����	�	�%�����
������	��(���
�������	����!�����

�����+�	���
*�����

@/9� +�������� �������,�����	���
��&�����	�	�%��	��*�����
�������$�������/�

������������
���	���

@/9� +�������� 1��������������5�'��	�
-�����A����������
B����������������	���	CD�
����&����������	����	����
:��&�	�����;��� �����	���/��

�����)������
+��.�

@/9� +�������� �������,�&&���	���
��&�����	�	�%�����	���
*����0��������
$��.������(��	�%���

�
�

��� ��� ����� �� �������������� ���� ����� ����� �
�� ����7��� ���
������������
���
�����8����� ���
�
>������������	��0���������	�	�����	�� /�
�
�

!�� �������� �����������������
�
>��&�	�	�����0���������%����	�	�����	�� /�
�
�

��� ���	�����������������8�����9����
�

���� �"+.%(�./�(*"��,$2'"(��""(2':�./�;(*��"$%0,%6�������
�
��������	
�����������	������������'E���	�%�;����%�������� �	�&��&���������
��	���	����	�����&��	��
�	���������	���	�� ����F	��(��������78975�0�����0���
�������	���	������������	�����&&����	����� ����/����������������	���

Page 52



	��	� ���� ���� &�����	�� 0��� 	�� &��	��	� 	��� !���� �� ���� 	��� ��	� %����������
���	����� �
� 	��� �����	�� 
��� 	���*�%�����	;�� ��	�� � ����� ���� 	��  �%��
%�����
�������/�������	������	�����	�����	���&��%�������
�
�������������
���
	����������D����	�������	�����	���&��%�����D��������	��	���� ����������������	��

�����	���� 0���� ������� ���� &��	��	� ��0��,0� ��� �	�

/� � ���� &��&������ 0�����
�����&��	��	�	�����%����
�%����	�������	��� ���	������0������������	��	���������
��E�0��������
��"���
���	���	�����������������������/���
�
����������	���.���	������������0����������	����	���	��	�����%���&��	�
�
�������� �	�&��&���������6���&��&�����	���������	��	��	��������� �����
	�������&���	���	�	���������	���	�� /���
�
����������� ������� ���������� �� ��5� ���� ����������� ����� �����
��������5�	������ �	�&��&�������
�	�������������'E���	�%�/�
�
������ ��� �	� ������	�� 0���� 	������ ���� �%��� ��� ����������� 0�	��
+��������������7�/F����
����0�?�
�

B�C� ������	��� ����������������� ��0��� ����� �������������
��������������������*����������	���	��	�����E���	��	��������	��D�

�
B��C� ������	� �� ��� ��� ����������� $�%��� ���0���� ����

��������� ��� ����������� #���� $�%��� ��� ��	� ��	� �	� ����E� !� 	��
	��������	��D�

�
B���C� ������	��� �����������������������������������������

�����������������������������	���	��	�����E���	��	��������	��/�
�
(����0�� � ����	�� ��� 	��� �����;�� &��&������ ���� 	��� ���%�� ������	�5�
����������� ������� ���������� �� ��5� ���� ����������� ����� �����
��������5� �� 
��	���� ������	� 0�	���	� ��	���� &��&���� � ����	������
��%�� �������������&&��	���	�������
����0�?,�
�
G�������������>�	��?�
�
9/���������?�

�C� ����������������	���	0����%�����
�����
���	������������
� ���&��0�	��
�%���4������������?��������������
��� ���&�0�	��4������������%���
H@5@39�&/�/5�0����	�	�����������
��� ���&�0�	��2��������������������
�����%��� H98592=� &/�/� B������ ����� ���	�� ��� ��	� �������� 	���
������� �
� 	��� �����	��  ���&5� 0��� �����%��� ��� ���� �	� 	��� ����
��%��������������	������/C/�

�C� ������	���	�������������9� ���&������������0�	���%���4������������/�
�C� ���	�	�����������
�	���� ���&;��������	��������H98592=�&/�/��%�������

���%��	�������������0������
�H98584@/�
�C� ����� ��� �� ���� 	���� 	��� ���������� ��%��� ��� 	��� -���&�����	�

+�������� 	����������	�����
������������� �������������H7534F� 	��
HF5F@7�&/�/�

�C� ����� ��� 
��� �� ���� 	���� ��� ��&���	�%�� ����� ��� ��0����� ����
>�0��5�0�����	����������H@572@�����H35479�&/�//�

�
�

Page 53



7/�����'%��	�����+��.�?�
�C� ������	�������������� ���������%��	��������������I��	�����+��./�
�C� ����������������	�������%��	��������������0����+��.5����&�	���	����� �

�����
�	������ ��	�&��.�����	�������� �/�
�
������������������%��?�
�
9/���������?�

�C� ���� 	0�� 	������ ���	�� ��� ������������ ���� ��	� ��&&��	��� ��� 	���
-���&�����	�+����;����������	���/�

�C� -��������� ���0�����0����%�������
����� � �������
������5�����	���
��&�����	�	�%��� ������� ������� 	��	� 	����� �������	���� ���
����������5� ��� ������	��� ��� 	��� -���&�����	� +����;��
��������	�����������&���	�%������� ��/�

�
7/�����'%��	�����+��.�?�

�C� '%��	�����&��.��&��%������%�	�����������
������5���	��	����&&��	�	���
���	������� �
� 	��� &��.�� ���� 	�� 
���� �����	�� 
��	�%���� ����
�%��	�/�

�C� ������	���I��	�����+��.�	�.���	����	������
����	�� �	������%��	�/�
�C� ��������� ��������
�0��	������� ��&��.����&������
����	�� ��%��	�5�

0��������������&����	����	���%��	�������%������������	�������� �/�
�C� ����0���� +��.� ��� 	��� ��  ��	� &��.� ��� 	��� ���	�� �
� 	��� ����� �5� �	� ���

����� ��������� ��� ��$�� ���� 	��� $��5� ������� � 	��� ������ �
�
�������	�������	����

��	�����������/�

�
������������������%��?�
�
9/���������?�

�C� ������� �	��������
�	�����������
����� ���&��	����	����	��������	��
 ���&� ��� ����� 0�	�� 	��� ��������	���� �
� 	��� -���&�����	� +�����
�����	������&���	�%����������/�

�C� ���	�	������%����
���������������	���������%������
��������		���
�����5��	�H@5@39�&/�//�������0���������	������%�� ��
�H=54=3/�

�
7/�����'%��	�����+��.�?�

�C� ���	�	����������
��%��	���������I��	�����+��.���������������9�����
	��	����E����
�=��%��	������������������������0����+��./�

�C� �����0���� �������� ��%����� ��������� 
����%��	�� ���&��.���
��	� ����	�
H385888/�

�
��	�����%����������%��������	����	�	������ �	� �&?�H3=54=3/J�
�
�
�5<.0%'#"'(�
�
�����&��.�������������	�����	�� ��	�</98�&//����	��	��

�����;���%����������
��� ��� �	� ���� ����	���� 	�� 	��� ���%�� &��&����� ������	/� � ���� ��	�� �
�����%������	�</38�&//���
�
(����0�� �	������������	5�	�������	���� ��

�������%�����	�����������	��	�	���
&��	� �
� 	��� &��&����� ������	� 	��	� ����	��� 	�� '%��	�� ��� +��.�� 0��� ���

Page 54



�E���	�%�� �		��� ���� 	����
���� ��	� �
� ���&�� 
��� 	��� �������� ��	�� /� � ����
&��&����� ��� ����	���� 	�� �&������ ���&��������	�� ����0������ 0��� ��� ������ ��	�
��&�����	�������0�������	�0�����������������������&	���
�������	�������
�����	��%�	���
� 	����������/� ������&��.��� 	����&�	� 	�� 	���%�	��	���&��&�����
	��	����	����9/��
���������������������;��������	��������&	���
�������	��
����	����0���5"/",("5/�
�
�
�5<.0%'#"'(�
�
(����0�� �
��	��������	�5� 	����&��.�������������	�����	�� ��	�</3@�&//��	�
	���������	��
�	��������5�	������������������	�����
�	���	������������	�/���
������	�� ������%������	�</@8�&//�
�
(����0�� � 	��� ���������	� 	��������� ������� ���� ��� �	� &��&������ B�C� ���
����&	�� � ��� 
���� 	��� ������	� &��&�������������������� ���������������
����� ����D� ���� B��C� ��� ����&	�� � ���� �����	�� �
� 	��� ������	�
&��&����� ��� ������������ ��0��� ����� ���� ������ *����/� � ���� 
���� ���	� �
�
���� �������&	������	�������������		�������	��&&����E�9�	��	��������	��/���
�
-������	����	�������	���������	���
�	���������	�&��&��������������������
��0������������������*����5�0�����	���������0�����	������	�����������������
��%����� ��� �	� &��&����5� ��� ��%��	������� ������	��� 
��	���� 	��	� ��� ��	������
	�?,�
�

•� ������	�	���-�	�������&���	��$����	��5���������5�������������(�������
���� 	��� ���&���	�� $����	��5� �����	���5� ������	���� ���� ���	���5� 	��
����%��� 	��� 
��������	�� �	���� 
��� �
	��������� &�	����� 0�	���� �E��	�� �
���������/�

�

•� �����	�.������%��0��
�������	��������
����&�%��	������������&��	������&�
0�	��������������������/�

�

•� *�%��
��	�������������	����	��	���&��&�������������	����	��	����� ��	����
�
���������5����� 	��������
� 	���>�0������!����� 
���$����	������
0��.�5�������.��

������ 	������ ���&�&������ 	������		���� 	�� 	�����E	�
������	���	�� /�

�

•� -�%��	� �	��
��	����	���&��&������� ����� ���	������&��
����������������	��
������0�	����� �	��������%�����	���� ��	���+��+�&������/�

�

•� ��.� �

������ 	�� ���.� 
��	���� ��	�� 	��� ��������� ������� ��� 	��� �������
*���&� ������� &��.�� � &���	�� ���� 	��� ���� ��� �	� 
��� ���.� 0��	��
������	���5���	����	������������ ���	�����������
����E	������
����	��������
�� �� �5� ���� ���� � �� ��&��	� 	�� 	��� ��E	� ������	� ��	�� � ��� 	�����
�		���/�

�

•� ��.� �

������ ����� 	�� ����	� �� ��&��	� 	�� 	��� ��E	� ������	� ��	�� � 	��
�����
�� �		���� ��� $���������� ����� ���%����5� ����	� 0����� 	���������
�����%���	�����0�������������	����� /�

�

Page 55



(������5� 	��� ������ �	�	��� 	��	� ��� ���� ��	� ����&	� ���� �����	�� �
� 	���
������	�&��&��������������������$�%������0��������#����$�%��/�
��
�
�5<.0%'#"'(�
�
�����&��.�������������	�����	�� ��	�98/87�&//��	�	���������	��
�	���*���&�
�������� 	�� ������� ���������	���� �
� 	��� �����;�� �	�	���	/� � ���� ��	�� �
�����%������	�98/78�&//�
�
(����0�� �	������������	5������������)������+��.�������	���	��	����	����� �	�
�
� 	������� ����������	���������	��������� �	�&��&�����5�	���������	�
&��&����� ��� ������������ ��0��� ����� ���� ������ *����� 0��� 0�	����0�� ����
��&�������������0�������	5��� �����������������+��.��������������
��������������������*����5����
����0�?�
�
G�������������>�	��?�
�
������������������&	���	���%��	������	���
��������������	��	��&��	��	�
	���%��������������0�������	��������� ��/�
�
�������������(��	����>�	��?�
�
���	� �������	�� ���� �
	��� 
������ 	�� ��
�������� ������� ��0� ����� ��� ����
(������%���&��	����������	��������������/�
�
������������������%��?�
�
��� ����� ��� 	��������� 	�� �&����	� �E	������ ���� 
���� ��%���&��	�� 	�� ����
����	0���������&��&��	���/J�
�
�
�	� 	���� &���	5� ����������� ������� ���������� �� ��� ���� ����������� �����
����� ��������5� �� &���������� �	���� K� G���	� ������ +��������� �����
9=/9/98�	�������	���������0�&�	/J������&�����������	����0���&�	�	��	���%�	��
����0���,:%""5/�
�
(����0�� � 	��� �����;�� �� �	� �
� ��&��5� 	��� 	������ ������	� &��&����� ���
������������ $�%��� ���0���� ���� #���� $�%��� 0��� &�	� 	�� 	��� %�	�� ���� 0���
5"/",("5/�
�
���� 
��	���� ������	� &��&����� ��� ������������ )������ +��.� ���� ������
*����������	���	����%��0���	����&�	�	��	���%�	������0���,:%""5/�
�
(������� 	��� ����	��	�%�� �	���5� ���� � 	��� ������ ���� 'E���	�%�;�� ��� �	�
&��&���������������5�0���&�	�	��	���%�	������0���,:%""5/�
�
��������	���� ��

����� ��
����� 	����������� �
� ��%���� 
��� 	������	����9@9�
�

����� 	��	� 	��� ���������� 	�.��� ��� 	��� �������� 0����� ��%�� 	��� �

��	� �
�
������� �	���*������������%������H2475888/�
�
�

Page 56



�������� ��5��	�0�������� ���
�
��� 	"'"%,3� �0'5� �"="'0"� �05:"(� ,'5� �.0'123� �,>� �"?02%"#"'(�

����9���
�
9/�� ���	� 	��� ��%����� ��� �	� &��&������ �
� 	��� ������ ���� 'E���	�%�5�

������������	���!�� �	�7897693�$�����	�+��.5�������������	���	����
	�����&��	��
�	������������������	��
�F	��(������������
��	�����������
����	��&&����E�9�	��	��������	��5����� ����/��

�
7/� ���	���*�������(������%�������� �	��
�H7<7/74@�������	�	�����������

��E����������	�
�����0�������	�����7897693��
�HF8/=3����� �����
�����	���	����	���	���������0?,�

�
� � �"=2&"5� �,=2':&� 	%.@(*� �,%#,%-"5� �.(,3�

� � ��,&"� �++%.="5� �"@� � �"&"%="&� �05:"(��

�"%=21"� ����A��� � � � � ����A���

� � BC���� BC���� BC���� BC���� BC���� BC����

�503(&�
",3(*�D�"33$"2':� <<5=43� B3537<C� BF89C� 95793� B95988C� <@5==4�

� � �� � � � � ��

�*235%"'���1*..3&�,'5��,#232"&� 485F97� B75472C� B9@8C� 7F@� B49FC� @25287�

� � �� � � � � ��

�.##0'2(2"&���.1,32(2"&�,'5��03(0%"� 495=32� B=53@@C� B9582@C� 753@F� B95892C� @253=F�

� � �� � � � � ��

�"="3.+#"'(�D��"'"@,3� 3953@<� B9577FC� B94@C� 2=� B38C� 385898�

� � �� � � � � ��

�"&.0%1"&� 795<=F� BF@FC� B75438C� 98� B98C� 9F5=48�

� � �� � � � � ��

�*2"/��>"10(2="&� F5@3@� B3=FC� B383C� @@� B=4=C� 25=2@�

� � �� �� �� �� �� ��

�"(��"%=21"��.&(&� 7F35@@=� B9752=@C� B@597=C� 35<<@� B3573<C� 7445==9�

� � �� � � � � ��

�(*"%��"(��.&(&� �� � � � � ��

��&�	������� ��� 9958@@� � B95==@C� =88� � 985898�

��%���� 75=9@� � � � � 75=9@�

+�������� 9759@9� � � 957@8� � 935=89�

�	�������&���	�����	�� F574<� B9597@C� B792C� 348� 759@=� <5==9�

� � �� �� �� �� �� ��

�.(,3��(*"%��"(�1.&(&� 335F<8� B9597@C� B95447C� 75898� 759@=� 3@5742�

� � �� � � � � ��

�.%"�	%,'(&� B9853<9C� � B354=2C� � � B9=583FC�

�"&"%="&� �� � � � � ��������

� *�������(���� 35888� � B35888C� � � �,�

� '����.��� <82� � � � 959FF� 758<@�

� *�������(����B���	��� C� �,� � � � B95488C� B95488C�

�'/3,(2.'� ,� � � =5988� � =5988�

� � �� � � � � ��

�.(,3��2','12':��"?02%"#"'(� 3985<48� B935F28C� B935=33C� 98598@� B95=<2C� 7<7574@�

� � �� � � � � ��

�.%#03,�	%,'(� B77<5423C� � � 925F3F� � B7995F3@C�

�.0'123��,>� BF957F2C� B27@C� � 95@F7� � BF85=38C�

� � �� � � � � ��

�.(,3��2','12':� B3985<48C� B27@C� �,� 9<5=78� ,� B7<7574@C�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 57



3/� ���	�������������E����� �����
�����0�������	�����7897693��
�HFF@/@7�
�	� !���� $� �����	�� � ��� �� �������� ��E� 
��� ���� �	���� ����� 	�E&�����5�
��
���������������	�5������E������ �	���*���&����&	5������	���	����	���
	���������0?,�
�

�

����� ��������� ����� ���������
�������

���
�
����������8�
�������
�
�����

� �����
B�

���
B�

�
�

�� 8� =85888� 46<� H@<8/3@�

!� =85889� @75888� 26<� H4FF/2=�

�� @75889� 4F5888� F6<� H2F2/93�

$� 4F5889� FF5888� <6<� HFF@/@7�

'� FF5889� 9785888� 996<� H958F7/38�

(� 9785889� 9485888� 936<� H9572</8F�

*� 9485889� 3785888� 9@6<� H95=2@/F2�

�� 3785889� �����%��� 9F6<� H95229/8=�

�

�

�

=/� ���	�
���	����������!���� ���
���0�������	�����7897693?,�
�

B�C� ��������������E�
���!����$�	�E&�����5���
���������������	�5�����
�������� �	���*���&����&	5����������H959<7/7=�������0������0?,�

�
�

� H�

B!����$5�>��$������	�C�

�!��� FF@/@7�

*��� 384/27�

��	��� ����959<7/7=�

�
�
�

Page 58



�
B�C� ���� �������� ��E� 
��� 	�E&������ ��� ���� �	���� �����5� ��
���� ����

�������	�5������������� �	���*���&����&	5���������������	������ ���
	���	���������0?,�

�
�

��������� ����� ���
� 	��� ������

�����
�����
B�

���
B�

���������
�������

�� �� ��

�� 8� =85888� 46<� @<8/3@� 78=/=F� 2<=/F3�

!� =85889� @75888� 26<� 4FF/2=� 73F/@4� <72/38�

�� @75889� 4F5888� F6<� 2F2/93� 727/4=� 958@</22�

$� 4F5889� FF5888� <6<� FF@/@7� 384/27� 959<7/7=�

'� FF5889� 9785888� 996<� 958F7/38� 32=/FF� 95=@2/9F�

(� 9785889� 9485888� 936<� 9572</8F� ==3/8=� 95277/97�

*� 9485889� 3785888� 9@6<� 95=2@/F2� @99/78� 95<F2/82�

�� 3785889� �����%��� 9F6<� 95229/8=� 493/==� 753F=/=F�

�

�

�

@/� ���	�	����	�	�	�����������	������
�	������	����	�;������������E�
���������	�����78976935���������	�.������	�������
�(����������

�����
��������������0�	��	������������	���
����	�����39�	��34��
�	���������
*�%�����	�(���������	�9<<75����� ���������		�������	��&&����E�7�	��
	��������	��/�

�
�
4/� ���	�	���������������� ���	��	��	� ���	�	���	5�	����������

-�%��	��	��	��	� ������	�����������%�����+��%������+������
�	�	���	�����&&��%������&�����	���	��������	����F	��(��������7897�
�������	���������	�����&&����	����� �����&��.�
���	���!�� �	�
����������	�� ����77���(��������7897/�

�
�
�
�
�

Page 59



2/� ���	�	���*�������(������&�	���������%�����!�� �	������������
����(���������+����7897,789@��������������	�����	����	�%���&	�����
� ��������	������������������	����F	��(���������������
��	����
��������	��&&����E�9�	��	��������	��5�����&&��%�����������"���
���	���	����������0?,�

�
�

�0##,%6��%,/(��"520#��"%#��2','12,3��3,'�����A���

� � � � � � � � �

� � ����A��� � ����A��� � ����A�!� � ���!A���

� � BC���� � BC���� � BC���� � BC����

� � � � � � � � �

�"(��"%=21"��.&(&� 33@58=F� � 3785===� � 38<5=74� � 7<=5=47�

� � � � � � � � �

	%.@(*� <52F2� � @54=@� � =523=� � 352=@�

�,=2':&� � � � � � � �

� �++%.="5� B7F5F28C� � B9=5@<@C� � B975987C� � 8�

� �"@� 8� � B<52F4� � B9354F9C� � B45=72C�

�'/3,(2.'� =5=2<� � =5988� � 25988� � 45=88�

� � � � � � � � �

�.%"�	%,'(&� B9853<9C� � B9=583FC� � B9=5828C� � B945828C�

� � � � � � � � �

�,%#,%-"5��"&"%="&� <82� � 758<@� � B388C� � 8�
	"'"%,3��0'5�
�"&"%="&� 8� � B95488C� � F5384� � BF5<43C�

� � � � � � � � �

�.(,3��0'52':�
�"?02%"#"'(� 3985<48� � 7<7574@� � 7F<5=93� � 72359=2�

� � � � � � � � �

�.%#03,�	%,'(� B77<5423C� � B7995F3@C� � B78<5=99C� � B9<95822C�

�.0'123��,>� BF957F2C� � BF85=38C� � BF85887C� � BF75828C�

� � � � � � � � �

�.(,3��0'52':� B3985<48C� � B7<7574@C� � B7F<5=93C� � B72359=2C�

���
�

Page 60



�"(,23"5�,',36&2&�./�(*"��"520#��"%#��2','12,3��3,'�$6�&"%=21"�,%",�����9���(.����!9��� � � � � � �

� � �,&"� �,=2':&� 	%.@(*� �,%#,%-"5� �.(,3� �,=2':&� 	%.@(*� �,%#,%-"5� �.(,3� �,=2':&� 	%.@(*� �,%#,%-"5� �.(,3�

� � �� �++%.="5� �"@� � �"&"%="&� �� �++%.="5� �"@� � �"&"%="&� �� �++%.="5� �"@� � �"&"%="&� ��

�"%=21"� ����A��� � � � � ����A��� � � � � ����A�!� � � � � ���!A���

� � BC���� BC���� BC���� BC���� BC���� BC���� BC���� BC���� BC���� BC���� BC���� BC���� BC���� BC���� �� BC����

�503(&�
",3(*�D�
"33$"2':� <<5=43� B3537<C� BF89C� 95793� B95988C� <@5==4� B75@7<C� B7578@C� 95=@7� B788C� <95<4=� � B<88C� 95488� B388C� <7534=�

� � �� � � � � �� �� � � �� �� � � � � ��
�*235%"'���1*..3&�,'5�
�,#232"&� 485F97� B75472C� B9@8C� 7F@� B49FC� @25287� B95F98C� B@C� B9F8C� �� @@5282� � B<48C� B988C� � @=54=2�

� � �� � � � � �� �� � � �� �� � � � � ��
�.##0'2(2"&��
�.1,32(2"&�,'5��03(0%"� 495=32� B=53@@C� B9582@� 753@F� B95892� @253=F� B352@2C� B95=<@C� 95737� BF48C� @75=4F� B9@8C� B788C� 957=@� B@4@C� @752<F�

� � �� � � � � �� �� � � �� �� � � � � ��
�"="3.+#"'(�D�
�"'"@,3� 3953@<� B9577FC� B94@� 2=� B38C� 385898� B75294C� B75289C� B78C� B=2@C� 7=58<F� � B95@3=C� � � 775@4=�

� � �� � � � � �� �� � � �� �� � � � � ��

�"&.0%1"&� 795<=F� BF@FC� B75438� 98� B98C� 9F5=48� B7<<C� B<82C� � �� 9257@=� � B738C� � � 92587=�

� � �� � � � � �� �� � � �� �� � � � � ��

�*2"/��>"10(2="&� F5@3@� B3=FC� B383� @@� B=4=� 25=2@� B9F2C� B988C� � �� 259FF� � B988C� � � 258FF�

� � �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

�"(��"%=21"��.&(&� 7F35@@=� B9752=@C� B@597=� 35<<@� B3573<� 7445==9� B9957<FC� B25=93C� 75F72� B95@3@C� 7=F5483� B9@8C� B35<7=C� 752=@� BF4@C� 7=45=F@�

� � �� � � � � �� � � � � �� � � � � ��

�(*"%��"(��.&(&� �� � � � � �� � � � � �� � � � � ��

��&�	������� ��� 9958@@� � B95==@C� =88� � 985898� � � 95888� � 995898� � � 95888� � 975898�

��%���� 75=9@� � � � � 75=9@� � � � � 75=9@� � � � � 75=9@�

+�������� 9759@9� � � 957@8� � 935=89� � � 957@8� � 9=54@9� � � � � 9=54@9�

�	�������&���	�����	�� F574<� B9597@C� B792� 348� 759@=� <5==9� B97@C� B95=3=C� B348C� � 25@77� � B75@83C� � � @589<�

� � �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ��

�.(,3��(*"%��"(�1.&(&� 335F<8� B9597@C� B95447C� 75898� 759@=� 3@5742� B97@C� B95=3=C� 95F<8� � 3@5@<F� � B75@83C� 95888� � 3=58<@�

� � �� � � � � �� � � � � �� � � � � ��

�.%"�	%,'(&� B9853<9C� � B354=2C� � � B9=583FC� � B37C� � � B9=5828C� � B75888C� � � B945828C�

�"&"%="&� �� � � � � �������� � � � � �� � � � � ��

*�������(���� 35888� � B35888C� � � ,� � � � � ,� � � � � ,�

'����.��� <82� � � � 959FF� 758<@� � B35=88C� � 9588@� B388C� � � � 388� ,�
*�������(����
B���	��� C� ,� � � � B95488C� B95488C� �������������� � � <5783� F5384� � � � B92574<C� BF5<8=C�

�'/3,(2.'� ,� � � =5988� � =5988� � � 25988� � 995788� � � 45=88� � 925488�

� � �� � � � � �� � � � � �� � � � � ��

�.(,3��2','12':�
�"?02%"#"'(� 3985<48� B935F28C� B935=33C� 98598@� B95=<2C� 7<7574@� B995=73C� B97572<C� 975922� F5423� 7F<5=93� B9@8C� BF5=72C� 9859=@� B925F3=C� 72359=2�

� � �� � � � � �� � � � � �� � � � � ��

�.%#03,�	%,'(� B77<5423C� � � 925F3F� � B7995F3@C� � � 75=7=� � B78<5=99C� � � 9F533=� � B9<95822C�

�.0'123��,>� BF957F2C� B27@C� � 95@F7� � BF85=38C� B@@=C� � <F7� � BF85887C� � � B7584FC� � BF75828C�

� � �� � � � � �� � � � � �� � � � � ��

�.(,3��2','12':� B3985<48C� B27@C� ,� 9<5=78� ,� B7<7574@C� B@@=C� ,� 35=84� ,� B7F<5=93C� ,� ,� 945744� ,� B72359=2C�

�

P
age 61



���>�-�5�7768767897� �'��-�>��>'�B�>�'���-��'$C�
�

97�

�
F/� ���	�	�������������	���	�����������������&	���	���%��	������	���
�

�������������	��	��&��	��	�	���%��������������0�������	�����
���� ��/�

�
</� ���	�	�����������
��	������	���	��	��������	�������
	���
������	����
����

�������������0�������������(������%���&��	����������	����
����������/�

�
98/� ���	�	����������������%���	����������	���������	���&����	��E	������

����
������%���&��	��	����������	0���������&��&��	���/�
�
�
�

������	�� ��������	�98/38�&//��
�
�
�

�&��.��5��
��������

�

Page 62



���>�-�5�7768767897� �'��-�>��>'�B�>�'���-��'$C�
�

93�

�������8���
�

���	��������������E�����9������	�����������������	�
�

�%.+.&,3&�,11"+("5�$6�(*"��,6.%�/%.#�(,$3"5�,#"'5#"'(��2���#.="5�$6�
�.0'1233.%&��'@,%�7*,'�,'5��,%3.�	2$$&)�
�

�,=2':&�
�,=2':�2'�
����9���

���������
������	���	���	�� ��� H75=88�

$���	�����&�������������������
	������&���� H35FF8�

$���	�� 
����� � B�����.��� �����%��C� 
��� 
��������	�� �	���� 
���
�
	���������&�	�����������&��	���	�������� ��E��	�� ��

�����	��� H985888�

�������������	��������&�������	�E���
����

������� H9@5888�

������������&�������	�E���
���������B���%�� �H45888�	��
������
��������� 
��������
� 	����&��.�������$�&�	���&��.�������

������
%���	�C�� H<5888�

��������������	������&�������$A����������� H385888�

������� 
����� �����0���� ���������� ���� �	�

� ���
�����������
������ �	����	���������
�����	����� H385888�

�

�+"'5� ���	��7897693�

������������	���&&��	�������%����
���9@8�������B>!?�&��%�����
	�������������	���� ��������&��������	�&������C� BH7=5888C�

���	����
����� �	��*����0����A�$��.������
��	�%��� BH7@5888C�

(������8/@�(�'����	�������	��0��.���
�����������%���� BH7@5888C�

��%���	����� ��
�����������	�� �� BH7@5888C�

(������GI��������� ����	�1��������*����J�0��.��� BH@85888C�

*�%���������

��	�

��0�����
�H7@8�
�����0�&�������������	�

� BH99@5888C�

*�%����H@8�����������E�����	��	��&���������� BH7=@5888C�

�
�
�%.+.&,3&�,11"+("5�$6�(*"��,6.%�/%.#�(,$3"5�,#"'5#"'(��222���#.="5�$6�
�.0'1233.%&�7,$2%��*#"5�,'5��,20#��2,*)�
�

•� ���������	��H7485888�	����&&��	��������;������� ����������
���9�
����5�0�	�������	��	�	��
����
�����
����	�	���������� ��� �&��%�����/�

•� ���������	�������,�

�����
�H785888�	����&&��	�	�����%���&��	��
���
���������%�� ����	��������	�	���������/�

•� ����������	������%������%���� �����	��
���������	��(�������
��0�������	�����	����+��.���E	�����5�0�	�������	��	�	��
����

�����
���	����	���������� ��� �&������/��L>�	�?��!�� �	�����

��	����
7897693�M�H43./N�

�
�
�&"�./�	"'"%,3��"&"%="&�1.'(%2$0(2.'�1.'&"?0"'(�.'�(*"�,$.=")�
H2475888�B�������C�
�

Page 63



���>�-�5�7768767897� �'��-�>��>'�B�>�'���-��'$C�
�

9=�

�������8���

������������	
���������
�������

����������������������
���	���D�����������8������������������������

�

�'��->*� ��'� ����>�� �(� ���>�-�� ��O� (��� ��'�
���>�-�P����'��

�

9/� ���	�	�����%�������	��	���
���789767893�����&&��%��/�

7/� ���	� �	� ��� ��	��� 	��	5� �	� �	�� ��	�� � ��� 99	�� )������� 78975� ������	�
�������	���<85F7F�����	������������E������
���	��������789767893�L-	��
�����	���
������ ������	����39!��
� 	���������*�%�����	�(���������	�
9<<75�����������B	���G��	JCN�

��� �*,(�(*"�/.33.@2':�,#.0'(&�$"�'.@�1,3103,("5�$6�(*"��.0'123�/.%�
(*"�6",%�����9���2'�,11.%5,'1"�@2(*��"1(2.'����(.��F�./�(*"��.1,3�
	.="%'#"'(� �2','1"� �1(� �GG�� ,&� ,#"'5"5� ,'5� (*"� �.1,3�
�0(*.%2(2"&� ��3("%,(2.'� ./� �"?02&2("� �,3103,(2.'&�� ��':3,'5��
�":03,(2.'&�����)�
�

B�C� H959F@52795888� !��� � 	��� �  �� �	�� �
� 	��� ����	�� 0�����
	�������������	��	���
���	����	�����	���	����
���	���� 39�B7C� �
� ���� ��	/� L*�����
'E&����	���N�

B�C� H9598@57<95888� !��� � 	��� �  �� �	�� �
� 	��� ����	�� 0�����
	�������������	��	���
���	����	�����	���	����
���	����39�B3C��
�������	/�L*�����-����N�

B�C� HF85=385888� !��� �	�������	����0�����	����  �� �	���	�
3B�C� ���%�� �E������ 	��� �  �� �	�� �	� 3B�C�
���%�5� �������	��� ��� 	��� �������5� ���
�����������0�	�����	����39�B=C��
�������	5�
��� �	�� �������� 	�E� ���������	� 
��� 	��� ����/�
B-	�������	���
������������	����39!��
�����
��	C/�L����������E����������	N�

B�C� HFF@/@7� !��� �	�������	��	�3B�C����%��B-	���C5�����
��%����� ��� -	�� �� B7� ���%�C5� �������	��� ���
	��� �������5� ��� ����������� 0�	�� ���	����
39!B9C��
�������	5����	�������������	��
��	��
����������E�
���	�������/�L����������EN�

�

�
�
�
�

Page 64



���>�-�5�7768767897� �'��-�>��>'�B�>�'���-��'$C�
�

9@�

B�C�
 ����������

�����

���
��

B�

� �� @<8/3@�

� !� 4FF/2=�

� �� 2F2/93�

� $� FF@/@7�

� '� 958F7/38�

� (� 9572</8F�

� *� 95=2@/F2�

� �� 95229/8=�

� !��� � 	��� ����	�  �%��� ��� ��	�&���� � 	���
����	��	�3B�C����%�����	���������0����5� ���
	��� &��&��	���� ��	� ��	� ��� ���	���� @B9C� �
� ����
��	5� ��� �&&�������� 	�� �0����� �� ���	��� ��� ��
&��	�������%����	�����������%��������	���������
0����� ��� 	��	� &��&��	���� ��� �&&�������� 	��
�0����� �����	������%����	���������$5��������	���
��� 	��� �������5� ��� ����������� 0�	�� ���	����
34B9C� �
� ���� ��	5� ��� 	��� ����	� 	�� ��� 	�.���
��	�� ������	� 
��� 	��� ����� ��� ���&��	� �
�
��	� ������ �
� �0����� �� ���	��� ��� ��

����	�
%����	���������/�

�

=/� ���	� �	� ��� ��	��� 	��	� 
��� 	��� ����� 7897693� 	��� *���	��� �������
��	����	�������	�	��� 	��� 
����0�� �����	�� ���&����&	�� ������� 	�� 	���
�������5� ��� ����������� 0�	�� ���	���� =8� �
� 	��� ������ *�%�����	�
(���������	�9<<75�
���������
� 	�����	� �������
� 	����0����� �����0��
����0?,�

�  ����������
�����

	���

B�

� �� 78=/=F�

� !� 73F/@4�

� �� 727/4=�

� $� 384/27�

� '� 32=/FF�

� (� ==3/8=�

� *� @99/78�

� �� 493/==�

Page 65



���>�-�5�7768767897� �'��-�>��>'�B�>�'���-��'$C�
�

94�

�

@/� ���	5���%�� ��������	���	����  �� �	����������������
�	�������	���	�
3B�C�����=����%�5�	����������5���������������0�	�����	����38B7C��
�	���
������ *�%�����	� (������� ��	� 9<<75� ������� ��	�� 	��� 
����0�� �
����	�����	�������	���
�����������E�
���	��������7897693�
��������
�
�	�����	� �������
��0����� �����0������0?,�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

4/� >�0� �%�����	��� ���	������0��������������������	����	��	��������	�
�� ��
������� 0����� �
� ��&����� 0�	�� 	��� &��%����� ����5� 	���� ��	�
�������� 	�E� ���������� 	��	� ���� G�E�����%�J/� ������ ������	� �� ����	����
������������������0�	��&�����&�����&&��%������������	����@7#!�������
*�%�����	� (������� ��	� 9<<75� 	��� �������� 	�E� ��	� ��� 	��� �������
!���� �� �
� ��0��� ����	�� 
��� 7897693� ��� ��	� ������ 	�� ���
�E�����%�/�

�

�

�  ����������
�����

����������������8�

B�

� �� 2<=/F3�

� !� <72/38�

� �� 958@</22�

� $� 959<7/7=�

� '� 95=@2/9F�

� (� 95277/97�

� *� 95<F2/82�

� �� 753F=/=F�

Page 66



���>�-�5�7768767897� �'��-�>��>'�B�>�'���-��'$C�
�

92�

����8���
�
��������������	�������������)�����	�����������������8�����9����
�
�#"'5#"'(�+%.+.&"5�$6)���.0'1233.%��'@,%�7*,'�
�#"'5#"'(�&"1.'5"5�$6)���.0'1233.%��,%3.�	2$$&�
�
�*2&�1.0'123�'.("&)�

•� ����������� ��0	��������	��������	��������	��&�0����������7�������� ��
������������	�9/9Q5���&�����0�	��9/7Q����	��������������	����
�7898��	�	���
�����
�	����������*�%�����	�

•� �����������������	���	������	�7/4<����������F/@Q5��	��0���	���%���������9<<@�
�����������������
��%���7885888�������	��������	��������	��&�0��/�����
���������������&�����	�������	�0������������ �&��&���&��	��������������
0�	�����	�����&�����	���0��	����� ��	��%���9���������

•� ����������%�	�%�6��������$�����	�*�%�����	;�������� ����������%�����	�5�
�������� ��������	�����������
������ ���	����94/FQ5���%����� ���	�����;��
�������� ��0	�5��������������&�����	�������	�	�����	�%�������������
�����	��

•� ����*�%�����	;��&����������� ���	�������� �����
�	�5���������	�E�����
�	5�
�� ������������	����&��&������0������%����&��	������������%���&��	������0���
����	���������	��

•� ���	��	����	����������;�����&��������	��	�����0����������&����	���
�����
�	�����
��� �� ����� ������������	�����	�&��	��	�������&&��	������������	��

•� ���	������������;����� �	�
�����	���������0��	�
����&����� 5���	��
���	�����
���%����5�
�����	��&��	��	�	���%��������������0�������%��	����	���	���
���0���
����	�����	����	����0�������0�������	��/��

�
�*2&�1.0'123�$"32"="&�(*,()�
�
�0++.%(2':�(*"�=03'"%,$3"���

•� �����	��������
����� �������	�����;����� �	�
���	�����,��������������	���
������	������� ���0��	�����,������	������789@����.��� ��
����	���������� �
	��������	���
�����������%������	�����	�%����������&��&���������������	���

•� �����������������������	�����E	������	������	�
��
����� �	��.��&����� ��
�����	����,��������������	���	�����%��	����������
�	�����	�%����������
���%�����������������789@�

•� ������ �!���
�	����� ������� ��&����	������	���������%�	�%�6��������
$�����	� �%�����	�0���������	���������������	��
����� ���	�����	��

•� ������&���	��+����	��	��������������������&��������	��	��&�����	����	���������
�
����������������������

•� ��0�������	�����������
�	����� ���	���%�����
�����	���%�����������	���
����	��������������	���
���&���������	���������������������5�����	��	�����
������	����������	����&&��	�%����������0�������� �����

•� +�������������	�������� ��
��������� �
��������
�������	�������� ����
��	���5�
��������� �	��������	��
���%�� ������������ �	����������	���
���
��

�

.0&2':��

•� ������������	�����	���&��%�	�������	������	�����%�����&���������	�������� ������
�����	��
��� ��������������

•� ���������;��$����	������&�� �����������	��� ��
����	�����������&����
������	��������
����&�%��	��������&��	�� �0��.�0�	���	��&��%�� �	���	������
�

���������
�&��&��	���������������	���������E&�������� �0���������5���&�
������������	����&��������

Page 67



���>�-�5�7768767897� �'��-�>��>'�B�>�'���-��'$C�
�

9F�

•� �������	�������
	���
������	����
�����������������0�������������(����
��%���&��	����������	����������������

�
�#+3.6#"'(��

•� ��������� �&��&��������0�������	�������	��

����	�������	�.����	������&��
	��	��������&��%��	������&��������	���

•� ������0��	�&�������������	�

������������
�	�
���	����������,�

�H7@8�
&����	�	��	���	������ �%�����	�0��.����0�����0�������

�
�'=2%.'#"'(�

•� ��	��	��
���	��������������������%�����K��������� ������	���������	���	��0��&�� �
���	�����5��������� �� �
������.�0��	������&��	����	����K�0���������	���������	����
����� ���������������������%�����

•� ��������������&��&�����	��
�����������	����������� ���
�������&��.�� �
&���	�����&��&��	����0�	����	�&�������5�0����	������������	���������������
&��.�� �&���	�
����%�����������0����	���������

�������&��&��	�����������
(������%���&��	��

�
�%,'&+,%"'16�,'5�=,30"�/.%�#.'"6�

•� ������0�����������������������	�������������	���������������	�����������
	����&�������	��������������������%���	��������������	�� ��

•� ���������
�	�E�����������������

������������
������	��	���	�� ��
�������������	������	����������&	�������%����

�
�*2&�1.0'123�%"&.3="&�(.�2#+3"#"'(�(*"�/.33.@2':�,#"'5#"'(&)�
�

�,=2':&�
�,=2':�2'�
����9���

���������
������	���	���	�� ��� H75=88�

$���	�����&�������������������
	������&���� H35FF8�

$���	��
����� �
���
��������	���	����
����
	���������&�	�����������&��	��
�	�������� ��E��	�� ��

�����	���� H985888�

$���	���%������
�	�����&��&����� H985888�

$���	���� �&��	�� � 	����������� ��&�����0�	�� ��
���	���� ���!��������
��	���������� H985888�

�������������	��������&�������	�E���
����

������� H9@5888�

������� ���� �&���� ��� 	�E��� 
��� ������ B���%�� � H45888� 	�� 
���� ��
���������
��������
�	����&��.�������$�&�	���&��.�������

������%���	�C�� H<5888�

��������������	������&�������$A������������� H385888�

�������
����� �����0�������������������	�

����
����������������� �
	����	���������
�����	����� H385888�

$���	������ ����,�&�
��������	��������&��	���	�������� ��E��	�� ��

�����
	���� H385888�

$���	�� ����	������ �������� $�����	� �&���� ��� ��%��	���� � ��� '��	� '���
��
��� H385888�

�����
������%������	����	���� H37F5278�

��	��� H@8<5888�

�
�
�
�
�

Page 68



���>�-�5�7768767897� �'��-�>��>'�B�>�'���-��'$C�
�

9<�

�&���� ���	��7897693�

�� ��	����
������� �����������K����
,
����� �&����
��������������
��5�
	�� ��� ���� ��&������� 
��� ���� ���������� 0����� � 	�� �����%�� ������
������ �����0�����&����	��� H8�

��� ,
�����H9��
�>�0������!�������	��
� 	���H98�������������	����
	��$����	������
���������	����	�����������������	���5���&�����
����
&�%��	�� H8�

��� �
���������������������>�0������!��������������%��&�����	���
��%����B�&�	��H9C��	��$����	�����������%�� H8�

������������	� ��&&��	� ������%���� 
��� 9@8������ 	���� ����&�	������
���%���� BH7=5888C�

���	����
����� �	��*����0����A�$��.������
��	�%��� BH7@5888C�

(������8/@�(�'����	�������	��0��.���
�����������%���� BH7@5888C�

��%���	����� ��
�����������	�� �� BH7@5888C�

(������GI��������� ����	�1��������*����J�0��.��� BH@85888C�

��� � 
����� H@4.� 
��� 
�	���� �984������� 	�� ��&&��	� 78� �������	�� 	��
�����	�.����&������	������&�5�&���� �	�����%�� �0� ��
����&�	��3���	��� H8�

*�%���������

��	�

��0�����
�H7@8�
�����0�&�������������	�

� BH99@5888C�

*�%����H@8�����������E�����	��	��&���������� BH7=@5888C�

��	��� BH@8<5888C�

�
�
�*2&�1.0'123�/0%(*"%�%"&.3="&)�
�

•� �����������	���������	���&����	�	���
����0�� �������	��	��	������ �	�
�

���� ���	��&��.�� �&���	�� ��

-�����������	��
��������&���	�	��H38� H<85348�

���&�H9@8�����	���������	��
�3���&���	�� H=85F88�

'E	��������(����$�%�%���&��	�&���	��	��9�����7��������&��&��	���� HF5888�

��	��� H93<5948�

�

���� ���	��������� �	� ��

���&�
���	����.�0��	��������	����
���� BH99@5888C�

>�	����� �� �
�����	����	����� H8�

���������	������� ���	�����������
����E	������
����	���������� �� �� BH7=5948C�

��	��� BH93<5948C�

�
�
�

Page 69



���>�-�5�7768767897� �'��-�>��>'�B�>�'���-��'$C�
�

78�

����8���
�
��������������	�������������)�����	�����������������8�����9����
�
������	�&��&�������?�� �����$�%������0����
������	������������?�� �����#����$�%���
�
�*2&��.0'123��"32"="&��*,()�
�

9/� �������������	�������&&�����	��	��������������	�����
�����&��.�������&���
�&����5�����0�����0������	���������	�����
�����	�� �	��	��������������
���
	��/�

7/� !��.�0��	�����&����������� ����������	���	��	�E�	��0������������	������
�&&����/��

3/� !��.�0��	�����&����������� ���0����������	�����������������
���	�&&�� 5�0�����
0����� ��� ����	���������&������	���.����0�������	�����������5�*�������
!���� �/�

=/� �������;����������&��	��	������	��
���
���� �������� 5������.�� �
������������	��	��	������.�
����0���������	�����������	���
�	���!���� ��
�����%�� �&��������������&��%�����/�

@/� -��������	��&��	��	�
���	���������%�����������%�������&����&�����
���
�����������	���5���%�� ����������������������	��������	�����0���������� �	/��

4/� ����������������������������E�&��5�����	�.������	����	���������0������	��
��%����0�������	�������������%�����������%������&��.��
���
�����������	���/�

2/� ���	���	�� ������	�������&����	��0�	���&�	�&���	�������0�������	��
������� ���������	�� �����0��	���
�&����������/�

F/� ���������

�������������
����0�'����+��.���;���������G���&	���+�	�+���	J�
�
�*2&��.0'123�1,33&�0+.'�(*"��>"10(2="�(.�#,-"�%"501(2.'&�2'�2'1.#"�,&�
/.33.@&)�
�

���������	
� �������

������
��

������� �	����

����������	
���� �������� ��������

����������

���������

�������
������������������������������

�����������
��� �!"���#��"��$
%���������


"�
#�&��"�"��#��'������������
����#�������

���(���'��"��)��
��&�������*����+���)����"
��

�
�����"���#�����(�����#�����"���&
%��
���

��)����'����
��#���#����"���(�#'��������

�"
���(�����#���������%�����
�����'����#�

��
���������
����"��#
�
'����������
��� �

,����-
����

.�����
��/
�'����

�0������ �0������

����������

����

�������
�����������������(����&
����#�����
��

)"
�'�� �!"���#��"��$
%���������
"�
#�&��"�

)"
�'��'�����(����&
���������
��)"
�'���

#����������(���'��"��)��
��&�������*����+���)���

�"�%��"���#�����(������������#���"���

��)��������
��&����(��
���)
��#������(
����

�1���
��������)"
�'�������"����"��#��


���)��# �

���
��
�������

�����

����� ����� �

�� �����!��

���
��

����� �"#�� �

Page 70



���>�-�5�7768767897� �'��-�>��>'�B�>�'���-��'$C�
�

79�

�
�*2&��.0'123�233)�
�

9/� ��%�����	���'E���	�%�;��&��&������������������&����� �B�����������.�
���C�
�

2�(�
�%�,����

*��#�

�� ��������

����������

����������

��������)��������"��2�(�
�%�,��������# �

���
��
�������

�����

�� ���� �

�� �����!��

���
��

�� ���� �

7/��-&����	�	���
����0�� ���	��	�����������&����� �

�

���������	
� ��!�
����
�

�������

��!�
����
�

�������

�	����

!�
����'�

,�#'���

�������

�

��������

����������

���������

$
����
���'�������
����'�(�#'����������)�#� �

�

/"��+���)�����1�������"���3�)�������������'
���

��#�)������������������
����
�
�����(������

'����
���'��
���'���������&���'�
#���
�
���� �

�

4#��������'� ���0��� ���0���

����������

����

4������50������������������������ �

+�����
�����%�
#��������'�(%�06��"���'"�(������


#�����#���'��

+���(������
)��)��
#��������'�(%���6�

+���������
�����%�
#��������'�(%���6�

4���/7�4#��������'����(��������#�

!�(�)��������� 8�����

�

5���0��

����������

�80��0���

9��������)����:�

29�;���(�)��������)���������0��

�
�#
����	
���
����
�%�!����)��<�) ���������#���

4�'����������

294�=�00�����

	�
�����'���"�)
��
�'��=�������

4���)�
���������	�(��)�!����)���3)�����)��=���0���

�

$
%��>��

�3�)������

?���)��

�@�@���

�

�@�@���

���������

����

��#�)������#����)������
������

)����
)�����+�������
�������
�%���
���(%���6�

	�����
���� ���A�@�� ���A�@�

���������

����

��#�)��������*$�(�#'����1���
��������������
���

����# ���#�)����
)��������� ��������'
���"�&�

��)"����&���#�)�������(���'��"���)����
)�����
�

����#%�
�#��
��%���# �

.�3����B����� �0��8�� �0��8��

���������

����

!����(�����'�.�3����B���������������
���������<�

����+���)����
)�������������
#�

/�&���

B
������C�&�

D�=E�����

�0�����

�

�0�����

���������

����

+���
���)�����
���)�
��#�&��"��=E�������)��#��'�

�06����	?������)��� �;���)
�)
#��'��=�
���

)������)
������%����������
#�

�

Page 71



���>�-�5�7768767897� �'��-�>��>'�B�>�'���-��'$C�
�

77�

+�������)��� A����� A�����

���������

����

�����
��#�)�������������������������

��#�)������#��'�(%���6�

C�&��
������

F����
����

	����#�)
���

0����� 0�����

���������

����

��#�)������#��'������(�)���������(%�06�

!�������"��� ��0��� 8�0���

���������

�0������

9����
���)�����)�
����������"������������������

(%�/�&���B
������+���)�����' �*���&������

�������'���������)�����
����������

?�%���)��

���
��#�

4#��������'�

������� �� +
�)�������#�
'���#�
��*�(��
�%�)
(��������

�����#��@�#��(����
'������
#�����������2�#����'�

?�%���)��

+���)�������

4���&
�)���

0������ 0������

���������

����

+���
���+���)������,
��)�4���&
�)���(%���6����

��������
�#��
���
����"���
���"������������

������A�

�
����
�����

+���������

!���)�����

�@�0��� �@�0���

���������

����

.������?�%���)��4�(
��
#���!�4 �$��'��

	���������4�#���
�#�9����
��	��������

+�����������&��"�!�4�������&�*��
�)��
�#�

9����
��	��������+�������������
��8�008��

+���!�4��(%�

��6�

���@@�� ���@@��

���������

����

+���
������
����'�!�4��(%���6������������
�#�

�
���
����"���
���"������������������A�

��#�)��

,��������	
�#�

������
���

4'�����(%��06�

80��0�� 80��0�� ��#�)��#��)������
�%�(���������
�#�������
���


'������������#��'������������(%��06 �

��!�
�������

�����

�����#��� ��$��"�� �

�� �����!�� �����#��� �##�� �

�
�
�
�

Page 72



���>�-�5�7768767897� �'��-�>��>'�B�>�'���-��'$C�
�

73�

����8����
�
��������������	�������������)�����	���D�����������8�����9����
�
�#"'5#"'(�+%.+.&"5�$6)� �33%�7,$2%��*#"5�
�#"'5#"'(�&"1.'5"5�$6)� �33%��,20#��2,*�
�
�
������������� ��	��� 	���&�� �����%�� ��� �	� &��&������ 
������������������� ����
������	��	���5�0�����0�������?�
�

9/� >������������
������������	���5���������;�����	���5�R��	�����%����5�����������
���-������	������

7/� +��	��	����
���	���������������%���������5��������� �
������������
3/� ����&��	��	�����
�
���	�����������0�&�����	�

�
=/� 92�����	������&�������

�������
@/� ���������;��'����	�����0����	����&�����	�������&&���'����������

�
����� �������� ��	��� 	��� 
����0�� � �������� ������� ��� ���� ���	����  �%�����	�

����� �?�

�
9/� ������&�������	���
����� ���	��
���	���������%�	�%�����������	����

*�%�����	5�0�����
���789767893�0����������
����� ������	�����
�72Q�������

����� � �&�
���789967897�	��789=6789@��
�H988/�

7/� ����������	���������� ����%�����
����	�����&�����	?��������� �	����	������

� ����������������������	��������5��������
�%������ �&��&���������	����
�&�����	5������	�������	������ �����������	����
������������%�������
���&������
����%���������/�

3/� ������&��	����	��������� ����(����� /������������*�%�����	;�����
�� ����&�� ���;��H934���� �	�0�������&&������)����7899/������
&�� �������&������� �&��&���
�����0�������
�����������
���
�������
���0�����������������		�������� ���������	���5�	������������%����	��&�����/��

=/� ��������%������ ���	��0��
��������
�	5��������� �	�������� �����
�	5�0�����
0�����.����%�� ����	�������� �����

��������
�������
�������0�����%����%���
�����
��� �����	����5�����0�����.��������&���	����	������	������0�������	��

����%������5������������	�������%�/��

�
����� �������� ��	��� 	��� 
����0�� � �E������	� &�� ����� ���� ��� �����	���� ���� 	���
��&&��	�	�������������������	��	������%��&��%�������������
��������	���?�
�

9/� �����E������	������	���������	�?�����������0��0����	������������	��&��%���
����� ����	�������5�0�	��49/=Q�
��	����	�����	�������� �������%�� ��	�����	�

�%���S�	���� �������������� �'� �����������	��5�	����� ���	��%���
� ����
���
��0�������	�/�

7/� ������ ��� ���&&��	�
����������� �&��&�������	����������	������&�� ����5�
�������� �	��������;��'����	�����0���5�9?9�	��	�����	�*��'������,��%�������
��&&��	�
���������*��'�/��

�
�
�
�

Page 73



���>�-�5�7768767897� �'��-�>��>'�B�>�'���-��'$C�
�

7=�

�������������>�	��� 	��� 
����0�� � ��������� � 	��� ����� �;�� ��%������	� ����  �����
�&����?�
�

9/� ���	���������
�	������&������	������ ���0����%������
�	���
���
��%��	��	���	��	�������� �;�� ������&����5��������� �	�����
��������	�
�
���	�������+��.�����I��	�����+��.5�����	�������%�	�����
������'���
�	����/�

7/� ��������� �����������
�	����� ���	�&�&���	���������	�������������5�����
�
�	����� ���	���%�����
��� �,����������� ������� ����%�����
��%�����0��� /��

�

�������������>�	���	���
����0�� �����������&����	����?�
�

9/� ������������������	�������������	�����%����
������%��5��E&��	���	�����H9==�
���������	��������/��

7/� ������� �� ����.�������&&��	���	���5��������	�
�������	���$����	����
�
���������������������	�����&&����E�4/9/�

�
�������������!����%��?�
�

9/� ���	�	��������.�������&&��	���	������	����������������&��������0�	��	���
�������
���0�������	���������	������	����&&��	���	��	����%��	����	���
����� �;��
�	���/��

�
������������������%��?�
�

9/� $���	��	���	��� ��
�	�����&��&�������	������  ��	���	��	��E&����	�������
�������������	���
����0�� ������5�0�	��
����� �������	���
���	��������97693�

��������%��5�0�	�������	��	�	������	����� �
�����
���	�����
&��&�����5�0������&&��&���	�5������ �	��
���E	�����;�� ���	���		����	�
���
���	����*�%�����	/��

�
�'�%"3,(2.'�(.�"#+3.6#"'(�,'5�%,2&2':�,&+2%,(2.'�
�

 � ������	��H748.�	����&&��	��������;������� ����������
���9�����5�0�	����
���	��	�	��
����
�����
����	�	���������� ��� �&��%�����/�

�� �����0����&��%��������� �	�	��
������0����������&�������	��.���	��
0��.�0�	�5�������5��������5����0�������
����� �
�����%���5�	������ �
&�� ����5��0�������5�0��.���&��������	���������/��

�� ��������
�	������%����0�������	��������	����� ���������	���������������
��&���	������
����� �&��&��������0�������	�/����0����������&����� �
&��&���
�����0�������
������5�����
���
����������0������������
�����		�������� ���������	���5�	���������&�������	��� ���������	����
����	��������������%�������/��

�
�'�%"3,(2.'�(.�0',//.%5,$3"�32=2':�1.&(&�
�

 � ������	�������,�

�����
�H785888�	����&&��	�	�����%���&��	��
����������
��%�� ����	��������	�	���������/��

�� �����0����
��	������%��	� �	��	���&��&�����������������	����������	�� �
��������	��	����.�����	�	�������� �/������0�����.��&���0�������	��
�	�	���
���
���	��
�	���&��%�������
��

�������������� �������������

Page 74



���>�-�5�7768767897� �'��-�>��>'�B�>�'���-��'$C�
�

7@�

����� �����������������	��������5����0��0����0�	��	������������%�� �
1� �/��

�
�'�%"3,(2.'�(.�(*"�$.%.0:*H&�:%""'�&+,1"&�
�

 � $������	������%������%���� �����	��
���������	��(���������0�������	��
���	����+��.���E	�����5�0�	�������	��	�	��
����
�����
���	����	��������
�� ��� ���������/��

�� �����0������&&��	�	����E������	�0��.��
�	0�������	���� �����	����/��
�� �����0�������&��������	����� ��� �&��%�������
��� ���	������� �����

����	���&����
���	���&��&����
�	�������� �/�
�� -��������	��(���	��������
�	���������	������
�����0������&&��	�	�����

����%�����
����%�����
������� �&��&��5�	����������������� �&��&���
��������&����&����5���	�����&��������%����	����� /�

�� -����0�������	�����	����+��.�	��������
�	���������	������
�����0����
��&&��	�	����������%����	��	������ 5�%����	����� �&�� ���������	�����
�
	��������������5����0����������&����	����	�����	��	������ ���	�������

���	������������������	�����������	�/�

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



  

  
LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

 
COUNCIL MEETING 

 
WEDNESDAY 16th MAY 2012  

 
PETITIONS 

 
REPORT OF THE SERVICE HEAD,  

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
1. The Council’s constitution as amended provides that a maximum of three 

petitions are received at any meeting.  These are taken in order of receipt.  
This report sets out the valid petitions submitted for presentation at the 
Council meeting on Wednesday 16th May 2012.   

 
2. The deadline for receipt of petitions for this meeting is noon on Thursday 10th 

January.  However, at the time of agenda despatch three petitions had been 
received as set out overleaf which is the maximum number to be heard. 

 
3. In each case the petitioners may address the meeting for no more than three 

minutes.  Members may then question the petitioners for a further four 
minutes.  Finally, the relevant Cabinet Member or Chair of Committee may 
respond to the petition for up to three minutes. 

 
4. Any outstanding issues will be referred to the relevant Corporate Director for 

attention who will respond to those outstanding issues in writing within 28 
days. 

 
5. Members should confine their contributions to questions and answers and not 

make statements or attempt to debate. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 77



  

5.1 Petition from Tower Hamlets Federation of TRAs regarding a Residents 
Charter:   

 
“Our draft Residents Charter has evolved from the Summer Conference 2011 and 
will be open for consultation and comment by Tower Hamlets TRAs and resident 
groups until the end of March 2012.   
 
We urge all Councillors to support the principles of the Residents Charter and to do 
everything in their power to persuade Registered Providers to adhere to it.” 
 
 
5.2 Petition from Messrs Glyn Robbins, Guy Shennan  and others regarding 

Veolia: 
 
“We the undersigned registered electors of Tower Hamlets wish to petition the 
council on the issue of Veolia.  The council has passed a motion declaring Veolia to 
be guilty of grave misconduct in relation to its involvement in the illegal Israeli 
settlements in the Palestinian West Bank and for the council to sever all relations 
with Veolia.  We are dismayed therefore that the council has in fact extended a 
recycling contract with Veolia.  We want the Mayor to accept that this was quite 
wrong and now to do everything in his power to put it right.  We believe he, relevant 
Cabinet members and officers should agree to meet with representatives of the 
Boycott, Divestment and Sanctions campaign urgently who can demonstrate this is 
not a fit and proper company for the council to do business with.  We also believe he 
should instruct legal officers to investigate urgently terminating all of the Veolia 
contracts.  Finally we want the Mayor to make a public statement that Veolia have 
misled the council, that Veolia is not a company this council wishes to do business 
with and that all contracts with Veolia will be terminated as a matter of urgency and 
in 2017 at the very latest.  We believe if the Mayor were to do all these things, it 
would go a very long way to make amends for his administration having seemingly 
ignored the express decision of the council and the wishes of the overwhelming 
majority of Tower Hamlets residents that the council should express its active 
support for the Palestinian people.” 
 
 
5.3 Petition from residents of Hainton Close regarding activities of a 

disruptive nature at Mulberry School for Girls: 
 
“We, the residents of Hainton Close E1, petition against the use of Mulberry School 
for Girls on weekdays after 8.00pm and weekends, for activities that cause an 
unreasonable level of noise, pose health & safety risk and disrupt to the quiet 
enjoyment of neighbouring property.   
 
We agree that the adult football games which currently take pace should not be 
permitted due to the detriment caused to residents and do not agree that the 
premises should be hired out for any activity at the expense of the enjoyment of the 
private properties of all of the residents of Hainton Close. 
 
We petition that all offending activities of the aforementioned nature cease with 
immediate effect.” 

Page 78



  

 

  
LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

 
COUNCIL MEETING 

 
WEDNESDAY 16th MAY 2012 

 
QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
REPORT OF THE SERVICE HEAD,   

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
1. Set out overleaf are the questions submitted by members of the public, for 

response by the Mayor or appropriate Cabinet Member or committee chair at 
the Council Meeting on 16th May 2012.   

 
2. The Council’s Constitution sets a maximum time limit of twenty minutes for 

this item. 
 
3. A questioner who has put a question in person may also put one brief 

supplementary question without notice to the Member who has replied to his 
or her original question.  A supplementary question must arise directly out of 
the original question or the reply.  Supplementary questions and Members’ 
responses to written and supplementary questions are each limited to two 
minutes.  

 
4. Any question which cannot be dealt with during the twenty minutes allocated 

for public questions, either because of lack of time or because of non-
attendance of the questioner or the Member to whom it was put, will be dealt 
with by way of a written answer. 

 
5. Unless the Speaker of Council decides otherwise, no discussion will take 

place on any question, but any Member of the Council may move, without 
discussion, that the matter raised by a question be referred for consideration 
by the Cabinet or the appropriate Committee or Sub-Committee. 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 79



  

QUESTIONS 
 
Three questions have been submitted as set out below:- 
 
 
6.1 Question from Mr Brian Nicholson, Secretary, London Dockers Athletic 

& Social Club: 
 
At the last Council meeting Tower Hamlets was described as a grotty borough.  Can 
the Mayor tell us what he is doing about street cleansing and public realm 
improvements across the borough? 
 
 
6.2 Question from Paplu Kaledur: 
 
Can the Mayor update this meeting how many young people from Tower 
Hamlets have received the Education Maintenance Awards since its inception, and 
does he believe the Government is supporting young people with its current policy 
on EMA?' 

  
 
6.3 Question from Mr Aminur Rahman: 
 
How will the Mayor ensure that residents' rights will be protected with the intended 
merger of Island Homes and One Housing? 

Page 80



 

  
LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

 
COUNCIL MEETING 

 
WEDNESDAY 16th MAY 2012 

 
QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY 
MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 

 
REPORT OF THE SERVICE HEAD,  

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 

 
SUMMARY 
 
1. Set out overleaf are the questions submitted by Members of the Council for 

response by Members of the Executive at the Council meeting on Wednesday 
16th May 2012. 

 
2. Questions are limited to one per Member per meeting, plus one 

supplementary question unless the Member has indicated that only a written 
reply is required and in these circumstances a supplementary question is not 
permitted. 

 
3. Oral responses are time limited to one minute.  Supplementary questions and 

responses are also time limited to one minute each. 
 
4. There is a time limit of thirty minutes for consideration of Members’ questions 

with no extension of time allowed and any question not answered within this 
time will be dealt with by way of a written response.  The Speaker will decide 
the time allocated to each question. 

 
5. Members must confine their contributions to questions and answers and not 

make statements or attempt to debate. 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 81



MEMBERS’ QUESTIONS 
 

22 questions have been received from Members of the Council as follows:- 
 
 
8.1 Question from Councillor Carli Harper-Penman: 
 
Following the recent announcement by the Ministry of Defence that a high velocity 
missile system is to be located within the Bow Quarter, can the Mayor update 
Council about the discussions that have taken place with the MoD and the steps that 
he will be taking to ensure that residents of Tower Hamlets are not endangered or 
unduly inconvenienced by the presence of such a system? 
  
 
8.2 Question from Councillor David Snowdon: 
 
Will the Mayor urge Social Landlords in the London Borough of Tower Hamlets to 
publish all their spending over £500, in line with Viridian and Home Group’s 
example? 
 
 
8.3 Question from Councillor Shiria Khatun: 
 
Can the Mayor explain what he has done regarding his proposed charges for bulk 
rubbish collection & rat control? 
 
 
8.4 Question from Councillor Fozol Miah: 
 
Would the Mayor join with me in congratulating the former MP for Bethnal Green and 
Bow, George Galloway, on his landslide victory in the Bradford West by-election and 
would he agree with me that this extraordinary election result, gained in one of the 
shortest by-election campaigns ever as a result of the choice of the Labour Party, 
shows enormous dissatisfaction with the old established parties and a desire for 
change, a desire expressed in Tower Hamlets in the election of an independent 
mayor for Tower Hamlets and the election of Respect and an independent councillor 
in successive by-elections in the Spitalfields and Banglatown ward? 
 
 
8.5 Question from Councillor Bill Turner: 
 
Will the Mayor outline the numbers of children on roll at the new free schools in the 
borough who are eligible for free school meals? Do any other organisations with 
which the Council has an existing relationship in other ways propose to open free 
schools in the borough, and if so what discussions has the Council had with such 
organisations. Does he support or oppose any such plans which they may have and 
does he share the view of the Labour Group that the universal provision of excellent 
comprehensive education is the best way of ensuring that our children get the 
education they need?  
 

Page 82



 
8.6 Question from Councillor Peter Golds: 
 
Will the Mayor inform the council when he decided to install speed humps on Jesus 
Green, E2, and what consultation took place for this particular proposal? 
 
 
8.7 Question from Councillor Ann Jackson: 
 
Can the Mayor detail how the Council is supporting residents who are affected by the 
Government’s reduction in rent and council tax benefit? 
 
 
8.8 Question from Councillor Harun Miah 
 
Would the Mayor agree with me that drug use and dependency constitutes a major 
threat to the well-being of our young people in Tower Hamlets and would he also 
agree that there has to be a multi-faceted approach if we are to get on top of this 
problem, including education, job opportunities for young people as well as the 
appropriate use of the criminal law and would he outline recent initiatives on this 
matter? 
 
 
8.9 Question from Councillor Rachael Saunders: 
 
On what basis did the Mayor make his decision to close the in house domiciliary 
homecare service? 
 
 
8.10 Question from Councillor Craig Aston: 
 
Will the Mayor provide an update on the status of the Limehouse Library building and 
site? 
 
 
8.11 Question from Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman: 
 
Can the Mayor inform the Council, if he or a member of his family (including brother) 
has been involved in collecting Postal Ballots from residents in Spitalfields Ward? 
 
 
8.12 Question from Councillor Kabir Ahmed 
 
Following the judgement by the Local Government Standards in England Tribunal to 
uphold this Council’s Standard Committee decision to suspend the last Leader of the 
Council; does the Mayor agree with me that the Leader of the Labour Group has 
done nothing about this? And does he also agree with me that Cllr. Abbas should 
apologise to restore public faith, and to ensure there is not any abuse of power, 
bringing the office and the council into disrepute by breaching staff member 
protocol?  

Page 83



 
 
8.13 Question from Councillor Lesley Pavitt 
 
I would like to ask the Mayor whether in view of the fact that we have a young 
persons’ mayor he has considered having an older persons’ mayor as well? 
 
 
8.14 Question from Councillor Tim Archer: 
 
Will the Mayor give details to the Council on the sale of Poplar Town Hall situated on 
Poplar High Street? 
 
 
8.15 Question from Councillor Dr Stephanie Eaton: 
 
What specific type of surface to air missiles does the Ministry of Defence propose to 
install on the Lexington building in Bow? If these are to be Starstreak II missiles with 
three projectiles to increase the probability of impact with an unauthorised aircraft, 
what is the impact on people and property on the ground of the projectiles that do not 
impact on the target? What powers if any does the Council have to oppose or veto 
the installation of these missiles?  
 
 
8.16 Question from Councillor Zara Davis: 
 
How much has the Council spent on purchasing Olympic tickets? 
 
 
8.17 Question from Councillor Lutfa Begum 
 
Housing shortages and overcrowding remains one of the most pressing needs for 
local residents, can the Mayor update this meeting how many houses he has built? 
And will any Tower Hamlets residents suffer the fate that some Newham residents 
have due to the government’s welfare reform changes by moving 100 miles from the 
borough? 
 
 
8.18 Question from Councillor Gloria Thienel: 
 
Are there any proposals by the council to rent out our Council Charity Collection bins 
to private companies for profit? 
 
 
8.19 Question from Councillor Gulam Robbani 
 
How will the Mayor ensure that any disruption to local people is minimised by using 
Victoria Park as a live site during the 2012 Games? 
 
 

Page 84



8.20 Question from Councillor Dr Emma Jones: 
 
How many residents have contacted the Council this year about the amount of time 
taken for land searches to be processed when buying or selling property? 
 
 
8.21 Question from Councillor Maium Miah 
 
With less than 100 days to the greatest show on earth, can the mayor update us how 
the council is preparing for the Olympic Games, and how Tower Hamlets residents 
will benefit from the Games? 
 
 
8.22 Question from Councillor Aminur Khan 
 
ASB and fear of crime remains one of the main concerns for local people, can the 
Mayor update us on the work of the THEOs? 

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

  
LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

 
COUNCIL MEETING 

 
WEDNESDAY 16th MAY, 2012 

 
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK (LDF):  

MANAGING DEVELOPMENT – DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENT AND 
FISH ISLAND AREA ACTION PLAN 

SUBMISSION TO THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR INDEPENDENT 
EXAMINATION 

 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR,  

DEVELOPMENT AND RENEWAL  
 

 

 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 

1.1 Following the adoption of the Council’s Local Development Framework (LDF) 
Core Strategy by Full Council in September 2010, the Council is now 
finalising work on the other Development Plan Documents (DPDs) which will 
form part of the LDF. These are the, 

§ Managing Development – Development Plan Document (DPD); and 
§ Fish Island – Area Action Plan (AAP). 

1.2 Following approval of the proposed submission version documents by 
Cabinet in December 2011, the Council undertook a statutory 6-week ‘Call 
for Representations’ period which concluded on 9 March 2012. The 
Managing Development DPD and Fish Island AAP have been progressed, 
taking on board the comments received during this period.  

1.3 It is now necessary to submit the DPDs to the Secretary of State for 
Independent Examination, which is planned for autumn 2012. 

Agenda Item 9.1

Page 87



  

2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 

 Council is recommended to:- 

2.1 Approve the Managing Development DPD and Fish Island AAP attached at 
Appendix 1 and Appendix 2 of the report, incorporating the minor 
amendments detailed at Appendix 3 and Appendix 4 of the report, for 
submission to the Secretary of State in accordance with regulation 22 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012, 
and the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement. 

2.2 Approve the submission of the documents which support the Managing 
Development DPD and Fish Island AAP (Appendix 5 to 9) and have been 
developed in accordance with regulation 22 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. These are: 
(a) the Sustainability Appraisal reports; 
(b) the proposals map; 
(c) the Statements of Engagement; 
(d) copies of representations made and the Council’s response  
(e) the Equalities Assessments; and 

 (g) the evidence base. 

2.3 Authorise the Corporate Director of Development and Renewal, after 
consultation with the Mayor and Lead Member for Housing, to make any 
appropriate and necessary minor amendments to the Managing 
Development DPD and Fish Island AAP and their supporting evidence base 
prior to submission to the Secretary of State.  

3. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 

3.1 For the local authority to adopt the policies included in the Managing 
Development DPD and Fish Island AAP it is required, in accordance with 
relevant planning legislation, to undertake an independent Examination in 
Public for the purposes of finding the documents sound.  

3.2 The Managing Development DPD and Fish Island AAP are necessary to 
provide further detail to deliver the spatial vision set out in the 2010 Adopted 
Core Strategy and the Community Plan vision to ensure: 

§ New development meets the needs of the borough and is designed to the 
highest standards. 
§ Sites are identified to deliver strategic housing development and important 
infrastructure to support an increasing population. 
§ That the release of industrial land in Fish Island is carefully managed to 
maximise its regeneration potential within the wider context of the Olympic 
Legacy. 

3.3 The progression of the Managing Development DPD and Fish Island AAP 
will provide the Council with updated and detailed policies and guidance 
used to determine planning applications and manage development. 

Page 88



  

Guidance has been developed, taking account and being generally 
consistent with the recently published National Planning Policy Framework 
(March 2012) and the new London Plan (July 2011). The documents will 
replace the ‘saved and retained’ development control policies in the 1998 
Adopted Unitary Development Plan and 2007 ‘Interim Planning Guidance’. 

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

4.1 An alternative option would be to rely on the adopted Core Strategy, the 
2011 London Plan and the Council’s existing planning guidance contained 
within the 1998 Unitary Development Plan and the 2007 ‘Interim Planning 
Guidance’. 

4.2  This would mean that the Borough would not be able to respond to the 
challenges of recent changes in national and London planning policy, as well 
as emerging development pressures, to address specific issues affecting 
Tower Hamlets. For example, without a more detailed policy on affordable 
housing, there is a risk that the new ‘affordable rent’ product will result in new 
homes that are not affordable for the Borough’s residents.  

4.3 It would also mean that the Council would not have sites identified to provide 
the necessary infrastructure to support an increasing population.  

4.4  Without more detailed planning guidance for Fish Island, there is a risk that 
development will not come forward in a coordinated manner, making it 
difficult to deliver the social and physical infrastructure necessary to support 
the anticipated number of new homes and jobs.  

4.5 It would also mean that Tower Hamlets would not have a detailed planning 
document for Fish Island prior to the London Legacy Development 
Corporation (LLDC) taking over planning powers from the Council on 1 
October 2012, although the timetable for Examination may mean the Council 
is not able to be formally adopt the Fish Island AAP prior to this date.  

 
5. BACKGROUND 
 

5.1  Following the adoption of the Council’s Local Development Framework (LDF) 
Core Strategy by Full Council in September 2010, the Council has been 
progressing work on two development plan documents (DPDs):  

§ Managing Development – Development Plan Document (DPD); and 
§ Fish Island – Area Action Plan (AAP). 

5.2 The LDF Core Strategy provides an overall spatial vision for the 
development of Tower Hamlets over the next 15 years and in order for this 
vision to be delivered, it is necessary to adopt more detailed guidance 
coming forward in the DPDs.  

Page 89



  

5.3 The Managing Development DPD and Fish Island AAP will sit under the 
Core Strategy as part of the borough’s LDF and have the same status in 
terms of the determination of planning applications. A summary of the key 
aims and objectives of the two DPDs is provided below: 

5.4  Managing Development (DPD):  

§ Identifies sites for important services – primary and secondary schools, 
IDEA Stores, Leisure Centres, waste management facilities and open space 
– and sites capable of accommodating 500+ new homes; 
§ Defines boundaries for planning policy areas including town centres and 
employment areas; and 
§ Includes detailed development management policies against which 
planning applications will be assessed.  

5.5  The Fish Island Area Action Plan (AAP): 

§ Provides detailed planning guidance for the regeneration of Fish Island, 
managing the release of industrial land for other uses such as housing and 
modern employment opportunities; 
§ Identifies the potential for between 2300 and 2700 new homes including a 
substantial provision of affordable and family housing;  
§ Sets out priorities for new connections across the A12 and into the 
Olympic Park, improvements to Hackney Wick Station and introduction of 
new bus routes; 
§ Promotes a new neighbourhood centre with local shops and services at 
Hackney Wick; and 
§ Identifies sites for key infrastructure requirements 

 
6. BODY OF REPORT 

6.1  Development Plan Documents are prepared in accordance with the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.  

6.2 This requires the DPDs to be subject to public consultation, a Call for 
Representations period and an independent Examination in Public (EiP) as 
set out in the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 
Regulations (18 to 26) 2012.  

6.3 Pursuant to legislative requirements, the Council has undertaken a 
Sustainability Appraisal Habitat Regulations Assessment and Equalities 
Assessment for the DPDs. These are included as part of the Evidence Base 
(Appendix 9). 

6.4 The detailed timetable for the preparation of the DPDs is set out in the 
Council’s latest Local Development Scheme, approved by Cabinet in 
December 2010. The process to date is illustrated below and described in 
the following sub-section. 

 

Page 90



  

 DPD process 

6.5  Work commenced on the DPDs shortly after the adoption of LDF Core 
Strategy in September 2010.  

6.6 The development of the DPDs has been carried out during a time of 
extensive planning reform: 

§ Facilitating ‘development management’ – under the previous Labour 
Government the process of development management was sought to be 
implemented as a positive approach for shaping, considering, determining 
and delivering development. This has been embedded within the Coalition 
Government policy and is reflected in the DPDs. 

§ National Planning Policy Framework (NPFF) – the NPPF was published in 
March 2012 and replaced all previous national Planning Policy Statements 
and Guidance documents. Officers are confident that the content and the 
preparation of the DPDs are consistent with new national policy having 
drafted the documents in light of the draft NPPF. 

§ National legislation changes – the Localism Act gained Royal Asset in 
November 2011. This has subsequently been accompanied by new ‘Local 
Planning’ Regulations and ‘Neighbourhood Planning’ Regulations that seek 
to simplify the development process of DPDs in line with the NPPF and 
make provision for the development of Neighbourhood Plans and associated 
elements. Officers have monitored the legislative changes to ensure the 
DPDs accord with all relevant legislation. 

§ London Plan – the London Plan was reviewed and published in July 2011 to 
reflect national guidance and help reflect London Mayoral policy. The 
Council has worked closely with the Greater London Authority to ensure 
Tower Hamlets’ aspirations are reflected in the document. 

Consultation 

 Informal consultation: 

6.7 An extensive consultation and engagement process was undertaken in 
accordance with the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 
and national legislation. 

6.8 Residents were invited early on in the process, to have their say about how 
they wanted to be consulted for the emerging DPDs. This was carried out in 
December 2010 and discussions subsequently informed the approach taken 
for the first round of consultation – the Council identified this as the 
Engagement period. 

 

Page 91



  

 Engagement stage: 

6.9 The Engagement period took place from May to June 2011 with 26 place-
based events taking place around the borough. The events were carried out 
in a structured discussion and workshop format. At this stage three 
Engagement DPDs were prepared - the Development Management DPD, 
the Sites and Placemaking DPD and the Fish Island Area Action Plan. In 
response to the earlier discussions with the public (Dec 2010), the 
documents were drafted in a way that they set out planning principles and 
‘direction of travel’, and not necessarily providing the finer detail, therefore 
providing more accessible documents, which the public felt had more room 
for comments and suggestions. The outputs from the workshop were taken 
on board to inform the ‘proposed submission’ versions of the DPDs. A 
summary of issues raised in the engagement period are stated within the 
respective ‘Statement of Engagements’ (Appendix 5 and 6). 

 Proposed submission stage: 

6.10 The drafting of the ‘proposed submission’ DPDs resulted in merging the 
Development Management DPD and the Sites and Placemaking DPD to 
form the ‘Managing Development – Development Plan Document’ to simplify 
the planning framework. In addition, the policy detail, site allocations and 
supporting text was developed taking account of the draft National Planning 
Policy Framework and the new London Plan (July 2011). 

6.11  A number of technical evidence based documents have also been produced 
to provide an objective assessment of development needs and pressures 
and to ensure that the DPDs are robust, deliverable and take into account 
viability. The evidence base documents are provide at Appendix 9 to this 
report. 

6.12 The ‘proposed submission’ DPDs were approved by Cabinet (December 
2011) to undergo final statutory consultation known as the ‘Call for 
Representations’. This took place between 23 January and 9 March 2012, 
for the Call for Representations period and the public, landowners, 
developers, businesses and key stakeholders were invited to make formal 
representations on the DPDs.  

6.13  During the Call for Representations period, the Council organised and 
facilitated 10 drop in sessions in the borough’s Idea Stores and libraries.  
This provided an opportunity for the public to discuss the process for making 
a duly made representation. 

6.14 86 respondents made a total of 482 formal representations on the Managing 
Development DPD and 38 respondents made a total of 236 formal 
representations on the Fish Island AAP.  

 

Page 92



  

6.15 The key issues raised during the consultation included: 

• Affordable Housing – The GLA and a number of developers objected to 
the Council’s approach to prioritising social rented affordable homes and 
controlling the rental levels of Affordable Rented homes as it was seen 
that this could reduce the overall supply of affordable housing. 

• Waste Allocation Site – A number of landowners and local residents 
objected to the allocation of Ailsa Street as a potential waste site on 
amenity grounds 

• Allocation of sites for schools and local parks – A number of landowners 
and developers objected to the allocation of sites based on viability, 
deliverability and lack of justification of need. 

• Building Heights Policy – A number of landowners and developers 
objected to the policy as they considered its rigid application could unduly 
restrict building heights and development potential. 

• Strategic Industrial Land boundary in Fish Island – A number of 
landowners and developers objected to the extent of the boundary on the 
basis that it limits the redevelopment potential of their sites whilst local 
residents have objected in terms of impact on amenity. 

• Employment Policies – A number of developers and landowners have 
objected to each of the Employment policies on the basis that they are 
over protective of employment uses and will prejudice redevelopment 
opportunities. 

6.16 The process, analysis and responses to these key issues and all of the other 
representations are set out in the following documents, 

§ The Statement of Engagement which includes a summary of the 
representations, issues raised and how they were addressed (Appendix 5,6) 
§ The Council’s response to each representation (Appendix 7,8)  
§ The Minor Amendment Tables which identify minor changes proposed for 
the Managing Development DPD and Fish Island AAP (Appendix 3,4) 

6.17 Having reviewed all of the representations, it is not considered that it is 
necessary to undertaken anything other than minor amendments to the 
DPDs prior to submission to the Secretary of State and that the Management 
Development DPD and Fish Island AAP remain sound and should be 
submitted. 

6.18 The Mayor of London has confirmed that the DPDs are in conformity with the 
London Plan, with the exception of the affordable housing policy. The 
Council’s response to this is dealt with in the Statement of Engagement 
(Appendix 5, 6) and Response to Representations (Appendix 7, 8). 

Page 93



  

6.19 The Council in preparing development plan documents has a duty to 
cooperate as set out in s33A of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004, and to this end the Council has engaged constructively, actively and 
on an on-going basis with the relevant bodies in the process of preparing the 
DPDs. This is demonstrated in the Statement of Engagement (Appendix 5, 
6), which specifically shows how the Council has gone beyond simple 
consultation and how it has ensured engagement and cooperation between 
the Council and statutory consultees, neighbouring boroughs and other key 
stakeholders.  

Next Steps  

6.20 Subject to Full Council approving the Managing Development DPD and the 
Fish Island AAP, the documents (and supporting materials) will be submitted 
to the Secretary of State in accordance with the recommendation of this 
report and regulation 22 of The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 
(England) 2012. The Council will also enter into a Service Level Agreement 
with the Planning Inspectorate for the Examination in Public preparations. 

6.21 This decision will be published in local press, on the Council website and all 
interested parties who have been involved in the production of these 
documents will be notified of this decision. The Council will also publish the 
DPDs and supporting materials in the borough’s Idea Stores and libraries 
and planning reception.  

 
7. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 

7.1 Following the completion of the statutory consultation process, this report 
seeks approval from Council to submit the two new Local Development 
Framework documents - the ‘Managing Development’ Development Plan 
Document, and the Fish Island Area Action Plan – to the Secretary of State 
for examination. 

7.2  Whilst there are no specific financial consequences arising directly from the 
recommendations in the report, ultimately the Local Development 
Framework and its constituent elements will underpin key decisions in 
relation to the allocation of the limited resources available within the 
Borough, and will influence the shaping of the Council's Capital Strategy. 

7.3  Appendices 5 and 6 to the report outline the key issues arising from 
consultation. These set out some of the challenges that the Authority and its 
partners may face over coming years as a result of demographic and 
economic growth. Individual infrastructure developments will need to be 
subject to detailed planning at the appropriate time, including consideration 
of the financial impact on both partner organisations and on the Council.  

7.4  The main costs associated with the production of the Local Development 
Framework are staffing related and have historically been part supported 

Page 94



  

through Housing and Planning Delivery Grant. The two development plan 
documents included within this report have been the subject of on-going 
consultation processes which incurred costs on items such as advertising, 
printing, hiring venues and facilitating public meetings. Although the Housing 
and Planning Delivery Grant regime ended in 2009-10, resources have been 
earmarked to fund this expenditure. The final stage of the LDF process is an 
'inspection in public' for which the Authority must incur all costs, including 
those of the appointed inspectors. Resources have previously been set aside 
as part of the budget process to contribute towards the funding of these 
costs.  

 
8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 (LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
8.1.  The Local Development Framework (LDF) consists of a suite of documents 

which set out planning policy. As the report notes, the Council has already 
adopted its principal DPD, being the Core Strategy, which establishes the 
general spatial vision and planning objectives for the borough. Two further 
DPDs are now required in order to deliver this vision - The ‘Managing 
Development DPD and The Fish Island AAP (note: AAPs have the same 
status in legislation as a DPD). The DPDs are required to be in conformity 
with the Council’s adopted Core Strategy and the Regional Spatial Strategy 
(or the Spatial Development Strategy in London). 

 
8.2.  The preparation, consultation upon, examination and adoption of a DPD is 

controlled by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and the new 
Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2012 
(“2012 Regs”). This report confirms that the requirements leading up to 
submission have been satisfied.  It is noted that such requirements were 
carried out in accordance with the previous regulations - the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004 - and the 
now revoked Planning Policy Statement 12.  However regulation 38 of the 
2012 Regs confirms that anything done pursuant to the 2004 Regulations will 
be considered to accord with the corresponding 2012 Regs. 

 
8.3.  This report seeks members’ approval to submit the two DPDs (along with all 

relevant documents and information as required pursuant to Regulation 22 of 
the 2012 Regs) to the Secretary of State for public examination as to the 
soundness of the DPDs. 

 
8.4.  Pursuant to section 9D(2) of the Local Government Act 2000 and regulation 4 

and Schedule 3 to the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) 
(England) Regulations 2000, the formulation or preparation of a DPD is a 
function that is not to be the sole responsibility of a local authority’s executive. 
Regulation 4 specifies elements of the process of preparing a DPD that shall 
not be the responsibility of the executive and this includes approval of the 
DPDs for submission to the Secretary of State for approval. The 
recommendations in the report reflect this division of responsibilities. 

 

Page 95



  

8.5 Following public examination the Inspector will issue a report making 
recommendations as to the soundness of the DPDs which the Council must 
publish. Following receipt of the report the Local Authority will seek to formally 
adopt the DPDs in line with the Inspectors recommendation.  Full Council will 
be asked to formally endorse adoption at a future date. 

 
8.5.  In carrying out the function of preparing a DPD, the Council must have due 

regard to the need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the Equality Act 2010, 
the need to advance equality of opportunity and the need to foster good 
relations between persons who share a protected characteristic and those 
who don’t. The report indicates that an equality analysis has been carried out 
and no negative equality impacts arise. 

 
9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 

9.1  Equalities Assessments have been undertaken in support of the Managing 
Development DPD and Fish Island AAP. The EqAs assess issues relating to 
the diversity of the borough including, race, gender, disability, age, sexual 
orientation faith and deprivation. The EqA Reports are included as part of the 
evidence base provided at Appendix 9 to this Report.  The consultation did 
not disclose any impacts that required re-assessment of the equalities 
analyses. 

9.2 It should also be noted that the Managing Development DPD and Fish Island 
AAP are looking to support the delivery of the Council’s LDF Core Strategy, 
which was itself subject to EqA. 

 
10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 

10.1 Detailed Sustainability Appraisals have informed the preparation of the 
Managing Development DPD and Fish Island AAP. The Sustainability 
Appraisal Reports are included as part of the evidence base provided at 
Appendix 9 to this Report.  

10.2  In accordance with the LDF Core Strategy, the Managing Development DPD 
and Fish Island AAP will help ensure a greener environment in a number of 
ways, including: helping improve existing areas of open space and secure 
new areas of open space; promoting biodiversity; promoting sustainable 
transport options; and ensuring new buildings meet the highest 
environmental standards. 

 
11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 

11.1 An LDF Board was established in May 2010, chaired by the Corporate 
Director of Development & Renewal, to lead on the preparation of future 
planning documents within the LDF. Risk Management and mitigation is a 
standard item at monthly LDF Board meetings. As part of the Borough’s 

Page 96



  

LDF, the Managing Development DPD and Fish Island AAP have been 
subject to this risk management process. 

 
12. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 

12.1 The Managing Development DPD and Fish Island AAP have specific policies 
to improve the safety and security of new developments and the surrounding 
public realm. These policies will contribute to ensuring that communities feel 
safe and secure. 

 
13. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 

13.1 The Managing Development DPD and Fish Island AAP have been prepared 
in the context of the LDF Core Strategy and other relevant Council 
Strategies, such as the IDEA Store Strategy, Employment Strategy and 
Leisure Strategy. This means the Managing Development DPD and Fish 
Island AAP closely reflect Council priorities and the Council's capital planning 
process and fully compliments the Core Strategy vision of ensuring the 
timely provision of necessary social and physical infrastructure to support the 
growth in population and jobs in the Borough over the next 15 years. 

13.2 The Managing Development DPD and Fish Island AAP will also ensure the 
Council has a fully up-to-date suite of planning documents which responds to 
the identified needs of the Borough and provides a more efficient basis for 
the determination of planning applications. 

 
14. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Managing Development DPD, Proposed Submission Version, 
January 2012  
Appendix 2 – Fish Island AAP, Proposed Submission Version, January 2012 
Appendix 3 – Table of Minor Amendments to Managing Development DPD  
Appendix 4 - Table of Minor Amendments to Fish Island AAP 
Appendix 5 – Statement of Engagement - Managing Development DPD  
Appendix 6 – Statement of Engagement - Fish Island AAP  
Appendix 7 – Response to Representations - Managing Development DPD 
Appendix 8 – Response to Representations - Fish Island AAP  
Appendix 9 – Evidence Base 
 

 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

Brief description of “background papers” 
 

N/A 

Name and telephone number of holder  
and address where open to inspection. 
 

 

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\8\AI00034881\$mt4u2sfm.doc 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

REPORT OF THE MAYOR IN CABINET 
 

08 FEBRUARY 2012 
 

To receive the report of the Cabinet at its meeting held on Wednesday 08 February 2012. 
 
 
Mayor and Councillors in attendance at the meeting: -  
 

Cabinet: 
Mayor Lutfur Rahman  
Councillor Ohid Ahmed (Deputy Mayor) 
Councillor Rofique U Ahmed (Cabinet Member for Regeneration) 
Councillor Shahed Ali (Cabinet Member for Environment) 
Councillor Abdul Asad (Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing) 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury (Cabinet Member for Resources) 
Councillor Shafiqul Haque (Cabinet Member for Jobs and Skills) 
Councillor Rabina Khan (Cabinet Member for Housing) 
Councillor Rania Khan (Cabinet Member for Regeneration) 
Councillor Oliur Rahman (Cabinet Member for Children’s Services) 
 
 
Other Councillors: 
Councillor Kabir Ahmed (Executive Advisor to the Mayor and Cabinet) 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton  
Councillor David Edgar 
Councillor Marc Francis 
Councillor Ann Jackson (Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee) 
Councillor Md. Maium Miah (Executive Advisor to the Mayor and Cabinet on Third 

Sector and Community Engagement) 
Councillor Joshua Peck (Leader of the Labour Group) 
Councillor Bill Turner 
 
 
 
1. Enterprise Strategy  (CAB 068/112)  
 

The report (attached as Appendix A to this council report) informed the Mayor and 
Cabinet that: - 

• It provided Members with an overview of the Tower Hamlets Enterprise 
Economy; information about key stakeholders and a summary of the key issues 
facing the economy in the Borough. 

• The draft Strategy had been widely circulated for comment to internal and 
external stakeholders during late April and throughout May 2011.   

• Comments from the consultation exercise had been considered and taken into 
account and a final (post consultation) draft was presented to the Cabinet for 
endorsement. 

 

Agenda Item 9.2

Page 99



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\8\AI00034881\$mt4u2sfm.doc 

The broad endorsement of the proposals contained in this policy framework report by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC), at its meeting held on 7th February 2012, 
and specific comments/ advice arising from its deliberations, were reported by the 
Chair of the OSC earlier in the Cabinet proceedings and noted by the Mayor/ Cabinet.  
 
The Mayor agreed the recommendations as set out in the report before the Cabinet for 
consideration. 
 
Decision 

 
1. That the extensive consultation process undertaken for the draft Enterprise 

Strategy and the amendments made to the document be noted; and 
 

2. Agreed that the draft Enterprise Strategy and the proposed action plan 
[contained in Appendix 1 and 2 to the report (CAB 068/112) respectively] be 
recommended to Full Council for approval. 

 
 

Council is therefore recommended to: - 
 
1. Approve the Enterprise Strategy, attached at Appendix 1 to the report (CAB 

068/112) (Attached at Appendix A to this Council report). 
 
 

Lutfur Rahman 
Mayor 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 SECTION 100D (AS AMENDED) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 
Brief description  Tick if copy  If not supplied, 
of “background paper” supplied name and telephone 
number of holder 
 
Draft Cabinet minutes  Angus Taylor 
08/02/12  020 7364 4333  
 
 

Page 100



 
 

 

Committee/Meeting: 

 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 

 
February 
2012 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted 
 

Report No: 
 

CAB 068/112 

Report of:  

 
Corporate Director Development and 
Renewal 
 
Originating officer(s)  
Nick Smales - Service Head Economic 
Development and Olympic Legacy 

 

Title:  

 
Enterprise Strategy 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
 
Lead Member 
 

Cllr. Shafiqul Haque - Lead Member Employment  

Community Plan Theme 
 

Prosperous Communities 

Strategic Priority 
 

Supporting more people into work and improving employment 
skills; and 
 
Fostering enterprise and entrepreneurship 

 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The draft Strategy was widely circulated for comment to internal and external 

stakeholders during late April and throughout May 2011.   

1.2 Comments from the consultation exercise have been considered and taken 
into account and a final (post consultation) draft is attached for adoption by 
Cabinet. 

  
2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 
 The Mayor in Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 

2.1 Note the extensive consultation process undertaken for the draft Enterprise 
Strategy and the amendments made to the document   

 
2.2 Agree to the Strategy and the proposed action plan going forward to Full 

Council for approval. 
 
 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 
3.1 The Local Economic Assessment, completed during 2010, concluded that 

Tower Hamlets was a place like no other facing “both challenges and 
opportunities like no other local authority.” The economic transformation of the 
Borough in the past two decades has made the Borough’s economy 

Page 101



 
 

 

significant in a global context and yet the Borough has the second lowest 
employment rate in London despite there being three jobs for every two 
residents in the Borough.  

3.2 The Employment Strategy adopted by Cabinet in May 2011 seeks to focus 
activity on supporting residents into the labour market, essentially responding 
to labour market supply. It is also necessary to consider the demand side of 
the labour market i.e. the ability of the enterprise economy to grow and create 
jobs and opportunities for local Tower Hamlets residents. The Enterprise 
Strategy therefore provides a focus for the Council and its partners concerned 
with the growth and relevance of the demand side of economic development 
in the Borough. 

 
 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 The principal focus for the Council and its partners is clearly to respond to 

the worklessness challenge, supporting more residents into work which is a 
function of the recently adopted Employment Strategy and thus the option of 
continuing economic development activity guided solely by the Employment 
Strategy was considered. 

 
4.2 However given the significant evidence base generated from the LEA and 

the aim of ensuring greater employment and enterprise opportunities for 
local residents via a greater understanding and development of interventions 
on the demand side development of the first Enterprise Strategy was 
considered the most appropriate option.      

 
5. BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 The strategy considers the structure of the Tower Hamlets economy 

including its transformation from a de-industrialising, traditional economy to a 
predominantly knowledge based, higher skilled, service economy. 

 
5.2 Transformation has been driven by the emergence of the financial and 

business services cluster and this sector is forecast to continue to grow 
further over the next decade. However, whilst the Tower Hamlets economy 
has been hugely successful in the past decade its benefits and relevance to 
Tower Hamlets residents is not comprehensive and there remains the need 
to maintain a broad based, diverse economic structure which supports the 
start up, development and growth of businesses in the Borough in growth 
sectors in addition to financial and business services.   

 
5.3 The Council and its partners have the ability to shape and influence the 

enterprise environment and the Enterprise Strategy has been developed to 
respond to the objective of supporting enterprise and entrepreneurial activity 
for the benefit of local people. 

6. BODY OF REPORT 
 

Page 102



 
 

 

6.1 The Tower Hamlets economy has transformed over the past three decades 
and is now worth around £6 billion annually. In the decade to 2008 
employment grew in the Borough by around 60% so that there are now 
around 1.4 jobs accommodated in the Borough for every working age 
resident. 

6.2 The growth has been characterised by the emergence of the Financial 
Services Sector and Business Services sector clustered around Canary Wharf 
and the City Fringe. These sectors account for over half of all jobs in the 
Borough. There is however evidence that there is a ripple effect emerging 
across the Borough with reference to auxiliary services serving the principal 
clusters.   

 
6.3 Traditional industries have declined as the economy transitions from a 

traditional industrial economy into a knowledge based / service sector 
economy and manufacturing now accounts for around 5% of employment in 
the Borough which drops to 2% if the classification of newspaper publishing is 
discounted from the wider manufacturing category. 

 
6.4 There is a healthy rate of business births in the Borough and there is evidence 

of SME growth above England averages. The greatest number of businesses 
exist in the Wholesale and Retail and Business Activities sectors.  

 
6.5 Issues within the enterprise economy include the need to close the gap 

between the skills increasingly demanded by the knowledge economy and the 
skills levels of local residents; the limited supply and affordability of space for 
small businesses; access to financing for start up and small businesses and a 
fragmented business advice network.   

 
6.6 Overall the Enterprise Strategy seeks to provide the context for the 

maintenance of a vibrant and growing economy which benefits the local 
population. Accordingly the draft Strategy establishes the overall aim of the 
Strategy as to encourage and support enterprise and entrepreneurial activity 
to increase opportunity, prosperity and mobility in Tower Hamlets. 

 
6.7 The Strategy includes: 

• an overview of the Tower Hamlets Enterprise Economy (chapter 2, What 
is happening in the Tower Hamlets Enterprise Economy) 

• information about key stakeholders (chapter 3, Who’s who in relation to 
Enterprise) 

• a summary of the key issues facing the enterprise economy in the 
borough (chapter 4, Challenges) 

6.8 The key conclusions of each of these sections are summarised below: 

6.9 What is happening in the Tower Hamlets Enterprise Economy 

Page 103



 
 

 

6.9.1 Enterprise is strong in Tower Hamlets and the economic picture is 
broadly positive. There has been a major and long-term shift towards 
financial services. Financial services help to fuel a cluster of other 
businesses, buying in services and supplies and spending money 
locally, including through their employees. This in turn creates 
opportunities for a broad range of business services. Functionally, 
Tower Hamlets is now part of the central London economy. 

6.9.2 These changes bring some tensions, as traditional sectors continue to 
decline, but new opportunities exist. Besides financial and business 
services, tourism, creative industries and knowledge-based industries 
are growth sectors which are not directly part of the financial and 
business services cluster and offer greater diversity. Tower Hamlets 
has a higher than average level of business starts, indicating that there 
are enterprising local people. 

6.10 Who’s who in relation to Enterprise 

6.10.1 There are different types of business in the borough, which have 
different characteristics and therefore require different responses from 
an enterprise strategy. Four key types of business are outlined. Within 
Tower Hamlets there are also services which exist to support 
enterprise, for instance through providing finance and advice, and this 
includes a particular role for the Council. Generally speaking, the 
borough and partners have a greater role to play in supporting 
enterprises which are more locally focused in terms of the markets they 
serve and/or the people they employ. 

6.11 Challenges  

6.11.1 The skills gap - residents and borough businesses A high proportion of 
local residents lack basic skills, and there is a predominance of job 
opportunities that are either at entry level or require a very high level of 
skills – with relatively little in between. Tackling both these issues will 
have benefits for both businesses and residents. The Employment 
Strategy suggests how the Council and its partners can improve 
residents’ access to jobs by raising their skills levels. The challenge for 
the Enterprise Strategy is to support enterprise, encourage growth and 
support a diverse, sustainable business base that generates 
employment within the borough and that local people can access. 

6.11.2 Relatively low rate of self-employment Overall, self-employment 
appears to be underperforming in Tower Hamlets, in terms of its 
contribution to the borough’s enterprise economy and specifically in its 
contribution to employment. However, there has been a significant 
increase in self-employment rates in the borough in recent years, 
particularly among women, and female self-employment rates are 
relatively strong. The Council and its partners need a fuller and more 
detailed understanding of the issues relating to self-employment in 
Tower Hamlets, in order to inform business support provision so as to 

Page 104



 
 

 

maximise the contribution self-employment can make to tackling 
unemployment. 

6.11.3 Limited resources for business Business support provision is under 
increasing threat, owing to funding reductions and uncertainty about 
future funding. The existing services have finite resources and are 
probably not sufficient to fully meet local needs. There are also signs 
that the sources of finance for enterprise in Tower Hamlets may be 
limited, and constraining business operation and expansion. The 
Enterprise Strategy should provide a framework for coordinating 
provision in order to maximise the impact of scarce resources. 

6.11.4 Underperforming town centres Improving the performance of the 
borough’s town centres has the potential to retain more spending 
locally, support a more diverse economy in Tower Hamlets, and 
increase the number and range of jobs available to residents. The 
Enterprise Strategy can support the delivery of the Town Centre Spatial 
Strategy by ensuring that business support provision meets the needs 
of existing town centre businesses, and encouraging a wider range of 
businesses, particularly SMEs, to locate in the borough’s town centres. 

6.11.5 Lack of suitable workspace for small businesses There is a shortage of 
workspace for SMEs in Tower Hamlets, which risks pushing business 
start-ups and growing businesses out of the borough. These 
enterprises are vital for the strength of the local enterprise economy 
and could provide substantial employment opportunities to local people. 
Improving the supply of flexible workspace would support small and 
growing businesses and, if located in parts of Tower Hamlets other 
than Canary Wharf and the City Fringe, could support the commercial 
viability of town centres in the borough. The Enterprise Strategy can 
help to address this issue by promoting the development of appropriate 
workspace, particularly in town centres. 

6.12 Having reviewed the evidence base and identified the key challenges, the 
Strategy proposes a series of strategic and intermediate objectives for the 
Council and its partners in meeting the identified challenges and supporting 
the borough’s enterprise economy. These are set out in the next section. 

  
 

Page 105



 
 

 

7. STRATEGY AIMS and OBJECTIVES 
 
7.1 It has always been the intention to express the overall purpose or aim of the 

strategy as straightforwardly as possible to provide coalescence around a 
clear purpose and thus the strategic aim for the Strategy has been developed 
as to encourage and support enterprise and entrepreneurial activity to 
increase opportunity, prosperity and mobility in Tower Hamlets  

   
7.6 In order to define how progress can be made against the overall aim and 

reflecting comments made in the consultation process, three Strategic 
Objectives have been developed. The table overleaf provides the read 
through from the strategy aim to the strategic objectives and then to the 
intermediate objectives which in turn provide the context for the development 
and delivery of activity. 

 

Table: Aim and Objectives Read Through 

AIM STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE INTERMEDIATE OBJECTIVE 

1.1Co-ordinate and strengthen enterprise 
support services and access to finance 

1.2 Work with large organisations and 
business to harness their resources for 
the benefit of SMEs 

1. Support the 
establishment, growth 
and development of 
SMEs. 

 

1.3 Support social enterprise 

2.1 Secure premises to support business 
growth 

2.2 Ensure that the physical 
environment, including town centres, is 
suitable for a range of businesses 

2. Provide an environment 
that supports a thriving 
and diverse economic 
base 

 

2.3 Encouraging an entrepreneurial spirit 
and a culture of innovation 

3.1 Develop Tower Hamlets enterprise 
voice 

3.2 Influence the policy context to 
maintain a diverse and sustainable 
economy 

To encourage and 
support enterprise and 
entrepreneurial 
activity to increase 
opportunity, 
prosperity and 
mobility in Tower 
Hamlets 

3. Support the borough’s 
enterprise economy by 
communicating local 
needs and wishes to 
influence a variety of 
audiences 

 

3.3 Promote Tower Hamlets as a location 
for investment and enterprise, and a 
destination for visitors 

 

Page 106



 
 

 

8. CONSULTATION   

8.1 As referenced above throughout late April and most of May the draft strategy 
(considered by MAB in April) was subject to consultation and a number of 
comments were received and the Strategy revised accordingly.  

8.2 Generally the consultation draft Strategy was well received by external 
agencies including some strongly positive feedback e.g. 

• “The Tower Hamlets Enterprise Strategy…….is a very comprehensive 
document, and we at the centre welcome support for enterprise”  

(East London Small Business Centre) 

• “The Executive Summary and Context sections show thorough research 
and set the scene well.” 

• “Overall, a good strategy that has the potential to deliver change and 
results”  

(East London Business Place) 

8.3 With reference to comments concerned with areas for strengthening / 
attention these fell into two principal areas, the role of the voluntary / third 
sector in supporting social enterprise and how the Strategy could help 
residents obtain jobs in the local enterprise economy. 

8.4 As a result of the consultation process and responding to internal comment 
the structure of the strategy has changes to provide a greater focus on why it 
is necessary in a Borough such as Tower Hamlets for the Council to develop 
an Enterprise Strategy and the purpose behind the proposed interventions in 
the enterprise economy.  

8.5 A report on the detail of the consultation and the strategy response is 
attached at Appendix 3. 

  

9. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
9.1 This report asks Cabinet to approve the Enterprise Strategy following the 

stakeholder consultation that has recently taken place. 
 
9.2 As is the case with the closely related Employment Strategy, the objectives 

contained within the Enterprise Strategy set out a range of activities and 
priorities for the Council and key partners providing a clear focus for 
ensuring that available resources are targeted to and in line with these 
priorities. 

 
9.3 Whilst there are no specific financial consequences arising from the 

recommendations in the report, delivery of the strategy will be extremely 

Page 107



 
 

 

challenging in the current economic climate, and will require a co-ordinated 
approach and aligning of funding from all major partners. It will also require 
that best value for money is obtained from limited sources of external 
funding, given that the Council’s mainstream resources to support the 
Enterprise Strategy are extremely limited.     

 
 
10. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
10.1. There is no statutory requirement for the Council to adopt an enterprise 

strategy.  It is understood that the strategy is being brought forward to further 
the Council’s sustainable community strategy, as expressed in the Community 
Plan.  This may be underpinned by the Council’s well-being power, set out in 
section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000.  

 
10.2. The Council is empowered under section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000 

to do anything which it considers likely to promote the social, economic or 
environmental well being of Tower Hamlets, provided the action is not 
otherwise prohibited by statute.  The power may be exercised in relation to, or 
for the benefit of: (a) the whole or any part of Tower Hamlets; or (b) all or any 
persons resident in Tower Hamlets.  In exercising the power, regard must be 
had to the Community Plan.  The Council should be satisfied that there is 
appropriate evidence to suggest that the strategy will relevantly promote well-
being. 

 
10.3. In the absence of any statutory obligation to consult, it is still good practice for 

consultation to be undertaken at a time when proposals are still at a formative 
stage, to include sufficient information to allow those consulted to give 
intelligent consideration and response and to allow adequate time for this 
purpose.  A report on the consultation conducted is provided with the report. 

 
10.4. The enterprise strategy plays a companion role to the Council’s employment 

strategy and will assist the Council to realise the priorities of the Community 
Plan insofar as the strategy will be a document informing Development Plan 
Documents including the Development Management DPD and Site and 
Place-Making DPD. 

 
10.5. The enterprise strategy is not proposed to eventually be adopted as a Local 

Development Framework (LDF) planning document, rather it is an overarching 
strategy that will inform the LDF, and therefore will not attract the same 
weighting in terms of the Council’s local planning policy.  Such approval raises 
no immediate legal implications. 

 
10.6. Before making the proposed order, the Council must have due regard to the 

need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the Equality Act 2010, the need to 
advance equality of opportunity and the need to foster good relations between 
persons who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t.  An 
equality impact assessment has been prepared and this may assist the 
Council to meet its statutory equality duty. 

Page 108



 
 

 

 
11. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
11.1 The overall aim of the strategy is to Strategy is to increase opportunity, 

prosperity and mobility in Tower Hamlets consistent with the Vision and 
Priorities expressed in the Tower Hamlets Community Plan. 

 
11.2 An Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken as part of the 

strategy development process.  The Equalities Impact Assessment has 
concluded that the approach taken in developing the strategy will have a 
positive impact on equality of opportunity in the borough, as intended.  It 
recognises and acknowledges the diversity of the Tower Hamlets population 
and business base by ensuring that initiatives will be implemented and 
monitored to ensure substantial benefit for these diverse groups and to 
provide support for any group which, in terms of business support and 
involvement is disadvantaged compared with the others. 

 
11.3 Following the impact assessment it is not anticipated that the Strategy will 

lead to any discrimination or other behaviour that has been prohibited by the 
Equality Act 2010. 

 

 
12. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
12.1 The strategy sets objectives around creating opportunity within the local 

supply chains which if realised will lessen the carbon footprint whilst 
capturing business activity and wealth within the Borough.     

 
13. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
13.1 The principal risk for the Enterprise Strategy is around execution and the full 

engagement of key partners which are fundamental to the aims of the 
strategy. For example the need for better coordination of a fragmented 
business and enterprise support network in the Borough requires the 
engagement and commitment of business agencies operating in the 
Borough and thus without their participation and support the ability to join up 
/ coordinate services better will be more difficult. 

 
14. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1 The aim of the strategy is to increase opportunity, prosperity and mobility in 

the Borough through supporting an enterprise economy that creates jobs 
and wealth for local residents. Increasing available employment 
opportunities to match the refreshed Employment Strategy aim of increasing 
the number of residents in work will make a positive contribution to the 
reduction of crime and disorder.   

 
 
15. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 

Page 109



 
 

 

15.1 The Enterprise Strategy has been developed from within the context of a 
changed policy environment and therefore a number of efficiencies can be 
identified from delivery of objectives and from the development of a strategic 
approach. 

 
15.2 Having a robust, partnership agreed strategy can reduce inefficiencies within 

the enterprise, business support network and support bidding for and 
leverage of national / regional and local resources are targeted against 
Tower Hamlets priorities. Given the changed policy context in which the 
public sector can only bid for Regional Growth Fund with the private sector 
having clearly articulated aims and objectives which are agreed with and by 
partners will support Tower Hamlets voice in attracting funds and within new 
governance structures such as the pan London Local Enterprise Partnership 
(LEP).    

 
 
16. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Enterprise Strategy 
Appendix 2 – Indicative Action Plan 
Appendix 3 – Consultation Response document 
Appendix 4 – Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________________________________ 

 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  
Tower Hamlets Local Economic 
Assessment (December 2010, vols 1-4) 

Nick Smales 
Service Head  
x 4628 

 
 
 

Page 110



 

 

Tower Hamlets 

Enterprise Strategy 
January 2012 

 

 

 

Page 111



 

 2 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Executive Summary and Introduction   

Contents 

 

Executive Summary .................................................................................................. 3 

1. Introduction ........................................................................................................ 5 

1.1 Strategic Context ......................................................................................... 5 

1.2 Why Enterprise is Important......................................................................... 5 

1.3 The Cost of Not Taking Action ..................................................................... 6 

1.4 Principles..................................................................................................... 7 

1.5 Contents of This Strategy ............................................................................ 7 

2. What is happening in the Tower Hamlets enterprise economy ........................... 8 

2.1 The Rate of Change .................................................................................... 8 

2.2 A Central London Economy......................................................................... 9 

2.3 Growth of Financial Services, Decline of traditional Sectors ...................... 10 

2.4 Financial Business Service Clustering ....................................................... 12 

2.5 Other Sectors of Growth ............................................................................ 14 

2.6 An Enterprising Economy .......................................................................... 15 

3. Who’s who in relation to Enterprise .................................................................. 17 

3.1 Stakeholders and Contributors to the Tower Hamlets Enterprise Economy17 

3.2 Types of enterprise.................................................................................... 17 

3.3 Creating an environment for enterprise to prosper..................................... 21 

3.4 The role of the council ............................................................................... 23 

4. Challenges ....................................................................................................... 25 

4.1 The Skills Gap – Residents and Borough Businesses ............................... 25 

4.2 Relatively Low Rate of Self-employment.................................................... 27 

4.3 Limited Resources for Business ................................................................ 29 

4.4 Underperforming Town Centres................................................................. 31 

4.5 Lack of Suitable Workspace for Small Businesses .................................... 33 

5. Objectives ........................................................................................................ 36 

 

Glossary.................................................................................................................. 45 

 

Page 112



 

 3 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Executive Summary and Introduction   

Executive Summary 

Enterprise benefits Tower Hamlets in many ways. It offers employment and brings 
wealth into the borough, some of which is spent locally, supporting retail and 
recreational areas, and making public spaces more vibrant. 

However, it is vital that residents can make the most of the opportunities enterprise 
brings and, in a borough where deprivation is still pronounced, it is right that the 
Council and partners work together to make this potential for further improvements to 
everyone’s quality of life a reality. When these elements work together, the virtuous 
cycle established benefits both residents and businesses. 

As such, the Enterprise Strategy fits closely with the aims of the Core Strategy and 
Prosperous Communities. The aim of the Enterprise Strategy is to encourage and 
support enterprise and entrepreneurial activity to increase opportunity, prosperity and 
mobility in Tower Hamlets. 

Tower Hamlets has a strong base on which to build, including its strategic location 
and a positive economic outlook. It has experienced very rapid employment growth 
and is functionally part of the central London economy. The profound shift to financial 
services creates additional jobs in associated sectors and this business cluster will 
continue to be vital to the development of the borough. Residents in Tower Hamlets 
are enterprising and it is a dynamic environment for new and existing businesses. 

Alongside growth, there is also transition. Traditional sectors are in decline, whilst 
others such as tourism, creative and knowledge-based industries offer exciting 
possibilities for renewed growth and diversification. As a result, some types of 
business and enterprise sectors therefore deserve particular encouragement and 
support so that the advantages of enterprise increasingly complement the wellbeing 
of the borough’s population. It should also be noted that some businesses, including 
social enterprises, tend to have a local focus in terms of the markets they serve and 
the people they employ. The Strategy seeks to identify some of the differences 
between businesses as well as the partners and support services, most notably 
advice and finance, that all have a stake in success. 

Tower Hamlets faces a number of challenges with regards to strengthening its 
economy to provide a fertile ground for enterprise from which residents can benefit. 
These can be grouped as: 

Economy and employment issues – despite the many jobs which exist in 
Tower Hamlets, residents struggle to access them and employers report skills 
gaps. Without qualifications and training, combined with work experience, 
businesses and residents alike lose out. There is also a lower rate of male 
self-employment in Tower Hamlets than elsewhere. Addressing these issues 
stands to increase the opportunities for local people to access local jobs. This 
supports the Employment Strategy’s aim of increasing employment. 

Resource issues – despite the hard work of support agencies within and 
beyond the borough, high demand for these services results in gaps in 
provision. It is also unclear whether the right kinds of funding are available to 
businesses when they need them, which is a particular issue for smaller 
businesses and start ups. Efficiently co-ordinating and resourcing the 
agencies which can help with training, capacity building, access to suppliers 
(particularly in Canary Wharf and the City Fringe) and finance will support 

Page 113



 

 4 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Executive Summary and Introduction   

further growth and diversity in the economy where local people can play a 
greater role as entrepreneurs and employers. 

Spatial issues – the supply of smaller office premises is low and Tower 
Hamlets has many minor town centres which could be made more attractive 
to community facing and other local enterprises. The Council can influence 
this through its planning and development powers. Improving the physical 
infrastructure and providing more B1 units, better retail environments, and 
clearer town centres, connected by even better transport, will foster business 
growth. This can bring further jobs into the reach of residents at the same 
time as providing goods and services which people want in town centres 
which are more welcoming. 

Ongoing success is not guaranteed and will not come without effort from all 
stakeholders in the local economy. Based on the aim and in response to the 
challenges, three objectives are proposed. These are to: 

1. Support the establishment, growth and development of SMEs. This 
includes working with large business and the public sector in terms of 
procurement and corporate social responsibility for SMEs and social 
enterprise. Support services and access to finance are also areas to 
strengthen here. 

2. Provide an environment that supports a thriving and diverse economic 
base. This is physical – relating to business premises and better town centres 
– but is also about encouraging innovation and an entrepreneurial spirit, so 
that businesses continue to thrive, with Tower Hamlets’ residents in strong 
positions. 

3. Support the borough’s enterprise economy by communicating local 
needs and wishes to influence a variety of audiences. By making it easier for 
Tower Hamlets’ enterprises to voice their strengths and concerns, the Council 
and partners can both influence policy and promote the borough as a 
destination and location for enterprise. 

Active work on all of these fronts will indeed encourage and support enterprise and 
entrepreneurial activity to increase opportunity, prosperity and mobility in Tower 
Hamlets. This Strategy, its objectives, and the first accompanying action plan – which 
will be updated annually – set the stage for accomplishing this. The Council looks 
forward to working with partners, including the businesses themselves as well as 
support agencies and the people of Tower Hamlets, to fulfil the aim. 

Page 114



 

 5 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Executive Summary and Introduction   

1. Introduction 

1.1 Strategic Context 

The Enterprise Strategy fits within the context of the vision for “Prosperous 
Communities”, as set out in the Council’s Community Plan: 

“We aim to create a Tower Hamlets in which everyone, regardless of their 
background and circumstances, has the aspiration and opportunity to achieve 
their full potential. At the heart of this theme is a focus on combating social 
exclusion, reducing poverty and improving the life chances of all residents.” 

The Community Plan has a fundamental influence on all Council strategies which can 
affect the chance for residents to have “the aspiration and opportunity to achieve 
their full potential”. 

This Enterprise Strategy has been written to complement other Council strategies. 
Specifically, it sits as a companion to the borough Employment Strategy, in 
recognition of the synergy and overlap between workforce and economy. 

The aim of the Enterprise Strategy is to: 

encourage and support enterprise and entrepreneurial activity to increase 
opportunity, prosperity and mobility in Tower Hamlets 

The Enterprise Strategy provides the basis for intervention and the proposed 
direction for achieving the chosen objectives. This will require work on the part of the 
Council by, with and for local enterprises, in conjunction with other stakeholders in 
the borough. 

1.2 Why Enterprise is Important 

Enterprise is important to Tower Hamlets in a number of respects: 

• Enterprise creates opportunities for employment – enterprises provide 
jobs which local residents can apply for (although it should be noted that less 
than a third (31%) of working residents work in the borough, with the rest 
working outside it).1 The degree to which job opportunities are available and 
open to local residents contributes to the well being of residents and 
communities, as well as the achievement of other borough goals, including 
reducing child poverty. This Enterprise Strategy concentrates on the demand 
side of employment for local residents. 

• Enterprise is a means for residents to create wealth – many Tower 
Hamlets residents earn a living by owning a business or being self-employed. 
The borough is an entrepreneurial place, and generations of residents have 
relied on their entrepreneurial activity as a means of social mobility. 

• Enterprise fuels local economic activity – the local economy is composed 
of individual enterprises, which can to a greater or lesser extent support other 
local enterprises and local communities. Such support can be through normal 
commercial activity, or through specific initiatives, such as Corporate Social 
Responsibility policies and social enterprise. The Strategy suggests how such 
support can best be focused. 

                                                
1
  Source: Annual Population Survey 2008 

Page 115



 

 6 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Executive Summary and Introduction   

• Enterprise improves the local environment – businesses animate and 
invest in spaces for offices and retail, supporting the creation of sustainable 
neighbourhoods which people want to live near and visit. 

The key question this Strategy seeks to address is what the Council and its partners 
can effectively do to support the local enterprise economy to both achieve its growth 
potential and foster new opportunities through business for borough residents. While 
growth forecasts for the borough have generally been positive, they are not inevitable 
and the Council wishes to ensure that the potential opportunity that growth 
represents is turned into real improvements for the borough’s businesses and 
residents. 

This is partly a matter of how initiatives can make a difference, and partly about how 
the transformation can be accomplished when resources are very limited. The 
objectives and the action plan proposed are designed to show how this can be done. 

1.3 The Cost of Not Taking Action 

While the Tower Hamlets economy has experienced some of the highest 
employment growth in Europe in the last decade, it remains a deprived borough, with 
the second lowest working age employment rate in London at 59.4%2 (roughly 10 
percentage points behind the London average of 70.2%). With low employment 
comes economic exclusion. Whilst the 2010 Indices of Deprivation (IMD) show that 
Tower Hamlets has moved up from being the second most deprived borough in the 
country, its rank of seventh in 2010 (the third most deprived borough in London) 
shows that there is a long way to go. While more than a tenth of working residents 
earn over £100k p.a., compared to 2% for London as a whole, some 47% of 
residents are on benefits. This is a dramatic demonstration of the contrasts evident in 
one of the world’s most diverse urban environments. 

These challenges cannot be solved by any one strategy. But by ensuring a fertile 
ground for enterprises within the borough, new employment opportunities will arise 
which borough residents may be able to capitalise on, benefitting the individuals but 
also their families and communities. In particular many of the groups most excluded 
from the workplace, such as those with families or disabilities, are those which would 
most benefit from local employment. Removing barriers to new business starts in 
particular is likely to be of real benefit to borough residents in the future. This 
Enterprise Strategy therefore seeks to encourage a diverse, sustainable local 
enterprise economy, where borough residents can gain employment and take part in 
entrepreneurial activity, whether through self employment or by setting up a 
business. 

                                                
2
 97,800 residents - Annual Population Survey, ONS. Nov 2010 

Page 116



 

 7 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Executive Summary and Introduction   

 

1.4 Principles 

Both the Strategy itself and individual initiatives stemming from it are underpinned by 
the following four principles.  

1. Partnership Working and Stakeholder Participation – the Council will work 
with strategic and delivery partners to achieve its aim, as well as providing 
ample opportunities for those affected by the Strategy and action plans to 
help shape them. 

2. Data and Evidence – as the basis for ensuring that actions have a strong 
likelihood of having a positive impact through enterprise on borough residents 
and businesses. 

3. Equalities and Diversity – in recognition of the diversity of Tower Hamlets’ 
population and business base. This includes ensuring substantial benefit for 
the diverse groups which make up Tower Hamlets’ population and supporting 
any group which, in terms of business support or involvement in the wider 
business community, is disadvantaged compared with the others. 

4. Sustainable Development – policies and programmes will seek to support 
economic, social and environmental goals simultaneously taking into account 
the needs of current and future generations. 

 

These are applied in the Enterprise Strategy specifically to the establishment and/or 
growth of local enterprises. 

1.5 Contents of This Strategy 

This Strategy examines the main features of the borough’s enterprise economy and 
how it is changing. This is followed by an analysis of the different types of businesses 
and enterprise stakeholders in Tower Hamlets. The shortcomings of the present 
enterprise economy from the point of view of local residents are presented, as is 
what the Council and partners can do to improve the situation. 

Lastly, strategic objectives and proposed outcomes are set out showing what the 
Council and its partners will do to promote a positive enterprise environment and 
economy for the benefit of both resident and businesses. 

 

Key messages 

Enterprise has the potential to benefit the borough in a variety of ways, including 
creating employment, creating wealth and revenue within the borough, and 
making the physical environment more attractive. This strategy is about how the 
Council and partners can encourage further enterprise growth, particularly in 
sectors of the borough economy that will more directly benefit borough residents. 
As such, it fits with the borough’s aspirations as expressed in the Core Strategy 
and the work on Prosperous Communities. 

Page 117



 

 8 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

2. What is happening in the Tower Hamlets enterprise economy 

Tower Hamlets has a thriving economy worth some £6bn per annum that provides 
almost 1.4 jobs for every working-age resident of the borough. The enterprise 
economy is in many ways the borough’s most significant strength and its growth has 
brought rapid and permanent change to the face of the borough, physically, 
economically and socially. Since the decline of the docks, Tower Hamlets has come 
to occupy a strategic location as development in London shifts eastwards. The Tower 
Hamlets Local Economic Assessment (LEA), produced last year, contained a full 
analysis of the enterprise economy, and forms the basis of this description of current 
trends. 

2.1 The Rate of Change 

Tower Hamlets has experienced phenomenal economic growth in recent decades. In 
the decade to 2008 employment in the borough grew by around 75,000 jobs, or 
almost 60%, some four times the rate for the wider London region. Although the 
borough’s population has also grown, by 45,000 since 2001, employment growth has 
far outpaced that of the population as a whole.  

With over 200,000 jobs within the borough, Tower Hamlets is now home to 5% of 
London’s employment. There are almost three jobs for every two residents of working 
age in the borough: if all residents of working age were to be employed in Tower 
Hamlets, there would still be 60,000 jobs to fill, giving Tower Hamlets the fifth highest 
job density in London. 

 

Figure 2.1 – Total Employment Change, 1998-2008 

 

Page 118



 

 9 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

As can be seen above, the borough’s employment growth in recent years has far 
outpaced that of the Five Host Boroughs, the capital average, and that of the UK as a 
whole. This growth has been driven by the two dominant sectors in the borough's 
economy: financial services employment has more than trebled over the decade and 
real estate and business services have more than doubled. That employment within 
the borough is projected to grow by another 25-50% in the coming decades is also 
largely down to the continued success of these sectors. 

2.2 A Central London Economy 

Tower Hamlets sits physically and economically on the boundary between the City of 
London and the rest of East London. Like the City and the rest of the Central London 
Business District, the borough’s economy has come to be dominated by financial and 
business services. These sectors provide around half of borough employment, in line 
with other Central London boroughs. This is in marked contrast to the rest of East 
London, including the other host boroughs, which are compared in the figure below. 

Figure 2.2 - Central, East and Host Borough Comparisons of Employment 

Structure, 2008 

 

 (Source: ABI / NLP Analysis) 

Strikingly, Tower Hamlets has over 200,000 jobs compared to approximately 337,000 
for all of the other host boroughs combined. Furthermore, the composition of jobs is 

Page 119



 

 10 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

markedly different. Financial intermediation, followed by real estate, renting and 
business activities, dominates.  

Employment within the borough is characterised by a high degree of in- and out- 
commuting, with 70% of working residents travelling outside of the borough to work, 
and 85% of jobs in the borough filled by those living elsewhere. This high level of 
commuting exchange is typical of other Central London boroughs and stands in 
marked contrast to the rest of East London. 

Although much has been made in recent years of Tower Hamlets’ place within the 
five Host Boroughs and wider East London, economically the borough is functionally 
part of the Central London Business District, as the above characteristics 
demonstrate. New developments, such as the expansion of Canary Wharf to Wood 
Wharf and the two Crossrail stations being built in the borough, will only serve to 
increase this distinction. 

These changes are undoubtedly good for the borough economy but are moderated 
by the risk that borough residents will be ill-placed to make the most of this 
opportunity. With only 15% of working age residents currently working in the 
borough, there is much work to be done to help residents capitalise on the growth 
and prosperity on their doorsteps. 

2.3 Growth of Financial Services, Decline of traditional Sectors  

Two geographical areas dominate enterprise in the borough, together providing 60% 
of employment – Canary Wharf and the Tower Hamlets City Fringe. The rise of 
Canary Wharf since the 1980s has acted as the prime engine of employment growth, 
providing a current total of 80,000 jobs, two-fifths of the borough’s employment. 
Alongside this, there has been a significant development and intensification in the 
Tower Hamlets City Fringe, especially in Spitalfields and Aldgate: this area now 
provides some 15% of the borough’s jobs. In both these areas this growth has largely 
been dominated by Financial and Business Services which, as the chart below 
indicates, now dominate employment in the borough. 

Figure 2.3 – Enterprise Sectors in Tower Hamlets by no. of Employees 

Manufacturing

Construction

Wholesale and Retail

Hotels and Restaurants

Transport, Storage and Comms

Financial Intermediation

Real Estate, Renting and Business Activities

Public Administration

Education

Health and Social Work

Community, Social and Personal Service
Activities  

Page 120



 

 11 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

Financial services and business services together amount to 55% of Tower Hamlets’ 
employment. This can be compared with an equivalent figure of 45% for Central 
London and around 20% for the other Host Boroughs and the rest of East London. 
Figure 2.3 shows the growth and contraction of job numbers in each sector over the 
period 1998-2008. Blue bars indicate a rate of change above the London average, 
whereas yellow bars mean below average change. 

Figure 2.4 - Tower Hamlets Sector Employment Growth, 1998-2008 

 

While the growth of financial services, real estate and other business services can be 
largely attributed to the transformation at Docklands, the significant growth in other 
sectors shows the underlying strength of the borough economy, with most sectors 
not only growing in the period, but growing faster than the London average. More 
‘traditional’ sectors of the economy, such as manufacturing, wholesaling and land 
transport have experienced significant decline, although the 40+% decline in land 
transport employment is less than that experienced by London as a whole. The shifts 
from industries requiring significant warehouse and factory space towards 
knowledge-based economic activity also have physical implications, as changes in 
employment patterns are reflected in land use. 

Page 121



 

 12 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

 

Figure 2.5 – Tower Hamlets Employment Space Change, 1998-2008 

 

As the figure above shows, employment space change within the borough has been 
far more dramatic than in London as a whole, with significant decline in the number 
of warehouses and factories and a marked increase in office floor space. It is no 
exaggeration to say that the face of the borough has been transformed by the 
clearance of industrial space and the rise of office towers in the last 20 years. 

 

2.4 Financial Business Service Clustering 

Although financial services and related firms are by far the biggest employers within 
Tower Hamlets, they should not be considered as isolated islands of employment: 
there is significant evidence that the concentration of financial services firms within 
the borough attracts other forms of employment. This “cluster affect” is indicated by 
the diagram below. 

Page 122



 

 13 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

 

Figure 2.6 – Composition of London Financial Service Cluster and 

Supporting Industries 

Fund and Asset 

Management

Management 

Consultancy

Legal Services Accountancy

Market 

Research

Insurance

Banks and 

Investment 

Banks

Government 

and Regulation

Media and 

Creative

Real Estate

ICT and 

Technology

Ancillary and 

Back Office

Retail and 

Leisure

C
o
re

 C
lu

s
te

r

L
in

ke
d
 C

lu
ste

rs

Fund and Asset 

Management

Management 

Consultancy

Legal Services Accountancy

Market 

Research

Insurance

Banks and 

Investment 

Banks

Government 

and Regulation

Media and 

Creative

Real Estate

ICT and 

Technology

Ancillary and 

Back Office

Retail and 

Leisure

C
o
re

 C
lu

s
te

r

L
in

ke
d
 C

lu
ste

rs

 

Source: NLP adapted from PMSU (2004) 

Each bank or insurance firm is linked to and supported by firms providing auxiliary 
financial, accountancy, legal and management services, with these firms in turn 
supported by others which enable them to function, including real estate, IT, media 
and creative firms. All these firms together can be linked less formally to the wider 
economy, directly or indirectly, through businesses and their employees spending 
money on goods and services such as shops, cafés, restaurants, bars, cleaning 
firms, catering, and other suppliers. Analysis from the LEA suggests that each job in 
a ‘tier 1’ bank or insurance firm directly supports almost one additional job in the 
immediate tiers below, and more in the wider economy. 

It is this cluster effect that is the strongest argument for continuing to encourage the 
attraction of high-level financial institutions to the borough, as each bank or insurance 
institution acts as a multiplier for support businesses. Thanks to this effect, the 
financial services sector is driving a transformation of the borough in three distinct 
areas: 

• in economy, with the exceptional GDP growth experienced by the borough 
being largely attributable to the sector; 

• in the physical environment, with increased development and marked 
changes to the volume and types of commercial space available in the 
borough; and 

• in jobs, with 40,000 banking and insurance jobs supporting 20,000 jobs in tier 
2 and 15,000 in tier 3. 

 

The importance of these large firms spending money locally should not be 
underestimated. Every pound spent within the borough is an opportunity for local 
enterprise and entrepreneurialism, which in turn supports a myriad of small and 

Page 123



 

 14 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

medium enterprises, fuelled by both employee and corporate spending. It is this 
breadth and diversity which has the greatest potential to benefit borough residents. 

2.5 Other Sectors of Growth 

The dominance of financial services in Canary Wharf powers the borough economy 
but can also skew perceptions of other sectors. Proportionally, the borough is under-
represented in sectors that typically make up the Central and East London 
economies, such as retail, tourism and ‘other’ services. Two key emerging sectors in 
the borough are tourism and leisure and creative services, both of which have 
significant potential for future growth. Taken together, they represent more evidence 
of the transition to a knowledge-based economy, which should prove more 
sustainable in the long term. It is also hoped that this more diverse economy will 
provide greater opportunities for local people through access to a variety of jobs at a 
range of skill levels. 

Tourism, retail and Leisure 

London is a global destination for tourists and the visitor economy was worth £14.2bn 
in 2007, accounting for 5.8% of London’s economy. Tower Hamlets has a world-class 
tourism destination in the Tower of London, and the borough plays a reasonably 
significant role within the capital, with the 7th largest tourism economy within London 
– worth £454m per annum3. While the proportion of tourism-related activities (which 
includes parts of the service sector) in Tower Hamlets (4.6%) is lower than the Host 
Borough average (6.3%), the sector employs some 7,300 people. 

Developing the tourism, retail and leisure sector involves a number of considerations, 
but it is clear that many core components are present, and simply require stitching 
together as part of a more coherent and communicable offer. There are real 
strengths in terms of: 

• Heritage – Whitechapel Art Gallery, the Ragged School Museum in Mile End, 
the V&A Museum of Childhood in Bethnal Green, and the Museum of 
Docklands 

• Shopping – high street and luxury brands at Canary Wharf, boutiques at 
Whitechapel and Brick Lane, and popular markets including Spitalfields, 
Columbia Road and Petticoat Lane 

• Cuisine and culture – Curry Capital 2012 is one current initiative, capitalising 
on the distinctiveness and city-wide reputation of Brick Lane as a culinary 
destination 

Focused marketing to sell the borough’s attractions and uniqueness could help foster 
significant growth in this sector.  

Creative industries 

The designation ‘cultural and creative industries’ cuts across usual sectors to include 
many businesses which trade in intellectual property, such as advertising, 
architecture, arts, crafts, design, media, music, performing arts, publishing and 
software. The creative industries sector now accounts for about 25,000 jobs in the 
borough and represent a second plank in the transition of Tower Hamlets towards a 
modern knowledge-based, high-skilled economy. 

                                                
3
 (according to 2006 GLA figures) 

Page 124



 

 15 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

Even excluding the design, craft, arts and antiques sub-sectors, the creative 
industries sector accounted for approximately 13.7% of local jobs in 2002, meaning 
that they contributed more to local employment than the education, health & social 
care sectors combined. Creative industries in Tower Hamlets have grown rapidly in 
the last few years and at a faster rate than average for London. 

Social Enterprises  

Another growing category of business with significant potential in Tower Hamlets is 
social enterprise. Social enterprises are businesses that specifically aim to solve 
social and environmental problems; they tend to be focused on areas the market has 
avoided and to employ local people and distribute profits locally. 

Available information – mainly anecdotal – suggests a substantial social enterprise 
presence in Tower Hamlets. There are significant examples of social enterprises in 
Tower Hamlets, some of which have a national profile. For instance, Tower Hamlets 
is home to the School for Social Entrepreneurs (SSE), itself a social enterprise, which 
offers training to those who are seeking to develop businesses with social benefit. 
Beyond the Barn, an initiative of the Bromley by Bow Centre, has incubated and 
launched 28 successful social enterprises since 2005, creating over 200 new jobs. 
While social enterprise may not be a large sector in terms of the number of 
enterprises, it is strategically important because of the opportunities it can create for 
local people. Socially focused businesses are more likely to be aligned to the needs 
of their communities and therefore have great potential to help achieve the aims of 
this Strategy. This mechanism is particularly timely for meeting social and economic 
objectives simultaneously, at a time when resources are limited and the economy is 
struggling. 

The shift in focus towards social enterprise is a national trend. Since Tower Hamlets 
already has some strengths in this area, it makes sense for the borough and partners 
to look for ways to support this growth and development. Finance will help local 
social enterprises grow and scale, and access to it is as vital as for any business. 
The local context of financial and business support in Tower Hamlets gives the 
borough a competitive edge in this area. For instance, current work by East London 
Small Business Centre with community development finance institutions could be 
complemented by collaboration with larger financial partners. The banks have 
already made some positive steps in this regard, with the support of JP Morgan for 
Big Society Capital being notable. The potential is to do more with less, for the 
benefit of enterprise and residents. 

2.6 An Enterprising Economy 

People in Tower Hamlets start businesses. The borough has the seventh highest 
number of business births within London and the tenth highest number of business 
deaths, consistently in line with Inner London averages. Despite a national downward 
trend from 2004 to 2008, Tower Hamlets is more enterprising in 2008 than it was in 
2004. While business deaths in the borough in 2009 increased faster than in London 
as a whole (by 45% compared to 35%), the rate of business births remained higher 
than the London average. These figures suggest that, even in challenging times, the 
borough economy is vibrant and enterprising. 

Levels of business starts within the borough are particularly high among the Black, 
Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) communities. The 2009 National Employer Skills 
Survey (NESS) shows that at least half the owners of, or partners in, Tower Hamlets 
businesses are BAME.  

Page 125



 

 16 

Enterprise Strategy: What’s Happening  

On a more cautionary note, self-employment figures for the borough are lower than 
the London average, and this is especially true for men, where the gap is 3.1 
percentage points. For every percentage point that Tower Hamlets moves closer to 
the London average, this would represent approximately 800 jobs. However, it should 
be noted that while nationally self-employment tends to be low skilled, within Tower 
Hamlets it is people with higher levels of skills and incomes that take this route. 

Overall, then, Tower Hamlets residents start businesses, and those businesses 
operate across a full range of sectors, sizes and turnovers. While the number of self-
employed people within the borough may be below the national average, the income 
and skill levels of those who are self-employed is far higher than average, meaning 
that self-employed residents are much more likely to be working in business services 
than lower skilled occupations. BAME enterprises are a particular source of vitality 
and the population is young4 and increasingly well educated in the borough. There is 
clear potential in Tower Hamlets and harnessing all of these factors will support a 
competitive local economy and stimulate economic and employment growth. 

 

 

 

                                                

4 64.5% of borough residents are aged from 16-49, compared to the London average of 
54.8%, or the national figure of 47% (ONS, Resident Population Estimates by Broad Age 
Band for the period June 2009) 

Key conclusions 

Enterprise is strong in Tower Hamlets and the economic picture is broadly 
positive. There has been a major and long-term shift towards financial services. 
Financial services help to fuel a cluster of other businesses, buying in services 
and supplies and spending money locally, including through their employees. This 
in turn creates opportunities for a broad range of business services. Functionally, 
Tower Hamlets is now part of the central London economy. 

These changes bring some tensions, as traditional sectors continue to decline, but 
new opportunities exist. Besides financial and business services, tourism, creative 
industries and knowledge-based industries are growth sectors which are not 
directly part of the financial and business services cluster and offer greater 
diversity. Tower Hamlets has a higher than average level of business starts, 
indicating that there are enterprising local people. 

Page 126



 

 17 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Who’s Who   

3. Who’s who in relation to Enterprise 

3.1 Stakeholders and Contributors to the Tower Hamlets Enterprise 

Economy 

Enterprise within Tower Hamlets is not homogenous. Although the economic context 
of Tower Hamlets is shared by all organisations in the borough, how it affects them 
can be very different. The businesses that work within the borough cover a broad 
spread of sectors, range in size from sole traders to large multinationals and require 
different means of support and accommodation by the borough in order to thrive. 
Understanding the differences between types of enterprises can help the Council and 
partners to shape appropriate responses. 

Similarly, there are a variety of other organisations that are stakeholders in the Tower 
Hamlets enterprise economy, from banks and enterprise support agencies to higher 
educational institutions and the third sector. All of these bodies have a stake in a 
successful Tower Hamlets and a role to play in supporting borough businesses. This 
section is intended as a framework for understanding the diversity of the current 
enterprise economy; it describes the roles and activities of enterprises, support 
organisations and of the Council with regards to the borough enterprise economy. 

3.2 Types of enterprise 

The table below suggests four main types of enterprise which are found in the 
borough, which are grouped together by characteristics such as size and market to 
help analysis, including the Council’s relationship with them. It should be noted that 
these categories are imperfect generalisations, designed primarily to help shape 
appropriate policies, and that there is some overlap between them. Categories 
attempt to combine the markets served, the perception of Tower Hamlets, and 
engagement needs by the Council and support agencies. 

 

Page 127



 

 18 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Who’s Who   

 

Table 3.1: Categories of business in the Tower Hamlets economy 

Categories of 
businesses 

Market served Why enterprises are located 
within Tower Hamlets 

Global financial 
services: big banks and 
other global financial 
services 

Worldwide Suitable locations in Canary Wharf 
and the City Fringe – these types of 
business require central locations in 
major world cities 

Business services 
enterprises: businesses 
which tend to cluster with 
the financial businesses – 
for example legal firms, 
data processing 
businesses, and 
businesses whose 
profitability largely 
depends on a central 
London location – for 
example, accountants, 
branding agencies and 
architects 

Enterprises 
across London 
and the UK, but 
especially those 
in Canary Wharf 
and the City 
Fringe 

Within easy reach of clients in the 
City, the City Fringe and Canary 
Wharf, Tower Hamlets is seen as a 
central London location, and 
commercial rent levels are 
somewhat lower than other parts of 
central London 

Local community-facing 
enterprises: businesses 
which directly provide 
goods and/or services to 
Tower Hamlets residents 

Local residents To be accessible to residents and 
communities within the borough – 
mostly located in town centres.  
Also includes many social 
enterprises. 

Traditional sectors: 
surviving businesses 
from prominent sectors 
of traditional importance 
in the Tower Hamlets 
enterprise economy 

Local, regional 
and sometimes 
international 
markets 

Often surviving businesses from 
old enterprise clusters in Tower 
Hamlets: for example 
clothing/fashion and storage; or 
sectors such as construction, 
attracted by continual 
development in the borough.  

 

Each of these four business categories will now be considered in turn: 

Global financial services 

Thanks to the development of Canary Wharf, Tower Hamlets acts as a significant 
extension to the financial hub of the City of London, and has consequently attracted a 
high number of multinational financial institutions. These businesses have worldwide 
markets and often highly specialised requirements, drawing staff from all over the 
world. In terms of advocacy and support, it is highly unlikely that the Council could 
provide effective support in safeguarding the competitive position of these 
businesses. Nonetheless, the Council’s role as regulator is important, at least as far 
as planning is concerned. Here the principle should be to “do no harm”, and, within 

Page 128



 

 19 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Who’s Who   

the planning strategic framework, to support the continued presence of banking and 
finance in Tower Hamlets. 

Considering the vital role that banks and financial institutions play in the borough’s 
enterprise economy, with the important clustering effect described in chapter 2, there 
is an important role the Council can play in representing the interests of these 
institutions to national Government. The views of the management of these 
businesses, along with all other local business views, should be sought to ensure 
that the Council is acting effectively as representative of the local enterprise economy 
in policy formation at different levels, with the London Mayor’s economic 
development policies being particularly significant. 

This Enterprise Strategy is concerned with the kind of benefit which local enterprises 
can provide, as much as the benefit which they can receive. Global financial 
businesses have a vital role as a potential supporter of local businesses. Their 
buying power for goods and services is comparable only to the Council and other 
large public agencies, and indeed this is one reason why business service 
enterprises are increasingly located in Tower Hamlets. Through Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) programmes, these large businesses can also take part in 
community-support activities such as encouraging their employees to act as business 
mentors. In this sense, it is hoped that global financial businesses can collaborate 
with the Council to provide effective support to the local enterprise economy. 

Another significant role that these enterprises can play in the borough economy is as 
employers of local residents. Although global financial businesses draw their 
workforce from a large area, the sheer number of employment opportunities provided 
by these businesses means that every effort should be made by the Council to 
encourage them to take on local people, and for the Council to support local 
residents in becoming ready to take on such employment. This is primarily dealt with 
in the Employment Strategy. 

Business services enterprises 

The business services sector is a highly significant part of the Tower Hamlets 
economy, with by far the largest number of enterprises and the second highest 
number of jobs in the borough. Although the category is a somewhat all-
encompassing designation, there are several common characteristics of many of 
these businesses, which are useful to draw out here. 

Within Tower Hamlets there are a range of business services enterprises that are 
attracted to the borough, either as part of the ‘cluster effect’ around the banks and 
financial intermediation businesses, or due to the borough’s location as part of the 
Central London Business District, or both. They provide a wide variety of different 
business activities: professional services, accountancy, advertising, recruitment, ICT, 
real estate, graphic design, and data businesses, to name but a few. These are 
businesses that have significant London-wide scope, but are drawn to the borough in 
part by the proximity of potential clients in Canary Wharf, the City Fringe and the City 
itself. Businesses in this category vary in size, but are much more likely to be Small- 
to Medium- sized Enterprises (SMEs) than those in the previous category. 

Thanks to the diverse nature of these businesses, growth within this category will 
lead to employment opportunities for local people that are much wider in scope than 
those provided by global businesses alone. Understanding and representing these 
sectors is therefore of particular importance given their increasing presence in Tower 

Page 129



 

 20 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Who’s Who   

Hamlets and the benefits which they can provide for local residents. Specifically, the 
Council can take a supporting role for businesses in these sectors by: 

• encouraging the increased development of a local procurement network in 
which businesses can engage as both purchasers and suppliers; 

• working to ensure a sufficient supply of flexible workspace for new and 
growing small businesses; 

• supporting the Government’s Tech City proposals as a way of developing a 
concentration of new businesses and networks in Tower Hamlets; and 

• coordinating business advice and support services. 

Local community-facing enterprises 

Although a significant body of businesses relate primarily to finance and business 
services, there remains a substantial proportion of enterprises that are based within 
Tower Hamlets because they provide services specifically to borough residents. This 
category consists primarily of retail firms, but will also include professions which 
support these businesses, such as small accountancy and legal firms, as well as 
services for residents, for example, mechanics and residential estate agents. 

Of all the categories used here, this one is in some ways of most direct use to local 
residents, providing a wide range of entry-level jobs along with necessities for 
purchase. Mostly SMEs, these businesses can benefit significantly from good 
business support services, and, since many are located in high streets, they benefit 
from Council policies specifically targeted at town centres. Successful support for 
such businesses will in turn support economically successful town centres, and 
therefore help achieve Town Centre Spatial Strategy objectives. 

Certain businesses in this category – the restaurants in Brick Lane, the shops in 
Bethnal Green Road and the Columbia Road flower market, for example – now draw 
people from all over London and are gaining a reputation as destinations for tourists. 
It is hoped that the Olympic and Paralympic Games will bring an increased focus on 
the East End which these businesses will be able to capitalise on. 

Businesses in traditional sectors 

Historically Tower Hamlets has been a largely industrial region, with the docks, 
warehouses and factories along the Thames and River Lea acting as the borough’s 
most significant employer. While there has been a pronounced transition away from 
these heavier industries within the last 50 years, there are still significant employers 
within the borough from these more traditional sectors. Storage, wholesale and 
distribution businesses were particularly prominent at a time when the docks 
operated in the borough, and the borough has also had a long association with 
clothing manufacture and fashion, linked to cloth import from the docks, and the 
exclusion of certain preparation processes from the City of London in past centuries. 

The defining characteristics of these businesses are a combination of historical 
location and, often, a requirement for a large footprint. Most of these enterprises do 
not specifically serve borough residents and businesses although some, like 
construction firms, sit within this category and are attracted by the continued high 
levels of development within the borough. 

Businesses within this category provide somewhere in the region of 10% of 
employment within the borough, and are therefore significant to the future of the 
borough economy. However, the dense nature of Tower Hamlets, combined with a 
shift to higher value economic activities, means that land values are high and set to 

Page 130



 

 21 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Who’s Who   

increase, which suggests that many of these firms will find it increasingly hard to 
remain competitive within the borough. 

While the Council values and desires to support all employers within the borough, 
there is a recognition that many traditional sectors are experiencing significant 
transition, which may include a need to relocate to areas with less financial pressure. 
The Council and its partners need to strike a balance between supporting significant 
local businesses and recognising that a prosperous future for the borough needs to 
recognise long-term changes in the nature of the economy and land use.  

3.3 Creating an environment for enterprise to prosper 

This Strategy is shaped by an understanding that some agencies including the public 
and third sectors have an important role to play in supporting enterprise and 
reinforcing its benefits for local people. The following types of organisation all have a 
role to play in creating a supportive environment for businesses within the borough. 
(Note: the words in italics in the diagram are examples of organisations in each 
category.) 

Fig 3.1 – The Business Support Environment 

 

Enterprise Support Agencies 

Enterprise support agencies operate at a variety of levels, including national, regional 
and local bodies. They are a valuable to enterprises at various stages of the business 
cycle, providing information, guidance, networking and sometimes avenues to 
financing. 

At the sub-regional level, there are two main enterprise support agencies operating 
within East London. These are:  

• The East London Small Business Centre (ELBSC): based in Brick Lane, this is 
the oldest surviving business support agency in the UK. It facilitates 300 new 
businesses starts, trains 1,000 people, and lends £2 million in funds to 
entrepreneurs each year across five east London boroughs: Tower Hamlets, 
Newham, Havering, Redbridge, and Barking and Dagenham. 

Page 131



 

 22 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Who’s Who   

 

• East London Business Place (ELBP) is a supply chain development 
programme allied to a contract brokerage service led by Canary Wharf Group plc 
and supported by the East London Business Alliance (ELBA). It provides a free 
matching and sourcing service, connecting buyers and suppliers to maximise 
local business benefit from new developments and commercial precincts in east 
London. In particular, ELBP has, since 2008, helped Tower Hamlets based SMEs 
secure almost £38m of business and has helped more than 350 Tower Hamlets 
SMEs reach ‘Fit-to-Supply’ status through flexible 1-2-1 and one-to-many support 
activities. 

 

ELBA, which operates across the sub-region, also runs a number of projects that are 
relevant to the local enterprise economy – notably in providing networking 
opportunities for local businesses and in facilitating a transfer of skills to social 
enterprises. 

There are also capable support services based within the borough. Non-statutory 
provision locally comprises small and medium sized third sector business support 
agencies, such as Account 3, the Bromley by Bow Centre (particularly for social 
enterprises), the Spitalfields Small Business Association and the Cultural Industries 
Development Agency, and the Tower Hamlets Cooperative Development Agency, to 
name but a few. These bodies have a significant role to play within the borough, 
although some are vulnerable to reductions funding.  

Business Networking Groups 

Business Networking Groups help the borough to put forward a strong enterprise 
voice and contribute to a better understanding of the support needs of businesses in 
different stages of the enterprise lifecycle. Some have a tighter local focus, such as 
Brick Lane Business Association or Docklands Business Club, whereas others like 
Business Junction cross borough boundaries. Linking businesses together provides 
opportunities for learning and collaboration, and cross-sector groups can help 
develop the borough internal market and even foster new areas of business. 

The Third Sector 

The third sector in Tower Hamlets is well established and has particular advantages 
in the delivery of certain types of services, including those which seek to promote 
enterprise among hard to reach groups. Many third sector organisations are 
committed to encouraging enterprise starts among residents as a means of 
overcoming poverty and deprivation. And many third sector organisations themselves 
are interested in adopting social enterprise models to help their service users and 
diversify their incomes. Some of these could be in a position to offer services to 
businesses and public sector agencies in Tower Hamlets. While it is acknowledged 
that there can be an element of caution in interactions between the private and third 
sectors, there are many significant opportunities for cooperation which would benefit 
the aims of both. 

Higher Education Institutions 

The borough’s higher education institutions have a critical role to play in driving a 
knowledge and innovation based enterprise economy in Tower Hamlets, through the 
generation of ideas and the provision of a skilled, highly-qualified workforce. There 
are two universities in Tower Hamlets: the whole of Queen Mary, University of 

Page 132



 

 23 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Who’s Who   

London, and part of London Metropolitan University. Both universities have seen a 
significant increase in research grants and private contracts in recent years, with 
research at Queen Mary now worth over £60m a year. 

In terms of enterprise development, knowledge transfer and innovations hubs, the 
Higher Education institutions have a very important role to play in fostering innovation 
among businesses and in the commercialisation of research. Among other business 
related activities, Queen Mary has three main initiatives which seek to engage with 
business in support of the knowledge economy. These are: 

• Queen Mary Innovation – provides a range of support to businesses 
including research collaborations, technology licensing, graduate placements 
and spin-out activities. 

• QUEDOS: Enterprise and Development Opportunities – offers 
professional development courses and opportunities for networking and 
engagement with likeminded individuals and businesses 

• ImpactQM – a knowledge transfer project aimed at creating a new generation 
of science and technology graduates, who are as at home in the world of 
business and enterprise as they are in science and technology 
 

While much of Queen Mary Innovation work over the next few years will be focused 
on biotechnology applications, a growing body of knowledge and innovation is in the 
interests of the whole borough economy, and links between borough businesses and 
higher education institutions should be encouraged. 

Banks 

Aside from being businesses in their own right, banks are vital to the functioning of 
business, as the basis for transactions and a source of finance. Banks provide local 
businesses with a useful source of enterprise advice, and may offer additional 
services to support businesses, as a means of helping their customers grow. As a 
home to many significant multinational financial institutions, Tower Hamlets has the 
opportunity to attract significant inward investment from the financial sector. Models 
of finance with social and community aspects should also be encouraged. 

3.4 The role of the council 

While the vast majority of businesses within Tower Hamlets operate largely 
independently of the Council, there are a number of functions the Council provide 
that influence the local enterprise economy. Some of these are more or less specific 
to the Council as a public, democratically accountable body with statutory 
responsibilities, whereas others are shared with other agencies. In all cases, the 
Council can discharge all these functions in a way which supports, or discourages, 
business activity. 

The Council’s main functions with regard to enterprise are: 

1. Representational: representing the local enterprise economy in public policy 

formation 

2. Procurement: ensuring that the Council as customer of goods and services 

acts in a way supportive of local enterprise and sets an example which other 

organisations are encouraged to emulate. 

3. Regulatory: using its regulatory responsibilities in a way which supports the 

local enterprise economy. Especially important is the Council’s role as 

Page 133



 

 24 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Who’s Who   

planner and building regulator. The Council’s planning strategies are of 

fundamental importance to how the enterprise economy develops. 

4. Information provider: providing information that is of use to local 

entrepreneurs and businesses, and to businesses which may relocate to the 

borough. Through its Enterprise Team, the Council is also in a good position 

to collect information about potential means of support for local enterprises, 

and to decide how this information is used and publicised for the benefit of 

Tower Hamlets enterprises. 

5. Partnership work: facilitating joint working between agencies to provide 

practical support to local enterprise, and ensuring that joint working leads to 

effective results. 

6. Asset provider and manager: using physical assets such as office 

accommodation to support local business development. Letting out surplus 

office space or arranging for office facilities for start up businesses is one way 

to provide a good setting for business. 

Overall, therefore, the Council can bring significant additional resources to bear in 
order to implement the Strategy. This includes negotiations with developers in order 
for them to provide flexible workspaces for SMEs; ensuring the Council’s 
procurement strategy maximises opportunities for local businesses; or enhancing the 
quality of the borough’s town centres and markets.  

 

 

 

Key messages 

There are different types of business which have different characteristics and 
therefore require different responses from an enterprise strategy. Four types of 
business are outlined. Within Tower Hamlets there are also services which exist to 
support enterprise, for instance through providing finance and advice, and this 
includes a particular role for the Council. Generally speaking, the borough and 
partners have a greater role to play in supporting enterprises which are more locally 
focused in terms of the markets they serve and/or the people they employ. 

Page 134



 

 25 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

4. Challenges 

Whilst there is much vitality in Tower Hamlets’ economy, there are significant 
challenges to its ongoing success and diversity, and residents’ involvement in it. This 
section sets out five problems facing the borough’s enterprise economy which also 
affect residents and need to be addressed by this strategy. These five, considered in 
turn below, are: 

1. The skills gap between residents and borough businesses 
2. Relatively low rate of self employment 
3. Limited resources for business 
4. Underperforming town centres 
5. Lack of suitable workspace for small businesses 

The Council and partners need to understand and respond to these issues for the 
benefit of borough businesses, both new and established, as well as local residents. 

4.1 The Skills Gap – Residents and Borough Businesses 

As noted above, Tower Hamlets has the fifth highest job density in London but the 
majority of jobs are filled by people from outside the borough. Although this large net 
inflow of workers is unsurprising given the scale of economic development in the 
borough, it is of concern that many residents remain excluded from the benefits of 
economic change and growth. 

Skills, qualifications and the struggle to compete 

This local employment gap reflects a mismatch between residents’ skills and the jobs 
available in the borough5. Although barriers to work tend to be multiple and complex, 
skills are a key predictor. A quarter of borough residents – twice the London average 
– have no qualifications and over 40% of these are not in work. In contrast, a third of 
residents are qualified to degree level or above, which is consistent with the London 
average. With fewer residents at intermediate skill levels than is typical for London, 
there is thus a polarisation of skill levels within the borough. Borough residents at 
lower skills levels are significantly less likely to be in employment than the London 
average. 

A similar polarisation exists in the borough’s jobs market. There are high numbers of 
entry-level jobs and a relatively high number of extremely well paid jobs, but 
opportunities for progression between these are limited. The borough’s Employment 
Strategy explicitly aims to increase the employment rate in Tower Hamlets so that it 
converges with the London average. Plans are in place to help with the supply side of 
labour, but the demand side of enterprise can also be part of the solution. 

Business needs a broad spectrum of skills 

The borough’s low skills level also impacts businesses. Residents’ exclusion from the 
labour market limits their spending power, which in turn reduces further the potential 
for growth and employment of those businesses that serve a local market. 

                                                
5
 The Employment Strategy provides a much fuller treatment of this point. 

Page 135



 

 26 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

More broadly, businesses require a diverse range of skills to meet positions at 
different levels. This varies depending on the sector, but it is clear that a lack of basic 
skills in the local labour market is limiting the capacity of smaller businesses, in 
particular, to access the skills they require. In a survey conducted as part of the LEA, 
about a fifth of businesses reported recruitment difficulties, with the common barriers 
being identified including language, a lack of basic skills, and shortage of higher-
skilled workers. Whilst, by extension, many businesses do not struggle to recruit, 
there are nonetheless clear indications that the skills gap impairs the business 
environment and disadvantages residents. 

These findings are reinforced by the 2009 National Employer Skills Survey for 
England. This reported that, where employers in Tower Hamlets do have difficulties 
filling vacancies, nearly all (95%) state that this is because of skill shortages rather 
than other reasons. This compares with the London average of 86% and 76% across 
England. Again, the principal issues identified were language barriers, a lack of basic 
skills, and a shortage of higher-qualified workers. This suggests that in addition to the 
difficulties of firms in attracting individuals with very specific skills, there is a more 
fundamental issue in the middle of the labour market, where jobs which would 
typically be filled by local residents are not being filled, due to the lack of basic and 
intermediate skills among the resident population. 

 

 

The role of the Enterprise strategy 

The evidence above presents two related issues: 

• the borough’s skills gap, with a high proportion of local residents lacking 
even basic skills 

• the predominance of job opportunities that are either at entry level or 
require a very high level of skills – with relatively little in between. 

Tackling both these issues will have benefits for both businesses and residents. 
The Employment strategy suggests how the Council and its partners can improve 
residents’ access to jobs by raising their skills levels. The challenge for this 
Strategy is to support enterprise, encourage growth and support a diverse, 
sustainable business base that generates employment within the borough and 
that local people can access. 

Page 136



 

 27 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

4.2 Relatively Low Rate of Self-employment 

Self-employment should be treated with some caution as an indicator of 
entrepreneurialism. The LEA makes a distinction between “enterprising individuals” 
who start self-employed and grow a company, and the many people who become 
self-employed simply because it is their best option when they fail to find a 
conventional job. The former category may go on to generate jobs and wealth and 
therefore create a wider economic benefit. The latter, the LEA argues, may add 
relatively little in terms of wealth creation to the wider economy, but in ceasing to 
receive benefits and starting to pay taxes, there is a clear social value and cost 
savings for the state. This is of particular relevance for Tower Hamlets, where 
unemployment rates are relatively high. 

Self-employment in Tower Hamlets: strengths and weaknesses 

Currently, self-employment rates in Tower Hamlets are lower than the London 
average. In 2010 9% of the working age population in the borough, or 16,400 people, 
were self-employed, compared with 10.6% across London6. But as figure 3.1 shows, 
this represents a significant increase in the borough over the last five years – the 
equivalent figure for Tower Hamlets in 2006 was 5.5% – in a period when the London 
rate has remained stable. 

Figure 4.1 – Percentage of working-age population who are self 

employed 

Tower Hamlets 

London 

 

 

A much larger gap exists between the male self-employment rate for the borough 
and that for London as a whole. In 2010 11.5% of men aged 16-64 were self-
employed in the borough (10,900 people), as against 14.6% across London. The 
male self-employment rate has also risen more slowly than the whole borough 
working age population: between 2006 and 2010, while the borough rate grew by 
nearly two thirds the increase in the male rate was only 40%. 

By contrast the female self-employment rate in the borough was in 2010 almost the 
same as for London (6.4% in Tower Hamlets against 6.5% in London). The rate has 

                                                
6
 All self employment data from ONS Annual Population Survey, for 2010 unless specified.  

Page 137



 

 28 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

increased rapidly over the last five years, more than doubling from 2.7% in 2006. 
Interestingly, the figures for women in employment who are self-employed (as distinct 
from a percentage of the wider 16-64 population) are rather higher in Tower Hamlets, 
at 13.4%, than the London-wide figure of 11.2%. 

The picture painted by the evidence is therefore mixed. On the one hand, self-
employment appears to be underperforming in Tower Hamlets, in terms of its 
contribution to the borough’s enterprise economy and specifically in its contribution to 
employment. For example, the above data suggests that had the 2010 self-
employment rate in Tower Hamlets matched the London-wide level, an additional 
2,900 people would have been self-employed. On the other, there has been a 
significant increase in self-employment rates in the borough in recent years, 
particularly among women, and female self-employment rates are relatively strong.  

 

 

The role of the Enterprise strategy 

The evidence suggests some clear strengths and weaknesses in relation to self-
employment in the Tower Hamlets. The challenge is for the Council and business 
support agencies to target provision in a way that tackles the identified 
weaknesses while building on the strengths. This should aim to maximise the 
contribution in tackling unemployment, but also to ensure support for 
entrepreneurs to make the transition from self-employed sole trader to a larger 
business. This will require some more detailed analysis in order to build a fuller 
picture of the factors underlying this data– as well as variations between different 
groups, for example by gender and ethnicity. 

Page 138



 

 29 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

4.3 Limited Resources for Business 

Businesses can benefit from a wide range of support and resources at different 
points in their lifetime. This can include start-up, working and development capital, 
expert advice and mentoring, premises to operate from, legal and accountancy 
services, access to different supply chains, protection for their ideas and 
opportunities to scale up the scope of their activities. Advice and guidance are also 
important, especially in terms of regulations, accessing new markets and 
employment issues. These needs are of particular relevance to entrepreneurs, start-
ups, SMEs and businesses seeking investment.  

Enterprise support services are available at national, regional and local level. 
Although the quality of enterprise services is sometimes very good, the coverage of 
services available is patchy, and the situation is getting worse. 

Reducing enterprise support 

The national and London-wide picture is one of a general retrenchment of publicly-
funded business support at a time of financial stringency. The Department of 
Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS) is in the process of streamlining the provision of 
Enterprise and Business Support services. Business Link is moving to a web- and 
telephone- based resource, at a time when support agencies in the borough have 
stressed the importance of face-to-face contact. 

As with national provision, recent funding cuts have also adversely affected ELSBC 
and ELBP, forcing them to re-examine their roles and functions. Furthermore, despite 
the presence of capable support services based in the borough7, many from the third 
sector, have come under strain as a result of public sector cuts and increased 
competition for funding.  

Restricted finance for business 

A significant barrier to new business opportunities within the borough continues to be 
the perceived restriction on business finance, especially for small businesses.  

In principle, a large range of institutions could provide finance of different sorts for 
enterprise in Tower Hamlets. Commercial banks are one source, but in spite of 
pressure on banks from the government and the Bank of England, credit is still 
reported as being a major challenge for smaller businesses and start-ups. Other 
lenders include community development finance institutions (CDFIs) such as credit 
unions and microfinance, and equity investors. 

There have also been sources of community funding within the borough, including a 
social venture capital fund and microfinance arrangement implemented by Planet 
Finance in 2008. More recently, the East London Small Business Centre and the 
GLA-funded Gateway to Finance project have made £500k available in loans to 
Tower Hamlets businesses. Whilst these are positive initiatives, they are not likely to 
be sufficient to meet demand from local business. 

Tower Hamlets residents can also face particular difficulties in accessing start-up 
finance. High levels of economic exclusion mean that residents have low levels of 
income and assets, and can struggle to access debt finance through traditional 

                                                
7
 such as Account 3, the Bromley by Bow Centre (particularly for social enterprises), the 

Spitalfields Small Business Association and the Cultural Industries Development Agency 

Page 139



 

 30 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

means. Informal sources, primarily friends and family, may provide an alternative 
means of finance and it has been suggested that this is particularly prevalent among 
the Black and Minority Ethnic communities. But this option will not be available to 
everyone. Making finance available in sufficient quantity on suitable terms, combined 
with advice to help entrepreneurs deploy it well, could significantly improve the 
environment for new and existing businesses. Conversely, the absence or weakness 
of these factors is a significant source of concern. 

 

 

The role of the Enterprise strategy 

Business support provision is under increasing threat, owing to funding reductions 
and uncertainty about future funding. It cannot be assumed that comprehensive, 
publicly funded business support services will continue to be available at a 
national or London-wide level. And while sub-regionally there are clearly valuable 
initiatives and critical partners, these services have finite resources and are 
probably not sufficient to fully meet local needs. 

In addition, there are signs that the sources of finance for enterprise in Tower 
Hamlets may be limited, and constraining business operation and expansion. 
Work needs to be done to fully understand the current picture and plan 
accordingly. 

Consequently, it is more important than ever to ensure that the scale and nature 
of business requirements – in terms of both support and access to finance – are 
clearly understood, so that scarce resources can be targeted in the most efficient 
way to fill gaps in provision and avoid duplication. This Strategy can help to 
provide a framework for the coordination between the Council and local and sub-
regional providers that such an approach will require. 

Page 140



 

 31 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

4.4 Underperforming Town Centres 

Tower Hamlets’ town centres have a significant contribution to make to the borough’s 
economic development and regeneration. Typical town centre uses, particularly in 
the retail sector, can be more resilient to economic downturns, and generate flexible 
local jobs that are appropriate for a range of skills levels. Town centres could also 
provide smaller office space, which is in short supply in the borough. 

Achieving critical mass? 

Historically, rapid industrialisation in East London led to the absorption of the small 
hamlets to the east of the City, explaining why there is a distinct lack of definable 
quality town centres in the borough. This history, combined with the post-war slum 
clearances and construction of social housing estates, has meant that the borough 
has remained fragmented, with few town centres achieving critical mass.  

As a consequence, the borough has a very limited provision of retail and smaller 
office space. This, in turn, makes Tower Hamlets a less attractive location for new, 
growing or relocating enterprises. It also means that spending in the local economy 
generated by increased population levels is not being capitalised upon and job 
creation is not optimised. 

Figure 4.2 – Town Centre Employment by Service Sector  

 

Source: IDBR, 2009 / NLP analysis 

This point is borne out by evidence in the LEA, which demonstrates the variation in 
economic performance between the borough’s town centres (see fig 4.2 above). Jobs 
in the borough are highly concentrated in just two locations, with around 75,000 jobs 
located in Canary Wharf major centre and 27,000 in the City Fringe. By contrast, the 
borough’s nine district centres combined provide about 21,000 jobs – less than a 
third of the number in Canary Wharf. Of those, almost 70% are in two district centres 

Page 141



 

 32 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

in the west of the borough, Whitechapel and Brick Lane. Whitechapel in particular 
has potential for regeneration, and with the recent opening of the East London Line 
and Crossrail to come, it is likely to experience an increased flow of people. The 
opportunity this creates is significant, especially combined with the move of the Royal 
London to the new hospital and the ensuing opportunity for regeneration in the area. 
Ensuring that development is appropriate to the needs of smaller business, residents 
and in-commuters, as well as larger enterprises is fundamental to the area 
succeeding as a town centre. 

 

 

The role of the Enterprise strategy 

Town centres are vital in making opportunities in the local enterprise economy 
accessible to local people. But while Canary Wharf is home to the UK’s second 
largest business district, as well as a major shopping centre, other local town 
centres face particular challenges. Improving the performance of the borough’s 
town centres has the potential to retain more spending locally, support a more 
diverse economy in Tower Hamlets, and increase the number and range of jobs 
available to residents. 

The Town Centre Spatial Strategy sets out a vision for the development of the 
borough’s town centres over the next 15 years. There are two key ways in which 
the Enterprise Strategy can support the delivery of this vision, and help bring 
about the revitalisation of the borough’s town centres – and in turn support a 
healthier and more diverse enterprise economy in Tower Hamlets. 

The first, as part of the Council’s role in coordinating business support services, is 
to ensure that provision meets the needs of existing town centre businesses – 
particularly in sectors such as retail, which provide a range of jobs for local 
people. The second is in encouraging a wider range of businesses, particularly 
SMEs, to locate in the borough’s town centres and thereby to reinforce local town 
centre economies. This is partly about promoting the development of smaller 
office space in these locations, which is discussed in the next section. 

Page 142



 

 33 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

4.5 Lack of Suitable Workspace for Small Businesses 

Tower Hamlets, at only 8 square miles, is a small, densely populated area that 
experiences significant demand for space use, and consequently high land values. 
These pressures have resulted in significant high-density development and 
competition between uses for available land. The pattern of high-density 
development within the borough, characterised by residential and commercial towers, 
leaves little appropriate or affordable space for smaller businesses. 

Changing employment spaces 

With an 80% growth in office floorspace and a marked reduction in factories and 
warehouses within the borough (see section on “What’s happening”, above), the 
demand from higher value uses is likely to see this pattern of land use change 
continue for the foreseeable future. 

Figure 4.3 (below) shows that different types of commercial floorspace are spatially 
concentrated. Retail and commercial is dominant around Canary Wharf and the City 
Fringe, with what factory and warehouse space remains being clustered at the 
Eastern edge of the borough.  

Figure 4.3 – Spatial Distribution of Commercial Floorspace, by Ward 

 

Source: Valuation Office Agency/NLP analysis 

 

This concentration of retail and office space in relatively few parts of the borough 
limits the distribution of SMEs and start-ups and may mean that the borough is failing 
to maximise its local employment potential. At the same time, the decline of factory 
and warehouse space is likely to free up spaces for alternative uses and the borough 
needs to factor in the demand for commercial space, rather than focusing solely on 
housing and large floorplate offices. 

Page 143



 

 34 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

Demand for flexible premises 

Both the quality and quantity of premises for small firms and start-ups within the 
borough is low. Canary Wharf and the City Fringe are amongst London’s major office 
markets, where the available premises meet the requirement of larger firms. The rest 
of the borough does not pick up this slack and the provision of appropriate smaller 
office spaces is highly limited.  

The business survey undertaken for the LEA identified premises, along with good 
public transport links and proximity to customers, as the most important factors for 
doing business within Tower Hamlets. Current sites and premises were generally 
viewed as “fit for purpose”, although more affordable business premises were 
identified as one of two factors that would enhance business prospects in the 
borough. Most demand was indicated in the survey for premises up to 1,000m2. 

In terms of smaller spaces, the LEA shows that although there is strong demand for 
B18 units under 100m2, they currently form under 2% of supply. The majority of 
available office space under 100m2 appears to be located in the City Fringe, which 
attracts smaller businesses, followed by the Isle of Dogs, with a lack of provision in 
the rest of the borough. Suitable flexible and affordable workspace is therefore 
required in all parts of the borough, including the Central Area. 

A significant minority (20%) of future growth in the borough is anticipated to be in 
micro or small enterprises (with small enterprises employing up to 49 people). If 
future supply of employment spaces continues recent trends, there will be a 
significant over-focus on large floorplate office developments, with limited provision of 
suitable workspace for micro and small enterprises. Meanwhile, trend data9 shows 
that SMEs’ requirements for space will be higher in 2020 than in 2010. This includes 
growth linked to the financial and business services cluster10 and reflects the 
increasing importance of smaller businesses in the Tower Hamlets enterprise 
economy. Tower Hamlets SMEs have a propensity to higher year-on-year growth 
(source: NOMIS) than equivalent enterprises in London as a whole, emphasising the 
need for flexibility in the provision of business space.  

In the absence of intervention small businesses in growth sectors may be forced out 
of Tower Hamlets to seek more suitable premises elsewhere. There is thus a need to 
safeguard and provide appropriate premises for SMEs through the planning system.  

 

                                                
8
 B1 classification includes non-financial service offices, light industrial and R&D functions, for 

spaces up to 235m
2
. 

9
 Five Host Boroughs Strategic Regeneration Framework – Economic Model: Baseline Report 

(Oxford Economics, March 2010) – “Baseline Report” 

10
 The additional employees in these two sectors employed in micro and small businesses will 

require almost 23% of additional office space in future years. 

Page 144



 

 35 

 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Challenges   

 

The role of the Enterprise strategy 

There is a shortage of supply of workspace for SMEs in Tower Hamlets, which 
risks pushing business start-ups and growing businesses out of the borough. 
These enterprises are vital for the strength of the local enterprise economy and 
could provide substantial employment opportunities to local people. Overcoming 
problems in the supply and availability of workspace suitable for small businesses 
is a crucial point for this Strategy. 

Not only would a supply of flexible workspace support small and growing 
businesses, but, as discussed above, if such workspaces were to be situated in 
parts of Tower Hamlets other than Canary Wharf and the City Fringe, they could 
support the commercial viability of town centres in the borough. This Strategy can 
help to address this issue by promoting the development of appropriate 
workspace, particularly in town centres. 

Page 145



 

 36 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

5. Objectives 

Summary 

This section sets out detailed priorities for intervention to address the issues identified in 
the Problems section. Each of the strategic objectives here is based on the analysis 
shown in the previous chapters and are focused on meeting the overall aim of this 
Enterprise Strategy, which is to: 

Encourage and support enterprise and entrepreneurial activity to increase 
opportunity, prosperity and mobility in Tower Hamlets. 

Meeting this aim is a priority for both the Council and its partners, and will be achieved 
through the following three objectives: 

1 Support the establishment, growth and development of SMEs 
2 Provide an environment that supports a thriving and diverse economic base 
3 Support the borough’s enterprise economy by communicating local needs and wishes 

to influence a variety of audiences 
 

Intermediate objectives have been developed for each objective to show how each 
objective is to be achieved, as shown in the diagram below. These are explained in the 
following sections. 

Figure 5.1 – Outline of Aim and Objectives 

 

Actions will be assigned to each objective as part of the annual Enterprise Action Plan, 
which is provided as a separate document. 

Page 146



 

 37 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

 

Objective 1: Support the establishment, growth and development of Small 

and Medium Enterprises 

The success of the Tower Hamlets economy is rooted in the success of individual borough 
businesses. This strategic objective will help ensure that Small and Medium Enterprises 
(SMEs) can capitalise on the opportunities provided by the wider economy. Providing 
access to information and finance for borough entrepreneurs, especially those whose work 
has a clear social benefit, will also strengthen new and existing enterprises, which in turn 
add to the diversity of businesses in Tower Hamlets. Their growth prospects will be further 
enhanced by encouraging local procurement (as well as local labour on the part of 
developers) and recognising and encouraging the Corporate Social Responsibility 
activities of larger businesses. 

 

Problems met • Limited resources for business, including support services 
and funding 

• Low levels of self employment 
 

Role of the Council • Procure locally, including through the Supply Tower 
Hamlets programme and its broader procurement policies 

• Support local enterprises’ access to private and public 
supply chains 

• Provide and promote information to business owners 
who potentially wish to open or relocate a business in 
Tower Hamlets 

• Ensure that regulatory services are helpful 

• Facilitate joint working between agencies to provide 
practical support 

• Broker relationships with business support services 
 

Principal benefits • Supported SMEs and social enterprises have better 
growth prospects. This will make the local economy more 
resilient and sustainable. 

• Local businesses are more likely to employ local labour 
and, where local sub contractors are appointed, they 
spend more in the local economy.  

• The amount of travel involved within the borough is 
reduced, increasing the overall sustainability of operations 
and physical development. Appointing suitable local sub-
contractors can provide organisations with operational 
advantages, as well as contributing to the objectives of 
the Community Plan. 

• A range of support services can help firms to establish 
themselves in the borough, grow and innovate, which in 
turn will create jobs.  
 

 

Page 147



 

 38 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

Intermediate objectives: 

 

1.1 Co-ordinate and strengthen enterprise support services and access to finance 
It is critical that businesses have information about and access to the right mix of 
support services. This requires attention to: 

• Build supply chain capacity so that local businesses can supply through 

procurement processes.  

• Develop and maintain an effective network of business support agencies to 

strengthen and co-ordinate provision – this may include mapping out the range of 

services on offer and signposting new or existing businesses to support agencies. 

This will not only help businesses access the services they need more efficiently, it 

will also help to shine a light on gaps or overlaps in the provision of key enterprise 

support services. 

• Improve access to advice on debt, equity and new forms of finance, particularly for 

groups who may be excluded from traditional forms of finance– the current 

economic climate is challenging, but there are still options available which will help 

new and existing businesses to grow and develop. 

The contribution of local support services11 will be critical to the achieving this strategic 
objective. Establishing a pilot network group to provide peer support for start-ups will be an 
early task within this strategic objective. 

 
1.2 Work with large organisations and business to harness their resources for the 

benefit of SMEs 

Large organisations in the private and public sectors are in an influential position when it 
comes to awarding contracts, so encouraging them to procure locally, including from social 
enterprises, is a valuable means of recycling money within the local economy. With an 
increasing global focus on sustainable development and local sourcing of goods and 
services where economical, as well as Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policies, 
there is a good opportunity to enhance links between the borough’s many large firms, the 
Council and other public sector agencies, with the plethora of smaller enterprises. Under 
this intermediate objective, the actions are to: 

• Establish relations with major corporate bodies to identify and develop 

opportunities for mentoring, collaboration and partnership working with the 

borough’s large businesses. 

• Ensure that the Council procures locally within the regulatory framework. The 

Council’s Procurement Strategy refers to the need to ensure that the Council’s 

social objectives – including support for local businesses - are promoted through its 

procurement, and states that 36% of the Council’s annual expenditure on goods 

                                                
11

 Including the East London Small Business Centre, the East London Business Alliance, East 
London Business Place, Account3, Spitalfields Small Business Association, CIDA, the Bromley-by-
Bow Centre and Tower Hamlets Cooperative Development Agency 

Page 148



 

 39 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

and services is contracted with businesses located in Tower Hamlets12. The 

Council wants to build on this strong base. 

• Ensure that developers in Tower Hamlets commit to procuring locally. For all major 

developments, the Council will seek to secure 20% of the total value of contracts 

for goods and services during the construction phase to be procured from firms 

located within the Borough. This should be achieved within competition law, and in 

cooperation with Council nominated organisations such as Construction Line and 

ELBP. 

• Maximise supply chain and contracting opportunities for Tower Hamlets SMEs 

arising from the large public and private sector organisations in the borough. 

 
1.3  Support social enterprise 

As local businesses which tend to distribute their profits locally and reinvest them to 
achieve social objectives, social enterprises are particularly important. Under this 
measure, the Enterprise Team will: 

 

• Map funding sources beyond the mainstream, including microfinance, CDFIs, and 

Big Society Capital. In future, this may include exploring the potential for links with 

Canary Wharf and the City Fringe. 

• Ensure that business support services meet the specific needs of social 

enterprises, including legal structures and transparency, with particular reference  

to social enterprises which support the employment and entrepreneurial aspirations 

of residents in hard-to-reach groups 

• Target social enterprises for procurement support activity 

The Council also wishes to encourage existing initiatives, such as the work of the East 
London Small Business Centre in conjunction with the Community Development Finance 
Association, identifying capital to underpin local business loans. 

 

                                                
12

 Corporate Procurement Strategy 2009 – 2011 

Page 149



 

 40 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

 

OBJECTIVE 2: Provide an environment that supports a thriving and 

diverse economic base 

Suitable premises – particularly for smaller business – in desirable locations, which 
includes Tower Hamlets’ town centres, are crucial to making the physical environment 
attractive to businesses. In addition, since businesses want capable people, fostering an 
entrepreneurial culture will help local residents achieve increasing success in making a 
living through employment, regardless of whether they set up their own business. And 
innovation, particularly through Tower Hamlets’ universities, creates an environment 
where new possibilities offer potential commercial returns. The combination of these 
factors will make for a diverse and thriving business context, connected to the boroughs 
students and long-term residents. 
 

Problems met • Underperforming town centres 

• Lack of suitable workspace for small businesses 

• Skills gap between residents and borough businesses 

• Relatively low rate of self-employment 
 

Role of the Council • Provide information relevant for local businesses - 
Collecting feedback from local enterprises can help 
develop services which businesses themselves see as a 
priority. 

• Utilise regulatory services – especially licensing, food 
safety and environmental health – in a helpful manner to 
small businesses and start-ups. 

• Use physical assets (eg office accommodation) to support 
local enterprises, especially where they starting out 

• Work through planning policy to foster appropriate 
spaces and places for businesses 
 

Principal benefits • Providing suitable premises for the significant minority of 
enterprises with less than 50 employees will ensure that 
they are attracted to and remain in the borough. 

• An improved enterprise infrastructure strengthens local 
economic activity, which in turn creates more vibrant and 
attractive places, to the benefit of local residents 

• Residents of Tower Hamlets will be more likely to start 
businesses and will learn transferable skills from their 
exposure to enterprise 
 

 

 

Page 150



 

 41 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

 

Intermediate objectives: 

 

2.1 Secure premises to support business growth  

While much recent growth in enterprises has concentrated on large companies with very 
large floorplate requirements, 20% of future growth is anticipated to be in micro or small 
enterprises (up to 49 people). Enterprises which would otherwise be located in Tower 
Hamlets will be forced to move from the borough if suitable workplaces are not available. 
Accordingly, the Council will use the planning process to secure the provision of flexible 
workspace within commercial developments, to mitigate the loss of such space through 
the development process, and to support new and existing SMEs in the borough 

 

2.2 Ensure the physical environment, including town centres, is suitable for a range 
of businesses 

Many of Tower Hamlets’ town centres lack the scale and vitality to perform their role 
adequately for the communities and enterprises they support. This risks significant local 
spend being diverted from the local economy. The Council will: 

• Ensure that enterprise considerations are at the heart of town centre regeneration, 

including at Whitechapel. It has an excellent transport infrastructure and could 

develop as an even stronger district centre with a diverse local economy 

• Help to implement the Town Centre Spatial Strategy by encouraging initiatives 
which will develop the local enterprise economy. There may also be potential to 
use the Street Markets Strategy to improve the quality of the borough’s markets, 
thus contributing to the vitality of town centre environments. 

• work to better coordinate investment in town centres and to support the 
development of town centres with a balanced mix of uses; 

 

2.3 Encourage an entrepreneurial spirit and a culture of innovation 

Developing a culture of innovation is a key goal for this Strategy.  

• Work with schools to encourage understanding and experience of 

entrepreneurship among young people. This could involve support for Your 

Enterprise initiatives. 

• Work with higher education institutions to identify commercial opportunities linked 

to their academic expertise. This could lead to knowledge transfer, the 

establishment of new networks and support for spin-out companies. 

There is also an important role for partner agencies and business groups here, as well as 

charities such as the Prince’s Trust. 

Page 151



 

 42 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

 

Objective 3: Supporting the borough’s enterprise economy by 

communicating local needs and wishes to influence a variety of audiences 

Tower Hamlets is a great location for enterprise, as evidenced by the rapid development of 
Canary Wharf and the City Fringe, but it is one location in a competitive national and 
international context. A combination of active promotion of the borough’s benefits, rigorous 
campaigning to ensure that these are maintained and improved, and active listening to 
stay abreast of the opinions of local businesses will ensure that the borough remains an 
attractive and competitive enterprise destination for generations to come.  

 

Problems met • Limited resources for business, including support services 
and funding 
 

Role of the Council • Represent the enterprise interests of the borough 

• Compete aggressively for available public sector 
investment 

• Influence policies which affect enterprise at a London 
wide and national level 

• Facilitate an entrepreneurial culture across sectors – 
sharing experience of involvement in enterprise activity, 
however small in scale, can help people become more 
effective employees and citizens as well as business 
owners 
 

Principal benefits • Success in achieving these aims will demonstrate that 
Tower Hamlets is an excellent place for business in 
London.  

• Links between borough businesses will help develop a 
vibrant and inter-dependent local economy.   

• A coordinated ‘voice’ for the borough increases the 
likelihood of attracting funding, capital projects and 
positive legislative changes.  
 

 

Page 152



 

 43 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

 

Intermediate objectives 

3.1 Develop Tower Hamlets’ enterprise voice 

A key step in representing the interests of enterprise will be to develop the clarity of the 
borough’s local enterprise ‘voice’. The borough’s business successes need to be 
championed and requirements articulated. The Council will: 

• Set up a pan Tower Hamlets business forum to represent the views of SMEs 

• Ensure that the voice of local business is heard by government at local, regional 

and national levels 

• Ensure that the Council’s planning and regulatory functions take into account the 

needs of local enterprises 

 

3.2 Influence the policy context to support and maintain a diverse and sustainable 
economy 

The Council and its partners have an important role to play in promoting the borough, 
protecting its interests, influencing nationally and regionally and in ensuring that the policy 
framework supports borough business and enterprise. The Council will work closely with 
businesses, business groups, and with sub-regional partners to achieve the maximum 
positive impact of national policy changes. Actions and work streams will cover: 

• Research into the ownership of local enterprises and patterns of self employment 

across the equalities strands, including issues identified within the Strategy such as 

variations in levels of self-employment between men and women. Research should 

examine their relative degrees of success, income and trends of growth or 

contraction 

• Position Tower Hamlets to take advantage of policy changes, working with its 
partners to enhance the borough’s lobbying capability and promote the borough’s 
interests to ensure that Tower Hamlets has a strong voice in new and emerging 
structures and initiatives such as the pan-London Enterprise Partnership, the Host 
Boroughs’ Strategic Regeneration Framework driving the convergence agenda, 
and the Government’s proposed Tech City initiative in east London. 

• Compete aggressively for available public sector investment - competition for 

public investment is likely to be fierce in coming years and the Council will need to 

work with partners to target funding and aggressively make the case for investment 

in the borough at regional national and European levels. 

The Council and its partners have an important role to play in bringing partners together to 

maximise investment in enterprise support services in the borough. 

 

3.3 Promote Tower Hamlets as a location for investment and enterprise 

It is important that opportunities for marketing and destination branding, including the 
established Curry Capital 2012 brand, are maintained and built upon, in order to support 
existing SMEs, maintain the borough’s existing strengths as a location of choice for 

Page 153



 

 44 

Enterprise Strategy: Objectives  

financial and business services, and encourage diversification through investment from 
growth sectors such as creative and knowledge-based industries. Promoting Tower 
Hamlets as a location for inward investment, tourism and leisure, particularly in the run-up 
to the Olympics, will involve work with businesses and partners to provide a more focused 
approach to destination marketing. Initially, the Council will: 

• Develop a marketing plan to promote the borough in line with the intermediate 

objective, highlighting its enterprise successes and its suitability for growth sectors 

 
 

 

Page 154



 

 

Enterprise Strategy: Glossary  
 

Glossary 

CDFIs Community Development Finance Institutions 

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility 

ELBA East London Business Alliance 

ELBP East London Business Place 

ELSBC East London Small Business Centre 

JSA Jobseekers’ Allowance 

LDA London Development Agency 

LEP Local Enterprise Partnership 

SMEs Small and Medium Enterprises 

TCSS Town Centre Spatial Strategy 

 

Page 155



Page 156

This page is intentionally left blank



 

T
o

w
e

r
 H

a
m

le
ts

 E
n

te
r

p
r

is
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

 

In
d

ic
a

ti
v

e
 S

h
o

r
t 

T
e

r
m

 A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
 

         

Page 157



 

2
 

 E
n

te
r

p
ri

s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

 I
n

d
ic

a
ti

v
e

 S
h

o
r

t 
T

e
r

m
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

 In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

 T
h
is

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 s

it
s
 a

s
 a

n
 a

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 t
o
 t
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
T

h
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
is

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 i
s
 a

n
 

a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
im

e
n
t,
 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
to

 b
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

a
s
t 

d
e
c
a
d
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 h

a
s
 h

a
d
 t

o
 g

iv
e

 d
u
e
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o
 t
h
e
 [

lim
it
e
d
] 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

E
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 A

c
ti
v
it
y
 e

s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 a

s
 t

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 b
e
e
n
 n

o
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
T

h
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

v
ie

w
 i
n
to

 S
M

E
 G

ro
w

th
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

in
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 

 
 G

iv
e
n
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
fo

r 
m

a
n
y
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
is

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
s
 t
w

o
 t

y
p
e
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n
 b

e
 c

la
s
s
if
ie

d
 a

s
 d

o
in

g
 

a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
. 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 t
h
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
a
m

-l
in

e
d
 i
n
to

 a
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

th
a
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

, 
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

in
 t
u
rn

 e
n
a
b
lin

g
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 m

o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 g

o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 
It
 i
s
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

b
a
s
is

, 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
io

n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

 
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 u
n
d
e
r 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 t
h
re

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

 

 
A

IM
/S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 O

B
J

E
C

T
IV

E
 O

F
 T

H
E

 T
O

W
E

R
 H

A
M

L
E

T
S

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

Y
 

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
im

: 
T

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t

o
: 

 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e

u
ri
a

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
, 
p
ro

s
p

e
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 m

o
b

ili
ty

 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
: 

 
1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 
2
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 a

 t
h
ri
v
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 b

a
s
e
 

 
3
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 w

is
h
e
s
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

a
u

d
ie

n
c
e
s
 

  

Page 158



 

3
 

  S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
 

 T
h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
s
 a

 s
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
d
o
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 t

h
a
t 
a
re

 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f

o
r 

tr
a
c
k
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

: 
 

1
. 

S
e
lf

-e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 –

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
. 

2
. 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
S

M
E

s
 t

a
k
in

g
 o

n
 m

o
re

 s
ta

ff
 –

 m
a
in

ta
in

 p
a
ri
ty

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
. 

3
. 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 b

ir
th

s
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 –

 m
a
in

ta
in

 p
a
ri
ty

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 i
n
n
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 m

e
d
ia

n
. 

Page 159



 

4
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
ir
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
. 

A
s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 

b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 S
M

E
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

L
o
n
d

o
n
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
. 
F

in
a
ll
y
, 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

re
v
ie

w
, 
c
o

n
c
lu

d
e
 w

h
a
t 
n

e
e

d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 f

it
-f

o
r-

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 

 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 

in
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

fo
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
n
a
ti
o
n
a

lly
 a

n
d
 i
n
 

L
o
n
d

o
n
. 
T

h
e
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
re

 
fr

a
g
m

e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly

 
c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

 i
t 
is

 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
th

a
t 
s
c
a
rc

e
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

w
a

y
. 

R
e
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 2

 
a
n
d
 6

 
1
.1

 C
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 a
n

d
 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

d
is

s
e
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 t
o
 S

M
E

s
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

a
ll 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 

 
S

M
E

s
 (

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 

s
m

a
lle

r/
m

ic
ro

 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
) 

s
u
ff

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n

e
q
u

it
y
 

a
n
d
 f

re
e
d

o
m

 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 p

a
g
e
s
 w

ill
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 s

u
c
h
 

in
e

q
u
a

lit
y
. 

W
e
b
-b

a
s
e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

w
it
h
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

m
e
n
u
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

. 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

 

   

Page 160



 

5
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
a
n

d
 b

a
n
k
in

g
 

s
e
c
to

r 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
d
u

c
ts

 
a
im

e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c

a
p
it
a

l 
a
n
d
 l
o
a

n
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

S
M

E
s
 a

n
d
 

h
o

w
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

c
a
n
 h

e
lp

 t
o

 
c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

o
f 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 S
M

E
s
. 

 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 b

a
n
k
in

g
 

c
ri
s
is

 a
n
d
 p

u
rs

u
a
n
t 

c
re

d
it
 c

ru
n
c
h
, 

b
a
rr

ie
rs

 
to

 f
in

a
n
c
e

 f
o
r 

S
M

E
s
 

a
re

 b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 (

a
n
d
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
c
o
m

e
) 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 
p
re

v
a

le
n
t,
 a

n
d
 t

h
u
s
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 
b
e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
S

M
E

s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ts

 a
n

d
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

fo
r 

S
M

E
 s

u
rv

iv
a

l 
a

n
d
 

g
ro

w
th

. 
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

 

B
ri
n

g
 t
o

g
e
th

e
r 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

k
e

y
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

s
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
in

g
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
e

a
m

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

1
,2

 a
n
d
 3

. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.1

.1
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 s

tr
e

n
g
th

e
n
 a

n
d

 c
o
-

o
rd

in
a
te

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 w

e
b
-b

a
s
e

d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 w

it
h
 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 m

e
n
u
 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
e

a
m

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

w
e
b
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 o

n
lin

e
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 3

 
a
n
d
 6

. 

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.1

.2
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 d

e
b
t,
 

e
q
u

it
y
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 f
o
rm

s
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 f

o
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 w

h
o

 m
a
y
 b

e
 

e
x
c
lu

d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a

l 
fo

rm
s
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
. 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 

m
a
p
 o

u
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 

 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
e

a
m

 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

o
n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

e
b
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
, 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 3

 
a
n
d
 6

 

Page 161



 

6
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.1

.3
  

B
u
ild

 s
u

p
p

ly
 c

h
a
in

 c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 

lo
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 c

a
n
 s

u
p
p
ly

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e

s
s
e
s
 

 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 E

a
s
t 

L
o
n
d

o
n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
la

c
e

 t
o
 b

u
ild

 S
M

E
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

is
h
o

p
s
 S

q
u
a
re

 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
p
ro

je
c
t 

P
ro

m
o
te

 C
o
m

p
e
te

 4
 

s
u
p
p
ly

 c
h
a

in
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
 

to
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
e

a
m

, 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
te

a
m

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
N

e
tw

o
rk

, 
E

a
s
t 
L

o
n
d

o
n
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
c
e
 

£
2
.3

m
 i
n
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
o
n
  

b
y
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

B
is

h
o

p
s
 S

q
u
a
re

 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
P

ro
je

c
t 
c
a
tc

h
m

e
n
t 

z
o

n
e
 

b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

 

Page 162



 

7
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 m

il
e

s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
n
fl
u
e

n
c
e
s
 

a
n
d
 d

ri
v
e
rs

 e
x
e
rt

e
d

 b
y
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

lly
 

a
n
d
 r

e
g
io

n
a

lly
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 C

it
y
 F

ri
n

g
e
, 

C
a
n
a
ry

 
W

h
a
rf

, 
a
n
d
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 Z
o

n
e
 t

o
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
 s

u
p
p

ly
 c

h
a

in
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 

a
n
d
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 S
M

E
s
. 
  

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 i
n
 a

 
u
n
iq

u
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
, 
e

n
jo

y
in

g
 

a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

lo
c
a
te

d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a

lly
 a

n
d
 r

e
g
io

n
a

lly
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

p
o
le

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
, 
C

a
n
a
ry

 
W

h
a
rf

 a
n
d
 S

tr
a

tf
o
rd

 
C

it
y
/O

ly
m

p
ic

 Z
o
n

e
. 

C
a
p
it
a
lis

in
g
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 

(a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
m

in
g
) 

S
M

E
s
 c

a
n
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 b

a
s
e
 w

h
ic

h
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 

R
e
v
ie

w
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 3

 
a
n
d
 1

2
 

S
e
t 

u
p
 a

 w
o
rk

in
g
 p

a
rt

y
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

s
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

s
 

F
ir
s
t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 b

y
 t
h

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 3

 
a
n
d
 1

2
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 u
p

d
a
te

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 

S
M

E
s
 o

n
 s

u
p
p

ly
in

g
 t
o
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
te

a
m

s
 

U
p
d
a
te

d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
b
s
it
e
, 

A
p
ri

l 
2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 3

 
a
n
d
 1

2
 

1
.2

 W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 t
o
 h

a
rn

e
s
s
 

th
e
ir
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.2

.1
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

p
ro

c
u
re

s
 

lo
c
a
ll
y
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 

 

E
x
p
lo

re
 w

a
y
s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
n

e
fi
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 

s
c
o
re

d
 i
n
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

c
ri
te

ri
a
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
te

a
m

s
 

D
ra

ft
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 t
o
 C

M
T

, 
A

u
g

u
s
t 
2
0

1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 3

 
a
n
d
 1

2
 

Page 163



 

8
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 m

il
e

s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

P
u
rs

u
e
 a

d
o

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 O
b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
 

D
P

D
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 2

0
%

 
lo

c
a
l 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t.
 

D
&

R
 

D
P

D
 a

d
o

p
te

d
, 
J
a
n
u

a
ry

 
2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

 
a
n
d
 1

1
 

E
n
s
u
re

 l
o
c
a

l 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

o
b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 

a
p
p

lie
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

m
a
jo

r 
d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

. 

D
&

R
 

1
0
0
%

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

a
d
o
p

te
d
 p

o
lic

y
, 

o
n

g
o

in
g

. 
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

 
a
n
d
 1

1
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.2

.2
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 i
n
 T

H
 

c
o
m

m
it
 t
o
 p

ro
c
u
ri
n

g
 l
o
c
a
ll
y
 

 

C
re

a
te

 p
ro

s
p
e
c
ti
v
e

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

’ 
to

o
lk

it
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t,
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

s
u
p
p

o
rt

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a

n
d
 t

a
ilo

re
d

 
s
e
c
to

r-
b
a
s
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

s
u
p
p
lie

r 
lis

ts
. 

D
&

R
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 d

ra
ft

e
d
 f

o
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a

l,
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

, 
6
 a

n
d
 1

1
  
 

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.2

.3
 

M
a
x
im

is
e
 s

u
p
p
ly

 c
h
a

in
 a

n
d

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

T
H

 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 o

n
lin

e
 

p
ro

s
p
e
c
tu

s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 s

u
p
p

lie
rs

, 
a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
o
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 T

e
a
m

 
P

ro
s
p
e
c
tu

s
 o

n
lin

e
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

 
a
n
d
 6

 

Page 164



 

9
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 (

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

C
re

a
te

 m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 f

o
r 

lin
k
in

g
 m

a
jo

r 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 w

it
h
 

S
M

E
s
. 

V
ia

 M
a

y
o
r’

s
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

B
o

a
rd

. 
P

ro
c
e
s
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
, 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

, 
5
 a

n
d
 6

 
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.2

.4
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h
 m

a
jo

r 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 t
o

 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

m
e
n
to

ri
n
g
, 
c
o

lla
b
o
ra

ti
o
n

 a
n
d
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 
S

M
E

s
. 

M
a
tc

h
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 w

it
h
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 S
M

E
s
 f

o
r 

m
e
n
to

ri
n
g
, 
c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

V
ia

 M
a

y
o
r’

s
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

B
o

a
rd

. 
M

a
tc

h
in

g
 o

f 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 a

n
d
 S

M
E

s
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

, 
5
 a

n
d
 6

 

Page 165



 

1
0
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
. 

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 h

a
s
 

a
 s

m
a
ll 

b
u
t 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

ro
le

 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

 
d
iv

e
rs

e
 a

n
d
 d

y
n

a
m

ic
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 b

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 c

a
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

ro
u
te

s
 t
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 

In
c
lu

d
e
d
 w

it
h

in
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 1

 
a
n
d
 2

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.3

.1
  

M
a
p
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 b

e
y
o

n
d
 t
h

e
 

m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

m
ic

ro
fi
n
a
n
c
e
, 
C

D
F

Is
, 

a
n
d
 B

ig
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 C

a
p

it
a

l 

 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 T

h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
T

e
a
m

 t
o
 m

a
p
 o

u
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 

 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 
O

ly
m

p
ic

 L
e
g

a
c
y
 

d
iv

is
io

n
, 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

w
e
b
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

 
a
n
d
 6

 

1
.3

 S
u
p

p
o
rt

 s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.3

.2
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 n
e
e
d
s
 

o
f 

s
o
c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

le
g

a
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 t

ra
n
s
p

a
re

n
c
y
, 

w
it
h
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 t
o
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h
e
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
ri
a

l 
a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 h

a
rd

-t
o
-

re
a
c
h
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
e

d
s
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 

m
a
x
im

is
e
 t
a
k
e
-u

p
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 
O

ly
m

p
ic

 L
e
g

a
c
y
 

d
iv

is
io

n
, 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 

R
e
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
n
e
e
d
s
, 
J
u

ly
 2

0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

, 
6
 a

n
d
 1

0
 

Page 166



 

1
1
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 1
.3

.3
  

T
a
rg

e
t 
s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
 f

o
r 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 

b
u
ild

 s
u

p
p
ly

 c
h

a
in

 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o

 s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n

 1
.1

.3
 

D
&

R
, 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

te
a
m

 
1
0
0
%

 o
f 

k
n
o
w

n
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
 i
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 

s
u
p
p
ly

 c
h
a

in
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

. 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

 
a
n
d
 1

2
 

 

Page 167



 

1
2
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 2
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 a

 t
h
ri
v
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 b

a
s
e
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

M
a
p
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

s
p
a
c
e
 f

o
r 

S
M

E
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
, 

a
n
d
 t

a
lk

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 o
f 

w
o
rk

s
p
a
c
e
 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

, 
s
u
p

p
ly

 
c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
/d

e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
s
 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 h

o
w

 s
u

p
p

ly
 

c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
/d

e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 c

a
n

 b
e
 

o
v
e
rc

o
m

e
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
  

  
T

h
e
 L

E
A

 a
n
d

 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 a
 s

h
o
rt

a
g
e
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
ly

 o
f 

w
o
rk

s
p
a
c
e
 

fo
r 

S
M

E
s
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 w
h

ic
h
 r

is
k
s
 

p
u
n

is
h
in

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
ta

rt
 u

p
s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
w

in
g
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

u
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 v

it
a

l 
to

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

th
e

 
lo

c
a
l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
. 
 

S
u
p

p
ly

 o
f 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

s
p
a
c
e
 m

a
p
p
e
d
 b

y
 e

n
d
 

o
f 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
 

    R
e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

w
it
h
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 b

y
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 8

, 
1
0
 a

n
d
 1

1
 

2
.1

 S
e
c
u
re

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 

to
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

g
ro

w
th

 

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 2
.1

.1
 

E
x
p
lo

re
 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
to

 s
e
c
u
re

 t
h
e

 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
fl
e
x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

s
p
a
c
e
 

w
it
h

in
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n
ts

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 t
h

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 
to

 
m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
s
u
c
h
 s

p
a
c
e
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 n
e

w
 a

n
d
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

S
M

E
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 

S
c
o
p
in

g
 o

f 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 
te

a
m

s
. 

R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

M
T

, 
J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 8

 
a
n
d
 1

1
 

 

Page 168



 

1
3
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 2
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 a

 t
h
ri
v
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 b

a
s
e
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

S
p
a
ti
a

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 b

y
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e

 
lo

c
a
l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
. 
 

 
T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

re
 

v
it
a
l 
in

 m
a
k
in

g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 

to
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o

p
le

. 
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 t
o

w
n
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 h

a
s
 t
h

e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 r
e
ta

in
 

m
o
re

 s
p
e
n
d
in

g
 l
o
c
a

lly
 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
 m

o
re

 
d
iv

e
rs

e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
. 
 

P
ra

c
ti
c
a

l 
s
te

p
s
 f

o
r 

S
M

E
 

a
tt
ra

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n
 

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

fo
r 

k
e

y
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 

e
.g

. 
W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e

l 
b

y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 7

 
a
n
d
 1

0
 

2
.2

 E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t,
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

o
w

n
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
, 
is

 s
u
it
a
b

le
 f

o
r 

a
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 2
.2

.1
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 

to
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 r

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

a
t 
W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 

 

E
n
g

a
g
e
 w

it
h
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 t
e

a
m

 
to

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

o
f 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

a
g
re

e
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

fa
c
to

ri
n
g
 i
n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

D
&

R
 

P
ro

to
c
o

l 
fo

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
re

e
d
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 8

 
a
n
d
 1

1
 

 

Page 169



 

1
4
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 2
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 a

 t
h
ri
v
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 b

a
s
e
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

In
c
lu

d
e
 H

ig
h
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 I

n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
u
c
h

 p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 

w
h
ic

h
 p

la
y
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

l 
ro

le
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 

 
T

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 H

E
Is

 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
u
c
h

 
o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
ro

le
 t

o
 p

la
y
 i
n
 

d
ri
v
in

g
 a

 k
n
o

w
le

d
g

e
- 

a
n
d
 i
n
n

o
v
a
ti
o
n
- 

b
a
s
e
d
 

e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
 i
n
 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
t.
 

K
n
o

w
le

d
g
e

 b
a
s
e

d
 

in
d

u
s
tr

ie
s
 a

re
 c

ri
ti
c
a

l 
to

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
 

In
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 2
.3

.1
  

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o

ls
 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 e
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
e
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

h
ip

 a
m

o
n
g
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 

 

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o
te

 
S

c
h
o
o

ls
 

E
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e

u
rs

h
ip

 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
e

a
m

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o
 

C
M

T
, 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4

 
a
n
d
 6

 

2
.3

 E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 a

n
 

e
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
ri

a
l 
s
p
ir

it
 

a
n
d
 a

 c
u
lt
u
re

 o
f 

in
n

o
v
a
ti
o
n
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 2
.3

.2
  

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 h

ig
h
e
r 

e
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n

 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 t
o

 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h

e
ir
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 e

x
p
e
rt

is
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

it
h
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o
te

 
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
-t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
e

a
m

 a
n
d
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

P
ro

to
c
o

l 
fo

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
re

e
d
, 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 4

 
a
n
d
 6

 

 

Page 170



 

1
5
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 3
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 w

is
h
e
s
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

S
e
t 

u
p
 a

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

fo
ru

m
 t
o
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
t 

v
ie

w
 o

f 
S

M
E

s
  

 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 s

in
g
le

 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 v

o
ic

e
 

o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

, 
ra

th
e
r 

a
 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

tr
a
d
e
rs

’ 
a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
, 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

lu
b
s
 –

 
n
o
n
e

 o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
v
e
 

v
o

ic
e
. 
T

h
e
re

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 
is

 a
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

w
h
ic

h
 a

 m
o
re

 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

d
ia

lo
g

u
e
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

e
ff

e
c
te

d
. 
 

F
o
ru

m
 e

v
e
n
t 
to

 b
e
 h

e
ld

 
in

 2
0
1
2

/1
3
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 4

 
a
n
d
 5

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 3
.1

.1
  

S
e
t 

u
p
 a

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

fo
ru

m
 t
o
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
t 
th

e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
S

M
E

s
 

 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

g
ro

u
p
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

S
M

E
s
 a

n
d

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 t
o

 s
c
o
p
e
 r

o
le

 
a
n
d
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 S
M

E
 f

o
ru

m
. 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
e

a
m

 
O

u
tl
in

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

l 
fo

r 
S

M
E

 f
o
ru

m
, 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 5

 

3
.1

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 
v
o

ic
e
 

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 3
.1

.2
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 v

o
ic

e
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 t
o
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
a
t 
lo

c
a
l,
 

re
g
io

n
a

l 
a
n

d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
le

v
e
ls

 

 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 

fo
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 

lo
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 v

ie
w

s
, 

th
ro

u
g

h
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 S
M

E
 f

o
ru

m
 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 S
M

E
 

fo
ru

m
, 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

te
a
m

 

M
e
c
h
a
n

is
m

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

, 
5
 a

n
d
 6

  

 

Page 171



 

1
6
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 3
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 w

is
h
e
s
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
o
th

e
r 

c
o

u
n
c
il 

S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 L

D
F

) 
a
n
d
 

p
u
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 
s
te

p
s
 n

e
e
d

e
d
 

to
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
S

M
E

s
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

  
 

- 
th

e
ir
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 

- 
th

e
ir
 s

ta
rt

 u
p
, 

g
ro

w
th

 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
 

 

 
T

h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

im
p
a
c
ts

 u
p
o
n
 a

ll 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

, 
a
n

d
 f

u
tu

re
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
m

a
y
 w

e
ll 

b
e
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 
g
ro

w
th

. 
T

h
e
re

fo
re

 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 

n
e
e
d

 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e

 o
f 

e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 w

h
e
re

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
 

 

In
te

rn
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
  

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 4

 
a
n
d
 9

 
3
.2

 I
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 

p
o
lic

y
 c

o
n
te

x
t 
to

 
m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 

a
n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 
e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 

 

E
x
a
m

in
e
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

ra
te

 r
e
g

im
e
 c

a
n
 h

e
lp

 t
h

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 
a

n
d
 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 e
c
o
n
o
m

y
. 
 

 
P

ro
p
o
s
e

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

ra
te

 r
e
fo

rm
 w

ill
 

in
c
e
n
ti
v
is

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

g
ro

w
th

. 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 
m

u
s
t 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 a

n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e

 o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 i
f 

it
 i
s
 t
o

 
m

a
x
im

is
e
 r

e
v
e

n
u
e
s
. 
 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f,
 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

o
, 

e
m

e
rg

in
g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

 
re

fo
rm

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

. 
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

 

Page 172



 

1
7
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 3
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 w

is
h
e
s
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 3
.2

.1
 

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
tt

e
rn

s
 o

f 
s
e
lf
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e

 
e
q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 s

tr
a

n
d
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

u
c
h
 

a
s
 v

a
ri

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 l
e

v
e
ls

 o
f 

s
e
lf
-

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
b

e
tw

e
e
n
 m

e
n
 a

n
d
 

w
o
m

e
n
. 
R

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
x
a
m

in
e
 

th
e
ir
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 d

e
g
re

e
s
 o

f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
, 

in
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 t
re

n
d
s
 o

f 
g
ro

w
th

 o
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
o

n
. 

 

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 

a
n
d
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 T

e
a
m

, 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 &

 E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 

In
te

ri
m

 r
e
p
o
rt

, 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1

 
a
n
d
 6

 
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 3
.2

.2
 

E
n
s
u
re

 T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
s
 

to
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

o
f 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
c
o
n

o
m

y
 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
n
d
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

o
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

e
m

e
rg

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

ra
te

 r
e
te

n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

s
m

a
ll 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
tw

o
rk

. 

D
&

R
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 a

s
 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
, 
o

n
g
o

in
g
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 5

 
a
n
d
 9

 

Page 173



 

1
8
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 3
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 w

is
h
e
s
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 3
.2

.3
 

P
o
s
it
io

n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 h
a
s
 a

 
s
tr

o
n
g
 v

o
ic

e
 i
n

 n
e

w
 a

n
d
 e

m
e
rg

in
g
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

th
e
 p

a
n
-L

o
n
d

o
n
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
th

e
 H

o
s
t 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
s
’ 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e
g
e

n
e
ra

ti
o
n

 F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 
d
ri
v
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

v
e
rg

e
n
c
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a

, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d
 

T
e
c
h
 C

it
y
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 i
n
 e

a
s
t 
L

o
n
d
o

n
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h

ip
s
 

a
n
d
 l
o
b

b
y
 a

s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 

D
&

R
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

M
T

, 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 5

 
a
n
d
 9

 
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 3
.2

.4
 

P
o
s
it
io

n
 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

to
 c

o
m

p
e
te

 f
o
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 b

y
 t
h

e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
to

 a
n

y
 f

o
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
  

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
e

a
m

 
R

e
p
o

n
d
 t

o
 b

id
d

in
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 w

it
h
in

 s
e
t 

ti
m

e
fr

a
m

e
 

R
e
c
o
o
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 3

 
a
n
d
 9

 

 

Page 174



 

1
9
 

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 3
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 w

is
h
e
s
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
s
 

 

In
te

rm
e
d

ia
te

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
a
s
k
s
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

R
a
ti

o
n

a
le

 (
re

v
ie

w
 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

o
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

(i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
a
c
ti

o
n

s
) 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

m
il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

 
a
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
p
o
s
it
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

s
 a

n
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 b

ra
n

d
 

lin
k
e
d
 t
o

 C
it
y
 S

ta
tu

s
 (

s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
b
id

) 

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 

u
n
iq

u
e

ly
 l
o
c
a

te
d
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
, 

C
a
n
a
ry

 W
h
a
rf

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

O
ly

m
p
ic

 Z
o

n
e
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e
r 

it
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
ty

 a
s
 

a
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

is
 u

n
d

e
rd

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
. 
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 C
it
y
 S

ta
tu

s
 b

id
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 1

 
a
n
d
 6

 
3
.3

 P
ro

m
o
te

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
s
 a

 l
o
c
a

ti
o

n
 

fo
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
a
n

d
 

e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
, 
a

n
d
 a

 
d
e
s
ti
n

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

v
is

it
o
rs

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 a
c
ti

o
n

 3
.3

.1
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 p

la
n
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
, 
h

ig
h
lig

h
ti
n
g
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 b

ra
n
d
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 C

u
rr

y
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n

d
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e

e
t 
2

0
1
2
, 

e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 s
u

it
a

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

g
ro

w
th

 
s
e
c
to

rs
. 

D
ra

ft
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

T
e
a
m

s
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d

ra
ft

, 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

, 
3
, 
5
, 

6
 a

n
d
 1

1
 

 

Page 175



Page 176

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Tower Hamlets Enterprise Strategy 

Consultation Report 

The draft version of the Tower Hamlets Enterprise Strategy was sent to partners for 

Consultation in April 2011 and was made available online. Responses were submitted to the 

Council during late May 2011 (the deadline for responses was set as 23 May). 

In total, nine written responses were received.  Importantly, written responses were 

received from key partners including the Canary Wharf Group, East London Small Business 

Centre, East London Business Place and the Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust, and other 

prominent local organisations. 

This document is intended to summarise the comments raised by stakeholders and, where 

appropriate, to indicate how such feedback will be incorporated into the final draft of the 

Strategy. The Consultation asked five questions and provided space for additional comments 

on the Enterprise Strategy. Summaries of the responses to these questions are given below. 

1. How well do the ‘Introduction’ and ‘Context’ sections (parts 1 

and 2) set out the relevant background for the strategy? Are 

there any substantial omissions?  
 

Respondents broadly agreed with the context and concluding sections of the strategy 

particularly in relation to the diversification of the borough and sectoral analysis.  

Respondents said that the introduction showed thorough research and ‘sets the scene’ well. 

One respondent suggested mentioning support organisations such as East London Business 

Place and East London Business Alliance.  

Some respondents felt that the analysis of residents skills deficit required further detailed 

analysis to highlight the barriers caused by a lack of work based skills as well as educational 

qualifications  

A specific comment was made with regards to the introduction where Whitechapel is 

mentioned but no reference is made to the ‘Whitechapel Art Gallery’.  

One consultation respondent expressed their agreement with the statistics included in the 

strategy on supply of labour and employment statistics.  

They also made the recommendations to include a description of the Tower Hamlets Third 

Sector training and employment organisations and promote the work of these organisations 

in catering for the needs of disadvantaged groups in the local community and the diverse 

population of the borough.  

Page 177



 

2 

 

These points are taken up below. 

 

Response and Actions:  

We are content with the suggestion to include the Whitechapel Gallery as a prime visitor 

location in Whitechapel within the introduction. We also agree and welcome the comments 

made with regards to the residents’ skills; these concerns are addressed within our partner 

Employment Strategy.   

2. Are the ‘Challenges’, ‘Barriers’ and ‘Opportunities’ (parts 3 

and 4) fully set out and do they deal with all relevant 

considerations?  
General Comments: 

Respondent Observation Response/Actions 

Response to parts 3 and 4 of the enterprise 

strategy were broadly positive and 

respondents agreed with the analysis. 

Comments were made with regards to 

improving the job prospects of local 

residents through ensuring that jobs were 

created across the skills spectrum, while also 

highlighting increased opportunities in hotels 

& catering, retail, and the creative industries. 

We are pleased with the overall response 

from consultees on this section of the 

strategy. We welcome the comments 

regarding job opportunities for residents 

across the skills spectrum, and this fits in 

well with the strategic aim to promote a 

diverse and sustainable enterprise 

economy.  Through our partner 

employment strategy we will support 

residents to access jobs and progress across 

the whole skills spectrum.  Creative 

Industries, tourism, retail and leisure are 

identified as potential growth sectors for 

the Tower Hamlets economy.  

One consultee felt that emphasis should be 

made on the expected impact of the new 

Royal London Hospital, in terms of the 

creation of new public space, and availability 

of space that will free up, with the 

suggestion that the development could be 

linked to the Tech City plans.   

This is a useful comment, to be taken up in 

connection with the Tech City proposals. 

Under the opportunities section, there was a 

suggestion to amend the insert on social 

enterprise to reflect the impact they could 

While we welcome the comments here, the 

opportunities section of the strategy is 

concerned with developments in the 

enterprise economy rather than the 

Page 178



 

3 

 

have on the delivery of public services.   delivery of public services.  Nonetheless, we 

recognise the contribution of social 

enterprises in the delivery of public services 

and will seek to support all enterprises in 

gaining opportunities to provide services 

through commissioning processes.  

Information on page 31 about ELBP to be 

amended with the following:  

East London Business Place (ELBP): is a 

supply chain development programme allied 

to a contract brokerage service led by Canary 

Wharf Group plc and supported by East 

London Business Alliance. It provides a free 

matching and sourcing service, connecting 

buyers and suppliers to maximise local 

business benefit from new developments 

and commercial precincts in east London.  In 

particular, ELBP has, since 2008, helped 

Tower Hamlets (TH) based SMEs secure 

almost £38m of business and has helped 

more than 350 TH SMEs reach ‘Fit-to-Supply’ 

status through flexible 1-2-1 and one-to-

many support activities. 

 

 

  

We will amend the information on ELBP 

with the information provided.  

Respondents felt that although higher 

education institutions do provide significant 

opportunities for enterprise and innovation, 

these institutions do not play an important 

role in the development of a skilled 

workforce and that this view is supported 

through work conducted by the Young 

Foundation.  

 

This is a point which can be taken up most 

usefully in work under the Employment 

Strategy 

Respondents felt that the opportunities 

section of the strategy where specific 

reference was made to the travel, retail, 

tourism and the creative industries sectors 

should have its own Cultural Strategy which 

would provide a way of co-ordinating these 

elements and brining the focus onto the 

assets in the borough and help contribute to 

The Enterprise Team will be glad to 

contribute to any future Cultural Strategy 

developed by the Council 

Page 179



 

4 

 

strategic the strategic objectives of 

‘positioning’ and ‘place’.   

 

Under the section on sources of funding and 

finance, it was mentioned that ELSBC  have 

been heavily involved in the Community 

Development Finance Association (CDFA) 

and their successful bid to the Regional 

Growth Fund for capital towards loans to 

businesses, an through the CDFA are 

developing links with the Big Society Bank.  

 

We have noted this.  

Respondents were pleased with the 

narrative contained in the strategy on social 

investment and enterprise.  They suggested 

that in addition to what was already 

included, there should be specific focus on 

the role of social enterprise in relation to 

providing care and support services that are 

generally provided by health and social care 

organisations, and to actively endorse this 

activity through the strategy. 

 

We agree that social enterprises have been 

operating successfully in the area of health 

and social care and that in recent years 

there has been cross party support for 

social enterprises to be increasingly more 

involved in the role and provision of health 

and social care. Proposals for targeting 

social enterprises for procurement support 

activity are mentioned under Intermediate 

Objective 1.3. 

 

One respondent expressed their disapproval 

with a reference under the Enterprise 

Support section in the strategy. They 

strongly felt that there are more 

organisations offering enterprise support 

then the three ‘main’ providers mentioned.  

 

The reference in the strategy relates to 

enterprise support providers operating 

across the East London Sub region rather 

than Tower Hamlets itself. We are fully 

aware of the enormous support offered by 

Account3 and other support providers in 

Tower Hamlets; we regularly refer clients 

seeking support to Account3 through our 

online Business Enquires Service. The 

council’s “Business Matters” brochure guide 

contains details of Account3 and a number 

of other business support agencies.  We 

have ensured that Account3 and other 

support providers are referred to in the 

revised draft.  

 

Page 180



 

5 

 

The strategy should state a commitment to 

encouraging workless adults to claim 

benefits and sign on to entitle them to DWP 

funded training and support. 

Reference to this issue is made in the 

employment strategy, in the section 

discussing the complexities of the benefits 

system and the tailored approaches to 

tackling worklessness.   

 

The strategy inaccurately stated three main 

business support agencies in the borough. 

References are then made to the fact that 

third sector provision is more competent 

and that the third sector assist more SME 

start-ups each year then the cited 

organisations in the strategy.  

 

We agree that in the inclusion of the term 

‘main’ should be removed, however this 

reference referred to three providers 

operating across the East London sub-

region, and not in Tower Hamlets. We do 

not have evidence to prove or disprove the 

claim that third sector organisations are 

more competent then the three agencies 

named, however we will cite the third 

sector enterprise support agencies 

mentioned: Spitalfields Small Business 

Association, Account3, and the Cultural 

Industries Development Agency, and the 

Tower Hamlets Cooperative Development 

Agency.     

 

3. Can the intermediate objectives set out under each strategic 

objective in part 5 be improved, amended or added to? 
The intermediate objectives were well received; although some stakeholders were 

concerned they were too short-term. The Council points out that the indicative action 

plan only covers the first year of the strategy and will be updated annually. Stakeholders 

are invited to participate in this process, which is outlined in the final chapter of the 

Employment Strategy. 

General Comments: 

Respondent Observation Council Response/Actions 

A greater emphasis on skills was desired.  This is achieved through the partner 

Employment Strategy.  

Revision to Objective SO1: to include making 

full use of the s106 facility to fund support 

mechanisms for local business growth 

Use of resources made available through 

s106 is outside the scope of this Strategy.  

Nonetheless, this comment is noted. 

Page 181



 

6 

 

Revision to Objective SO5: to emphasis 

developing links further between university 

students and SMEs to create solutions to 

business problems through R&D and 

innovation.  

The Strategy recognises the role of local 

higher education institutions in helping to 

promote innovation in the enterprise 

economy, and students in such institutions 

would certainly be a vital part of this 

process. 

More emphasis was needed on considering 

the affect of regulatory work on promoting 

activities. For example work done in 

environmental health and street market 

management. Activities such as these are 

business facing and can reflect the Council’s 

attitude to business. Maximum importance 

should be given to objectives relating to local 

employment, supply chains, and 

sustainability.  

We welcome the comments regarding 

regulatory work. Work proposed under 

Intermediate Objective 3.1 seeks to ensure 

that the Council’s planning and regulatory 

functions take into account the needs of 

local enterprises. 

 

 

4. Do you agree with the delivery arrangements as they are set 

out in part 5.1? 
 

General Comments: 

Respondent Observation Council Response/Actions 

Broadly respondents were satisfied with the 

delivery arrangement set out in part 5.1. 

One respondent suggested that under the 

‘influencing’ bullet point a requirement that 

the Council should exert its influence by 

introducing business support organisations 

such as ELBP to developers at a sufficiently 

early stage to encourage them to use local 

suppliers wherever possible.   

We welcome these comments.  With regard 

to the specific comment made, we propose 

an amendment to ensure that ELBP can 

take part in joint working arrangements 

designed to increase the amount of 

business done by local enterprises.  

A comment was made towards the provision 

of premises and the development of a more 

flexible approach through policies related to 

‘change of use’ for available vacant premises 

The Enterprise Team is regularly involved in 

consultations regarding planning regulation 

and policy and we will continue to do so. 

We will be commenting on the forthcoming 

consultation on the relaxation of planning 

Page 182



 

7 

 

was welcomed.  rules.  

The suggestion of an expanded Enterprise 

Group was proposed, and a note to ensure 

engagement of SMEs through dedicated 

consultation events is required.  

The main role for the Enterprise Task Group 

in the Strategy is a coordination one.  The 

Group will be advised by local enterprises 

and there will be a variety of consultation 

processes to ensure that the Strategy is 

delivered in a way which will provide 

demonstrable benefits to the local 

enterprise communities.  

The strategy should include an objective 

associated with the development of work 

based learning and skills.  

This is primarily an item to be tackled in the 

Employment Strategy 

Consultees felt that the strategy needed 

more emphasis on young people developing 

youth enterprise, outlining organisations 

that can support young people, such as the 

Prince’s Trust to develop their ideas or 

consider the self employment route.  

 

We will mention the potential role of the 

Prince’s Trust in encouraging an 

entrepreneurial spirit and culture of 

innovation, particularly in relation to work 

with young people. 

Some respondents felt that the Enterprise 

Strategy should address the informal 

economy operating in the borough and the 

impact this has for residents in terms of 

accessing jobs.  

 

Research suggests that key reasons for the 

existence of the informal economy relates 

to individuals who have low skills and 

language barriers which make it difficult for 

them to access jobs in the labour market 

and therefore seek work in the informal 

economy accepting lower wages and cash in 

hand.  We will address these barriers 

through our strategies; responding to the 

skills needs of residents including provision 

of ESOL are priorities within the 

Employment Strategy.  

The strategy should state interventions 

required to enhance the skills of residents 

which enable them to access employment 

and emphasise that the most effective 

support is via frontline services within the 

community.  

 

We welcome these comments.  There are 

prominent references in the Employment 

Strategy on increasing delivery by the third 

sector, working with the third sector to 

secure partnering and co-commissioning 

opportunities with prime contractors, and 

engaging with the third sector in Tower 

Hamlets to ensure residents from 

disadvantaged groups have access to 

Page 183



 

8 

 

information and support. These references 

are not repeated in the Enterprise Strategy, 

which is concerned more with the demand 

side of the economy. 

The strategy should state a commitment to 

the council ensuring all relevant contracts 

include local labour clauses. 

 

The council has made this commitment; 

targets are outlined for both local 

employment and local procurement within 

the council’s procurement, employment, 

draft Planning Obligations SPD and the 

borough enterprise strategy. The 

Employment and Enterprise team will 

continue to work closely with planning and 

corporate procurement to maximise the 

benefits for borough residents. 

The strategy should state a clear 

commitment to encourage and support local 

residents to establish their own social 

enterprise or co-operative.  

The importance of social enterprise is 

emphasised in the Strategy, and support for 

residents who wish to establish an 

enterprise is one of the main strategic 

themes. 

Refocus planning priorities to encourage the 

development of more workshop, small office 

and business starter units of 500 – 1000 

square feet.  

 

The Enterprise Team is working with 

Strategic Planning and Development 

Implementation teams to develop an 

approach to securing flexible, affordable 

business space provision for small, start up 

businesses. The strategy does highlight the 

need for this type of provision in the 

‘Challenges’ section, and measures to bring 

about such provision are contained in the 

strategic objectives. 

To conduct research on the impact of new 

businesses on the local economy and local 

employment opportunities; this should 

include information on the survival rates, 

turnover and employee numbers.  

 

We welcome the suggestion.  The council 

produces annual updates on the business 

environment.  Each of the Employment and 

Enterprise Strategies has been produced in 

association with the borough’s Local 

Economic Analysis (LEA), which forms the 

evidence base for the strategies. 

Intermediate objective 3.2 commits to 

further research on similar issues, with a 

focus on equalities and diversity.    

Page 184



 

9 

 

 

 

5. What are your comments on the action plan attached to the 

strategy? 
 

General Comments: 

Respondent Observation Council Response/Actions 

While the Action Plan was largely embraced 

by respondents, one respondent felt that 

more recognition was needed for 

organisations such as ELBP as a useful 

partner in local procurement and supply 

chain development.  

We welcome these comments, and the 

Action Plan has been amended to give more 

responsibilities to ELBP for procurement/ 

supply chain work. 

Another comment was that the plan seemed 

to have gaps in terms of tasks for the coming 

year particularly where the 2012 Olympics 

are concerned.   

A key action under Intermediate Objective 

3.1, promoting Tower Hamlets as a location 

for investment and enterprise, and a 

destination for visitors, is to develop a 

communications plan to promote the 

borough, highlighting established brands 

such as Curry Capital and High Street 2012, 

enterprise successes, and the borough’s 

suitability for growth sectors. This is 

intended to take advantage of the 

opportunities presented by the Olympics 

over the coming year. 

One respondent strongly asserted that the 

action plan needed significant development 

in order for it to give credibility to the 

strategy. 

We agree with these comments.  A new 

Action Plan has been drawn up to 

implement the Strategy and to take account 

of the comments received. 

Although leadership is mentioned through 

the Enterprise Task Group, there is no 

representation from the Learning and Skills 

Council, schools or training providers. It was 

put forward that arrangement for delivery of 

the strategy should include representatives 

from all key work based learning and skilled 

This is more a matter for the Employment 

Strategy.  Both the Enterprise and 

Employment Strategies will be delivered in 

the context of Tower Hamlets partnership 

arrangements, which will include training 

providers.  

Page 185



 

10 

 

players and schools.  

  

6. Additional comments 
The consultation gave space for respondents to make general comments on the 

strategy, its emphasis, omissions etc.  

Respondents took the opportunity to comment on the overall Strategy and stated that it 

has the potential to deliver change and results, and that partners are keen to participate 

in the process.  

One respondent added in this section that Sir Michael Marmot’s review of health 

inequalities proposes a healthy living wage, building on the London Living Wage. It was 

felt that supporting this through the strategy would maximise gains from enterprise 

growth if this concept is developed and encouraged.  

An additional comment was made regarding the Government Business Link service 

which comes to a close in November 2011. The respondent felt that as the revised 

Business Link service would be web based support, it was important to point out that 

industry clients need one to one business support whether they are start up or existing 

businesses.   This is a point which will certainly be taken up in the implementation of the 

Strategy. 

 

 

 

 

Page 186



1
 

 T
O

W
E

R
 H

A
M

L
E

T
S

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

Y
 

F
U

L
L

 E
Q

U
A

L
IT

IE
S

 I
M

P
A

C
T

 A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

 
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

 –
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
  1

a
) 

N
a

m
e
 o

f 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

P
o

li
c

y
 o

r 
F

u
n

c
ti

o
n

: 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 1
b

) 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a
: 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 R

e
n
e

w
a

l 
 1

c
) 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 H

e
a

d
: 

N
ic

k
 S

m
a

le
s
, 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 H

e
a

d
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 
 1

d
) 

N
a

m
e

 a
n

d
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e

 o
ff

ic
e

r/
s

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

v
e

s
 i

n
v
o

lv
e

d
 i

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

in
g

 t
h

e
 E

Q
IA

: 
M

e
la

n
ie

 A
u

s
t,

 I
n

d
e

p
e
n
d

e
n

t 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
d

 a
d

v
is

o
r 

in
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 

A
n

d
y
 S

c
o

tt
, 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
H

u
w

 M
o

rg
a

n
-T

h
o
m

a
s
, 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u

p
, 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 O

n
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 1
e

) 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
M

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
: 

T
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
o

rm
s
 a

n
 i
n

tr
in

s
ic

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 P
ro

s
p
e

ro
u

s
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 t

h
e

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n
 (

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 h

a
d

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 E

Q
IA

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 w

it
h

 a
n
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
v
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 u

n
d

e
rp

in
n

in
g
 i
t)

. 
T

h
is

 t
h
e

m
e

 
in

d
ic

a
te

s
 a

 k
e

y
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 o
f 

‘F
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 b

y
: 

•
 

P
ro

v
id

in
g
 i
n

c
e

n
ti
v
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 b
o

th
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
rs

h
ip

 
•
 

M
a

x
im

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 k
e
y
 g

ro
w

th
 s

e
c
to

rs
, 
a

n
d
 t
h

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 a
n

d
 P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

 
G

a
m

e
s
. 

•
 

P
ro

m
o
ti
n

g
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 t
o

u
ri
s
m

, 
w

it
h

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
e

m
p
h

a
s
is

 o
n

 t
h

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s
 a

n
d

 
P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

s
’.
 

Page 187



2
 

 E
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 k
e

y
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

s
e

e
 P

ri
n

c
ip

le
 3

 –
 E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 

a
n

d
 D

iv
e

rs
it
y
. 

 T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h

a
t 

‘I
n

 r
e

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
’ 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 b

a
s
e

. 
 T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
b
e

n
e
fi
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 d

iv
e

rs
e

 g
ro

u
p

s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
’ 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
y
 g

ro
u

p
 w

h
ic

h
, 

in
 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 o
r 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
, 

is
 d

is
a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 o
th

e
rs

’.
  
T

h
is

 E
Q

IA
 

w
ill

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

is
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 a

p
p

lie
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 e

m
b

e
d

d
e

d
 i
n
 

th
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

. 
 T

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t
h

e
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 u
p

o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h
e

 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 b

u
ilt

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

b
o

th
 t

h
e

 ‘
s
u
p

p
ly

’ 
(p

e
o
p

le
) 

a
n
d

 ‘
d

e
m

a
n

d
’ 
(j
o

b
s
) 

s
id

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
p

le
x
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 
 I
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

g
u

la
rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 u
p

d
a

te
d
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
. 
 I
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
th

e
 P

ro
s
p

e
ro

u
s
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ro

u
p

 a
n
d

 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 f
it
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 c
le

a
r 

lin
e

 o
f 

s
it
e

 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 i
n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
s
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 
  

 T
h

is
 E

Q
IA

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
ra

ft
in

g
 s

ta
g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

  
 

 T
h

is
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
ta

g
e

s
 a

s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 b
e

lo
w

: 
 

 P
ro

s
p

e
ro

u
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ro

u
p

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

  
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u

p
  

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

/M
a

rc
h

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f
e

e
d

in
g
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 (

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e

a
d

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

‘d
e

m
a

n
d

’ 
s
e

c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
) 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 f

ro
m

 2
1

s
t  A

p
ri
l 
to

 2
3

rd
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

1
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

ro
m

 2
1

s
t  A

p
ri
l 
to

 2
3

rd
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

1
 

 T
h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
n

 2
3

rd
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

1
. 

 N
in

e
 l
a

rg
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 
h

a
v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
ri
tt

e
n

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 T
h

e
s
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 b
ro

a
d
ly

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

 o
f 

th
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 i
t 

w
a

s
 

n
o

te
d

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 w
e

ll 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
e

d
. 

 S
p

e
c
if
ic

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 s

u
g
g
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
is

io
n

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a
d

e
 t
o

 
th

e
 r

e
d

ra
ft

e
d

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 i
n

to
 t

h
is

 E
Q

IA
. 

  

Page 188



3
 

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 2
 –

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 t
o

 P
o

li
c

y
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
F

u
n

c
ti

o
n

 
  2

a
) 

P
le

a
s
e

 e
x

p
la

in
 t

h
e

 a
im

s
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c

ti
v
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

p
o

li
c

y
 o

r 
fu

n
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
a
s

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 
 W

H
A

T
 A

R
E

 T
H

E
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
 O

F
 T

H
E

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

?
 

 T
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t

h
e
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

fo
rm

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
a

 s
u

it
e

 o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 c

h
ild

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 a

n
d

 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

, 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

, 
a

g
e
n

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 t

o
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 T
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
rc

h
in

g
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 i
s
 t

h
e
 O

n
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

. 
 

T
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

th
e

re
fo

re
, 
re

fl
e

c
ts

 t
h
e

 v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 P
ro

s
p

e
ro

u
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 t

h
e
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 O

n
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 

P
la

n
: 

 ‘T
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 c

h
o

s
e

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
’ 
L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
–

 r
e
fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
is

 i
s
s
u

e
 i
n

 m
a
k
in

g
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 a

 m
o

re
 p

ro
s
p
e

ro
u

s
 p

la
c
e
. 

 B
u

t 
p

ro
s
p

e
ri
ty

 i
s
 n

o
t 

ju
s
t 

a
b
o

u
t 

w
e

a
lt
h
. 

 I
t 
is

 a
b

o
u

t 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 a

ll 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 t
h
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e
m

e
n

t 
to

 m
a

k
e
 t

h
e

 
b

e
s
t 
o
f 

th
e

ir
 l
iv

e
s
. 

 J
o

b
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 f
u

lf
ilm

e
n
t,

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 m

e
a

n
s
 t
o

 e
n

jo
y
 l
if
e
. 

 W
e
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 m

a
k
in

g
 t
h

is
 a

 
re

a
lit

y
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 b

y
 a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 m

o
re

 p
e
o

p
le

 i
n
to

 w
o

rk
, 

g
iv

in
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
h

e
y
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 j
o

b
-r

e
a

d
y
 

a
n

d
 b

y
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 f
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 n

e
w

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
’.
 

 T
h
e

 r
e
fr

e
s
h

e
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 P

la
n

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

in
 w

h
ic

h
 t

o
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

  
 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 n
e

w
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
s
 i
ts

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
 I

t 
d

e
a

ls
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 ‘
d

e
m

a
n

d
’ 

s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
 –

 c
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 f

ri
e

n
d

ly
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
to

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 n

e
w

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e

 t
h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

  
T

h
e

 ‘
s
u
p

p
ly

’ 
s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
 –

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 t
h

e
 s

k
ill

e
d

 a
n

d
 t

ra
in

e
d

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 i
s
 

th
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
th

e
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 a
n

d
 i
t’
s
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 E
Q

IA
. 

 T
h
e

 a
im

 o
f 

th
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t

o
: 

‘e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e

u
ri
a

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
, 

p
ro

s
p

e
ri
ty

 a
n

d
 m

o
b

ili
ty

 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

’ 
 

Page 189



4
 

 T
h
e

re
 a

re
 3

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
, 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

 

•
 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 1
 –

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t,
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

S
M

E
s
 

1
.1

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
 a

n
d

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 f

in
a

n
c
e

 
1

.2
 W

o
rk

 w
it
h

 l
a

rg
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
 h

a
rn

e
s
s
 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
o
f 

S
M

E
s
  

1
.3

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
o

c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

  
 

•
 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 2
 –

 P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

th
a

t 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
s
 a

 t
h

ri
v
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 b

a
s
e

 
2

.1
 S

e
c
u

re
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 g

ro
w

th
 

2
.2

 E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t,
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
, 

is
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

2
.3

 E
n

c
o
u

ra
g
in

g
 a

n
 e

n
tr

e
p

re
n
e

u
ri
a

l 
s
p

ir
it
 a

n
d

 a
 c

u
lt
u

re
 o

f 
in

n
o

v
a

ti
o
n

. 

 

•
 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 3
 –

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a

ti
n

g
 l
o

c
a

l 
n
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 w
is

h
e

s
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e

n
c
e

 a
 v

a
ri
e

ty
 o

f 
a

u
d

ie
n

c
e

s
 

3
.1

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

’ 
e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 v

o
ic

e
  

3
.2

 I
n
fl
u
e

n
c
e
 t

h
e
 p

o
lic

y
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 d

iv
e

rs
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
 

3
.3

 P
ro

m
o

te
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 a

s
 a

 l
o

c
a

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

, 
a
n

d
 a

 d
e

s
ti
n

a
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
v
is

it
o

rs
 

 W
H

Y
 I

S
 T

H
E

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
?

 
T

h
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 ‘
to

 s
e

t 
th

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

fo
r 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

s
. 

It
 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

a
 s

tr
o

n
g
, 

d
iv

e
rs

if
ie

d
 a

n
d

 e
n

tr
e
p

re
n

e
u

ri
a

l 
e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
u

tu
re

; 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 o

p
e

ra
te

s
 o

n
 a

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t
h

a
t 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
fo

c
u

s
, 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

’.
  

 T
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 w
ri
tt

e
n

 t
o

 s
it
 a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 t
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
, 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 

th
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

la
n
. 

S
p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 i
t 

s
it
s
 a

s
 a

 c
o
m

p
a

n
io

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

in
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
n

e
rg

y
 a

n
d

 
o

v
e

rl
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

n
d

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
. 
T

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 w

it
h

 i
ts

 a
u

th
o
ri
ta

ti
v
e

 o
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t,

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
, 
fo

rm
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 u
n

d
e

rp
in

n
in

g
 t

h
is

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 T
h
e

 d
ra

ft
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a

t 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 
to

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

re
s
p

e
c
ts

: 

Page 190



5
 

 

•
 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

s
 c

re
a

te
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
–

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 j
o
b

s
 w

h
ic

h
 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 m

a
y
 a

p
p

ly
 f

o
r…

. 
•
 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 i
s
 a

 m
e

a
n

s
 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 c

re
a

te
 w

e
a

lt
h

 –
 M

a
n

y
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 e
a

rn
 a

 l
iv

in
g
 b

y
 o

w
n

in
g
 a

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 o

r 
b

y
 b

e
in

g
 s

e
lf
-e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
. 

•
 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 f
u

e
ls

 l
o

c
a

l 
e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

•
 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

s
 t
h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
e

c
o

n
o

m
y
. 

 T
h
e

 k
e

y
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
 f

ra
m

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t
o

 d
o
 t

o
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 t
o

 f
o

s
te

r 
n

e
w

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
b
o

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 

p
la

c
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 

lim
it
e

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 t
o

 m
e
e

t 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 

  
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 i
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 s

tr
o

n
g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 p
ic

tu
re

 i
s
 b

ro
a

d
ly

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
. 

  
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 i
s
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 a

 p
la

c
e

 
w

h
e

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
ta

rt
-u

p
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
t 
h

a
s
 a

n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
in

g
 l
o

c
a

l 
p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 f
a

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
s
 

it
 m

o
v
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
. 

 T
h

e
s
e
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

•
 

S
k
ill

s
 g

a
p

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 n

e
e

d
s
 

•
 

R
e

la
ti
v
e

ly
 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
e

lf
-e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
•
 

L
im

it
e
d

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 f
o

r 
b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

•
 

U
n

d
e

rp
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 

•
 

L
a

c
k
 o

f 
s
u

it
a

b
le

 w
o

rk
s
p

a
c
e

 f
o

r 
s
m

a
ll 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

 T
h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 c

le
a

r 
in

 i
ts

 u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 m
a

n
y
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
a

n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 w

h
ic

h
 ‘
lie

 b
e

y
o

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

m
b

it
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 i
n
fl
u

e
n

c
e

’ 
a

n
d
 w

e
 a

re
 i
n

 a
n

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

lim
it
e

d
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

 I
t 
h

a
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

fo
c
u

s
, 

th
e

re
fo

re
, 
o

n
 a

d
d

in
g
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

in
g
 w

h
e

re
 i
t 

is
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 a
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 p
ro

-e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
in

 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
 W

it
h

 t
h

e
s
e

 a
m

b
it
io

u
s
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 
a

 r
o
b

u
s
t 
a

n
d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
e
 i
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 –

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g
y
 b

e
h

in
d

 e
n

a
b

lin
g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 t
o

 b
e
n

e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
. 

T
h
e

 r
a

ti
o

n
a

le
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

s
 h

o
w

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
’ 
s
k
ill

 l
e

v
e

ls
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

a
is

e
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 j
o

b
s
. 

 T
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

, 
e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
, 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 b

a
s
e
 t
h

a
t 

g
e
n

e
ra

te
s
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

th
a

t 
lo

c
a

l 
p
e

o
p

le
 c

a
n

 a
c
c
e

s
s
. 
T

h
e

 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n

s
 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t
h

e
s
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
. 

 T
h

e
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

ro
b

u
s
t 

to
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
a
n

d
 u

n
d
e

rp
in

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 T

h
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 T
a

s
k
 

G
ro

u
p

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

in
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 b
e

n
e
fi
tt

in
g
 a

re
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 T
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 f

it
 f

o
r 

Page 191



6
 

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

. 
  

 T
h

is
 n

e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

w
h

ile
 a

c
c
e
p

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
im

it
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
it
s
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 i
n
fl
u
e

n
c
e

 e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
, 

a
im

s
 t
o

 a
d

d
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 a
 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
n

 i
ts

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 a

n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 f
ri
e

n
d

ly
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

in
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
  

 H
O

W
 H

A
S

 T
H

E
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

Y
 B

E
E

N
 R

E
V

IS
E

D
?

 
T

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 –
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 ‘
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

’ 
w

a
s
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 o

th
e

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
. 

  
 T

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 w
e

a
lt
h

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

fo
r 

u
s
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 i
s
 b

u
ilt

 o
n

 a
 s

o
lid

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

is
 w

a
s
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 –

 w
h

ic
h

 
in

d
ic

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 w

a
s
 ‘
w

e
ll 

re
s
e

a
rc

h
e

d
’.
  

It
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
a

t:
 

•
 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 i
s
 w

o
rt

h
 o

v
e

r 
£

6
b

n
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r,

 l
a

rg
e

r 
th

a
n
 t

h
e

 o
th

e
r 

H
o

s
t 
B

o
ro

u
g
h

s
 a

n
d
 b

ig
g
e

r 
th

a
n

 M
o
n

a
c
o

, 
M

a
lt
a

 o
r 

J
e

rs
e

y
 

•
 

T
h
e

 e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 2

0
4
,0

0
0

 j
o

b
s
, 

5
%

 o
f 

L
o

n
d
o

n
’s

 t
o
ta

l 
a
n

d
 3

0
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

jo
b

s
 i
n

 E
a

s
t 
L

o
n
d
o

n
. 

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 6
0

,0
0

0
 m

o
re

 j
o

b
s
 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e

 

•
 

L
e

s
s
 t
h

a
n
 a

 f
if
th

 o
f 

jo
b
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
re

 t
a
k
e

n
 b

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
; 

th
e

 o
th

e
rs

 a
re

 f
ill

e
d

 b
y
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
o

m
m

u
ti
n

g
 i
n

 

•
 

T
w

o
 t

h
ir
d

s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

, 
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 h
a

lf
 i
n

 C
e
n

tr
a

l 
L

o
n

d
o
n

 –
 m

a
in

ly
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 a

n
d

 
W

e
s
tm

in
s
te

r.
  

A
 t
h

ir
d

 o
f 

o
u

t-
c
o
m

m
u

te
rs

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

•
 

A
 t

h
ir
d

 o
f 

a
ll 

jo
b

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
re

 i
n

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

fi
ft

h
 i
n

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

a
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 t
o

ta
l 
o
f 

5
5

%
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
p
a

ra
b

le
 w

it
h

 C
e

n
tr

a
l 
L

o
n

d
o
n

. 
 I
n

 c
o
n

tr
a

s
t,
 m

a
n

u
fa

c
tu

ri
n

g
 –

 i
f 

n
e
w

s
p

a
p

e
r 

p
u

b
lis

h
in

g
 i
s
 e

x
c
lu

d
e

d
 –

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

 f
o
r 

ju
s
t 

2
%

 o
f 

jo
b

s
 

•
 

M
o

re
 t

h
a
n

 a
n

y
w

h
e

re
 e

ls
e

 i
n

 L
o

n
d
o

n
, 
la

rg
e

 f
ir
m

s
 d

o
m

in
a

te
 t

h
e

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 –

 w
it
h

 o
v
e

r 
4

5
%

 o
f 

jo
b

s
 i
n
 f

ir
m

s
 w

it
h

 5
0
0

 o
r 

m
o

re
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

r 
7
0

%
 i
n

 C
a
n

a
ry

 W
h
a

rf
 i
ts

e
lf
 

•
 

U
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
1

3
%

 i
s
 c

lo
s
e

 t
o

 t
w

ic
e

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 

7
.6

%
. 

 O
n

ly
 7

0
%

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n

 w
o

rk
 o

r 
lo

o
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
 

a
n

d
, 
fo

r 
fe

m
a

le
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
th

e
 f

ig
u

re
 i
s
 l
e

s
s
 t
h

a
n

 6
0

%
. 

 A
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
o
f 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 –

 t
w

ic
e

 t
h
e

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 –
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

 
q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

r 
4

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

 w
o

rk
 

•
 

T
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 h
a

s
 t
h

e
 f
o

u
rt

h
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n

 t
u

rn
o

v
e

r 
in

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 t
h

is
 i
s
 i
n

 p
a

rt
 d

ri
v
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 c

h
o

ic
e

s
 i
n
 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 H

o
u

s
e

 p
ri
c
e

s
 a

re
 s

ix
 t

im
e

s
 m

e
a
n

 e
a

rn
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 o

v
e

r 
8

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 f

la
ts

, 
c
o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 5
0

%
 

fo
r 

L
o
n

d
o
n

 a
s
 a

 w
h

o
le

 

•
 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 t

h
e

 t
h

ir
d

 m
o

s
t 

d
e

p
ri
v
e

d
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d
 i
n

 L
o

n
d
o
n

. 
 B

u
t 
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 a
 t

e
n
th

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 e

a
rn

 o
v
e

r 
£
1

0
0

,0
0

0
, 

c
o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 2
%

 f
o

r 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 

Page 192



7
 

 

•
 

T
h
e

 l
a

s
t 
d

e
c
a

d
e
 h

a
s
 s

e
e

n
 j
o

b
 g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
6
0

%
 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 –
 f

o
u

r 
ti
m

e
s
 t

h
e

 r
a

te
 f

o
r 

L
o
n

d
o
n

. 
 O

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

tw
e

n
ty

 y
e

a
rs

, 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
is

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 g

ro
w

 b
y
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
5
0

,0
0
0

 –
 f

a
s
te

r 
th

a
n

 i
n
 a

ll 
b

u
t 

o
n

e
 o

th
e

r 
L

o
n

d
o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
. T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e
 a

n
d

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 W
h

ile
 i
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

h
e

 f
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 

u
p

o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
o

 b
u

ild
 t
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d

 i
t’
s
 A

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
, 

it
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

g
u

la
rl
y
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 t
h

is
 s

tr
e

n
g
th

 a
n

d
 r

e
le

v
a

n
c
e

. 
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

lin
e
 o

f 
s
ig

h
t 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 d

a
ta

 t
o

 t
h
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 I
t 

a
ls

o
 c

le
a

rl
y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 t
h

e
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
 f
a

c
e

d
 b

y
 a

 l
im

it
e

d
 a

b
ili

ty
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 i
ts

’ 
p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 a
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

. 
 A

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 
m

a
d
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 l
in

k
a

g
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 t
h

o
s
e

 w
h

o
 a

re
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 l
a

b
o

u
r 

m
a

rk
e

t 
d
u

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
ir
 

e
th

n
ic

it
y
, 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

, 
g
e

n
d

e
r,

 s
k
ill

 l
e

v
e

l,
 g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
lo

c
a
ti
o

n
, 
s
o

c
io

-e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 s

ta
tu

s
 a

n
d
 a

g
e

. 
 O

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 
2

0
 y

e
a

rs
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
e

d
 –

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

C
a

n
a

ry
 W

h
a

rf
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 C
it
y
 F

ri
n

g
e

. 
 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 c

re
a

te
d

 a
n

 e
n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
w

h
e

re
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 1
.4

 j
o

b
s
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

ry
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

in
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
  

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 8

5
%

 o
f 

jo
b
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 
a

re
 f

ill
e

d
 b

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 t

ra
v
e

l 
in

to
 w

o
rk

 e
v
e

ry
 d

a
y
. 

 A
t 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e

 a
s
 t
h

e
 r

is
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
c
to

rs
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

, 
th

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

a
n
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
d

e
c
lin

e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a

l 
lo

w
 s

k
ill

e
d

 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
n

d
 a

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

re
tr

e
n

c
h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 p
u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
n

d
 t
h

ir
d

 s
e
c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
. 

 T
h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 a
p

p
e
a

rs
 

to
 b

e
 l
a

rg
e

ly
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 b

a
s
e

d
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h

 s
k
ill

. 
 T

h
is

 c
re

a
te

s
 a

 s
k
ill

s
 m

is
m

a
tc

h
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 f

o
r 

a
 h

ig
h

ly
 s

k
ill

e
d

 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 (
3

5
,5

0
0

 p
e

o
p

le
, 

w
h

ic
h

 e
q
u

a
te

s
 t
o

 a
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
o
f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

 
q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

r 
4

0
%

 o
f 

th
e
m

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

 w
o

rk
).

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e

la
ti
v
e

ly
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
e
n

tr
y
 l
e

v
e

l 
jo

b
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u
g
h

 a
n

d
 a

 
re

la
ti
v
e

ly
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
w

e
ll-

p
a

id
 p

o
s
it
io

n
s
, 
b

u
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 l
it
tl
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 t

w
o

. 
 9

5
%

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 i
n

 a
 s

u
rv

e
y
 i
n

 
2

0
0
9

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 h

a
d

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
y
 f

ill
in

g
 v

a
c
a

n
c
ie

s
 b

e
c
a
u

s
e

 o
f 

s
k
ill

 s
h

o
rt

a
g
e

s
. 

 O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
, 

s
u

b
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
. 

 T
h

e
s
e
 w

ill
 a

s
s
is

t 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 

(a
n

d
th

e
 P

ro
s
p

e
ro

u
s
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ro

u
p

) 
in

 m
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 i
n

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 i
ts

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
im

s
. 

 T
h
e

 E
Q

IA
 c

o
n

s
id

e
rs

 t
h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 o
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 s

tr
a

n
d

s
. 

 S
tr

u
c

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

T
h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
d

 a
s
 f
o

llo
w

s
: 

•
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 –
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
e

s
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
te

x
ts

, 
c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

s
e
ts

 o
u

t 
th

e
 a

im
 a

n
d

 6
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 m
e

c
h

a
n

is
m

; 

•
 

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 –

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

s
 t

h
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

p
re

s
e

n
ts

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 a
s
 a

 u
n

iq
u

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

m
a

p
s
 o

u
t 
th

e
 g

a
p

s
 

Page 193



8
 

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
, 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
m

u
tu

a
l 
b
e

n
e
fi
t,

 w
a

rn
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

is
k
s
 o

f 
fa

ilu
re

, 
h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g
, 

s
e

ts
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
rc

h
in

g
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 a

n
d

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
; 

•
 

W
h

a
t 

is
 h

a
p

p
e

n
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
–

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 t

h
e

 r
a

te
 o

f 
c
h
a

n
g
e

, 
A

 C
e

n
tr

a
l 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
, 

g
ro

w
th

 o
f 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
/d

e
c
lin

e
 o

f 
tr

a
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
e

c
to

rs
, 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
lu

s
te

ri
n

g
, 

o
th

e
r 

s
e

c
to

rs
 o

f 
g
ro

w
th

, 
a

n
 

e
n

te
rp

ri
s
in

g
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
; 

•
 

W
h

o
’s

 w
h

o
 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 –

 p
re

s
e

n
ts

 t
h

e
 s

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

rs
 t
o

 t
h
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 
e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

ty
p

e
s
 o

f 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

, 
ro

le
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il;

 

•
 

P
ro

b
le

m
s

 –
  

th
e

 s
k
ill

s
 g

a
p

 –
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 b
o
ro

u
g
h

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
, 
re

la
ti
v
e

ly
 l
o

w
 r

a
te

 o
f 

s
e

lf
-e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t,
 l
im

it
e

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t
o

 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
, 

u
n

d
e

rp
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 a

n
d

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
s
u

it
a

b
le

 w
o

rk
s
p

a
c
e

 f
o

r 
s
m

a
ll 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
; 

•
 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

s
 

 T
h
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 b
u

ild
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e
 S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
e
ts

 a
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
. 

   S
E

C
T

IO
N

 3
: 

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 I

m
p

li
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s

 t
o

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

P
o

li
c

y
 o

r 
F

u
n

c
ti

o
n

 
  W

h
a
t 

is
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n

c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 P

la
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

?
 

T
h
e

 b
u

lk
 o

f 
th

e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
t 

2
0

1
0
 c

a
m

e
 i
n
to

 f
o

rc
e

 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 p
u

b
lic

 s
e

c
to

r 
d

u
ty

 w
ill

 c
o

m
e

 i
n

to
 f
o

rc
e

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
1

. 
In

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 i
ts

 f
u

n
c
ti
o
n

s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n
d

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 m
u

s
t 

g
iv

e
 d

u
e
 r

e
g
a

rd
 t

o
: 

•
 

E
lim

in
a

ti
n

g
 d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
, 
h

a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t,

 v
ic

ti
m

is
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
c
o

n
d
u

c
t 

th
a

t 
is

 p
ro

h
ib

it
e
d

 b
y
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
r 

th
is

 A
c
t;
 

•
 

A
d

v
a

n
c
in

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

e
rs

o
n

s
 w

h
o

 s
h
a

re
 a

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 a

n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n

s
 w

h
o

 d
o
 n

o
t 

s
h

a
re

 i
t,

 w
h

ic
h

 m
e

a
n

s
 

•
 

R
e

m
o

v
in

g
 o

r 
m

in
im

is
in

g
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

s
 s

u
ff

e
re

d
 b

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 d
u
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

ir
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
. 

•
 

T
a

k
in

g
 s

te
p

s
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
. 

•
 

E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 p
u

b
lic

 l
if
e

 o
r 

in
 o

th
e

r 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

ir
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 i
s
  

  
d

is
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

ly
 l
o

w
. 

 

•
 

F
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 g

o
o

d
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

e
rs

o
n

s
 w

h
o

 s
h

a
re

 a
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 a

n
d

 p
e

rs
o
n

s
 w

h
o

 d
o

 n
o

t 
s
h

a
re

 i
t.

 

Page 194



9
 

 T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
o

n
u

s
 o

n
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 b
e

 m
o

re
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
h

o
w

 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
c
k
le

d
. 

 
 T

h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
a

 k
e

y
 a

im
 t
o

 ‘
e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e

u
ri
a

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
, 

p
ro

s
p
e

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 m

o
b

ili
ty

 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

’.
  
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

lim
it
a
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

, 
to

 i
n
fl
u

e
n

c
e

 e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

: 

•
 

T
h
e

 ‘
s
u

p
p

ly
’ 
s
id

e
 –

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

jo
b

s
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 –

 i
s
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
o
n

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 –

 b
o
th

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 
g
lo

b
a

l 
–

 a
n

d
 i
s
n
o

t 
lo

c
a

lly
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

. 

•
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 l
e

s
s
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
fu

n
d

in
g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
s
o

 t
h

e
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 t

h
a

t 
is

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

d
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

a
lly

. 

•
 

T
h
e

 g
ro

w
th

 s
e

c
to

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 m
a

in
ly

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 h
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d

 w
o

rk
e

rs
 –

 i
n

 a
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 w
h

e
re

 q
u

a
lif

ic
a
ti
o

n
 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

re
 

g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 l
o

w
. 

 E
n

s
u

ri
n
g
 t

h
a

t 
s
k
ill

 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

re
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

b
u

t 
it
 i
s
 o

n
ly

 i
f 

th
is

 c
a

n
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

s
e

 g
ro

w
th

 s
e

c
to

rs
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

. 

•
 

T
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 h
a

s
 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
b

o
th

 s
e

lf
-e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 T
h

e
s
e
 a

re
 b

o
th

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 m

a
y
 

b
e

 s
c
o
p

e
 f
o

r 
p

ro
v
id

in
g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 –

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 f

o
r 

th
o

s
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 e

.g
. 

B
a
n

g
la

d
e

s
h

i 
w

o
m

e
n

, 
y
o

u
n

g
 m

e
n

 u
n
d

e
r 

2
9
. 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 h

a
v
e

 m
o

re
 o

f 
a

 s
o

c
ia

l 
im

p
a

c
t 
th

a
n

 a
n

 e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 i
m

p
a

c
t.
  

S
e

lf
-e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 a
re

, 
h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 a

re
a

s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 c

o
u

ld
 o

ff
e

r 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

, 
c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 n
e

tw
o

rk
in

g
. 

    S
E

C
T

IO
N

 3
: 

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
c

t 
b

y
 E

q
u

a
li

ty
 S

tr
a

n
d

 
 R

A
C

E
 E

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 I
M

P
A

C
T

: 
O

u
tl
in

e
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

y
o
u
r 

p
o
lic

y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

ra
c
ia

l 
g
ro

u
p
s
 

W
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 r

a
c
e
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i

n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
to

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
D

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 
ra

c
e
 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 n
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
?

  
T

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

e
th

n
ic

a
lly

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
, 

w
it
h
 

a
 n

o
n
-w

h
it
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
v
e
r 

4
5
%

, 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 a

 1
3
%

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
T

h
e
 h

ig
h
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
A

s
ia

n
 o

ri
g

in
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
 s

ta
n
d
s
 i
n
 m

a
rk

e
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
s
t 
to

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
s
 f
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 a

s
 a

 
w

h
o

le
. 

 T
h
e
 2

0
0
9
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
E

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

S
k
ill

s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 (

N
E

S
S

) 
s
h
o
w

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
a
t 

Y
e
s
: 

T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
s
 t

h
a
t:
 

‘H
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 m

e
a
n
 t

h
a
t 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 l
o
w

 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
in

c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
ts

, 
a
n
d
 c

a
n
 s

tr
u
g
g

le
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 d

e
b
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

e
a
n
s
. 
In

fo
rm

a
l 
s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 
p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 f
ri
e
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 

fa
m

ily
, 

m
a
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 m

e
a
n
s
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 i
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

s
u
g
g

e
s
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 p

re
v
a
le

n
t 

a
m

o
n
g
 t

h
e
 B

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 

M
in

o
ri
ty

 E
th

n
ic

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
’.
 

Page 195



1
0

 

 le
a
s
t 

h
a
lf
 t

h
e
 o

w
n
e
rs

 o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

h
a
lf
 o

w
n
e
d
 a

re
 f
ro

m
 a

 b
la

c
k
, 
a
s
ia

n
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

e
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 g
ro

u
p
.  

 

 It
 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 w

e
ll 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 m
o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 –

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 r

o
le

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 (

e
.g

. 
w

h
ic

h
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 

a
re

 t
h
e
y
 f

ro
m

, 
w

h
a
t 

s
o
rt

 o
f 

s
e
c
to

rs
 a

re
 t
h
e
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
).

 I
t 

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 ‘
d
e
m

a
n
d
’ 
s
id

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
s
s
is

t 
in

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 s

u
c
h
 a

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

. 
 T

h
is

 a
ls

o
 s

h
o
u
ld

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

, 
w

h
e
re

 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
, 
g

e
n
d
e
r,

 a
g

e
, 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
, 

fa
it
h
 (

a
n
d
 i
f 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 L
G

B
T

) 
to

 
e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

B
o
a
rd

  
to

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
 T

h
e
 m

a
p
p
in

g
, 
s
u
p
p
ly

 c
h
a
in

 a
n

d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

in
g
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 (

e
.g

.1
c
, 
2
b
, 
3
a
) 

p
ro

v
id

e
 s

o
m

e
 

e
a
rl
y
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
n
 f

e
e
d
 i
n
to

 f
u
tu

re
 

re
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 

 It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 e

a
rl
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 

a
n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 b

a
s
e
 i
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 b

u
ild

 a
 g

re
a
te

r 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 e
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

w
n
e
rs

. 
 D

IS
A

B
IL

IT
Y

 E
Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 I
M

P
A

C
T

: 
O

u
tl
in

e
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

y
o
u
r 

p
o
lic

y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 
W

h
a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 
d

is
a
b

il
it

y
 e

q
u

a
li

ty
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 i

n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
D

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 

d
is

a
b

il
it

y
 e

q
u

a
li

ty
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
?

  
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
n
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

m
o
n
g

s
t 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

: 
T

h
e
 m

o
s
t 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
is

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 t
o
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 p
a
id

 o
n
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

p
o
o
r 

h
e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
. 

  
T

h
o
s
e
 o

n
 c

la
im

in
g
 i
ll-

h
e
a
lt
h
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
re

 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 

g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
w

o
rk

le
s
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
 (

E
S

A
) 

is
 p

a
id

 t
o
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
s
e
 i
lln

e
s
s
 o

r 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 l
im

it
s
 

th
e
ir
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 w

o
rk

, 
a
n
d
 r

e
p
la

c
e
s
 b

o
th

 I
n
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
(I

B
) 

a
n
d
 

In
c
o
m

e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 (
IS

).
 I

n
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
0
, 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 1
2
,3

7
0
 E

S
A

/I
B

 
c
la

im
a
n
ts

 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

; 
7
%

 o
f 

th
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n
. 
 B

y
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
, 
o
f 

2
,6

0
0
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 E

S
A

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

; 
7
6
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 
w

e
re

 
fo

u
n
d
 f

it
 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

. 
O

f 
th

o
s
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

p
p
e
a
le

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
, 

3
7
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 
w

e
re

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l.
  
W

e
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 

4
5
%

 o
f 

IB
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 i
n
 

P
a
rt

ia
ll

y
:T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t
h
a
t 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 m
o
s
t 

e
x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 m
o
s
t 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 l
o
c
a
l 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.
  
T

h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
a

t 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 

e
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

 o
r 

s
e
lf
-e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 o

b
v
io

u
s
ly

 a
 r

e
a
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

it
h
 i
ts

 w
o
rk

 o
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

k
ill

s
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
. 
 N

e
tw

o
rk

in
g

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
p
lo

it
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 b

e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
. 

Page 196



1
1

 

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 s
u
ff

e
r 

fr
o
m

 a
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
. 
 

 D
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 a
ro

u
n
d
 t

w
ic

e
 a

s
 l
ik

e
ly

 n
o
t 
to

 h
o
ld

 a
n
y
 

q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
lf
 a

s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 h

o
ld

 a
 d

e
g
re

e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
ir
 e

m
p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
. 
 

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 

ra
te

s
 o

f 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
. 

    G
E

N
D

E
R

 E
Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 I

M
P

A
C

T
: 

O
u
tl
in

e
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

y
o
u
r 

p
o
lic

y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
g

e
n
d
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 T

ra
n

s
 

p
e
o
p
le

) 
W

h
a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 
g

e
n

d
e
r 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i

n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
D

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 

g
e
n

d
e
r 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 n
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
?

  

T
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 d

is
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

ly
 f

a
ll 

o
n
 w

o
m

e
n
. 
L
o
n
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 
(9

0
%

 o
f 

w
h
o
m

 a
re

 w
o
m

e
n
) 

a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 h

a
rd

e
s
t 

h
it
 (

T
U

C
 r

e
p
o
rt

 T
h
e
 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 
th

e
 C

u
ts

),
 l
o
s
in

g
 1

8
.5

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
ir
 n

e
t 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 i
n
c
o
m

e
. 
  

 
W

o
m

e
n
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
t 
6
5
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 U

K
 

a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

 h
e
a
v
ie

r 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
jo

b
 l
o
s
s
e
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
in

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 t
h
a
n
 m

e
n
. 
 P

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
jo

b
 

lo
s
s
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

e
lt
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 h

a
rd

 b
y
 w

o
m

e
n
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a
rt

-t
im

e
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 p

a
y
 f
o
r 

p
a
rt

-t
im

e
 j
o
b
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
is

 j
u
s
t 

£
6
.7

8
 a

n
 

h
o
u
r 

(c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 £

9
.3

4
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r)
. 
  
T

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 f
o
r 

a
b
o
u
t 

o
n
e
 s

ix
th

 o
f 

a
ll 

th
e
 j
o
b
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

Y
e
s
:T

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 

in
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 t
o
 d

iv
e
rs

if
y
. 

 K
e
y
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
g

ro
w

th
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 w

it
h
in

 
s
e
c
to

rs
 w

h
e
re

 w
o
m

e
n
 h

a
v
e
 t

ra
d
it
io

n
a
lly

 w
o
rk

e
d
 e

.g
. 
re

ta
il,

 t
o
u
ri
s
m

, 
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
a
n
d
 c

re
a
ti
v
e
. 

 I
t 
is

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

v
ia

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 
k
e
y
 s

k
ill

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 i
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 
g

ro
u
p
s
 –

 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 w

o
m

e
n
 –

 t
h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 p
o
o
l 
o
f 

s
k
ill

e
d

 w
o
rk

e
rs

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 j
o
b
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
n
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 r

a
te

s
 f

o
r 

w
o
m

e
n
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
re

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 l
o

w
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 a

m
o
n
g

s
t 

B
a
n
g

la
d
e
s
h
i 
a
n
d
 S

o
m

a
li 

w
o
m

e
n
. 
 

 

Y
e
s
:T

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t3

 W
o
m

e
n
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
a
s
 a

 ‘
b
o
ro

u
g

h
 l
e
v
e
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
’.
  
T

h
is

 s
u
g
g

e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 
le

v
e

l 
o
f 

in
te

re
s
t 
in

 s
ta

rt
-u

p
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

in
g

 f
ro

m
 w

o
m

e
n

. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
o
rk

 w
ill

 f
o
llo

w
 s

h
o
rt

ly
, 

w
it
h
 

Page 197



1
2

 

 

S
o
m

a
li 

a
n
d
 B

a
n
g

la
d
e
s
h
i 
w

o
m

e
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 b
e
tt
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 f
a
c
e
d
 b

y
 w

o
m

e
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
s
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 h

a
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 
s
tr

o
n
g
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
 o

f 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 s

e
lf
-e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 S

o
m

a
li 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 
w

o
m

e
n
 p

la
y
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
p
a
rt

 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
. 
 I
t 
a
ls

o
 

s
u
g
g

e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

s
e
lf
-e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

n
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
o
u
te

 w
a
y
s
 i
n
to

 w
o
rk

 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 

 It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h
is

 
le

v
e

l 
o
f 

in
te

re
s
t 
in

 b
o
th

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
y
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
e
d
s
 m

a
y
 f

lo
w

 f
ro

m
 t
h
is

. 
  

 A
G

E
 E

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 I
M

P
A

C
T

: 
O

u
tl

in
e
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

y
o

u
r 

p
o

li
c
y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
fu

n
c
ti

o
n

 o
n

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

a
g

e
 g

ro
u

p
s
  

W
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 
a
g

e
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i

n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
D

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 

a
g

e
 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 n
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
?

  
W

it
h
 o

v
e
r 

a
 t

h
ir
d
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
g

e
d
 5

5
-5

9
 c

la
im

in
g
 a

n
 o

u
t-

o
f-

w
o
rk

 
b
e
n
e
fi
t,
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 h

e
a
v
ily

 o
v
e
r-

re
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

la
im

a
n
t 
c
o
u
n
t 

re
la

ti
v
e
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

t 
a
lm

o
s
t 
tw

ic
e
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
  

N
o

: 
 T

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

n
y
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 S

O
5
 ‘
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 a

 c
u
lt
u

re
 o

f 
in

n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
ri
a
l 
s
p
ir
it
’.
 

 It
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 p

ic
k
e
d
 u

p
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
n
to

 a
ll 

th
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 s

tr
a
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
fu

tu
re

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
s
 w

ill
 

ta
rg

e
t 
m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 o

v
e
r 

5
0
. 

 
C

h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
: 

O
v
e
r 

6
0
%

 o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

re
 c

la
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 

liv
in

g
 i
n
 l
o
w

-i
n
c
o
m

e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
. 

 O
v
e
r 

5
0
%

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n

 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

liv
e
 i
n
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 c

la
im

in
g
 k

e
y
 o

u
t 
o
f 

w
o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
 3

3
%

 o
f 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 a

re
 l
iv

in
g

 o
n
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 £

2
0
,0

0
0
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

. 
 A

ll 
w

a
rd

s
 e

x
h
ib

it
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

c
h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 U

K
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
. 
 T

h
e
 w

a
rd

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

c
h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 i
s
 S

t 
D

u
n
s
ta

n
’s

 a
n
d
 S

te
p
n
e
y
 G

re
e
n
, 

w
h
e
re

 n
e
a
rl
y
 7

0
%

 o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 

p
o
v
e
rt

y
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 B

ro
m

le
y
 b

y
 B

o
w

, 
M

ile
 E

n
d
 E

a
s
t,

 

Y
e
s
: 

 T
h
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
s
 t

o
 c

h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 i
ts

 
c
le

a
r 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

c
u
lt
u
re

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d
 c

le
a
rl
y
 l
in

k
in

g
 t

h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 t
o
 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

. 
 T

h
is

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 t

h
e
 a

lig
n
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

is
 p

o
lic

y
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p
le

’s
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t’
s
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 O

n
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
N

1
 1

1
6
 –

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

in
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
. 

Page 198



1
3

 

 E
a
s
t 
In

d
ia

 a
n
d
 L

a
n
s
b
u
ry

, 
B

e
th

n
a
l 
G

re
e
n
 S

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 S

h
a
d

w
e
ll,

 e
a
c
h
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 t
w

o
 t
h
ir
d
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
. 

 L
ik

e
 d

e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

e
s
, 

c
h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 i
s
 h

ig
h
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 

th
e
 U

K
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 i
t 
s
h
o
w

 s
tr

o
n
g

 s
p
a
ti
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 B
y
 c

re
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
re

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 p

re
p
a
ri

n
g

 l
o
c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

s
k
ill

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 j
o
b
s
 o

n
 o

ff
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 a

 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
b
u
rd

e
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 E

x
c
h
e
q

u
e
r 

in
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 o
f 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

c
o
s
ts

. 
 I

n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 m

e
d
ia

n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
 

is
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l,
 b

o
th

 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
c
o
m

b
a
tt
in

g
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
 a

n
d
 d

e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 

in
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
s
ti
m

u
la

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

y
. 
 H

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

d
is

p
o
s
a
b
le

 
in

c
o
m

e
 i
n
 t
u
rn

 p
ro

v
id

e
 m

o
re

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

re
ta

il,
 l
e
is

u
re

, 
to

u
ri
s
m

 
a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 s

e
c
to

rs
 t

o
 p

ro
s
p
e
r 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 
U

n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
m

o
n
g

s
t 
y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

: 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
1
6
-1

8
, 
n
o
t 
in

 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g

 o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 i
n
to

 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

1
8
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
. 
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
ta

 s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 

1
8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 (
1
7
%

) 
th

a
n
 1

6
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 (

4
%

) 
to

 b
e
 N

E
E

T
 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
b
le

m
 i
s
 g

e
tt

in
g

 w
o
rs

e
 f
o
r 

1
8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
. 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
h
a
s
 t

h
e
 y

o
u
n
g

e
s
t 
jo

b
-s

e
e
k
e
rs

 w
it
h
in

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 –

 4
3
%

 o
f 

J
S

A
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 
a
re

 u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
2
9
. 
 B

la
c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n
 (

1
1
.2

%
) 

a
n
d
 B

a
n
g

la
d
e
s
h
i 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 (
9
.4

%
) 

h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
c
la

im
a
n
t 
ra

te
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 

Y
e
s
: 

T
h
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

ig
h
lig

h
ts

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

it
h
 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

, 
w

o
rk

in
g

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

‘Y
o
u
r 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
’ 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

a
k
in

g
 t

e
s
t 
m

a
rk

e
t 
s
ta

lls
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

, 
a
d
v
o
c
a
ti
n
g

 o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

e
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 u

n
iv

e
rs

it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 S

M
E

’s
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e
a
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
e
re

 i
t 

is
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
e
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
 s

k
ill

s
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
c
o
lle

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 

a
s
 E

L
B

A
.I

n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 f

ro
m

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 g

o
o
d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o
 j
o
b
 

v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 g

ro
w

th
 s

e
c
to

rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 It
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 b

u
ilt

 o
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 g
o
o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
ta

n
y
 g

a
p
s
 a

n
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 –

 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 s

k
ill

s
 i
n
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

. 
  

S
E

X
U

A
L

 O
R

IE
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 E

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 I
M

P
A

C
T

: 
O

u
tl
in

e
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

y
o
u
r 

p
o
lic

y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 g

a
y
, 

le
s
b
ia

n
 (

L
G

B
) 

a
n
d
 b

is
e
x
u
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

 
W

h
a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 
L

G
B

 e
q

u
a
li
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i

n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
D

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 

L
G

B
 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 n
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
?

  

Page 199



1
4

 

 It
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
1
0
%

 o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
s
 l
e
s
b
ia

n
, 
g

a
y
 o

r 
b
is

e
x
u
a
l 
(L

G
B

),
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
a
n
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 2
3
,9

0
0
 L

G
B

 
p
e
o
p
le

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 

N
o

: 
 T

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 s
e
x
u
a
l 
o
ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

n
 

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

r 
d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 i
ts

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 o

r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
 I
t 

is
 

n
o
t 

c
le

a
r 

if
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
o
ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

 b
a
rr

ie
r 

in
 s

e
tt
in

g
 u

p
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

r 
in

 
b
e
in

g
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

w
n
e
r,

 o
r 

if
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 t
h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 
s
h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 

L
G

B
T

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

re
 d

is
a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 s

e
c
to

rs
. 
  

 It
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 t
o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 

s
tr

a
n
d
s
 b

u
ild

s
 a

 p
ic

tu
re

 o
f 
th

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 f
a
c
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 

fr
o
m

 L
G

B
T

 b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 w

h
o
 w

a
n
t 

to
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

s
e
c
to

r.
 

 
R

E
L

IG
IO

N
/B

E
L

IE
F

 E
Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 I

M
P

A
C

T
: 

O
u
tl
in

e
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

y
o
u
r 

p
o
lic

y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
re

lig
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 

b
e
lie

fs
 

W
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 
re

li
g

io
n

/b
e
li

e
f 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

 T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
D

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 

R
e
li

g
io

n
/ 

B
e
li

e
f 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 n
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
?

  
T

h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
re

lig
io

n
 a

n
d
 b

e
lie

f 
in

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e
. 

7
8
%

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 s
ta

te
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

 r
e
lig

io
u
s
 b

e
lie

f,
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
T

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 h

a
s
 t
h
e
 

h
ig

h
e
s
t 
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
M

u
s
lim

 p
e
o
p
le

 o
f 

a
n
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
tr

y
; 

a
t 
3
6
.4

%
 a

n
d
 4

0
%

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 C
h
ri
s
ti
a
n
. 
 

 T
h
e
 r

e
lig

io
n
 a

n
d
 b

e
lie

f 
e
q

u
a
lit

y
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

re
 i
n
 m

a
n
y
 

re
s
p
e
c
ts

 i
n
tr

in
s
ic

a
lly

 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

e
q

u
a
lit

y
 s

tr
a
n
d
s
. 
 F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
th

e
 

h
ig

h
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

m
o
n
g

s
t 

M
u
s
lim

 w
o
m

e
n
. 
  
 

 

Y
e
s
: 

 T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 d

o
e
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 
Is

la
m

ic
 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

 s
o
u
rc

e
 o

f 
s
ta

rt
-u

p
 a

n
d
 g

ro
w

th
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 n

e
w

 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 It
 i
s
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

o
s
e
 w

it
h
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
fa

it
h
s
 m

a
y
 w

is
h
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 a

 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
c
a
re

e
r 

p
a
th

 e
.g

. 
s
e
lf
-e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

h
ip

. 
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

s
e
lf
-e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 

  
S

O
C

IO
 E

C
O

N
O

M
IC

 E
Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
 I

M
P

A
C

T
: 

O
u
tl
in

e
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 s

o
c
io

 e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

y
o
u
r 

p
o
lic

y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
 

W
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 
s
o

c
io

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 e
q

u
a
li
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

 T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
D

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 

s
o

c
io

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 e
q

u
a
li
ty

 n
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
?

  
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 s
tr

u
g
g

le
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 
jo

b
s
,i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 t
ra

v
e
l 
o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 8

5
%

 o
f 
jo

b
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

re
 f

ill
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
o
s
e
 

Y
e
s
: 

T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 m

is
m

a
tc

h
 h

a
s
 s

o
c
ia

l,
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
o
s
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

b
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

o
n
-f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 e

n
h
a

n
c
in

g
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 c

lu
s
te

rs
 (

IC
T

 a
n
d
 H

ig
h
 T

e
c
h
, 

Page 200



1
5

 

 w
h
o
 c

o
m

m
u
te

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 e
v
e
ry

 d
a
y
. 

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
a
n
d
 c

re
a
ti
v
e
, 

re
ta

il,
 h

o
s
p
it
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 t

o
u
ri
s
m

) 
w

ill
 b

e
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 t

o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t
h
is

 i
m

b
a
la

n
c
e
. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t

h
is

 c
o
n
te

x
tu

a
l 

is
s
u
e
 a

re
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a

s
 a

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
; 
th

a
t 
g
ro

w
th

 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
c
to

rs
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t

o
 d

iv
e
rs

if
y
 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 h
a
s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 o

v
e
rl
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 

m
a
x
im

u
m

 m
u
tu

a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
t.
 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 C

o
h

e
s
io

n
 I
M

P
A

C
T

: 
O

u
tl
in

e
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 c

o
h
e
s
io

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

y
o
u
r 

p
o
lic

y
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
 

W
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 
c
o

h
e
s
io

n
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 i

n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
D

o
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
l 

c
o

h
e
s
io

n
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
?

  
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 h
a
s
 l
o
n
g

 b
e
e
n
 a

 p
la

c
e
 w

h
e
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 l
iv

e
d
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r.

 O
v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
tw

e
n
ty

 y
e
a
rs

, 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 h
a
s
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 a

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 i
ts

 e
c
o
n
o
m

y
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 

th
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

ra
d
u
a
l 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 t
ra

n
s
la

ti
n
g
 t

h
is

 i
n

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

c
o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

b
o
th

 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 F

ri
n
g

e
 a

n
d
 C

a
n
a
ry

 
W

h
a
rf

 h
a
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 a

 b
o
o
m

 i
n
 h

ig
h
-s

k
ill

e
d
 m

o
d
e
rn

 o
c
c
u
p
a

ti
o
n
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

lo
n
g

s
id

e
 a

 m
a
rk

e
d
 d

e
c
lin

e
 i
n
 m

o
re

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
lo

w
e
r-

s
k
ill

e
d
, 

lo
w

e
r-

p
a
id

 s
e
c
to

rs
 (

th
e
 r

is
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
ta

u
ra

n
t 

a
n
d
 h

o
s
p
it
a
lit

y
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 B

ri
c
k
 L

a
n
e
 b

e
in

g
 a

n
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
).

 P
o
la

ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
 t
h
e
 d

o
m

in
a
n
t 
fe

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

, 
w

it
h
 

th
o
u
s
a
n
d
s
 e

a
rn

in
g

 £
1
0
0
,0

0
0
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
r,

 b
u
t 
s
o
m

e
 4

7
%

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 o
n
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
T

o
d
a
y
, 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
ic

tu
re

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 
a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 p

le
n
ty

. 
 

   

Y
e
s
: 
T

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
o
h
e
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

o
b

ili
ty

 
m

u
s
t 
b
e
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 t
a
n
d
e
m

 i
f 

w
e
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l.
  
 I
t 
h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
ri
a
l 
c
u
lt
u
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 

to
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 t
h
is

 n
e
x
t 

w
a
v
e
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 –

 ‘
e
n

tr
e
p
re

n
e
u
ri
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 

a
n
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
ri
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
ri

a
l 
p
u
b
lic

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

s
tr

iv
in

g
 t

o
 i
n
n
o
v
a
te

 a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

’.
  
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

n
d
e
rp

in
n
e
d
 b

y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
; 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 c

u
lt
u
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
, 
w

it
h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

n
e

w
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

; 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 t

a
k
e
 u

p
 b

y
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 I

C
T

/T
e
c
h
 C

it
y
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

a
n
d
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

 o
f 
fl
e
x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

s
p
a
c
e
 

fo
r 

m
ic

ro
 a

n
d
 s

m
a
ll 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
. 
T

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

B
o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 O

n
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 f

o
c
u
s
in

g
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 a

n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 b

ig
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 

th
e
m

 t
o
 e

m
b
ra

c
e
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 f

o
c
u
s
 m

o
re

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 C

S
R

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
 t
h
e
 ‘
d
e
m

a
n
d
’ 
s
id

e
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 t
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 
th

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

a
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 
 T

h
is

 a
ls

o
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 
 A

 c
le

a
r 

fo
c
u
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 2

 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 d

o
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 c

o
n
c
e
rt

 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

p
re

p
a
ri
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 j
o
b
s
 i
n
 g

ro
w

th
 s

e
c
to

rs
 i
n
 t
h
e

 b
o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 T

h
e
 

Page 201



1
6

 

 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 h

o
w

 t
o
 c

o
n
n
e
c
t 

g
ro

w
th

 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
w

 b
e
s
t 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

g
e
n
e
ra

te
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 w

h
ic

h
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e

o
p
le

 c
a
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
. 
 A

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
is

 n
a
tu

re
 t

o
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 o

ff
e
rs

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 f
o
r 

b
o
th

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 –

 l
a
rg

e
 a

n
d
 s

m
a
ll-

 a
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
f 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 
 It
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 c

o
h
e
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 

m
a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
s
e
 l
in

k
s
 i
s
 a

rt
ic

u
la

te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 s

e
e
n
 a

s
 

a
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

M
a

y
o
r’
s
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

B
o
a
rd

. 
  
T

h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 s
p
e
ll 

o
u
t 

e
x
a
c
tl
y
 

h
o
w

 l
o
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 g
o
in

g
 t
o
 b

e
 l
in

k
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
ri
a
l 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 w

h
a
t 
ro

u
te

 w
a
y
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 
th

is
 t

o
 o

c
c
u
r.

 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 e

n
te

re
d
 i
n
to

 a
 p

e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
fi
s
c
a
l 
ti
g

h
te

n
in

g
 t
h
a
t 

s
e
e
s
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
£
4
0
b
n
 b

y
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
. 
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 b

y
 

w
e

lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
, 

w
h
ic

h
 s

e
e
s
 a

n
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 w

o
rk

 o
v
e
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 

T
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

u
b
lic

 s
p
e
n
d
in

g
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
in

g
 t
h
e
 f

is
c
a

l 
ti
g

h
te

n
in

g
 i
s
 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 m

a
n
y
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
jo

b
s
 (

a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 a

n
c
ill

a
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

) 
g

o
in

g
. 
 S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

o
n
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 e

.g
. 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
, 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 o

u
t-

s
o
u
rc

in
g
 

a
n
d
 t

h
is

 m
u
s
t 

b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

t 
ri
s
k
. 
 V

A
T

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

o
 2

0
%

 
fr

o
m

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
1
. 

 

Y
e
s
:T

h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d

e
b
t 
h
a
s
 l
e
d
 

to
 V

A
T

 b
e
in

g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

te
e
p
ly

 t
o
 2

0
%

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
m

e
r 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 a

 l
ik

e
ly

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s

p
e
n

d
in

g
 l
e
v
e
ls

 
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 a
d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 a
ff

e
c
t 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 

T
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
fu

n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 p

o
w

e
r 

w
ill

 
im

p
a
c
t 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 o
n
 m

a
n
y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 w

h
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

g
o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 M

a
n
y
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

a
re

 r
e
lia

n
t 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
e
it
h
e
r 

a
s
 a

n
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

o
r 

a
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 M
a
n
y
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 r

e
lia

n
t 

o
n
 t
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
s
y
s
te

m
. 
  
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 

fo
r 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 t
h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s
 r

e
fo

rm
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

d
is

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

ly
 o

n
 s

o
m

e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 o

th
e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

im
s
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 t
h
e
 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 b

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 b

y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n

d
 a

d
v
ic

e
, 

b
u
t 

a
ls

o
 b

y
 h

e
lp

in
g

 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
e
te

 m
o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

. 
U

n
d
e
rp

in
n
in

g
 t
h
is

 s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
d
iv

id
e
 i
s
 t

h
e
 p

h
e
n
o
m

e
n
o
n

 o
f 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

c
h
u
rn

, 
b
y
 w

h
ic

h
 s

o
m

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 e
x
e
rc

is
e
 a

 c
h
o
ic

e
 t

o
 l
e
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 b

e
tt
e
r 

jo
b
s
 a

n
d
 g

re
a
te

r 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 c

h
o
ic

e
. 

B
y
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 

th
e
y
 c

re
a
te

 s
p
a
c
e
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
rs

, 
o
ft

e
n
 w

it
h
 s

im
ila

r 
o
r 

m
o
re

 c
h
a
lle

n
g

in
g

 
s
o
c
io

-e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

a
re

e
r 

in
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 

–
 a

n
d
 s

o
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

a
tt

e
rn

 o
f 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
n
d
s
 t

o
 r

e
-a

s
s
e
rt

 i
ts

e
lf
. 
T

h
is

 
c
a
n
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 i
n
d
ic

e
s
 o

f 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
w

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 s

e
e
m

 

Y
e
s
:T

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 g
o
o
d
 

le
v
e

l 
o
f 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
, 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 b

y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 b

ir
th

s
, 

d
e

a
th

s
 a

n
d
 

s
u
rv

iv
a

l 
ra

te
s
. 
  

A
 g

o
o
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

h
u
rn

 i
s
 s

e
e
n
 

a
s
 a

 s
tr

e
n
g
th

 o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 T
h
e
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 c

h
u
rn

 m
e
a
n
s
 

th
a
t 
th

o
s
e
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

re
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 m
o
re

 q
u
a
lif

ie
d
, 

s
k
ill

e
d
 

Page 202



1
7

 

 u
n
u
s
u
a
lly

 r
e
s
is

ta
n
t 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
v
e
r 

ti
m

e
, 

w
h
e
re

a
s
 i
n
 f
a
c
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
s
o
c
ia

l 
m

o
b
ili

ty
 h

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

a
n
d
 p

a
id

 m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 t

h
o
s
e
 a

rr
iv

in
g

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 I

t 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 h

e
lp

fu
l 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

w
h
a
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
th

is
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

o
b
ili

ty
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 o

n
 

th
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
  

 In
 u

p
d
a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 b

a
s
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 L

E
A

, 
it
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
s
o
c
ia

l 
m

o
b
ili

ty
 b

e
c
o
m

e
s
 a

n
 a

re
a
 f

o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
. 
 T

h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 a
im

 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

b
o
th

 i
n
 a

n
d
 o

u
t 
m

ig
ra

ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

a
n
d
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
is

 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

     

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 a
n

d
  
d

e
li
v
e
ry

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

 It
 i

s
 a

n
ti

c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
a

k
e

n
 i

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

is
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

il
l 

h
a

v
e

 a
 p

o
s

it
iv

e
 e

q
u

a
li

ty
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
in

 t
a

c
k

li
n

g
 t

h
e
 

h
ig

h
 l

e
v
e

l 
e

q
u

a
li

ty
 n

e
e

d
s

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 T
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 t
o

 f
o

c
u

s
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 
o

n
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
‘a

d
d

e
d

 v
a

lu
e

’ 
o

r 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 i
s
 a

b
le

 t
o

 ‘
m

a
k
e

 a
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

’.
  

It
 p

ro
p
e

rl
y
 a

n
a

ly
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
s
it
u

a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 i
ts

 a
im

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 T
h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
a

k
e

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 t
o

 
b

u
ild

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

s
 a

 k
e

y
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
: 

‘I
n

 r
e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
’ 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 b

a
s
e

, 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
, 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 i
n

 a
 w

a
y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

: 
 

•
 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
b
e

n
e
fi
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 d

iv
e

rs
e

 g
ro

u
p

s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
k
e

 u
p

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
; 

 

•
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

a
n

y
 g

ro
u

p
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e
n

t 
in

 t
h
e

 w
id

e
r 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 i
s
 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 o

th
e

rs
’.
 

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 f

it
 f
o

r 
p
u

rp
o

s
e

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 

Page 203



1
8

 

 to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 ‘
ri
g
h

t 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
’ 
a

re
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 t
a

b
le

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

o
s
e

 t
h

a
t 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
. 

 I
t 

is
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 T
a

s
k
 G

ro
u
p

 s
h
o

u
ld

 t
a

k
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
m

in
g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

is
 E

Q
IA

 a
re

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d
 a

n
d

 b
u

ilt
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

ir
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
. 

 R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
E

D
 A

R
E

A
S

 F
O

R
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 
1

. 
A

 k
e

y
 a

re
a

 o
f 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

ro
le

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 M

a
y
o

r’
s
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
B

o
a

rd
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
a

k
e

, 
g
o

in
g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

, 
w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
. 

  
2

. 
 A

n
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
n
a

ly
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e
d

 f
o

r 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 e
q
u
a

lit
y
 s

tr
a

n
d

s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n

s
 

ta
k
e

n
 i
n

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o
 a

n
y
 f

in
d

in
g
s
. 

3
. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 n
e
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

h
a

re
d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 –

 (
b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 a
n
e

c
d

o
ta

l 
a
n

d
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 b
a

s
e

) 
th

a
t 

th
o

s
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 s

tr
a

n
d

s
 p

la
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 e
c
o

n
o
m

y
. 

 T
h

e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n

 t
o
 ‘
R

e
v
ie

w
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 L
D

F
) 

a
n
d

 p
u

t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a

l 
s
te

p
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t
o

 r
e
fl
e

c
t 
th

e
 

n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
S

M
E

’s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

: 
 

 

- 
th

e
ir
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 
- 

th
e

ir
 s

ta
rt

 u
p

, 
g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t’
. 
 

 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
n

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
fi
rs

t 
s
te

p
 i
n

 e
n
h

a
n

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
a

n
d
 t

a
rg

e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
n

 
th

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
a

re
a

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 E

Q
IA

. 
 T

h
e

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 b
u

ilt
 u

p
o
n

 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

  

Page 204



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\8\8\AI00034882\$2tev3uda.doc 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

REPORT OF THE MAYOR IN CABINET 
 

04 APRIL 2012 
 

To receive the report of the Cabinet at its meeting held on Wednesday 04 April 2012. 
 
 
Mayor and Councillors in attendance at the meeting: -  
 

Cabinet: 
Mayor Lutfur Rahman  
Councillor Rofique U Ahmed (Cabinet Member for Regeneration) 
Councillor Abdul Asad (Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing) 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury (Cabinet Member for Resources) 
Councillor Rania Khan (Cabinet Member for Regeneration) 
Councillor Oliur Rahman (Cabinet Member for Children’s Services) 
 
 
Other Councillors: 
Councillor Peter Golds (Leader of the Conservative Group) 
Councillor Ann Jackson (Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee) 
Councillor Denise Jones 
 
 
1. Community Safety Plan 2012-13  (CAB 102/112)  
 

The report (attached as Appendix 1 to this council report) informed the Mayor and 
Cabinet that: - 

• Community Safety Partnerships had a statutory duty to produce a Community 
Safety Plan which investigated challenges and opportunities for the borough and 
identified it’s priorities for the term of the plan. This year the Executive Steering Group 
recommended to the Community Safety Partnership that the next plan should cover 
the 2012-13 financial year only given the unique environment that the Olympics and 
Paralympics would create in the borough. 
• The Plan outlined the Strategic Framework within Tower Hamlets, its links to the 
Community Safety Plan, the newly approved Community Safety Partnership Delivery 
Structure / membership and the Corporate and Partnership Olympic Impact Planning 
infrastructure. It identified key crime drivers for 2012 based on both local and national 
research/knowledge and set out the Community Safety Partnerships priorities for 2012. 
These are: 

• Violence 
• Serious Acquisitive Crime 
• Youth 
• Violence Against Women and Girls 
• Drugs / Alcohol 
• Integrated Offender Management 
• Anti-Social Behaviour 
• Cohesion and Hate Crime 

Agenda Item 9.3

Page 205



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\8\8\AI00034882\$2tev3uda.doc 

• Public Confidence 
• Olympics  

 
• The subgroups of the Community Safety Partnership would produce action 
plans (January – February 2012) that would engage with the CSP priorities throughout 
2012 and each would be monitored at both Sub-Group and Community Safety 
Partnership level. 

 
The broad endorsement of the proposals contained in this policy framework report by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC), at its meeting held on 3rd April 2012, and 
specific comments/ advice arising from its deliberations, were reported by the Chair of 
the OSC earlier in the Cabinet proceedings and noted by the Mayor/ Cabinet.  
 
The Mayor agreed: 

• Amendments to the recommended decisions set out in paragraph 2.1 of the 
report to read as below in Decision 1 and 2. 

• An amendment to the recommended decision set out in paragraph 2.2 of the 
report to read as below in Decision 3. 

 
Decision  

 
1. That the Community Safety Plan 2012-2013, attached at Appendix A to the 

report (CAB 102/112), and the priorities set out within it, be noted and endorsed; 
 

2. That the Development and Consultation Plan for the Community Safety Plan 
2013 onwards, attached at Appendix 1 to the Community Safety Plan 2012-
2013, be noted and endorsed; and 

 
3. That full Council be recommended to adopt the Community Safety Plan 2012-

2013, as contained in Appendix A to the report (CAB 102/112). 
 
 

Council is therefore recommended to: - 
 
1. Adopt the Community Safety Plan, attached at Appendix A to the report (CAB 

068/112) (Attached at Appendix 1 to this Council report). 
 
 

Lutfur Rahman 
Mayor 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 SECTION 100D (AS AMENDED) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 
Brief description  Tick if copy  If not supplied, 
of “background paper” supplied name and telephone 
number of holder 
 
Draft Cabinet minutes  Angus Taylor 
04/04/12  020 7364 4333 

Page 206



Committee/Meeting: 

 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 

 
4th April 2012 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted  
 
 

Report No: 
 

CAB 102/101 

Report of:  

 
Corporate Director Stephen Halsey 
 
Originating officer(s)  

 
Emily Fieran-Reed 

 

Title:  

 
Community Safety Plan 2012-13 
 
Wards Affected:  
 

Borough-wide 

 
 
Lead Member 
 

Deputy Mayor  

Community Plan Theme 
  

A Safe and Cohesive Community, A Great Place to Live 

Strategic Priority 
 

Focusing on Crime & Anti-Social Behaviour, Reducing Fear 
of Crime 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1. Community Safety Partnerships have a statutory duty to produce a 

Community Safety Plan which investigates challenges and 
opportunities for the borough and identifies it’s priorities for the term of 
the plan. This year the Executive Steering Group recommended to the 
Community Safety Partnership that the next plan should cover the 
2012-13 financial year only given the unique environment that the 
Olympics and Paralympics will create in the borough. 

 
1.2. The Plan outlines the Strategic Framework within Tower Hamlets, its 

links to the Community Safety Plan, the newly approved Community 
Safety Partnership Delivery Structure / membership and the Corporate 
and Partnership Olympic Impact Planning infrastructure. It identifies 
key crime drivers for 2012 based on both local and national 
research/knowledge and sets out the Community Safety Partnerships 
priorities for 2012. These are : 

• Violence 

• Serious Acquisitive Crime 

• Youth 

• Violence Against Women and Girls 

• Drugs / Alcohol 

• Integrated Offender Management 

• Anti-Social Behaviour 

• Cohesion and Hate Crime 

• Public Confidence 

• Olympics  
 

Page 207



1.3. The subgroups of the Community Safety Partnership will produce 
action plans (January – February 2012) that will engage with the CSP 
priorities throughout 2012 and each will be monitored at both Sub-
Group and Community Safety Partnership level. The Plan must be 
considered by Cabinet before progressing to Full Council which it is 
scheduled to do on 18th April.    

 
 
2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 
 Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 

2.1 Consider and comment on: 
 

• the Community Safety Plan 2012-13 (Appendix A) and the 
priorities set out within it; 

 

• the Development and Consultation Plan for the Community 
Safety Plan 2013 onwards, which is appendix 1 to the 2012-13 
Plan. 

 
2.2 Note that the Community Safety Plan 2012-2013 is to be presented to 

Full Council for adoption. 
 

 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 
3.1 No decisions are required of Cabinet. Full Council must adopt a 

Community Safety plan in order to meet statutory requirements set by 
the Crime and Disorder Act (1998).  The priorities and governance 
structure outlined in the Plan are based on the statutory strategic 
assessment exercise that was carried out by statutory partners to 
consider data on safety in the Borough.  They have been agreed by the 
Community Safety Partnership to be the best model to deliver a safer 
and more cohesive community in Tower Hamlets. 

 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 It is a statutory responsibility for Community Safety Partnerships to 

produce a Community Safety Plan and this is what the Community 
Safety Partnership have agreed will be their plan and priorities for the 
period 2012/13, thus there are no alternative options. 

 
 
5. BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 This Plan was produced by an executive steering group including 

senior representatives from the Police, Council, Probation, Health, Fire 
Service, Youth Services and policy officers from CLC. 

 

Page 208



5.2 It has been produced in line with the Crime and Disorder (Formulation 
and Implementation of Strategy) Regulations 2007.  

 
5.3 A strategic assessment on crime and disorder data was carried out in 

September 2011 and the findings of this assessment were considered 
by the Executive Steering Group and the Community Safety 
Partnership. The Strategic Assessment was approved by the 
Community Safety Partnership in October 2011. 
 

5.4 Engagement with residents has taken place via the Tower Hamlets 
Police and Community Safety Board (PCSB), which has obtained their 
views on the levels and patterns of crime, disorder and substance 
misuse in the borough.  The Board has used a number of engagement 
methods to achieve this, including large public meetings, events 
targeted at particular sections of the community e.g. older or younger 
people and regular meetings of the PCSB members themselves, who 
are local residents.  The CSP priorities of anti-social behaviour, drugs 
and alcohol and the Olympics, were particularly strong features of the 
feedback from this engagement and are therefore reflected in this 
plan’s priorities. 
 

5.5 To summarise, in arriving at the priorities and governance structure in 
this plan, the executive steering group with responsibility for producing 
the plan met, and specifically considered a number of key matters.  
These were i) the Strategic Assessment (which included data from 
partners agencies); ii) Relevant existing or emerging plans of partner 
agencies, including the Tower Hamlets Policing Plan and control 
strategy; iii) Existing or emerging performance indicators  monitored by 
partner agencies; iv) Existing or emerging priorities of partner 
organisations and v) Feedback recorded from engagement with 
residents via the Tower Hamlets Police and Community Safety Board 
(this was also considered as an agenda item at the Community Safety 
Partnership). 

 
5.6 As of 1st June 2011, through the amended Crime and Disorder 

Regulations, Community Safety Partnership’s were given the 
opportunity to set the term of their Community Safety Plan for the 
coming period locally, as opposed to it previously being set by central 
government. This year the Executive Steering Group recommended to 
the Community Safety Partnership that the next plan should cover the 
2012-13 financial year only, for a number of reasons which include the 
current economic and public sector funding conditions  and the unique 
environment that the Olympics and Paralympics will create in the 
borough. The CSP agreed that the new plan would be for 2012-13 only 
during their October meeting and approved the Community Safety Plan 
2012 in its draft form. 

 
5.7 None of the sections are mutually exclusive and impacts will be 

addressed in more detail in the Delivery Action Plans for each Priority. 
The Delivery Action Plans may include some detailed analysis of data 
relating to particular priority areas. 

Page 209



 
6. BODY OF REPORT 
 
6.1 The Community Safety Plan 2012-13 (see appendix A) identifies the 

priorities for the Community Safety Partnership to tackle in the financial 
year 2012/13. Based on public consultation and analysis of the 
Community Safety Partnership Strategic Review 2011, the Community 
Safety Partnership has agreed that the following areas of work will be 
their priorities for 2012/13.  

 

• Violence – including assaults and gun and knife crime 

• Serious Acquisitive Crime – including burglary, robbery and motor 
vehicle crime 

• Youth – including a particular focus on young offenders 

• Violence Against Women and Girls – including domestic violence 
and sexual offences 

• Drugs and Alcohol – including treatment, as well as links to violence 
and acquisitive crime 

• Integrated Offender Management – including reducing reoffending 
around an identified cohort of offenders 

• Anti-Social Behaviour – including a wide range of nuisance causing, 
harassment, alarm and distress 

• Cohesion and Hate Crime – including addressing prejudice and 
discrimination under all equalities strands and preventing violent 
extremism 

• Public Confidence  - including satisfaction of service users and 
perceptions of crime 

• Olympics – identifying and recognising the impacts associated with 
this major event and the changes in population that result. 

 
6.2 The Plan sets links these priorities to other existing frameworks across 

the Partnership, including the Community Plan, One Tower Hamlets, 
Localisation/Service Integration and the Victim, Offender, Location, 
Timed (VOLT) model of community safety management. 

 
6.3 The governance structure for delivering against these priorities is set 

out, with the roles of the partnership forums and the diversity of their 
membership being highlighted.  The links to operational delivery and to 
the community are identified.   The Partnership Boards which reflect 
these key priority areas and report to the CSP are shown 
diagrammatically and consist of: -.  

 

• Drug & Alcohol Action Team Board 

• Youth Offending Team Management Board 

• Safeguarding Boards (Children & Adults) 

• Crime & Anti-Social Behaviour Reduction Board 

• Integrated Offender Management Board 

• Equality & Cohesion Board 

• Domestic Violence Board 

• Confidence & Satisfaction Board 

Page 210



 
6.3      The next Community Safety Plan after this one will cover the period 

from 1st April 2013 onwards.  The Development and Consultation Plan 
relating to this is contained in Appendix B.  It outlines the methodology 
for public consultation, production of the Strategic Review and the 
Community Safety Plan. 

 
7. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
7.1 The report sets out the Community Safety Plan 2012-13 (Appendix A) 

detailing the priorities for the year. Whilst there are no specific financial 
implications emanating from the plan, the period covering the Olympics 
and Paralympics will impact significantly on resources and the Services 
ability to respond.  The delivery of the plan through the Community 
Safety Partnership is expected to have a positive effect on the 
environment and will be contained within existing budgets. 

 
8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
8.1. On 13 July 2011, the Council adopted a revised Community Plan, 

which contains the Council’s sustainable community strategy as 
required by section 4 of the Local Government Act 2000.  A key theme 
of the Community Plan is to make Tower Hamlets a safe and cohesive 
community, that is, a safer place where people feel safer, get on better 
together and where difference is not seen as a threat, but a core-
strength. 

 
8.2. The Council is one of the responsible authorities for Tower Hamlets, 

within the meaning of section 5 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.  
Other responsible authorities for Tower Hamlets include: every provider 
of probation services in Tower Hamlets; the chief officer of police 
whose police area lies within Tower Hamlets; and the fire and rescue 
authority for Tower Hamlets.  Together, the responsible authorities for 
Tower Hamlets are required to formulate and implement strategies for: 
the reduction of crime and disorder; combating the misuse of drugs, 
alcohol and other substances; and the reduction of re-offending.  When 
formulating and implementing these strategies, each authority is 
required to have regard to the police and crime objectives set out in the 
police and crime plan for Tower Hamlets. 

 
8.3. The Crime and Disorder (Formulation and Implementation of Strategy) 

Regulations 2007 require that there be a strategy group whose 
functions are to prepare strategic assessments, following community 
engagement, and to prepare and implement a partnership plan and 
community safety agreement for Tower Hamlets.  The partnership plan 
must set out a crime and disorder reduction strategy, amongst other 
matters.  The strategy group must consider the strategic assessment 
and the community safety agreement in the formulation of the 
partnership plan.  The Safe and Cohesive Community Plan Delivery 
Group discharges these functions in Tower Hamlets.  The report 

Page 211



indicates that the Community Safety Plan is the relevant partnership 
plan and has been prepared in accordance with the Regulations. 

 
8.4. The making of a crime and disorder reduction strategy pursuant to 

section 6 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 is a function that is 
required not to be the sole responsibility of the Council’s executive.  
This is the effect of the Local Government Act 2000 and the Local 
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 
2000.  The requirement is reflected in the Council’s Constitution, which 
makes the crime and disorder reduction strategy part of the Council’s 
policy framework. 

 
8.5. When planning action under the Community Safety Plan, it will be 

necessary for officers to have regard to the Council’s statutory 
functions and ensure these are not exceeded. 

 
8.6. Before adopting the Community Safety Plan, the Council must have 

due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the Equality 
Act 2010, the need to advance equality of opportunity and the need to 
foster good relations between persons who share a protected 
characteristic and those who don’t.  An equality analysis is set out in 
the proposed Community Safety Plan that may form the basis of these 
considerations. 

 
 
9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 Equalities analysis has been carried out on the priorities identified in 

the Plan (see appendix 2 of Community Safety Plan) with 
recommendations made for further considerations when supporting 
action plans are developed. 

 
 
10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
10.1 Implementation of the Community Safety Plan 2012 is expected to 

have a positive effect on the environment by helping to reduce anti-
social behaviour. This will then reduce the amount of criminal damage, 
graffiti, fly-tipping and fly-posting and other environmental crimes in the 
borough. 

 
11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
11.1 The Community Safety Plan sets out an overarching structure and 

framework of priorities within which management of risks will take 
place.  There are no particular risk management implications attached 
to the plan itself. 

Page 212



 
12. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 The Community Safety Plan 2012 will help to reduce crime and anti-

social behaviour and meet the Mayors priorities whilst reducing fear of 
crime and contributing to relevant community plan commitments.  

 
 
13. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  

 
13.1  There are potentially significant efficiency gains from working in 

partnership to reduce crime and disorder in the borough. The 
Community Safety Plan 2012 is a partnership document and brings 
together key crime and disorder reduction agencies to work together and 
share resources.   

  
13.2 There are also further efficiencies from addressing problems before they 

escalate, requiring less resource than would be necessary in dealing 
with a more serious problem at a later stage. These efficiencies would 
be spread across the Council and key partner agencies. This work is 
integrated in to the corporate efficiency planning processes supporting 
the Medium Term Financial Plan. 

 
14. APPENDICES 
 

 
 
Appendix A – Community Safety Plan 2012/13 
 
Appendix B - Community Safety Plan 2013 onwards* Development and 

Consultation Plan  
 
Appendix C – Equalities Analysis 
 
Appendix D - Membership of Community Safety Partnership and 

Delivery Structure 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 213



Page 214

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix A 
 

 

Tower Hamlets Community Safety Plan 

2012-2013 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 215



 2 

Foreword from Lutfur Rahman, Tower Hamlets Mayor 
A great deal has already been achieved in Tower 
Hamlets to ensure that the borough is a safer place in 
which to live and work. The performance review of the 
Community Safety Partnership Plan from 2008 to 2011 
speaks for itself in terms of the significant reductions in 
crime over that period. However, I also know that 
crime and anti-social behaviour remains a key area of 
concern for residents, and it is essential that we 
continue to make progress in tackling these issues.    
That is why I have made Community Safety one of my 
top five priorities for my Mayoral term of office and I’m 
working to ensure delivery in the many aspects that 
contribute towards a safer and more cohesive 
community. 

 

 

This plan sets out how the Tower Hamlets Partnership organisations, through the 
Safe and Cohesive Community Plan Delivery Group, will continue to tackle crime 
and ASB; protecting communities as the Partnership addresses the exceptional 
challenges that we face over the next twelve months.  
 

The challenges to be faced are significant. They include the requirement for the 
Council and Partnership to meet major reductions in the funding that comes from 
central Government. The economic downturn also has an impact, driving some 
types of criminal behaviour and influencing drug and alcohol use at a time when 
the Partnership organisations must reduce costs. There are major organisational 
and governance changes underway for the Police, the Council and the local NHS, 
and while all this is taking place we are working hard to ensure that everyone can 
safely enjoy the Olympic and Paralympics Games next summer. 
 

Whilst these challenges are pressing, the Council has strong partnerships and 
excellent practices to tackle them. We are continuing to work towards tackling 
inequality, strengthening cohesion and building community leadership and 
personal responsibility under the One Tower Hamlets programme. Recent 
disturbances across the country demonstrate our robust structures for handling 
incidents and issues of community tension. The comparatively low levels of 
disturbance we experienced in the borough is testament to the excellent work 
across the council and by our partners to engage our young people and tackle the 
root causes of crime. In addition, our response, both organisational and from the 
community, to the threat posed by the English Defence League is a visible 
demonstration of our strength in the face of adversity. 
 

Since being elected I have taken steps to ensure that there are more police officers 
on our streets where they work alongside the Council’s own Tower Hamlets 
Enforcement Officers, to reassure residents and reduce anti-social behaviour, and 
it is good to see that public confidence in the way the Police and Council deal with 
concerns of crime and ASB is stronger. The Council’s service localisation 
processes, sharing operating bases with front line Police staff, is helping to ensure 
that our focus is on the specific issues that affect communities across the borough.  
 

I will continue to seek and prioritise actions that take us towards achieving a safe 
and high quality environment in which our communities can thrive. 

Page 216



 3 

Introduction from Cllr Ohid Ahmed, Deputy Mayor and Co-
Chair of Community Safety Partnership  
 

I believe that the residents of Tower Hamlets have the 
right to live safely in their local community with a good 
quality of life. The Community Safety Partnership Plan 
2012 sets out our priorities as a partnership for the 
year to ensure that we achieve this for everyone in the 
borough. 
 
I know that crime, anti-social behaviour and substance 
misuse are top priorities for residents in the borough.  
As the partnership continues to tackle these 
successfully we have seen an increase in residents 
feeling safer.  The latest Annual Residents Survey, 
which took place in January 2011, showed that whilst 
crime remains our residents biggest priority, their 
concern about crime has reduced by 5% on the 
previous year (2010) and a 13% reduction on the year 
before that (2009). 
 

 

Over the past 8 years partners in Tower Hamlets have made some of the 
largest year on year reductions in crime across London, in fact it is now 30% 
lower than it was in 2003. The Partnership is committed to maintain these 
reductions in the future and make Tower Hamlets one of the safest boroughs 
in London. 
 
This document includes a summary of our performance over the past year, 
which, along with community views, has helped us to set the priorities within it. 
It has been developed and updated with the involvement of a wide range of 
partners including residents, police, council, fire brigade, probation, health, 
housing, voluntary, faith and community groups and businesses. 
 
 

 

 

Page 217



 4 

The Community Safety Plan - Strategic Framework 
 
The Community Safety Plan is a key document, established by the Tower 
Hamlets Partnership to ensure that actions towards achieving the Community 
Plan Vision and Safe & Cohesive theme are delivered. The group with 
responsibility for establishing and monitoring the Community Safety Plan is 
the Community Safety Partnership which is known locally as the Safe & 
Cohesive Community Plan Delivery Group.  
 
Further details of the relevant plans, strategies and governance arrangements 
are set out in the section. 
 

Our Community Plan to 2020 
 
The overall vision for the Community Plan remains to:  
 

‘Improve the lives of all those living and working in the borough’. 
 
Turning this vision into reality requires us to achieve four priorities, articulated as 
the four themes of the Community Plan:  
 

A Great Place to Live 
• Tower Hamlets will be a place where people live in quality affordable housing, 

located in clean and safe neighbourhoods served by well connected and easy to 
access services and community facilities. 

 

A Prosperous Community 
• Tower Hamlets will be a place where everyone, regardless of their background 

and circumstances, has the aspiration and opportunity to achieve their full 
potential. 

 

A Safe and Cohesive Community 
• Tower Hamlets will be a safer place were people feel safer, get on better 

together and difference is not seen as threat, but core strength of the borough. 
 

A Healthy and Supportive Community 
• Tower Hamlets will be a place where people are supported to live healthier, 

more independent lives and the risk of harm and neglect to vulnerable children 
and adults is reduced. 

 
The focus of the Safe and Cohesive Community theme is on reducing crime, 
drugs and anti social behaviour and on building a more cohesive and resilient 
community. Previously the crime agenda came under the Safe and Supportive 
Community plan theme. The ‘supportive’ element of this is now incorporated in the 
Healthy and Supportive Community theme, to better recognise the interface 
between health and social care.   
 
Though presented as four distinct themes, these priorities are not mutually 
exclusive but interdependent. For example, improving housing, employment and 
health will all reduce crime and vice versa. Collectively these themes are aimed at 
delivering the social, economic and environmental changes necessary to improve 
the lives of local people. 

Page 218



 5 

 
More detail on the vision for a Safe and Cohesive Community is included in the 
section below. 
 
The Community Plan priorities are underpinned by four cross-cutting principles that 
will guide how we work together to achieve our shared vision. These principles 
apply to each of the Community Plan themes and are integral to the delivery of the 
Plan. They are as follows: 
 

One Tower Hamlets: tackling inequality, strengthening cohesion and 
building community leadership  
• During the refresh of the Community Plan in 2008 residents articulated their 

worries that the achievements and aspirations of the borough could be 
undermined by community tensions arising from the experience of inequality in a 
diverse area.  Since then ‘One Tower Hamlets’ has become more than a 
unifying slogan and is a cycle of action underpinning and overarching all we do. 
In a tough economic and political climate it describes our vision and values and 
thereby builds the resilience of partners, their staff, residents and elected 
councillors to seek the right local solutions to reduce crime. One Tower Hamlets 
therefore is key to challenging the many forms of crime (including Hate Crime), 
anti-social behaviour and drug and alcohol misuse arsing from poverty and 
inequality.  

 

Tackling inequality through efficiency and the delivery value for money 
services 
• We are experiencing the most financially challenging time for public services 

ever.  As such, we need to ensure that our approach to crime and cohesion 
becomes more efficient and uses resources more effectively through a robust 
understanding of the communities we serve and their needs.  

 

Strengthening cohesion through engagement with a powerful public  
• Action by any one agency alone cannot reduce crime and anti-social behaviour 

or improve cohesion.  We need to continue to work together both internally and 
externally through generic working, joint tasking, development of intelligence 
and analytical models, asset sharing and joint commissioning.  In turn staff that 
see themselves as partners are better able to work with local people on finding 
local solutions.  This will involve building on our strong history of using 
innovative methods to engage the borough’s diverse communities to help 
improve services. 

 

Building community leadership and responsibility through delivering 
services closer to people 
• Our localisation programme is bringing services together locally, increasing 

coordination and local knowledge, and enabling local people to take greater 
ownership of their services.  This relationship has the potential to get to the 
heart of reducing crime where it most impacts on everyday life. 

 

Page 219



 6 

There is therefore a business, moral and reputational case for making ‘One Tower 
Hamlets’ real.  In addition since April 2011 we have a statutory duty to have ‘due 
regard’ to the public sector Equality Duty to: 
 

• Eliminate harassment and discrimination  

• Advance equality of opportunity 

• Foster good relation between different people 
 
All public bodies are subject to the Duty, as are private and third sector 
organisations providing public services.  It involves having an understanding of our 
communities and workforces based on the ‘protected characteristics’ of age, 
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion/belief, sex 
and sexuality.  Reducing crime effectively will be a fundamental way of 
demonstrating ‘due regard’ in Tower Hamlets. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 220



 7 

A Safe & Cohesive Community 
 
As set out in our refreshed Community Plan to 2020, our vision for a Safe and 
Cohesive Community is: 
 

To have a safer Tower Hamlets: a place where everyone feels safe, gets on 
better together and difference is not seen as threat but a core strength of 
the borough. 

 

Challenges and Opportunities for Tower Hamlets 
Over the past 8 years, the partnership agencies in Tower Hamlets have made 
some of the largest year on year reductions of crime when compared to the rest of 
London. Crime in the borough is now 30% lower than it was 8 years ago although 
rates continue to be amongst the highest in London. We recognise that reducing 
crime alone is not enough; residents need to feel safer in their neighbourhood and 
when moving about the borough.  
 
Visible crime plays a strong role in people’s sense of feeling safe; this includes 
drug use and drug dealing, with many people reporting it to be a problem in their 
local area, particularly around Bethnal Green, Spitalfields and Banglatown. 
 
Anti-social behaviour (ASB) is also a key driver to people feeling unsafe. ASB is a 
complex issue. What might be perceived as antisocial behaviour by one group 
could be seen by others as appropriate use of public space. What is clear is that 
ASB affects all members of our community. It can blight neighbourhoods and affect 
people’s wellbeing. 
 
The Tower Hamlets Partnership defines ASB as any aggressive, intimidating or 
destructive activity which damages or destroys another person’s quality of life. 
Better managing ASB, particularly low-level persistent ASB such as nuisance and 
intimidating behaviour, is crucial to improving people’s sense of feeling safe. 
Residents have told us that the council’s Tower Hamlets Enforcement Officers 
(THEOs) and the Police Safer Neighbourhood Teams have improved the levels of 
visible enforcement and made them feel safer but believe that more needs to be 
done to tackle and prevent crime in the borough. 
 
The Annual Residents Survey (ARS) 2010/11 results show that whilst crime 
remains the biggest overall concern for residents, with 42% Tower Hamlets 
residents listing it as an area of personal concern, this figure shows a 5% reduction 
from 2009/10 and a 13% reduction since 2007/08. Much of this perception change 
is linked directly to the steadily improving perceptions local people have regarding 
the level of ASB in their area. Since 2008 residents perceptions of all main 
categories of ASB being a big or very big problem has dropped significantly.  
 

• Teenagers hanging around on the streets (from 67% to 54%) 

• People using or dealing drugs (from 62% to 52%) 

• Drunk or Rowdy behaviour (from 47% to 40%) 

• Vandalism and graffiti (from 54% to 37%) 

• Abandoned cars (27% to 12%) 
 

Page 221



 8 

However, we are now entering an incredibly challenging period. We are facing the 
run up to the Olympic Games coinciding with unprecedented public sector budget 
cuts, punitive welfare reforms and a faltering economy. It has the potential of a 
perfect storm of circumstances that is likely to manifest in significant upward 
pressures in all areas of Crime and ASB.  
 
The Metropolitan Police is currently proposing a policy of reducing the numbers of 
Police counter service facilities (Public ‘walk in’ police offices staffed with a public 
facing counter service) across London.  This will result in a reduction of such 
facilities in the Borough. The Police case is that modern methods of 
communication and telephone channels no longer require so many counter based 
facilities and they are realigning the service to reflect modern shifts in 
communication.  
 
Currently public counters exist at Bethnal Green, Bow, Limehouse, Brick Lane, and 
the Isle of Dogs. Lime House and Bethnal Green are open 24 hours and the others 
have restricted opening times. The London Wide MPS review sought views on 
closing all counters, apart from one in each borough that may be open 24 hrs. 
There is also a possibility that that some boroughs may be required to share a 24 
hr front counter.  
 
However, in Tower Hamlets, a high proportion of residents remain technology poor 
and are less likely to use alternative reporting routes. It is currently not clear at a 
borough level what business data on visitor numbers has been used or the extent 
to which the move is supported or understood by residents. 
 
Tower Hamlets has long been a place where people from different backgrounds 
have lived together and there are now over 90 languages spoken in the borough. 
Part of the vibrancy and strength of the borough is its historic attraction of diverse 
people and communities. However, a fear of crime, a lack of understanding of 
difference between some communities and the historic social and economic 
challenges facing the borough, can threaten its cohesiveness. Strengthening 
community cohesion is important as it impacts upon the social fabric of the 
borough and the wellbeing of residents. 
 
If the Council and its partners are to be able to go forward together and tackle the 
challenges outlined above, a comprehensive review of our enforcement functions 
are required to ensure that we can quickly target enforcement services where they 
are most needed, in a way that is intelligent which has a visible impact.  
 

Making Tower Hamlets a Safe and Cohesive Community 
The Partnership’s problem-solving approach to tackling crime focuses on the 
victim, offender and location of crime to better detect and prevent crime. We know 
that the majority of crimes are committed by a small group of people and are 
concentrated in particular areas across the borough. Shared crime data will be 
used to analyse crime trends and develop better initiatives to target crime hotspots.  
 
This is underpinned by a stronger focus on enforcement. The Council and Police 
will use existing enforcement powers, particularly on licensing, to target anti-social 
behaviour around particular premises and establishments. Local partners will be 
bringing together their enforcement resources to ensure that effort is targeted 

Page 222



 9 

where it is most needed in a co-ordinated way to achieve maximum impact. For 
example we have integrated local police and Council enforcement services in the 
Toby Club, to effectively deploy our resources in one of the highest crime areas in 
the borough, and the next shared facility is already being planned. 
 
This strong enforcement approach is coupled with interventionist support to 
address the socio-economic causes of crime and anti-social behaviour. Poverty, 
deprivation, poor parenting and a lack of positive activities often lead people, 
particularly young people, into anti-social and criminal activities. Providing support 
for those at risk of criminal activity, including effective treatment for problematic 
drug users and housing and employment support for ex-offenders will help prevent 
crime and social exclusion. 
 

Greater community involvement in community safety and in holding the police and 
community safety partnership to account is crucial to making Tower Hamlets a 
safer and more cohesive borough. We will make greater use of ward panels, 
neighbourhood watch groups, police volunteers, police cadets and the Police and 
Community Safety Board – a resident-led body informing policing priorities – to 
help improve local policing.  Using the community role of Councillors will also be 
crucial both at a ward and borough-wide level using the expertise and different 
perspectives of Executive members and those on Overview and Scrutiny. 
 
A fundamental aspect to cohesion is the perception of fairness. Tensions often 
arise between communities when one group feels that it is being treated less 
favourably compared to another. Our approach to fostering community cohesion is 
based on providing inclusive services and working closer with communities. The 
way we deliver services and take decisions has a significant impact on how people 
feel about their local area and perceptions of fairness. We will work with 
communities to help build stronger relationships between people. Promoting 
community cohesion amongst our young people is an important aspect of this. It 
will help support interaction, mutual understanding and respect between and within 
communities. 
 
The work of the borough’s community forums, including the Inter Faith Forum, 
Rainbow Hamlets (our local LGBT forum), the New Residents and Refugees 
Forum and the No Place for Hate Campaign, will be important to celebrating and 
strengthening community cohesion. Local community leaders also have an integral 
role to play in fostering community cohesion. Councillors, for example, have 
championed cohesion in the borough, spearheading innovative work to tackle 
cohesion issues. 
 
Tackling violent extremism remains a key priority for the Partnership. We are 
currently evaluating what we have learnt over the last three years about the risk of 
violent extremism in Tower Hamlets and what works in reducing the vulnerability of 
individuals to extremism and improving community resilience. We are using this 
information to develop a more effective and flexible local response to preventing 
extremism and applying learning in key service areas including youth services and 
safeguarding. The government recently published its new Prevent Strategy and 
work is progressing with partners to develop our local response. 
 

Page 223



 10

To make Tower Hamlets a Safe and Cohesive Community the Partnership will 
focus on achieving the following objectives: 
 

• Objective 1: Focusing on crime and anti-social behaviour 
 

• Objective 2: Reducing re-offending 
 

• Objective 3: Reducing the fear of crime 
 

• Objective 4: Fostering greater community cohesion 
 

• Objective 5: Tackling violent extremism 
 

One Tower Hamlets Focus 
As part of making Tower Hamlets a safer borough the Partnership is committed to 
reducing crime and making people feel safer, including protecting and supporting 
victims of crime. The borough has experienced an increase in violence against 
women which remains largely hidden and victims often suffer in silence. Children 
who experience domestic violence are denied the safety and protection they need 
at home to achieve and become confident, healthy adults. 
 
Hate crime also remains a challenge for the borough. Diversity is one of the 
borough’s key strengths and the majority of people get on well together. However 
there can be levels of tension between groups. If these are left unchecked they can 
undermine cohesion in the borough and make people feel unsafe, denying them of 
the right to live, work and study in the borough safe from fear and intimidation. 
 
The Partnership recognises the importance of cohesion to delivering One Tower 
Hamlets and the Community Plan priorities. It will work together to foster cohesion 
supported by a shared cohesion framework. 
 
In order to achieve our commitments to One Tower Hamlets we will: 

• Prevent and reduce violence against women and girls. 

• Target all forms of hate crime and anti-social behaviour. 

• Develop and deliver the Partnership’s approach to community cohesion. 
 

Contributing Partnership Strategies 
Alongside this document, the following strategies will help make Tower Hamlets 
more safe and cohesive: 

• Children and Young People’s Plan 

• Substance Misuse Strategy 2011-2014 (Drugs &Alcohol) 

• Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy 

• Integrated Offender Management Plan 

• PREVENT Plan (under review in line with National Guidance) 

• ASB Profile 

• Hate Crime Strategy 
 

Page 224



 11

A Safe & Cohesive Community - Delivery Structure 
 
The Safe & Cohesive Community Plan Delivery Group (Community Safety 
Partnership) exists to ensure there is efficient and effective governance, reporting 
and accountability against the Community Plan themes and vision. The delivery 
structure brings together two approaches: 
 

The VOLT model 
VOLT stands for Victim – Offender – Location - Time: These are the elements that 
make up virtually any crime. This model has been developed by the Metropolitan 
Police Service to help ensure best use of resources. It does this by helping ensure 
that the right resources are in the right place at the right time and targeting the 
priorities identified through analytical intelligence. The result is enhanced 
operational co-ordination. 
 
The VOLT approach is reflected in the CSP governance model:  

 

• The Domestic Violence and Hate Crime Boards are primarily victim focussed 
 

• The approach to offenders is to be co-ordinated through a single Integrated 
Offender Management Board 

 

• Locations are at the centre of Service Integration work detailed below which 
has adopted a Joint Tasking approach to ensure that resources are deployed at 
the most appropriate location and time. This will be monitored through the 
Crime & Anti-Social Behaviour Reduction Board. 

 

Service Integration 
The Service Integration Teams will seek to make best use of existing local 
structures to enable effective tasking and resolution of identified local priorities and 
problem solving. This involves a review of the way we engage residents, work 
together to solve problems and implement strategy.  
 
The Service Integration Team will have 3 characteristics: 
 

• Neighbourhood focus to enable direct management of service standards and 
local accountability by residents through the Neighbourhood Agreement. 

 

• Locality prioritisation through the Police Safer Neighbourhood Ward Panels. The 
recommendation is that the Ward Panels will set at least 3 community priorities 
which will cover policing and LBTH Communities Localities and Culture 
priorities.  It will become the responsibility of the Service Integration Team to 
problem solve against these priorities.   

 

• Strategic delivery and accountability: Service Integration Teams will be 
responsible for the local delivery of the Community Safety Plan. Cross-agency 
activity will be co-ordinated through joint tasking on a monthly or more frequent 
basis. The Crime & Anti-social Behaviour Reduction Board will meet quarterly to 
monitor the performance of each of the Service Integration Teams. 

 
In addition to the arrangements outlined above, there is a statutory requirement to 
have a Drug and Alcohol Action Team board, a Youth Offending Board, and the 
Adults Safeguarding Board. 
 

Page 225



 12

Other boards exist that do not specifically fit the VOLT / Service Integration model 
outlined above due to their specific focus. These include the Cohesion Board and 
the Confidence & Satisfaction Board which are detailed below. 
 
The diagram on the following page shows the delivery structure for the Safe & 
Cohesive Community Plan Delivery Group (Community Safety Partnership): 

Page 226



 13 

 

Safe and Cohesive Community Delivery Structure 
 

 

 

  

P
age 227



 14 

With regard to each of the groups within this structure: 

• Safe & Cohesive Community Plan Delivery Group  
(Community Safety Partnership) 
This group is accountable for the reduction of crime and increasing 
community cohesion. It will determine priorities and oversee the statutory and 
non-statutory boards and panels responsible for the specific elements of this. 
It meets on a bi-monthly basis and is co-chaired by the Metropolitan Police 
Service Tower Hamlets Borough Commander and the Deputy Mayor for 
Tower Hamlets with responsibility for Community Safety. It is also responsible 
for ensuring that the Partners meet their statutory obligations in relation to 
strategic review and planning for the safety of the borough’s community. 
Membership to this Group is at Chief Executive or Corporate Director level 
across key public agencies. For a full list of members see Appendix 3 

 

• Youth Offending Team Management Board 
The YOT Management Board oversees the youth offending multi-agency 
team which comprises of staff from; the Council; Police; Social Services; 
Education; Youth Service; Probation and the Health Service. The team works 
with young people from arrest through to sentencing. They provide services to 
the youth court, and work with young people given final warnings from the 
police and those given community sentences. The team also works with 
young people and the community to prevent young people from entering the 
criminal justice system. 

 

• Safeguarding Boards (Children & Adults) 
These two separate multi agency steering groups comprise of lead officers 
from; Health; Police; Housing; Education; Commissioning Bodies; Voluntary 
Sector; Probation; Legal Services; Department of working Pensions; and 
Social Services who are the lead agency. The steering groups co-ordinate 
activity aimed at ensuring that vulnerable children and adults are protected 
through the application of the London Borough of Tower Hamlet’s Children 
and Adult Protection Policies. 

 

• Drug & Alcohol Action Team Board 
This is chaired by the council Corporate Director for Communities, Localities 
and Culture, with membership consisting of representatives from the Tower 
Hamlets NHS Primary Care Trust (PCT), the Metropolitan Police Service, The 
National Probation Service and LBTH Adult and Children’s (social) services. It 
is a statutory board with responsibilities for coordinating and commissioning 
services relating to drug and alcohol treatment; young people’s treatment, 
education and prevention developing community capacity; and tackling the 
availability of drugs. 

 

• Domestic Violence Board 
This board oversees our multi-agency approach to domestic violence. It has 
oversight of the Multi Agency Risk Assessment Case conference (MARAC) 
and monitors the effectiveness of the Serious Domestic Violence Court.  

 

• Crime & Anti-Social Behaviour Reduction Board 

Page 228



 15 

This Board will be established as part of the programme to join together 
service delivery in the localities. The group will meet quarterly to monitor the 
performance of each Service Integration Team (SIT). On a monthly basis this 
group will carryout joint tasking across all 4 Service Integration Teams. The 
membership of this group will include Service Heads from CLC, Police 
Superintendent, and the Service Head Youth Services. Day to day 
management of the SIT’s will be the responsibility of the Locality Co-ordinator 
with monthly meetings chaired by Chief Inspector or CLC Service Head on a 
rotating basis.  External partners such as Head Teachers, RSL’s, and 
religious leaders will also be invited to these monthly meetings.  

 

• Integrated Offender Management  
This new group will responsible for the management of offenders in the 
community. It brings together a range of activity including the Priority Prolific 
Offender Scheme, the Youth Offending Team, Probation and the Drugs 
Intervention Programme. The objective of this work is to increase community 
safety through reducing re-offending. 

 

• Equality and Cohesion Board 
This board has responsibility for the delivery of the Preventing Violent 
Extremism (Prevent) programme and partnership work to promote cohesion. 
It also has oversight of the Community Cohesion Contingency Planning & 
Tension Monitoring Group, the Hate Crime Board and the Preventing Violent 
Extremism Programme Board. 

 

• Confidence & Satisfaction Board 
The confidence and satisfaction of the community in our shared approach to 
crime and cohesion are key success measures. This group will have an 
overview of activity to ensure that community views and concerns are 
understood and addressed efficiently and effectively. It will also ensure that 
residents have access to relevant information, including feedback of actions 
taken. 
 
 
NB. Key Partners of the Community Safety Partnership also come together 
for Olympic Planning via the Olympic Planning Operations Group for the 
period leading up to and including the Olympic and Paralympic Games. 

Page 229



 16 

Drivers of Crime & Anti-Social Behaviour 
 
For a crime to take place there needs to be reason. If a crime is an effect, then 
the cause or ‘driver’ as we call it is normally that reason. 
 
There can be many reasons for crime and anti-social behaviour to take place.  
Drivers include poverty and unemployment, both of which are high within the 
borough. Others can include poor parenting, low academic achievement or 
society in general. Two key drivers within the borough are drugs and alcohol. 
 
In some respects, the Olympics could also be seen as a driver of crime, due to 
the increased population both leading up to and during the games. 
 
Drugs 
 
1There is a clear link between dependent drug users of Class A drugs, like heroin 
and crack cocaine, and acquisitive crimes, such as theft, burglary, robbery, fraud 
and shoplifting committed in order to fund that habit. People arrested for “trigger 
offences” – those most associated with drug use – are tested for drugs and many 
test positive. 
 
A Class A drug habit may cost the user in the region of £15,000 - £30,000 a year. 
As stolen goods may only sell for about a third of their value, this could mean a 
single user being responsible for up to £90,000 per year of acquisitive crime. 
 
There are an estimated 130,000 - 200,000 problematic drug users in the United 
Kingdom.  It is estimated that the market value of goods stolen to fund drugs 
habits in the UK could be £2 - £2.5 billion each year. 
 
Drugs are linked to crime and anti-social behaviour in a number of other ways. 
There are the crimes of possession, supply of drugs and driving whilst unfit 
through drugs.  However there are also links to violence and possession of 
weapons, particularly relating to drug dealing. 
 
Drug use and dealing can also lead to anti-social behaviour due to the effects it 
has on the surrounding community. Drugs can cause users to act differently, 
becoming less considerate of others, more abusive and sometimes violent. Drug 
users may also discard drugs paraphernalia once they have taken it, leading to 
drugs litter such as needles. Groups of people congregating in public to use 
drugs can impact on the local community’s feeling of safety and confidence to go 
out in public.  
 
A high percentage of sex workers are addicted to Class A drugs. Whilst 
prostitution itself is not a crime, in some cases it can have negative impacts on 
the local community, through anti-social behaviour, sex acts taking place in 
public and discarded condoms. 
 

                                                 
1
Drugscope How much crime is drug related? January 2004 

Page 230



 17 

Alcohol 
 
Alcohol affects the human body by lowering inhibitions, increasing the likelihood 
of making bad decisions, misinterpreting situations and acting out of character. 
All these effects on the human body can make a person more likely to be either a 
victim or perpetrator of crime. 
 
Alcohol is often linked to violence and anti-social behaviour, Drink Aware 
estimated that 23,000 alcohol related incidents take place in the UK every week, 
including street fights, breaches of the peace and drunk and disorderly conduct. 
 
Research by the Home Office found that more than half of all violent crime is 
committed by offenders who are drunk and more than a third happens in and 
around pubs and clubs.  One third of all reported domestic violence is linked to 
alcohol misuse.  The British Medical Association has said that Alcohol is a factor 
in: 

• 60 -70% of homicides 

• 75% of stabbings 

• 70% of beatings 

• 50% of fights and domestic assaults 
 
It is important to emphasise that the majority of people who drink alcohol are not 
violent but drinking increases the likelihood of being a victim of alcohol related 
violence. 
 
According to the Home Office2, the overall cost of crime and anti-social behaviour 
linked to alcohol misuse in the UK is estimated at between £8 and £13 billion per 
year. This is solely based on the crime element of alcohol misuse and does not 
include the costs which are borne by the NHS for related health conditions.  The 
rate of alcohol related hospital admissions is increasing by 70,000 every year. 
 
Alcohol misuse is known to be a driver for violence towards strangers in public 
places (including in and around licensed premises) and towards family members 
(domestically in the home). Nationally, it is estimated that nearly half of all violent 
crimes and anti-social behaviour is alcohol related.  
 
Alcohol misuse is closely linked to anti-social behaviour in a number of ways, all 
stemming from the effect that alcohol has on the user’s behaviour. People 
drinking in licensed premises can cause disturbances in the surrounding area as 
they make loud noises upon leaving, are less considerate to local residents, 
discard rubbish (either empty bottles/cans or food) and urinate in public.  
 
Alcohol misuse in public places can impact on the community’s feeling of safety 
and confidence to go out in public as residents report feeling intimidated, 
particularly by noisy, abusive and inconsiderate behaviour. 

                                                 
2
Home Office 19-01-2010 “Government reveals tough new powers to tackle alcohol crime” 

Page 231



 18 

Olympics  
 
From one perspective, the Olympics and Paralympics can be seen as a driver of 
crime and anti-social behaviour, through attracting larger numbers of people into 
Tower Hamlets and London more generally, including  through employment, 
development, and to attend events.  This may impact in a negative way through 
providing more opportunities to commit crime. 
 
Particular phases of the Olympics could stimulate an increase in specific types of 
crime and anti-social behaviour, for example the construction of venues could 
link to acquisitive crime from building sites and contractor vehicles and the 
‘games time’ may be linked to increases in prostitution, robbery, domestic 
violence and drug dealing. 
 
Analysis of over 100 crime and disorder documents relating to Tower Hamlets, 
the national picture and the international picture has shown the following are 
potential risks related to the Olympics and the large number of people entering 
and or gathering in Tower Hamlets: 
 
Large public gatherings / events and sporting events can lead to alcohol 
consumption, assaults, robbery, theft, disorder, recreational drug use, drug 
dealing and anti-social behaviour as they leave the venues. 
Large influx of tourists unfamiliar with the local environment can lead to increases 
of theft and robbery. 
World media attention on the area can lead to increases in public protests and 
counter demonstrations and in turn flash points for disorder, criminal damage and 
violence. 
Increased demand for prostitution can lead to increases in people trafficking, 
sexual exploitation and related anti-social behaviour. 
Increased alcohol consumption following sporting events often leads to increases 
in anti-social behaviour and domestic violence. 
Disruption to the public transport network could impact of drug treatment services 
which in turn could lead to increases in drug use and acquisitive crime. 
 
It is important to remember that while the Olympics can be seen as a driver for 
crime and anti-social behaviour, the partnership’s effort to manage the potential 
risks could also have positive effects on crime and public perceptions of safety. 
For example, an increased level of service resourcing and highly visible officers 
in the public realm could act as a deterrent for opportunist crime and also 
increase public feelings of safety and confidence in partnership agencies. This 
increased high visibility could also act as a deterrent to criminals in the 
surrounding areas. 
 
Evidence gathered from previous Olympic host cities has shown that crime and 
ASB increase both in absolute terms and rates. For example, downtown 
Vancouver experienced 30% increase in overall violent crime during the 2010 
Winter Games while Manchester reported a similar uplift during the 
Commonwealth Games in 2002 (personal communication from Mark Ross, 
Business Link Manager). As a consequence of the Olympics and Paralympics, it 
is therefore highly likely that partner agencies will face significant rises in local 
crime and ASB reports across the summer of 2012 which may jeopardise targets 
based on Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and statutory response times. 

Page 232



 19 

 
            
 
 
 

Page 233



 20 

Community Safety Plan Priorities 
 
The Community Safety Partnership is made up of a large number of agencies 
who have a responsibility to tackle crime and anti-social behaviour or to improve 
community cohesion. As a partnership, we are committed to the following 
priorities in 2012-13.  
 
 

Violence 
 
Violent crime has a far reaching and enduring effect on its victims. The fear of 
violent crime within a community can greatly affect the way that the community 
behaves and interacts. These crimes by their very nature have an effect on the 
victim which is often traumatic and life long. Often a single encounter of a violent 
nature will cause an individual to change the way in which they conduct their 
lives, often to the detriment and hardship of the victim. 
 
Our approach to violent crime is focussed on tackling and reducing all types of 
violent crime within the community. Violence includes gun crime, knife crime, 
‘most serious violence’ and ‘assault with injury’3 
 
The partnership also recognises the seriousness of violence towards hospital 
and ambulance workers. It will improve data sharing protocols to increase 
reporting and robust prosecutions. 
 
Measures of the partnership’s performance on Violence include:  

• Number of ‘Most serious violence’ offences (formerly NI15) 

• Most serious violence Sanctioned Detection (SD) rate 

• Number of Gun Crimes and Gun Crime SD Rate 

• Number of Knife Crimes and Knife crime SD Rate 

• Number of Assaults with Injury 
 

 
 

                                                 
3
 Gun Crime  

Violence Against the Person, robbery, burglary and sexual offences in which a firearm (defined as a weapon covered by 
Firearms Acts 1968 to 1988 and excluding CS/pepper spray) are used. 
 
Knife Crime 
All offences of Murder, attempted murder, threats to kill, manslaughter, infanticide, wounding or carrying out an act 
endangering life, GBH without intent, ABH and other injury, sexual assault, rape, robbery where a knife or sharp 
instrument (defined as any instrument that can pierce the skin) has been used. 
 
Most serious violence & assault with injury 
MSV: Homicide and Child Destruction, Attempted Murder, Wounding or other act endangering life, GBH (Part), Causing 
Death by Dangerous/Careless/ Inconsiderate Driving, Causing Death by Aggravated Vehicle Taking. 
Assault with injury: ABH and other injury and racially or religiously aggravated ABH and other injury 

 
Page 234



 21 

Serious Acquisitive Crime 
 
An acquisitive crime is one where the victim is permanently deprived of 
something that belongs to them by another person/s. Serious acquisitive crimes 
are the most harmful which include burglary, robbery and vehicle crime (both 
theft from and theft of a motor vehicle). These crimes are often committed by a 
small number of prolific offenders with drug misuse acting as a driver and the 
proceeds of acquisitive crime used to fund addictions.  
 
Acquisitive crimes have a high impact on the community’s feeling of safety and 
dealing with acquisitive crime quickly has the biggest impact on levels of public 
confidence in local community safety agencies. 
 
Integrated offender management and targeted work around prolific and priority 
offenders is key to reducing these types of crimes. Working in partnership, 
agencies such as the Police, Probation, Drug Treatment Services and the 
Council can manage these offenders by providing a range of interventions from 
treatment and support which seek to address the causes, to criminal justice 
interventions such as the courts. 
 
Our work in this area focuses on residential burglary, robbery and motor vehicle 
crime. It utilises an intelligence and evidence based approach to target activity in 
areas where it will make the most difference, such as around markets and 
transport hubs. Around transport hubs it will require partnership officers to work 
closely with Police Safer Transport Teams, Transport For London and the British 
Transport Police, to ensure people are safe on journeys in Tower Hamlets. 
 
While community safety agencies have a responsibility to prevent, investigate 
and bring offenders to justice for acquisitive crimes, the community also have a 
responsibility to take reasonable steps to safeguard their property and prevent 
crime from happening in the first place. Following crime prevention advice and 
participating in Neighbourhood Watch Schemes will be crucial in helping us to 
reduce this type of crime. 
 
Measures of the partnership’s performance on Serious Acquisitive Crime 
include: 

• Number of Serious Acquisitive Crimes (formerly NI16) 

• Number of Personal Robberies 

• Number of Commercial Robberies 

• Total Robbery numbers 

• Robbery SD Rate 

• Number of Residential Burglaries** 

• Residential Burglary SD Rate 

• Residential Burglary SD Rate excluding offences Taken Into 
Consideration (TIC) 

• Number of thefts of Motor Vehicles 

• Number of thefts From Motor Vehicles 

• Serious Acquisitive Crime SD Rate 

 
 
 

Page 235



 22 

Youth 
 

While Tower Hamlets has one of London’s highest proportions of young people 
in its population, young offenders are a small, but growing minority within that 
population. In the recent London disturbances only seven young people residing 
in Tower Hamlets were charged with related offences. 

 

Priority areas set by the Government for the coming year for Youth Offending 
Services (YOS) are; 

• The Reduction of First Time Entrants to the Youth Justice System 

• The Reduction of Custody (remands and Custodial Sentences) 

• The Reduction of Re-offending 
 

Serious Youth Violence, Youth Violence and Youth Anti-Social Behaviour rightly 
remain a concern for the Community Safety Partnership and are part of our 
strategic plan.  

 

The Partnership and the Mayor’s priorities show commitment to improving youth 
educational attainment thereby giving young people positive futures to work 
towards. We hope to continue to intervene early to divert young people from 
crime and anti-social behaviour by providing positive activities for young people, 
and supporting them to resist entering into destructive lifestyles, anti-social 
behaviour or criminality. Our record in doing so through the YOS Early 
Intervention and Prevention strand is well documented in the current Strategic 
Review Update draft as follows. 
 
First Time Entrants (FTE) 2010/11 
 
The 2010/11 rate per 100,000 is the lowest since records began in 2000/01. 
Since 2009, the youth offending service has been able to make a significant 
reduction in the FTE rate per 100,000 youth population, despite the rise in the 
number of young people receiving pre-court disposals. In 2010/11, we exceeded 
our FTE target; however, it remains above the London average.   
 
Despite the evident success of the Early Intervention/Prevention work of the 
Youth Offending Service, the demand on the statutory services of the Youth 
Offending Team has still increased - and the threat to the continuation of early 
intervention work through uncertain funding (The service is not funded beyond 
March 2012) represents an additional threat in terms of achieving all of the 
Government’s targets - If Early Intervention is discontinued, Re-offending and 
Custodial rates will inevitably increase. This is a further concern for Community 
Safety and the Council’s budget as the government is transferring the cost of 
custody to the Local Authority and introducing Payment by Results for our 
service. 
 

 

Page 236



 23 

The Reduction of Custody (remands and Custodial Sentences) 

The Reduction of Re-offending 

 
The Youth Offending Team has recently been subject to a Core Case Inspection 
by HMIP which focussed on three areas; 

• The Safeguarding of young people 

• The Management of Harm (Public Protection) 

•  The Likelihood of Re-offending 
 
Findings were as follows: 

 
Our plan for the coming year in the statutory area of work is to devise and 
implement a robust action plan to raise our performance in these areas - whilst 
we recognise that the Inspection focussed on processes rather than outcomes 
for children and young people (in the latter our performance is strong) we fully 
accept the Inspectorate’s findings that our assessment of offenders needs and 
the delivery of our work could be smarter, more efficient and even more effective. 
We will also continue to innovate and adapt as the Ministry of Justice becomes 
our governing body, with the imminent demise of the Youth Justice Board for 
England and Wales. 
 
For example, along with Hackney (as lead Authority) Haringey, Islington, 
Newham, Redbridge and Waltham Forest we are embarking on a two year 
“Youth Justice Re-investment” grant funded (Reducing Pathways to Custody) 
pilot using Multi-Systemic Therapy to work with Offenders on the brink of custody 
and their families where home conditions and relationships are assessed to be a 
core cause of offending. This is one of the first “Payment by Results” pilot 
schemes in the country it commenced in October 2011 
  
Measures of the partnership’s performance on Youth include: 

• Number of Serious Youth Violence and Youth Violence offences 

• Triage diverting 1st time offenders from Youth Justice Board 
a) referrals to triage 
b) satisfactory completion of intervention 
c) satisfactory completion of intervention who go on to re-offend 
d) failed to complete intervention who go on to re-offend 

• Rate of proven re-offending by young offenders (formerly NI19)

Scores from Wales and the 
English regions that have 
been inspected to date  

Lowest Highest Average 

Scores for 

Tower 

Hamlets and 

City YOT 

‘Safeguarding’ work 

(action to protect the young person) 
37% 91% 68% 64% 

‘Risk of Harm to others’ work 

(action to protect the public) 
36% 85% 63% 49% 

‘Likelihood of Re-offending’ work 

(individual less likely to re-offend) 
43% 87% 71% 71% 

Page 237



 24 

Violence Against Women and Girls  
 
Violence against women and girls includes domestic abuse / violence where the 
victim knows the offender / perpetrator, sexual offences where the offender is not 
known to the victim and crimes such as female genital mutilation and honour 
based violence.  Sex workers are particularly at risk of being exploited and 
victimised in these ways and so are specifically considered as part of this 
section. 
 
Domestic abuse is defined as any incident of threatening behaviour, violence or 
abuse which is of a psychological, physical, sexual, financial or emotional nature 
between two adults who are or have been intimate partners regardless of gender. 
It also includes family members which are defined as mother, father, son, 
daughter, brother, and sister, grandparents, in-laws and step family. It is a major 
cause of homelessness, as well as a factor in a high proportion of child protection 
cases.  
 
Our work on domestic violence is focused on increasing reporting, increasing 
successful prosecutions, and reducing incidents. 
 
We aim to prevent domestic violence and reduce the harm it causes by 
developing a co-ordinated community response that supports and protects 
victims, holds abusers to account and reduces social tolerance through 
awareness raising campaigns and community education activities. The Tower 
Hamlets Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference ensures that high risk 
victims are identified and assessed so that each is given the appropriate level of 
support from suitable agencies. The Specialist Domestic Violence Court ensures 
that court cases are fast tracked and victims effectively supported to ensure that 
more cases are successful at court.  
 
Female prostitutes are often at risk of violent crime in the course of their work 
which can include both physical and sexual attacks, including rape. Perpetrators 
of such offences include violent clients and pimps. Many prostitutes or sex 
workers also face domestic abuse / violence from their partners, especially if the 
partner is also their pimp.  Violence is a common mechanism of control. 
 
There tend to be higher levels of violence committed against street sex workers 
compared with off-street workers, the latter often going unreported to the police. 
Prostitutes often put themselves at increased risk by taking their clients to ‘out of 
the way’ places, where they are less likely to be interrupted. 
 
There is evidence that trafficked women are working in the borough. The 
increase in human trafficking for sexual exploitation is also fuelling the market for 
prostitution in the UK, although this is largely confined to off street and residential 
premises such as brothels, massage parlours, saunas and in residential flats. 
This is a lucrative business and is often linked with other organised criminal 
activity such as immigration crime, violence, drug abuse and money laundering.  
Women may be vulnerable to exploitation because of their immigration status, 
economic situation or, more often, because they are subjected to abuse, 
coercion and violence.  
 

Page 238



 25 

Safe Exit at Toynbee Hall is a key agency bringing together voluntary and 
statutory agencies to develop better services for people in prostitution and to 
reduce the impact of prostitution on communities. They work in partnership on 
strategies to reduce harm to those involved, to support them to change their 
lifestyles and to prevent vulnerable people entering prostitution. 
 
The Partnership’s work on sexual violence focuses on increasing reporting and 
prosecutions, reducing incidents and raising awareness of services.  We will 
work on encouraging victims to report these crimes to the police, and 
encouraging take up of specialist support available, for example, through Haven 
Sexual Assault Referral Centre, in Whitechapel.  We will focus on providing 
training to key professionals such as health service and housing providers to 
increase their understanding of the issues involved. 
 
Measures of the partnership’s performance on Violence Against Women 
and Girls include: 

• Number of domestic Violence Offences 

• Domestic Violence SD Rate 

• Domestic Offence Arrest Rate 

• Number of rapes  

• Rape SD rate 

• Number of other Serious Sexual Offences*** 

• Other Serious Sexual Offences SD Rate  

• Reduce the length of time Domestic Violence is experienced before it is 
initially reported to a specialist agency. 

• Number of repeat incidents of domestic violence  

• Number of DV Murders (was NI34) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*** Other Serious Sexual Offences – includes sexual activity involving a child under 16, incest or familial sexual offences, 
exploitation of prostitution, soliciting for the purpose of prostitution, abuse of position of trust of a sexual nature, sexual 
grooming, other miscellaneous sexual offences, unnatural sexual offences, exposure and voyeurism. 

Page 239



 26 

Drugs / Alcohol 
 
Alcohol consumption is increasing and particular concerns include underage 
drinking and alcohol related health problems. Anti-social behaviour caused by 
excessive drinking has an impact in many areas of community life. 
 
4Nationally, it is estimated that nearly half of all violent crime and antisocial 
behaviour is alcohol related.  Between April 2009 and March 2010 drug related 
offences (dealing and possession) in Tower Hamlets accounted for 12.2% of all 
“notifiable” offences dealt with by the police. This is the second highest rate in 
London.  Where mandatory drug tests in police custody suites have been 
undertaken, 30% of those tested have had a positive result for opiates or cocaine 
(Class A drugs). 
 
The most recent estimate suggests that there are around 3,795 problematic drug 
users in Tower Hamlets; Of this number, 1,775 (47%) are estimated to have not 
yet engaged with treatment. 
 
It has been estimated nationally that the cost of alcohol misuse is huge, with at 
least £6 billion wasted every year. However it is also a fact that treatment can be 
cost effective – for every £1 spent on treatment, £5 is saved elsewhere. For drug 
misuse treatment, similar financial benefits are possible: for every £1 spent on 
drug treatment in Tower Hamlets, £3.95 is saved on health and crime costs. 
 
In Tower Hamlets, we will support people and families to make healthy lifestyle 
choices; we will reduce harm to those at risk, and empower those who are 
addicted or dependent on drugs or alcohol to recover. We will relentlessly bear 
down on the crime and anti-social behaviour associated with drug and alcohol 
misuse that impacts on our communities.  
 
The Partnership aims to help people who are addicted to or dependent on drugs 
or alcohol to recover, by enabling, empowering and supporting them to progress 
along a journey of sustainable improvement to their health, well-being and 
independence.  
 
The Partnership is very aware of the serious social, psychological and physical 
complications of drug use, as well as the issue of multiple drug use or combined 
substance misuse and mental health problems (known as dual diagnosis). We 
believe that our services are particularly attuned to the needs of complex clients 
and while this is a historically challenging client group for traditional drug 
services, we will aim to ensure that Tower Hamlets services continue to develop 
and effectively meet their needs. 
 
We have organised our commitments on drug and alcohol misuse around the 
three cross-cutting pillars of Behaviour Change, Treatment, and Enforcement 
and Regulation. 
 

• Behaviour Change includes the actions we will take to ensure high quality 
information is available on drugs and alcohol, the promotion and 
prevention activities we will develop, and the advice and initial support 

                                                 
4
 Tower Hamlets Substance Misuse Strategy 2011-14 

Page 240



 27 

options available to people who might have early stage problems with 
drugs and alcohol. 

• Treatment includes the actions we will take to improve the access and 
treatment options available for people who are dependent on, or who have 
problems with, alcohol or drugs 

• Enforcement and Regulation includes the actions we will take to enforce 
the law as it relates to alcohol and drugs, and reduce the anti-social 
behaviour and crime associated with drug and alcohol misuse. 

 
The Drug and Alcohol Outreach Team offers help and support to people who use 
substances (both drugs and alcohol) and is working to reduce drink and drug 
related anti-social behaviour on the streets in Tower Hamlets. The team works in 
estates, hostels, parks and other public spaces to build relationships with street 
drinkers and drug users so they know where to turn to when they are ready to 
kick their habit. By tackling the problems at street level, the council is able to 
provide long-lasting solutions to issues such as begging, anti-social behaviour 
and shoplifting, while helping people reclaim their lives.  
 
The partnership has recently introduced a Responsible Drinking Borough policy 
which effectively means that alcohol related anti-social behaviour can now be 
tackled in public places by both Police and Council Enforcement Officers, when it 
happens with additional powers to seize alcohol from those drinking in public. 
 
The Council continues to fund activity to reduce drug supply.  This includes a 
dedicated police team (Partnership Task Force) to tackle drug dealing on the 
borough’s streets and related ASB. Other activity includes work towards a Police 
target to arrest ‘a dealer a day’.  There are also specific covert operations to 
tackle high level drug dealing and remove teams of drug dealers in specific 
hotspots. These targeted operations are extremely resource intensive and owe 
their effectiveness in large part to the important role the community plays in 
sharing intelligence with partner agencies.  
 
Our priorities in 2012-13 include: 

• Undertaking Treatment Review and implementing recommendations to: 
a) Support more people into treatment and do this earlier  
b) Improve outcomes 
c) Improve voluntary uptake of treatment for statutory and non-

statutory offenders with issues but no treatment requirements 

• Greater NHS involvement in alcohol licensing 
 
Current measures for Drugs and Alcohol include: 
 

• Number of drug intervention programme referrals that re-offend 

• Number of drug users recorded as being in effective treatment (formerly 
NI40) 

• Perception of drug use or drug dealing as a problem (formerly NI42) 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 241



 28 

Integrated Offender Management 
 
Integrated Offender Management is a partnership approach to reduce the actions 
of prolific or other priority offenders.  Prolific offenders are a small number of 
offenders who carry out a high proportion of crimes.  This work is linked to 
longstanding work on priority and prolific offenders (PPOs), which works under 
the strands of ‘Prevent and Deter’ and ‘Catch and Convict’. 
 
The overall aim of this approach is to support and improve the prosecution 
process and reduce the re-offending of prolific and other priority offenders, which 
should consequently reduce the number of crimes and their victims. 
 
Through effective partnership working between police, probation, health and the 
council, we will identify prolific offenders; get them into appropriate 
rehabilitation/treatment where possible, remove the causes/drivers of their crimes 
and prevent them from committing further crimes. Where this approach is 
inappropriate or ineffective we will manage their offending behaviour with 
intensive interventions to disrupt their offending and fast track 
investigations/court cases so that the prosecution success rate increases. 
 
Ultimately our aim is to prevent the ‘revolving door’ effect, where offenders 
leaving custody, court orders or treatment, re-offend very quickly. 
 
Current measures and priorities for Integrated Offender Management include: 
 

• Offenders under probation supervision living in settled and suitable 
accommodation at the end of their order or licence (formerly NI 143) 

• Drug intervention programme referrals that re-offend 

• Offenders under probation supervision in employment at the end of their 
order or license (formerly NI 14) 

• Rate of proven re-offending by adults under probation supervision  

• Adult re-offending rates for those under probation supervision (formerly 
NI18) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 242



 29 

Anti-Social Behaviour 
 
Anti-social behaviour (ASB) includes a wide variety of incidents from substantial 
criminal offences, through disorder to nuisance and noise. It may even be 
described as anything which impacts on the normal tranquillity of life within a 
community. Deliberate fire setting and arson are also considered here under this 
anti-social behaviour section. 
 
Within Tower Hamlets Community Safety Partnership we utilise multi-agency 
approaches to all ASB reports. Partnership working is the most effective way to 
tackle problems and to supervise the progress of these issues to a satisfactory 
conclusion, irrespective of how long it takes. The Borough Crime Tasking Group 
(BCTG) monitors and tasks partnership resources in response to emerging 
community issues across the borough. 
 
Tower Hamlets Enforcement Officers (THEOs) and ASB Investigators, Police 
Safer Neighbourhood Teams (SNTs) and Housing Officers have important roles 
to play in the identification and investigation of anti-social behaviour.  
 
When necessary, partnership officers will progress cases against perpetrators of 
anti-social behaviour through the partnership’s ASB Legal Consultation and 
Certification Board. The board oversees legal applications and enforcement 
action, ensuring that appropriate partnership consultation and interventions have 
been carried out. 
 
London Fire Brigade work with partners to reduce fire related anti-social 
behaviour. LFB work with partners in the following ways:  

• Attending Safeguarding Adults Board to identify most at risk and engage 
with that community effectively 

• Joint working with Tower Hamlets Homes and Poplar Harca to promote 
home fire safety, identify hotspot areas for rubbish fires and develop 
reduction action plans including estate action days and arson reduction 
plans. 

• Working with Police Safer Neighbourhoods Teams to develop arson 
reduction plans for hotspots using practical measures and education. 

• Working with the Public Realm to identify and report rubbish hotspot areas 
to prevent rubbish fires occurring. 
 

Current measurements and priorities for ASB are set out below: 
 

• Anti-Social Behaviour and Drugs  

• Number of Arson incidents (all deliberate Fires)  

• Number of Deliberate Fires (Deliberate)  

• Number of Grass/open land fires – deliberate and unknown  

• Number of Rubbish Fires – deliberate and unknown 

• Progress Council Enforcement Review 

• NI33 Arson Incidents–there are 2 targets which make up this indicator: 
a)  measures the change in primary fires 
b)  measures the change in secondary fires 

Page 243



 30 

Cohesion and Hate Crime 
 
The Tower Hamlets Community Plan aims to make the borough a better place for 
everyone who lives and works here. The borough’s diversity is one of its greatest 
strengths with the richness, vibrancy and energy that our communities bring.  At 
the heart of the Community Plan is a commitment to build One Tower Hamlets, to 
tackle inequality, strengthen cohesion and build community leadership and 
personal responsibility. These objectives are reflected in all our key strategic 
activities.  
 
In committing ourselves to building One Tower Hamlets, the Tower Hamlets 
Partnership has made a public commitment to treating people with fairness and 
respect regardless of their differences. Everyone living, working or visiting the 
borough has the right to live free from discrimination and prejudice. Tackling 
inequality and ensuring that the borough is a place where people feel safe and 
where difference is seen not as a threat but as a core strength requires strong 
local leadership and active community participation.  
 
Cohesion 
Since 2008 the development of ‘One Tower Hamlets’ has placed cohesion as 
part of a cycle of action embedded into day-to-day work: tackling inequality leads 
to the strengthening of cohesion and thereby builds community leadership and 
personal responsibility which can tackle inequality, strengthen communities.   
 
The strength of our local partnerships has been crucial to enabling us to develop 
this work. We have well established partnerships between the Council, Police 
and other statutory and community organisation to promote community cohesion 
and tackle hate.  A long standing commitment to fighting discrimination is shared 
by a wide range of partners, which is framed by our borough wide No Place for 
Hate Campaign.  A wide programme of work continues to bring communities 
together including projects delivered through the One Tower Hamlets Fund.  
 
Our approach to fostering community cohesion is also based on providing 
inclusive services. The way we deliver services and take decisions has a 
significant impact on way that people feel about their local area and their lives, as 
well as those of their families and the people around them. 
 
In 2011-12 we will: 
 

• Implement the Community Cohesion Framework, which will provide a 
clearer strategy for our high level commitment to ensure that cohesion 
policy translates into effective service delivery  

• Explore the local implications of the public sector Equality Duty and the 
Localism Bill 

• Use the experience of a pilot on the Boundary Estate to develop 
Neighbourhood Agreements which link the delivery of localised services 
and to the respective responsibilities of the Council, partners and 
residents and the strengthening of relationships between people from 
different backgrounds 

Page 244



 31 

• Use the One Tower Hamlets fund to commission up to eight local 
organisations to support work on bringing residents together through the 
Neighbourhood Agreement process  

• Exploit the Mayor’s role as a unifying figure via the Citizen Engagement 
Strategy 

• Develop the community leadership of all elected members through 
scrutiny and its role in the budget process  

 
Hate Crime 
The Tower Hamlets we live in today is a diverse and tolerant place where the 
vast majority of people treat each other with dignity and respect; however a small 
minority don’t hold those values and perpetuate hate.  
 
Hate crimes are committed on the grounds of prejudice against people of 
different races, faiths/beliefs, sexual orientations, gender, identities, ages and 
disabilities. 
 
The Partnership works in three ways to tackle and reduce hate crimes in the 
borough: 

1) To ensure that victims have access to appropriate protection and support 
– all hate crime victims are visited in person by police investigating officers 
and offered support through Victim Support Tower Hamlets. 

2) To hold perpetrators accountable for their actions – the Hate Incident 
Panel operates on a monthly basis to co-ordinate multi-agency responses 
to hate incidents, the Police Community Safety Unit robustly tackle 
perpetrators charging where possible and working with schools, parents 
and young people to challenge bullying behaviour and attitudes 

3) To prevent hate through raising awareness, encouraging reporting and 
building community cohesion – the No Place For Hate Campaign delivers 
four outreach events in the community each year and attends numerous 
community events to raise awareness of the partnership’s response to 
hate crime and how member’s of the community can pledge their support 
of zero tolerance to hate. The network of No Place For Hate Champions 
and youth champions continue to promote this work to the community.  

 
Current measurements for hate crime are: 
 

• Racist Offences  

• Racist SD Rate  

• Homophobic Offences 

• Homophobic SD Rate 

• % of people who believe people from different backgrounds get on well 
together in their local area  

• Develop citizen engagement strategy for Bangladeshi Youth 

Page 245



 32 

Preventing Violent Extremism 
For the Tower Hamlets Partnership, work to reduce extremism and prevent 
individuals becoming involved in violence is fundamental to achieving One Tower 
Hamlets.  Work on preventing violent extremism began in 2007 but our local 
approach developed out of existing partnerships, approaches and programmes 
which had enabled us to tackle complex and contentious issues in the past.  
Underpinning our work has been a commitment to engaging with all 
communities, to listen and address concerns and work with community and 
statutory partners to develop appropriate interventions.  We recognised from the 
outset that we could not achieve our aims by working in isolation and have been 
committed throughout to strengthening accountability and transparency.  
Engaging with our communities has been key to increasing understanding of the 
impact on residents of extremism and its links to violence.  
 
The Tower Hamlets PVE programme 2008-11 achieved a huge amount, with a 
number of local projects and activities recognised locally, nationally and 
internationally as effective and innovative.  Given that this was a new area of 
work for local authorities and police forces, it posed significant new challenges.  
Evaluating our learning was a key part of our programme and developing a new 
phase for work beyond 2011 provides us with an opportunity to refine and 
develop our approach.  
 
The evaluation and learning from our work on PVE from 2007-11 provides a firm 
foundation for the development of the next phase of work. However, the context 
for delivering work on PVE (now Prevent) has changed significantly since 2008 in 
financial, political and policy terms and our refreshed approach must respond 
effectively to these changes. 
 
The strategic objectives for the next phase of our Prevent programme are 
designed to enable us to respond effectively to the following: 

• The achievements and learning derived from work on Prevent between 

2007-11 

• Our on-going commitment to One Tower Hamlets within our refreshed 

Community Plan 2011 

• The revised national Prevent strategy 

• The reduction in funding for Prevent work and wider pressure on public 

service finances 

The objectives are: 
1. Target social, peer and educational support and advice to individuals 

identified as at risk of involvement in extremist activity and violence 
2. Strengthen community leadership to enable key individuals and 

organisations to challenge extremist ideology 
3. Strengthen positive social networks and institutions to increase their 

capacity to challenge extremism and violence and disrupt networks and 
organisations which are sympathetic to extremism and terrorism 

4. Ensure robust evaluation is built into the delivery of the Prevent programme 
and activities to ensure effective monitoring of impact and increased 
capacity of local organisations to deliver Prevent objectives 

 
 

Page 246



 33 

Public Confidence 
 
While the level of violent crime in Tower Hamlets is relatively low compared to 
other Boroughs, the fear of being a victim of violent crime is disproportionately 
high. Public confidence in how we respond to crime and disorder and reducing 
the community’s fear of crime is a priority for the partnership as one leads to the 
other. 
 
The partnership are committed to responding to the community’s concerns and 
ensuring that the public believe this is happening, will lead to increased 
confidence and reduced fear of crime. However, addressing these priorities is 
complex due to the fact that we are dealing with people’s perceptions which can 
differ for many reasons. An individual’s perceptions are not solely based on their 
own direct experience of crime, it could be based on a friend or relatives 
experience. The local and national media’s coverage of crimes is thought to have 
a huge impact too. 
 
The partnership is committed to a two way communication process with 
members of the community, as this is essential to improving confidence and 
reducing fear. 
 
We will continue to ask the community what their concerns are and how they feel 
we should tackle them through holding public meetings and consulting existing 
local groups including Safer Neighbourhood Ward Panels, Neighbourhood Watch 
and Tenants and Resident Groups. 
 
We will continue to give information on action taken responding to local concerns 
in the most appropriate format, be that through targeted leafleting, in person at 
public meetings or on the street and utilising local media.  
 
 
Current priorities and measures for Public Confidence are: 
 

• ASB Satisfaction – satisfaction with Police and Community Safety 
Partnership 

• Local Concern about ASB and Crime 
a) Drunk and rowdy behaviour in a public place 
b) Vandalism and Graffiti 
c) Drug use or drug dealing as a problem 

• Develop a PR Strategy to continue to change public perception of ASB 

• NI21 Dealing with local concerns about anti-social behaviour and crime by 
the local council and police 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 247



 34 

Olympics  
 

The Olympics and Paralympics will take place across London from 9thJuly to 12th 
September 2012 and some of our neighbouring boroughs will be hosting a large 
number of events during this time.  
 
While the Borough will not be hosting any of the Olympic or Paralympics events, 
it will still feel the impact of the unparalleled increase in visitors to and traffic 
through the borough. An Olympic Live Site will be situated in Victoria Park which 
will have up to 1,000,000 visitors over 15 days during the games and this will put 
further pressure on existing transport links within the borough. 
 
Research of previous Olympic and Paralympics Games show an increase in 
visitors to boroughs will normally lead to increases in crime and disorder. 
 
Sections of the Olympic Route Network converge at several points in Tower 
Hamlets which will mean an increase in the number of vehicles coming into the 
borough and closures/restrictions of use of roads throughout this period (due to 
traffic management systems and the Olympic Family Lanes which only blue light 
emergency vehicles can use). 
 
The Olympics and Paralympics will put unprecedented drains on borough 
resources in the form of Policing and Health Services from visitors alone; it will 
also impact on our ability to respond to unrelated crime and disorder. Restriction 
in public /non games transport could see inabilities of residents to get to 
important drug treatments, non emergency support to victims of crime and the 
ability for crucial victims and witnesses to get to court cases to give evidence. 
 
Each individual agency within the partnership is expected to experience unique 
risks, have their own priorities to work towards and action plans to ensure there 
are countermeasures for each risk.  
 
Hosting the Olympic Games will increase the threat of a terrorist attack taking 
place, as the games focus the global media spotlight on London. Existing high 
profile locations often thought of as possible targets will be added to with the 
Olympic venues and national teams’ training bases. The Partnership’s Resilience 
and Counter Terrorism Group, which sits under the Olympics Operations Group 
works to devise our Counter Terrorism Strategy. This Strategy includes Business 
Continuity Plans, increased security measures for perceived targets, emergency 
planning and exercises to ensure we are suitably trained to counter terrorist 
threats/incidents.  
 
The partnership’s priority is to ensure that business as usual continues during the 
Olympics period, that we continue to offer the high standards of services to our 
residents and continue to respond to crime and disorder in an effective way that 
residents are accustomed to. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 248



 35 

Partnership Agency Actions: 
 
The Drug and Alcohol Action Team are developing and implementing treatment 
services to respond to increased demands during the Olympics period. They are 
working to ensure that service users are aware of potential disruptions and 
ensuring contingency plans are in place to maintain key services.  
 
NHS London is required to deliver the following objectives: 

• Deliver business as usual performance levels, including any increase in 
demand associated with the games; 

• Meet the bid commitments by providing LOCOG with the necessary 
ambulance and paramedic resources at all LOCOG events and through 
the designated hospitals provide free healthcare for the ‘Games Family’ 

• Provide appropriate contingency for health resilience at Games Time in 
compliance with Department of Health guidance. 

• Joint Exercises, reducing service demand, maintaining blue light services, 
sharing information, establishing role of NHS in 3 councils 

• Delivery Board to be established in August for governance and 
management arrangements for 2012 Planning 

• Strategic Regeneration Framework vision and strategy for achieving 
convergence of the socio-economic conditions of the people of the host 
boroughs to that of the average for London within 20 years. Relevant 
Indicators used to measure this: 
o Overall satisfaction with the local area 
o Perceptions of Anti-Social Behaviour 

• A key area of the Health Legacy’s ‘developing successful neighbourhoods’ 
within the SRF is to reduce levels of violent crime and gang activity 

 
London Fire Brigade Olympic Impact: 

• The London Fire Brigade will have three permanently staffed fire stations 
within the Olympic Park during games period. These will deal with any 
incidents within the park and call on any reinforcements from neighbouring 
LFB fire stations as required. 

• The resources within the park are additional to LFB establishment and will 
not impact on numbers available elsewhere in London. 

• We intend to be as close to business as usual –there will be no change in 
numbers of staff available or numbers of appliances available within the 
borough. There is no intention to change shift pattern or work practices 
outside of the Olympic Park. 

• Within the borough we are taking part in a detailed Testing and Exercising 
Programme to ensure that our crews are ready for the anticipated 
increase in operational incidents of all types and complexity right across 
the games period. 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 249



 36 

Appendix B -  Community Safety Plan 2013 onwards* 
Development and Consultation Plan  

 
Objectives 

• To obtain views on the current levels of crime, disorder, substance misuse 
and re-offending rates within Tower Hamlets.  

 

• To identify community safety priorities from members of the community, 
partner agencies (including the 3rd sector) and the Community Safety 
Partnership (Safe and Cohesive CDPG) for 2013.  

 
Analysis of these perceptions on levels of crime, disorder, substance misuse and 
re-offending rates and subsequent priorities will then be included in the 2012 
Community Safety Partnership’s Strategic Review. This will then be used to 
shape the Community Safety Plan 2013 onwards* before entering into formal 
approval mechanisms. 
 
Key Messages 

• Community safety is one of the Mayor’s five priorities 

• Community safety and cohesion are a priority for the Partnership. 

• The 2012 Community Safety Partnership Plan Priorities 

• 2011 Community Safety Strategic Review & 2012 Community Safety Plan 
will be available on the Website for comment on levels and priorities 

• This consultation is their opportunity to shape crime, disorder and 
cohesion priorities for 2013 onwards. 

• Take part in the consultation to help make Tower Hamlets a safer place 
 
Target Audiences 
Residents 
Members 
Businesses 
Partners (inc. Police/NHS/THH/Third Sector) 
Young people 
Support/Advice agencies 
Hostels 
Media 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
* The length of the Community Safety Plan is determined at a local level by Statutory Authorities within the Community 
Safety Partnership and can cover either 1, 3 or 5 years. 

 
 
 
 

Page 250



 37 

Methods: 
 
Community Safety Partnership (Safe and Cohesive CPDG) 
Key senior officers from the Community Safety Partnership (Police, Council, 
Probation, Fire Service and Health) set up a Strategy Development Group to 
ensure that the Community Safety Plan was produced and have been heavily 
involved in both the design and the content of the Strategic Assessment and the 
Community Safety Plan from the outset.  
 

The Strategic Assessment, draft Community Safety Plan and this Consultation 
Plan were presented to the Community Safety Partnership on 18th October, 
where the Assessment and Consultation Plans were approved and the draft Plan 
was signed off pending feedback from the Consultation.  
 
Press Release 
Launch of Consultation Press Release with quote from Chair of the Safe and 
Cohesive Community Plan Delivery Group (Paul Rickett) and the Mayor of Tower 
Hamlets, Lutfur Rahman. 
 
Letters 
Letters outlining the Plan’s priorities and asking for feedback either by letter or 
through the consultation webpage, to the following: 
 
Residents (identified through previous consultation exercises) 
Residents Groups including TRA’s, Ward Panels and Neighbourhood Watch 
 
Letters and a copy of the new Community Safety Plan seeking feedback on the 
priorities to the following: 
 
Subgroups of the Community Safety Partnership (Safe & Cohesive CPDG): 
Drug and Alcohol Action Team Board 
Youth Offending Team Management Board 
Safeguarding Boards (Adults and Children) 
Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour Reduction Board (Borough Crime Tasking 
Group) 
Equality and Cohesion Board 
Domestic Violence Board 
Confidence and Satisfaction Board (Police Board) 
Borough Criminal Justice Group 
Hate Crime Board (No Place For Hate) 
 
By contacting the above boards/subgroups, we will be consulting the agencies 
below, who are all represented on them. 
 
Tower Hamlets Housing Forum (all Registered Social Landlords invited) 
British Transport Police 
NHS 
Voluntary Sector 
Faith Organisations 
Community Groups 
Canary Wharf Group 
Hostels 

Page 251



 38 

Victims via Victim Support 
One Tower Hamlets 
Support Groups 
Transport For London 
Jobcentre Plus 
Veolia Environmental Services 
Disability groups 
Schools and Youth Centres 
Older peoples’ centres 
 
Members Briefing: 
Article in weekly Members’ Briefing  
 
Briefing Paper:  
A briefing paper for One Stop Shop Staff and Customer Contract Centre Staff will 
be provided with details of the consultation and how they can feed their 
comments into the dedicated ‘mytowerhamlets’ web survey page. 
 
Consultation Events: 
Presentation of 2011-12 Strategic Review findings and the proposed 2013-14 
priorities to Police and Community Safety Board at their Executive meeting 
during the public consultation period. They will be asked for their opinion on the 
levels based on the Strategic Review and asked for their priorities for the next 
Plan period (likely to be 1, 3 or 5 years) based on the 2012-13 Plan’s Priorities. 
 
Presentation of a summary of the 2011-12 Strategic Review and proposed 2013-
14 priorities (inc. explanation), to the Police and Community Safety Board public 
meeting during the consultation period and used as a starting discussion point. 
They will also be presented with the current Police Score Card (or summary) to 
show what the true picture is across the borough and asked to put forward their 
priorities. 
 
Websites: 
Dedicated Consultation page on Tower Hamlets Council’s webpage during the 6 
week consultation period. Partner agencies to be run article or link to consultation 
from their websites to ensure maximum take up. 
 
Media: 
Consultation Launch article in East End Life, asking community to take part in 
consultation and reminder to appear week prior to consultation ends. 
 
Media release to relevant local media to promote consultation.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 252



 39 

Timetable of Consultation and Plan Development: 
 
April 2012 

• Community Safety Plan (2012) Launched and electronic copy of this and 
Strategic Review to be available on relevant website. 

 
April - June 

• Extensive Public Consultation on community safety priorities for the 2013 
Plan 

• Analysis of consultation findings for inclusion in Strategic Review 
 
August – September: 

• Community Safety Strategic Review carried out 
 
October – November: 

• Community Safety Plan (2013 onwards) produced based on Public 
Consultation and Strategic Review Findings 

 
December 2012: 

• 2013 Community Safety Plan presented at Community Safety Partnership 
Meeting for approval and then enters Committee Approval Process (CMT, 
MAB, PAP, Cabinet and Full Council) 

 
April 2013: 

• Final Community Safety Plan is ratified by Full Council 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 253



 40 

Appendix C –  Equalities Analysis 
 

Section 1 – General Information 
 

Name of the Policy or Function 
Community Safety Plan 2012-13 
 
Service area  
Safer Communities Service 
 
Team name 
The Community Safety Partnership 
 
Service manager 
Emily Fieran-Reed 
 
Name and role of the officer completing the Initial Screening 
(Explain why these people were selected i.e. the knowledge and experience they bring to 
the process) 

Emily Fieran-Reed – Head of Community Safety Partnership Domestic Violence 
and Hate Crime. 
James Millington – Strategy and Resources, CLC. 
 

 
Section 2 - Information about the Policy or Function 
 

Is this a policy or function?                                            Policy              
Function  
 
Is the policy or function strategic or developmental?  
 
Strategic    Developmental   
 
Is this a new or existing policy or function?  New   
 Existing   
 
If for a new policy or function, please indicate the date this form was undertaken 
December 2011 
 
If for an existing policy or function, what was the original date(s) the equality 
analysis (Initial Screening or EQIA) was undertaken  
(please attach a copy of any previous equality analysis) 

 
 

What are the main aims and objectives of the Policy or Function 
 
There is a legal requirement for each Community Safety Partnership (Safe & 
Cohesive CPDG) to have a Community Safety Plan.  
 
The Safe and Cohesive Plan 2012-2013 has been created in consultation with 
members of the Safe & Cohesive CPDG.  The objective of the Plan is to address 
the following local priorities: 
 

Page 254



 41 

• The Olympics 

• Drugs and Alcohol 

• Violence 

• Serious Acquisitive Crime 

• Youth 

• Violence Against Women and Girls 

• Integrated Offender Management 

• Anti-Social Behaviour 

• Cohesion & Hate Crime 

• Public Confidence 
 
 
Who are the main stakeholders: 
The London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
The Police 
London Fire Brigade 
Probation Services 
Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust 
Those who live, work and visit the borough 
 
Is this policy/function associated with any other policy or function of the Council 
(i.e. Community Plan, One Tower Hamlets etc) 
 

• The Community Plan 

• Children and Young People’s Plan 

• Substance Misuse Strategy 2011-2014 (Drugs &Alcohol) 

• Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy 

• Integrated Offender Management Plan 

• PREVENT Plan (under review in line with National Guidance) 

• ASB Profile 

• Hate Crime Strategy 
 

 

 
 
Section 3 – Information about Existing Policies and, or Changes to 
Functions only 
 

Has there been any ‘significant’ change to the Policy or Function? 
 

Yes       No  
 
If yes, Please indicate what the change will be and what has brought about this 
change to the policy or function? 
 
If there has been NO SIGNIFICANT amendments to an existing 
policy/function there is no need to continue to Section 4 below or a full 
equalities analysis 

Section 4 – The Impact 
 

Page 255



 42 

The Community Safety Plan 2012-13 is informed by both the Community Safety 
Partnership’s Strategic Assessment, which analyses data on the trends and 
future local challenges regarding crime, disorder, substance misuse and re-
offending, and through consultation with the wide membership of the Community 
Safety Partnership (Safe and Cohesive Community Plan Delivery Group).  A 
number of cross cutting issues were also considered as part of this process. 
 
The restructure of the ‘Stronger and Safer Community Plan Delivery Group’ into 
the ‘Safe and Cohesive Community Plan Delivery Group (known locally as the 
Community Safety Partnership) in 2011, has meant that Community Cohesion 
and Equalities now form a major part of the Partnership’s work. 
 
From this detailed evaluation of the strategic landscape and assessment of the 
most effective governance arrangements, priority areas were developed.  This 
included consideration of the drivers of crime locally and equalities - through the 
impact on different groups.  This has influenced priority setting and the inclusion 
of the Equality and Cohesion Board as a key element of the structure for 
delivering the Plan.  As such, the Plan’s priorities for 2012-13 are: 
 

• The Olympics 

• Drugs and Alcohol 

• Violence 

• Serious Acquisitive Crime 

• Youth 

• Violence Against Women and Girls 

• Integrated Offender Management 

• Anti-Social Behaviour 

• Cohesion & Hate Crime 

• Public Confidence 
 
A high level test of relevance equalities screening has been undertaken on the 
Plan.  This is attached as appendix a.  As the Plan is to be further developed 
through the subgroups’ action plans – further detailed evaluation of equalities in 
the action plans will be undertaken to ensure they continue to be considered with 
the development of the Plan. 
 
The Plan is a jointly owned partnership approach – it is not solely owned by the 
Council – so the authority will communicate the importance of ensuring 
subgroups give ‘due regard’ to equalities in the action plan development process 
and are aware of the requirement to provide appropriate evidence: This will be 
recorded through the inclusion of equalities considerations in the template for 
creating the action plan.  As action plans are presented to the Community Safety 
Partnership (Safe and Cohesive CPDG), equalities considerations will be 
evaluated by the members.  The timetable for the development of the Action 
Plans and undertaking equalities assessment is: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 256



 43 

Next steps: 
 
Jan – March 2012 Action Plans developed by Sub groups ensuring equalities 
considerations. 
 
March 2012 Action Plans presented to Community Safety Partnership 
 
April 2012 Action Plan delivery and monitoring commences. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 257



 44 

 
 

Target Groups 
 
What impact will 
the ‘new’ or 
‘significantly’ 
amended policy 
or function have 
on specific 
groups of service 
users? 

Impact  
 
Positive 
or 
Adverse 

Reason(s) 

• Please add a narrative to justify your claims around impacts 
and, 

• Please describe the analysis and interpretation of evidence 
to support your conclusion as this will inform members 
decision making 

• Can the negative impact be justified on the grounds of 
promoting equality?   

 

Race 
 
 
 

Positive All those who live, work and visit our borough will benefit from 
the Council and Partners addressing crime and disorder and 
their causes through the priority areas identified in the 
Community Safety Plan.  The priorities themselves are not 
targeted towards any particular race and thus involve no direct 
discrimination. 
 
For this target group, the priority of addressing Cohesion and 
Hate Crime may be of particular relevance.  It is expected that 
the work to address Hate Crime will be targeted towards 
fostering good relations between people, including between 
people of different races.  This will be consistent with the One 
Tower Hamlets theme set out in the Tower Hamlets 
Community Plan. 
 
The priority areas will be addressed through the action plans 
developed by the subgroups.  As stated above, any impacts 
associated with individual actions will be considered in the 
course of development of each action plan and will be 
evaluated by the Community Safety Partnership.  
 

Disability 
 
 
 

Positive All those who live, work and visit our borough will benefit from 
the Council and Partners addressing crime and disorder and 
their causes through the priority areas identified in the 
Community Safety Plan.  As the priorities are not 
discriminatory against any particular group it is expected that 
all members of our community will benefit – including those 
with disabilities. 
 
For this target group, the priority of addressing Cohesion and 
Hate Crime, targeted at those with disabilities, may be of 
particular relevance.  Crimes targeted towards those with 
disabilities will be considered – to ensure that we continue to 
build a cohesive borough through our One Tower Hamlets 
aspirations. 
 
The priority areas will be addressed through the action plans 
developed by the subgroups, and any impacts associated with 
individual actions will be considered in the course of 
development of each action plan and will be evaluated by the 
Community Safety Partnership. 
 

Page 258



 45 

 

Gender 
 
 
 

Positive All those who live, work and visit our borough will benefit from 
the Council and Partners addressing crime and disorder and 
their causes  through the priority areas identified in the 
Community Safety Plan. 
 
However, for this target group, the priority of addressing 
Violence Against Women and Girls may be of particular 
relevance.  For instance, women are more disproportionately 
affected as the victims of domestic violence - and this will be 
considered when addressing this priority area. 
 
The priority areas will be addressed through the action plans 
developed by the subgroups and any impacts associated with 
individual actions will be considered in the course of 
development of each action and will be evaluated by the 
Community Safety Partnership. 
 

Gender 
Reassignment 
 
 

Positive All those who live, work and visit our borough will benefit from 
the Council and Partners addressing crime and disorder and 
their causes through the priority areas identified in the 
Community Safety Plan.   
 
For this target group, the priority of addressing Cohesion and 
Hate Crime may be of particular relevance.  It is expected that 
the work to address Hate Crime will be targeted towards 
fostering good relations between people, including those who 
have had their gender reassigned.  This will be consistent with 
the One Tower Hamlets theme set out in the Tower Hamlets 
Community Plan. 
 
The priority areas will be addressed through the action plans 
developed by the subgroups.  As stated above, any impacts 
associated with individual actions will be considered in the 
course of development of each action and will be evaluated by 
the Community Safety Partnership. 
 

Sexual 
Orientation 
 
 

Positive All those who live, work and visit our borough will benefit from 
the Council and Partners addressing crime and disorder and 
their causes through the priority areas identified in the 
Community Safety Plan. 
 
For this target group, the priority of addressing Cohesion and 
Hate Crime may be of particular relevance.  For example, 
ongoing work to ensure that homophobic incidents continue to 
be dealt with by agencies including the Council and Police as 
appropriate will be considered. 
 
The priority areas will be addressed through the action plans 
developed by the subgroups and any impacts associated with 
individual actions will be considered in the course of 
development of each action and will be evaluated by the 
Community Safety Partnership. 
 

Page 259



 46 

Religion or Belief 
 
 
 

Positive 
 
  

All those who live, work and visit our borough will benefit from 
the Council and Partners addressing crime and disorder and 
their causes through the priority areas identified in the 
Community Safety Plan.  The priorities themselves are not 
targeted toward any particular belief or religion and thus 
involve no direct discrimination. 
 
For this target group, the priority of addressing Cohesion and 
Hate Crime which is based on religion or belief may be of 
particular relevance.   
 
Any incidents which are motivated by religious intolerance and 
run contrary to our aspiration of promoting community 
cohesion will be considered in the development of action plans 
by the subgroups.  Any impacts associated with individual 
actions will be considered in the course of development of 
each action and will be evaluated by the Community Safety 
Partnership. 
 

Age 
 
 
 

Positive All those who live, work and visit our borough will benefit from 
the Council and Partners addressing crime and the causes of 
crime through the priority areas identified in the Community 
Safety Plan. 
 
For this target group, the priority of addressing Youth Crime 
may be particularly relevant.  As the borough has a young 
population profile the work to address this issue, for example, 
through working with schools will be considered.  Additionally, 
at the other end of our demographic, older people who may be 
affected by Serious Acquisitive Crime in the form of distraction 
burglary (were offenders particularly target vulnerable older 
people) will also be considered. 
 
The priority areas will be addressed through the action plans 
developed by the subgroups.  As stated above, any impacts 
associated with individual actions will be considered in the 
course of development of each action and will be evaluated by 
the Community Safety Partnership. 
 

Socio-economic 
 
 
 

Positive All those who live, work and visit our borough will benefit from 
the Council and Partners addressing crime and disorder and 
their causes through the priority areas identified in the 
Community Safety Plan. 
 
For this target group, the priorities of Drugs/Alcohol and 
addressing Serious Acquisitive Crime may be of particular 
relevance - as individuals deal with addictions or commit crime 
for money.  
 
The priority areas will be addressed through the action plans 
developed by the subgroups.  As stated above, any impacts 
associated with individual actions will be considered in the 
course of development of each action and will be evaluated by 
the Safe and Community Safety Partnership. 
 

Page 260



 47 

 
 
 
 
 
 
As a result of completing the above, what is the potential impact of your 
policy/function on the public, giving particular regard to potential impacts on 
minority or protected groups? 
 
High     Medium     Low   
 
In light of the low impact assessment, it is not proposed to carry out further 
equality analysis of the Safe and Cohesive Plan at this stage.  Equalities impacts 
will be further considered at the Action Planning stage. 
 
 

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnerships. 
 

Positive All those who live, work and visit our borough will benefit from 
the Council and Partners addressing crime and disorder and 
their causes through the priority areas identified in the 
Community Safety Plan. 
 
The priorities of addressing Violence Against Women & Girls 
(which covers offences including Domestic Abuse and Forced 
Marriage) and Cohesion and Hate Crime (aimed at civil 
partners) may be of particular relevance for this group.  
Additionally, prioritising addressing Public Confidence would 
provide individuals with the reassurance that issues are being 
addressed. 
 
The priority areas will be addressed through the action plans 
developed by the subgroups.  As stated above, any impacts 
associated with individual actions will be considered in the 
course of development of each action and will be evaluated by 
the Community Safety Partnership. 
 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 
 
 

Positive All those who live, work and visit our borough will benefit from 
the Council and Partners addressing crime and the causes of 
crime through the priority areas identified in the Community 
Safety Plan. 
 
For this target group, the priority of addressing Violence 
Against Women and Girls may be of particular relevance - this 
may be particularly relevant to issues around domestic 
violence as research shows that the risk of being a victim of 
domestic abuse increases when pregnant. 
 
The priority areas will be addressed through the action plans 
developed by the subgroups.  As stated above, any impacts 
associated with individual actions will be considered in the 
course of development of each action and will be evaluated by 
the Community Safety Partnership. 
 

Page 261



 48 

Appendix D – Membership of Community Safety Partnership and Delivery Structure  
 

Safe and Cohesive Community Plan Delivery Group (CSP) Membership 

Organisation Officer Title (within organisation) 

Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) Borough Commander 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
(LBTH) 

Deputy Mayor (responsible for Crime 
and Disorder) 

LBTH Chief Executive 

LBTH Director of Communities Localities 
and Culture 

LBTH Head of Safer Communities 

LBTH Service Head of Youth & Community 
Learning 

LBTH Head of Youth Offending Team 

London Fire Service Borough Commander 

London Probation Assistant Chief Officer 

Metropolitan Police Authority (MPA) MPA Link Officer 

MPA Engagement and Partnership Officer 

LBTH Development Manager 

Tower Hamlets Housing Forum Director of Housing & Customer 
Services 

Tower Hamlets Police and 
Community Safety Board 

Chair 

Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust Associate Director, Public Health 

LBTH Service Head of Public Realm 

MPS Superintendent for Partnership 

MPS Partnership Chief Inspector 

LBTH Corporate Director Adult Health & 
Wellbeing 

LBTH Service Head for Disability and Health 

LBTH Service Head, One Tower Hamlets 

LBTH Service Head, Scrutiny & Equalities 

Safeguarding Boards Independent Chair 

Thames Magistrates Court Deputy Justice’s Clerk 

LBTH Scrutiny Lead, Communities, 
Localities and Culture 

Interfaith Forum Chair of No Place For Hate Forum 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 262



 49 

Youth Offending Team Management Board Membership 

Organisation Officer Title (within organisation) 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Service Head, Safer Communities 

NHS General Manager of Child and Adult 
Mental Health Service 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Head of Youth and Connection 
Services 

London Probation Assistant Chief Officer 

Metropolitan Police Service Chief Inspector, Partnerships 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Corporate Director, Children, Schools 
and Families 

Thames Magistrates Court Named Representative 

City of London Police Head of Administration of Justice, 
Counter Terrorism and Serious Crime 
Directorate 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Service Head, Youth and Community 
Learning 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Head of Youth Offending Service 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 263



 50 

Safeguarding Children Board Membership 

Organisation Officer Title (within organisation) 

Independent Chair of Safeguarding Children Board 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Lead Member (Cllr) for Children’s 
Services 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Chief Executive 

LBTH Corporate Director, Children, Schools & 
Families 

LBTH Service Head, Safer Communities 

LBTH Service Head, Learning & Achievement 

LBTH Service Head, Strategy, Innovation & 
Sustainability 

LBTH Service Head, Children’s Social Care 

LBTH Service Head, Disability & Health 

LBTH Social Inclusion Manager, Youth 
Services 

LBTH Social Care Training Co-ordinator, CSF 

LBTH Hidden Harm Co-ordinator, DAAT 

LBTH Secondary Schools Head-teachers’ 
Representative  

LBTH Service Manager, Integrated Services 
for Disabled Children 

LBTH Service Manager, CSF Strategy, Policy 
& Performance 

LBTH Senior Strategy, Policy & Performance 
Officer 

LBTH Primary Schools Head-teachers 
Representative 

LBTH Service Manager, CAFCASS 

LBTH Service Manager, Youth Offending 

Voluntary Sector Children & Youth Forum 
Representative Co-ordinator 

NHS East London & City Director of Quality and Clinical 
Governance 

NHS East London & City Assistant Director – Co-Director of 
Public Health (Tower Hamlets) 

NHS Associate Director, Clinical Leadership 
& Workforce Development 

NHS Named Nurse for Safeguarding, BLT 
Acute Division 

NHS Named Nurse for Safeguarding 
Children, BLT CHS Division  

NHS Designated Doctor, BLT CHS Division 

NHS East London & City Nurse Consultant for Safeguarding 
Children 

NHS Deputy Nurse Director for 
Safeguarding, BLT Acute Trust 

Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) Borough Commander 

MPS Detective Chief Inspector, Public 
Protection Unit 

MPS Detective Chief inspector, Child Abuse 

Page 264



 51 

Investigation Command 

MPS Detective Inspector, Child Abuse 
Investigation Team 

London Probation Trust Assistant Chief Probation Officer 

Voluntary Sector Representative from Poplar HARCA 

East London NHS Foundation Trust Associate Director, Safeguarding 
Children 

East London NHS Foundation Trust Director of Specialist Services 

NSPCC Service Manager (Tower Hamlets) 

Tower Hamlets College Director of Student Services 

GP Consortia Rep To Be Confirmed 

Lay Members X 3, TBC 

Voluntary Sector TBC 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 265



 52 

Safeguarding Adults Board Membership 

Organisation Officer Title (within organisation) 

Independent Chair of Safeguarding Children Board 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Lead Member (Cllr) for Adult Health 
and Well Being 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Interim Service Head, Adult Social Care 

LBTH Adult Safeguarding Team 

LBTH Interim Service Head Children’s Social 
Care 

LBTH Head of Partnership, Domestic 
Violence and Hate Crime  

LBTH Service Head, Strategy, Innovation & 
Sustainability 

LBTH Interim Corporate Director, Adult Health 
and Well Being 

LBTH Service Head, Disability & Health 

LBTH Service Head Commissioning and 
Strategy 

LBTH Social Care Training Co-ordinator, CSF 

LBTH Interim Service Manager Access to 
Resources 

LBTH Business Support Officer 

Barts and the London NHS Trust Representative 

Metropolitan Police Detective Inspector Community Safety 
Unit 

Voice Ability Named Representative 

East London Foundation Trust Named Representative 

East London and City Alliance Named Representative 

Providence Row Housing 
Association 

Named Representative 

Age Concern Named Representative 

Toynbee Hall Named Representative 

East London Foundation Trust Named Representative 

East London Foundation Trust Named Representative 

Metropolitan Police Named Representative 

Excel Care Holdings Named Representative 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 266



 53 

Drug and Alcohol Action Team Board Membership 

Organisation Officer Title (within organisation) 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Service Head, Safer Communities 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Commissioning Manager, 
Commissioning and Strategy 

Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust Associate Director, Public Health 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Head of Trading Standards and 
Environmental Health Commercial 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Service Head, Commissioning and 
Strategy 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Drug Intervention Programme 
Strategic Manager 

London Probation Assistant Chief Officer 

Metropolitan Police Service Chief Inspector, Partnerships 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Executive Advisor for Mayor and 
Cabinet (Councillor) 

National Treatment Agency Deputy Regional Manager 

NHS East London & the City Head of Mental Health 
Commissioning 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Service Head, Youth and Community 
Learning 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets DAAT Co-ordinator 

LBTH Director of Communities Localities 
and Culture 

Metropolitan Police Service Superintendent for Partnership 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 267



 54 

Domestic Violence Board Membership 

Organisation Officer Title (within organisation) 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Head of Community Safety 
Partnership, Hate Crime and 
Domestic Violence 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Domestic Violence Projects Officer 

Miles and Partners LLP Named Representative 

Miles and Partners LLP Named Representative 

Salvation Army Named Representative 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets DV Team Admin Trainee 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Domestic Violence Projects Worker 

Salvation Army Hopetown Hostel 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Domestic Violence Partnership Officer 

Victim Support Named Representative 

Tower Hamlets Community Health 
Service 

Named Representative 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Vulnerable Adults Team Social 
Worker 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Housing & Domestic Violence 
Specialist Childrens Social Care 

Swan Housing Association Named Representative 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Safeguarding Co-ordinator, Childrens 
Social Care 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Co-ordinator DV Perpetrator 
Programme, Childrens Social Care 

The Arbour Centre Manager 

TV Edwards LLP Named Representative 

City Gateway Named Representative 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Children In Need Co-ordinator, 
Childrens Social Care 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Parenting Co-ordinator, Youth 
Offending Team 

East End Homes Named Representative 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets DV and Hate Crime Manager, Safer 
Communities 

Refuge Tower Hamlets Named Representative 

Somali Integration Team Named Representative 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Supporting People Monitoring Officer 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Social Worker Disability and Health 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets CAHMS PLT 

Women’s Trust Named Representative 

Family Law Practice Named Representative 

Family Law Practice Named Representative 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 268



 55 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

 
Chapter 1   

Chapter 2 Brief description of 
“background papers” 

Chapter 3 Name and telephone 
number of holder  
Chapter 4 and address where open to 
inspection. 
 

• Community Safety Partnership 
Strategic Review 2011 

• Community Safety Plan 2012-13  

Emily Fieran-Reed 
 
020 7364 0248 
 
Anchorage House 
2 Clove Crescent, 
London 
E14 2BE  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 269



Page 270

This page is intentionally left blank



LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

REPORT OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 

29 FEBRUARY 2012 
 

To receive the report of the Human Resources Committee at its meeting held on Wednesday 
29 February 2012. 
 
Councillors in attendance at the meeting: -  
 

Human Resources Committee: 
Councillor Mohammad Abdul Mukit MBE (Chair) 
Councillor Joshua Peck  (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury 
Councillor Ann Jackson 
Councillor Craig Aston  (Deputising for Councillor Gloria Thienel) 
 
Other Councillors: 
None 
 
 
1. Localism Act  2011 - Pay Policy Statement 2012/13   
 

A report informed the Human Resources Committee that: - 

• The Localism Act 2011 gained Royal Assent on 15 November 2011. Under 
Section 38(1) of the Act, the Council is required to adopt a pay policy statement 
for each financial year, commencing with 2012/13. The statement for 2012/13 
should be approved and adopted by 31 March 2012 to enable it to be published 
by the start of the new financial year. 

• The pay policy statement sets out the Council’s current policies and practice in 
relation to pay for all parts of the workforce, with the exception of school based 
employees. 

 
The Committee considered the report and during discussions about pay settlements a 
member asked whether officers had discussed the annual pay awards with trade 
unions. The Service Head of Human Resources and Workforce Development 
confirmed this and stated that the Council was part of national pay bargaining, with 
negotiations happening at a national level between the employers’ side and trade 
unions. He agreed that this point could be made more explicit within the document.  
 
With regards to any future proposed amendments to the pay policy, a member 
highlighted that the document does not explain the processes for making changes. The 
Service Head of Human Resources and Workforce Development, agreed to add to the 
policy (see paragraph 14 of the draft policy) more information on how any changes 
would be made within the year that the policy is effective for.   

Agenda Item 9.4

Page 271



 
The Committee also discussed the process for agreeing negotiated settlements for 
senior executives in circumstances other than redundancy. Following receipt of legal 
advice, the following paragraph was proposed  and is subject to final agreement: 
If it is determined that a negotiated settlement is appropriate for a senior executive in 
circumstances which do not amount to a dismissal, the Service Head (Human 
Resources & Workforce Development) will deal with the detail, and the Council’s Chief 
Executive after consultation with the Monitoring Officer (or in circumstances where it is 
not appropriate for one or other to be involved, the Chief Financial Officer) and the 
Chair of the Human Resources Committee, will agree the settlement if they consider 
that the terms of the offer constitute value for money and are appropriate, fair and 
reasonable in the circumstances. 
 
 
The Committee then 

 
RESOLVED that 

 

1. the draft pay policy statement be agreed prior to publication and prior to onward 
recommendation to full Council for adoption; and 

 
2. that if any changes to the 2012/13 Pay Policy Statement are proposed by HR 

Committee prior to publication of the statement, that the Chief Executive be 
authorised to agree the final version after consultation with the Chair of the 
Human Resources Committee, Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) and 
the Service Head (Human Resources & Workforce Development). 

 
 

Council is therefore recommended to: - 
 
1. Adopt the Pay Policy Statement, attached at Appendix A to this report.  
 
 

Councillor Md. Abdul Mukit MBE 
Chair of Human Resources 
Committee 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 SECTION 100D (AS AMENDED) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 
Brief description  Tick if copy  If not supplied, 
of “background paper” supplied name and telephone 
number of holder 
 
Draft Cabinet minutes  Angus Taylor 
08/02/12  020 7364 4333 

Page 272



  

APPENDIX A 
 
DRAFT 
 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
 

Pay policy statement 1 April 2012 – 31 March 2013 
 
1 Introduction 
 
The Localism Act 2011 requires Local Authorities to produce a pay policy 
statement for 2012/13 and for each subsequent financial year. This requirement 
is part of the Government’s drive towards public sector transparency. 
 
The Pay Policy Statement sets out the Council’s current policies and practice in 
relation to pay for all parts of the workforce. The statement excludes school 
based employees. The Statement is made available on the Council’s website, 
which also includes separately published salary information for senior managers 
as part of the Government’s Transparency Code. 
 
 
2 Scope 
 
The policy addresses the requirements of the Localism Act and addresses key 
areas of pay and remuneration.  
 
The Localism Act defines senior executives, and in this statement they are the 
Chief Executive, Corporate Directors, the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate 
Management Team), and Service Heads, who are Deputy Chief Officers 
reporting to Corporate Management Team members. 
 
3 Pay and grading structure 
 
The majority of employees’ pay and conditions of service are agreed nationally 
either via the National Joint Council (NJC) for Local Government Services, or the 
Joint National Council (JNC) for Chief Officers, with regional or local variations. 
 
The Council also employs some staff on Soulbury conditions of service, and 
some on conditions determined by the Joint National Council for Youth & 
Community Workers. 
 
It is the practice of the Council to seek the views of local trade unions on pay 
related matters, recognising that elements are settled within a national 
framework. 
 
The Council uses national pay scales up to grade LPO8, and determines the 
appropriate grade for each job in accordance with the Greater London Provincial 
Council (GLPC) job evaluation scheme.  
 
Above LPO8, local grades are in place for senior staff as follows: 

Page 273



  

• LP09 - evaluated under a local variation to the GLPC job evaluation 
scheme 

• Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers (Service Heads and senior 
executives) - evaluated under the Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief 
Officers job evaluation scheme 

 
The Council signed a Single Status agreement in April 2008 with trade unions. 
This brought former manual grades into the GLPC job evaluation scheme, and 
replaced spot points with narrow grade bands. One of the key aims of the 
agreement was to eliminate potential pay inequality from previous pay structures 
and ensure that new pay structures are free from discrimination. 
 
New and changed jobs are evaluated using the relevant job evaluation scheme, 
with the appropriate grade being determined using a range of factors.  
 
The scale point on which an individual is appointed to the post is normally the 
lowest of the grade but will depend on skills and experience. 
 
4 How the Council’s management team is structured 
 
The Council’s Corporate Management Team is led by the Chief Executive, 
supported by a number of Chief Officers reporting to the Chief Executive. All 
statutory roles are at this level of the organisation. 
 
Service Heads (Deputy Chief Officers) in each Directorate report to a member of 
the Corporate Management Team. 
 
5 Senior Executive remuneration 
 
Pay for senior executives who are members of the Corporate Management Team 
is made up of three elements: 

• Basic pay (defined by a local grade) 

• London weighting allowance 

• Travel allowance payment 
 
Service Heads (Deputy Chief Officers) receive basic pay (defined by a local 
grade). 
 
Senior salary data is published on the Council’s website as part of the 
Government’s transparency agenda. For details, please see [LINK]. 
 
6 Lowest paid employees 
 
The Council’s lowest paid staff are those who are paid on the Council’s lowest 
scale point. 
 
The Council has resolved that its lowest paid staff should not be paid less than 
the level of the London Living Wage. As a consequence in 2011 the pay levels for 
the lowest paid employees, (including the Council’s Apprentices) was moved up 

Page 274



  

to Scale 1, (spinal column point 5), which is above the rate of the 2011 London 
Living Wage.  
 
7 National pay bargaining 
 
Annual pay increases across the Council’s grades are set through the process of 
national pay bargaining which the Council subscribes to.  
 
The Council contributes to the negotiation process by providing an employer view 
through the annual Local Government Employers’ regional pay briefings. The 
employers’ side then negotiate with trade unions at a national level. 
 
National pay rates are set using a number of factors, including: 

• The sector’s ability to pay 

• Movement in market rates 

• Inflation levels 

• Other pay awards 

• The Government’s policy position regarding public sector pay 
 
8 Incremental progression 
 
Incremental progression is on an annual basis for those staff who are not at the 
top of their grade. As per national conditions of service, progression is automatic 
for all staff (subject to general satisfactory performance) except Service Heads 
and Chief Officers who have to demonstrate satisfactory performance through a 
formal annual appraisal before being awarded incremental progression. 
 
9 Additional payments and allowances 
 
A range of allowances and payments are paid as appropriate to the nature and 
requirement of specific posts, groups of posts and working patterns. These 
include car and travel allowances, overtime, standby, weekend and night work, 
shift and call-out payments. 
 
Acting up and honoraria payments are made to individual staff as appropriate 
using clear criteria, and where a clear business need is identified. 
 
The Council has a staff relocation package, available to new entrants to the 
Council’s employment, but subject to tight eligibility criteria. 
 
The Council does not operate a performance related pay scheme or bonus 
scheme.   
 
10 Pensions 
 
All employees of the Council up to 75 years of age and who have a contract of 
more than 3 months’ duration are entitled to join the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS). Decisions on delegated provisions are agreed by the Pensions 
Committee. The LGPS is a contributory scheme, whereby the employee 
contributes from their salary. The level of contribution is determined by whole 

Page 275



  

time salary and contribution levels are set by Government who then advise the 
employer.   
 
 
11 Compensation for loss of office  
 
11.1 Financial terms for redundancy 
The Council has a policy linked to its policy for Handling Organisational Change 
which sets out the terms for redundancy and early termination of staff (subject to 
qualifying criteria), which apply to Chief Officers and to all staff.  In certain 
circumstances, individuals may also qualify for early release of their pension. 
 
 
11.2 Ill health 
Where termination of employment arises from ill health, payments will be made in 
accordance with the contract of employment. In certain circumstances, 
individuals may also qualify for early release of their pension. 
 
11.3 Negotiated exits - settlements 
If it is determined that a negotiated settlement is appropriate for a senior 
executive in circumstances which do not amount to a dismissal, the 
Service Head (Human Resources & Workforce Development) will deal with 
the detail, and the Council’s Chief Executive after consultation with 
the Monitoring Officer (or in circumstances where it is not appropriate for 
one or other to be involved, the Chief Financial Officer) and the Chair of 
the Human Resources Committee, will agree the settlement if they consider 
that the terms of the offer constitute value for money and are appropriate, 
fair and reasonable in the circumstances. 
 
12 Pay multiples / comparisons 
 
The Council’s pay and grading structures reflect a wide range of job requirements 
and levels of responsibility across the organisation, with pay and grading being 
determined by the Council’s job evaluation schemes. 
 
The pay ratio demonstrating the relationship between the Council’s highest paid 
employee (total salary package) and the median (mid point between the highest 
and lowest) salary position of the non schools workforce is 1 : 6.5.  
 
The Council will have regard to its pay ratio and keep it under review, seeking to 
balance the following: 
 

• Ensuring appropriate reward mechanisms which value knowledge, skills 
and experience at a senior level, and ensure that the Council can recruit 
and retain the best talent 

 

• Addressing its commitment to matching the London Living Wage for our 
lowest paid staff, and encouraging the developmental progression for staff 
in the lowest graded roles. 

 
 

Page 276



  

13 Equality issues 
 
The policy elements described in this report derive from national terms & 
conditions and bargaining, or local discretion. The Council has a keen regard for 
equality issues and should any changes be made to the pay policy in the future, 
proposals would go through an Equality Analysis.  One of the key aims of Single 
Status agreement was to eliminate potential pay inequality from previous pay 
structures and ensure that new pay structures are free from discrimination. 
 
14 Review 
 
The Localism Act 2011 requires relevant authorities to prepare a Pay Policy 
Statement for each subsequent financial year. The Council’s next Statement is 
scheduled to be for 2013/14 and will be submitted to Full Council for approval by 
31 March 2013.  
 
Should changes to pay policy be contemplated that would result in an amended 
statement being published in the year that it applies, these would be subject to a 
detailed consultation process before an appropriate recommendation was made 
to Full Council. 
 
 

Page 277



Page 278

This page is intentionally left blank



       

 
LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

 
COUNCIL MEETING 

 
WEDNESDAY 16th MAY 2012 

 
MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 2012/13 

 
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL SERVICES) 

 

 
 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 Part 6 of the Council’s Constitution sets out the Scheme of Members’ 

Allowances.  This provides for a Mayor’s Allowance to be paid to the 
Mayor; a Basic Allowance to all Councillors; Special Responsibility 
Allowances for specified member roles; Dependants’ Carers’ and 
Travel/Subsistence Allowances; and an attendance allowance for co-
opted members of the Standards and Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees.   

 
1.2 By law the Council must agree the Scheme of Members’ Allowances 

annually, before the start of the year to which it applies.  The proposed 
Scheme of Members Allowances for 2012/13 is attached at Appendix ‘A’ 
to this report.  This incorporates minor changes pursuant to the proposed 
new Standards regime (see separate report on the Council agenda) but 
is otherwise unchanged from the 2011/12 Scheme.   
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the Members’ Allowances Scheme at Part 6 of the Constitution be 

re-adopted for 2012/13, subject to minor amendments to reflect the 
changes to the Standards regime introduced as a result of the Localism 
Act 2011; and 

 
2.2 That accordingly the London Borough of Tower Hamlets Members’ 

Allowances Scheme 2012 be adopted as at Appendix ‘A’;  
 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 In accordance with Statutory Instrument (SI 1021/2003) the Council is 

required to agree a Scheme of Members’ Allowances on an annual 
basis.  The Scheme may include an annual index-linked adjustment of 
allowances, but it must be subject to a full review at least every four 

Agenda Item 11.1

Page 279



years, taking into account the recommendations of an Independent 
Remuneration Panel.  

 
3.2 The current scheme is included at Part 6 of the Council’s Constitution 

and it is proposed that this should be re-adopted, updated in accordance 
with changes to the Standards regime made pursuant to the Localism 
Act 2011 but with no other substantive changes, for 2012/13 as set out at 
Appendix ‘A’ to this report.   

 
 
4. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 
 
4.1 The scheme includes provision for indexing Members’ Allowances in line 

with the local government pay settlement.  Any costs arising from the 
indexing of allowances will be met from within existing budgets.   

 
 
5. COMMENTS OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL 
 SERVICES)  
 
5.1 Legal comments have been incorporated within the body of the report. 
 
 
6. IMPLICATIONS FOR ONE TOWER HAMLETS 
 
6.1 The payment of Members’ Allowances helps to ensure that people from 

all parts of the community within the borough are able to serve as elected 
members.  This promotes effective community leadership and 
accountability, to the benefit of the whole borough and all its 
communities. 

 
 
7. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT (SAGE) 
 
7.1 There are no direct SAGE implications arising from the recommendations 

in this report.   
 
 
8. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no direct risk management implications arising from this report. 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 2000 (SECTION 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS 
REPORT 
 

Brief description of "background paper"  Name/telephone number of holder  
  
None.  

 
 

Page 280



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets:  Members’ Allowances Scheme 
 
(Part 6 of the Council’s Constitution) 
 
This Scheme is made by the London Borough of Tower Hamlets in 
accordance with the provisions of the Local Authorities (Members’ 
Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 as amended. 
 
1. This Scheme shall be called The London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

Members’ Allowances Scheme 2012 and it shall come into effect on 1 
April 2012. The Scheme shall apply to the Mayor, Councillors and Co-
opted Members of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets. 

 
Basic Allowance 
 
2. Subject to paragraph 8, a basic allowance of £10,065* shall be paid to 

each Councillor for each year.  The Basic Allowance shall not be 
payable to the elected Mayor. 

 
3. The basic allowance of £10,065* shall be payable with effect from 1 

April 2012. 
 
[*Note:  Paragraph 11 of this scheme provides for the amounts marked * to be 
adjusted with effect from 1st April 2012 to reflect the annual pay settlement for 
local government staff when this is agreed.]   
 
Special Responsibility Allowance 
 
4. Subject to paragraphs 5-8, a special responsibility allowance shall be 

paid for each year to those Members who hold a position of special 
responsibility as specified in Schedule 1. 

 
5. The amount of each such allowance shall be the amount specified 

against the respective special responsibility in Schedule 1 and it shall 
be payable with effect from 1 April 2012. 

 
6. Any special responsibility allowance payable under paragraphs 4 and 5 

shall be in addition to the basic allowance payable under paragraph 2 
above.  

 
7. Any Member who holds more than one position of special responsibility 

shall receive only one special responsibility allowance which shall be at 
the higher level. 

 
Part-Year Entitlement 
 
8. If, in the course of the year, this scheme is amended or a Member’s 

entitlement changes, the relevant basic and/or special responsibility 

Page 281



allowance shall be calculated and paid pro-rata during the particular 
month in which the scheme amendment or entitlement change occurs. 

 
Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance 
 
9. A maximum of £7.26* per hour shall be paid to those Members who 

necessarily incur expense in arranging for the care of their children or 
other dependants to enable them to undertake any of the activities 
specified in Schedule 2 to this Scheme. 

 
10. The following conditions shall apply: 
 

• payments shall be claimable for children aged 15 or under or for 
other dependants where there is medical or social work evidence 
that care is required; 
 

• only one weekly payment shall be claimable for the household of 
each Member, unless the Council’s Standards Committee considers 
there are special circumstances; 
 

• the allowance shall be paid as a re-imbursement of incurred 
expenditure against receipts; 
 

• the allowance shall not be payable to a member of the claimant’s 
own household; 
 

• any dispute as to entitlement and any allegation of abuse shall be 
referred to the Council’s Standards Committee for adjudication. 

 
Indexation 
 
11. The Basic, Special Responsibility, Mayor’s and Dependants’ Carers’ 

Allowances shall be adjusted annually to reflect the annual pay 
settlement for local government staff.  The adjustment shall take effect 
on 1 April in each year, or the date on which the settlement takes 
effect, if later.    

 
Travel and Subsistence Allowance 
 
12. An allowance shall be paid to any Member for travelling and 

subsistence undertaken outside the Borough in connection with any of 
the duties specified in Schedule 2. 

 
13. An allowance shall be paid to a co-opted member of a Committee, Sub-

Committee or Panel of the Council for travelling and subsistence in 
connection with any of the duties specified in Schedule 2, irrespective 
of whether the meeting or duty is inside or outside the Borough. 

 

Page 282



14. The amounts payable shall be the amounts which are for the time 
being payable to officers of the Council for travelling and subsistence 
undertaken in the course of their duties.  

 
Co-optees’ Allowance 
 
15. Subject to paragraph 16, a co-opted member of the Standards Advisory 

Committee, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or the Health 
Scrutiny Panel may claim a co-optees’ allowance of £117* and a co-
opted member who is appointed as Chair of the Standards Advisory 
Committee may claim a co-optees’ allowance of £240*, for attendance 
at any meeting of the Committee or the Panel or attendance at any 
conference or training event, where attendance is on behalf of and 
authorised by the Council.  

 
16. A claim for co-optees’ allowance shall be made in writing within two 

months from the date of attendance at the meeting, conference or 
training event. 

 
17. Where a member is suspended or partially suspended from his or her 

responsibilities or duties as a co-opted member under Part III of the 
Local Government Act 2000, any co-optee’s allowance payable to him 
or her for the period for which he or she is suspended or partially 
suspended, may be withheld by the Council. 

 
Suspension of Allowances 
 
18. Where the Mayor or a Councillor is suspended or partially suspended 

from his or her responsibilities or duties as a member of the Council 
under Part III of the Local Government Act 2000, or Regulations made 
under that Part, the part of the basic and special responsibility 
allowance or any travelling or subsistence allowance payable to him or 
her for the period for which he or she is suspended or partially 
suspended, may be withheld by the Council. 

 
Recovery of Allowances Paid 
 
19. Any allowance that has been paid to a Member whilst on suspension or 

after he or she has ceased to be a member of the Council, or is for 
some other reason not entitled to receive the allowance for a specified 
period, may be recovered. 

 
Claims and Payments 
 
20. Subject to paragraph 22, payments shall be made for basic and special 

responsibility allowances in instalments of one-twelfth of the amounts 
respectively specified in this Scheme, paid on the last working day of 
each month. 

 

Page 283



21. Where a payment of one-twelfth of the amount specified in this Scheme 
for a basic or special responsibility allowance will result in the Member 
receiving more than the amount to which he or she is entitled, the 
payment shall be restricted to such amount as will ensure that no more 
is paid than the amount to which he or she is entitled. 

 
22. A claim for travelling and subsistence or dependants’ carers’ 

allowance;  
 

• shall be made in writing within two months from the date of the 
performance of the duty for which the claim is made; 
 

• shall be accompanied by receipts and/or any relevant evidence of 
the costs incurred. 

 

• shall be subject to such validation and accounting procedures as 
the Council’s Corporate Director, Resources may from time to time 
prescribe. 

 
23. Travelling and subsistence and dependants’ carers’ allowance shall be 

paid on the last working day of each month for any claim received not 
less than 14 days before that date. 

 
Pensions 
 
24. Any Member under the age of 75 shall be entitled to join the London 

Borough of Tower Hamlets Local Government Pension Scheme.  Both 
basic and special responsibility allowances shall be treated as 
pensionable pay for the purposes of the scheme. 

 
Records of Allowances and Publications 
 
25. The Council shall keep a record of payments made by it under this 

Scheme, including the name of the recipients of the payment and the 
amount and nature of each payment. 

 
26. The record of the payments made by the Council under this Scheme 

shall be available at all reasonable times for inspection at no charge.  A 
copy shall also be supplied to any person who requests it on payment 
of a reasonable fee. 

 
27. As soon as reasonably practicable after the end of the year to which 

this Scheme relates, the Council shall make arrangements to publish 
the total sums paid by it to each recipient for each different allowance. 

 
28. A copy of the Scheme shall be supplied to any person who requests it 

on payment of a reasonable fee. 
 
 
 

Page 284



Renunciation 
 
29. A member may at any time and for any period, by notice in writing 

given to the Chief Executive, elect to forego any part of his/her 
entitlement to an allowance under this Scheme. 

 
Interpretation  
 
30. In this scheme: 
 

• “Councillor” means an elected member of the London Borough of 
Tower Hamlets who is a councillor; 

 

• “Mayor” means the elected Mayor of Tower Hamlets Council 
 

• “Member” means any person who is either the Mayor, a councillor 
or a co-opted member of Tower Hamlets Council; 

 

• “Co-opted member” means any person who is not a Councillor but 
who sits on a Committee, Sub-Committee or Panel of the Council. 
 

• “Year” means the 12 months ending on 31 March in any year; 
 
Revocation 
 
31. The London Borough of Tower Hamlets Members’ Allowance Scheme 

2011 is hereby revoked.   
 
 
 

Page 285



SCHEDULE 1 
 
Special Responsibility Allowance 
 
The following are specified as the special responsibilities for which special 
responsibility allowances are payable and the amounts of those allowances: 
 

 £ 
Mayor 65,000 * 
Deputy Mayor 14,742 * 
Leader of the Majority Group on the Council 12,658 *  
Leader of any other Group with over 6 
Councillors 

10,174 * 

Leader of any Group with up to 6 
Councillors (subject to having at least 10% 
of the Council) 

  5,531 * 

Cabinet Members 12,658 * 
Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 10,174 * 
Chair of Health Scrutiny Panel    7,557 * 
Lead Members for Scrutiny   7,557 * 
Chair of Development Committee 10,174 * 
Chairs of  Licensing, Appeals and General 
Purposes Committees 

  7,557 * 

Chairs of Audit, Human Resources and 
Pensions Committees 

  5,531 * 

Olympics Ambassador   5,531 * 
Speaker of Council   7,557 * 
Deputy Speaker of Council    3,777 * 

 
 
[*Note:  Paragraph 11 of this scheme provides for the amounts marked * to be 
adjusted with effect from 1st April 2012 to reflect the annual pay settlement for 
local government staff when this is agreed.]   

Page 286



SCHEDULE 2 
 
Dependants’ Carers’ and Travelling and Subsistence Allowances 
 
The duties for which these allowances are payable include: 
 

• the attendance at a meeting of the Council or of any committee or 
sub-committee of the Council or of any other body to which the 
Council makes appointments or nominations, or of any committee 
or sub-committee of such a body; 
 

• the attendance at any other meeting, the holding of which is 
authorised by the Council, or a committee or sub-committee of the 
Council, or a joint committee of 270(1) of the Local Government Act 
1972, or a sub-committee of such a joint committee, provided that – 
 

• where the Council is divided into two or more political groups it is a 
meeting to which members of at least two such groups have been 
invited; or  
 

• if the Council is not so divided, it is a meeting to which at least two 
members of the Council have been invited 
 

• the attendance at a meeting of any association of authorities of 
which the Council is a member; 
 

• the attendance at a meeting of the Cabinet or a meeting of any of its 
committees, where the Council is operating executive 
arrangements; 
 

• the performance of any duty in pursuance of any standing order 
under section 135 of the Local Government Act 1972 requiring a 
member or members to be present while tender documents are 
opened; 
 

• the performance of any duty in connection with the discharge of any 
function of the Council conferred by or under any enactment and 
empowering or requiring the Council to inspect or authorise the 
inspection of premises. 
 

• the performance of any duty in connection with arrangements made 
by the Council for the attendance of pupils at any school approved 
for the purposes of section 342 of the Education Act 1996 (approval 
of non-maintained special schools); and 
 

• the carrying out of any other duty approved by the Council, or any 
duty of a class so approved, for the purpose of, or in connection 
with, the discharge of the functions of the Council or any of its 
committees or sub-committees. 

Page 287



Page 288

This page is intentionally left blank



  

Committee/Meeting: 

 
Standards Committee 
 

Council 
 

Date: 

 
10 May 2012 
 
16 May 2012 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted  
 

 
 

Report No: 
 

Report of:  

 
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 
 
Originating officer(s) Isabella Freeman, 

Monitoring Officer 

 

Title:  

 
Localism Act 2011 – The Amended 
Standards Regime  
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
 
Lead Member 
 

Deputy Mayor 

Community Plan Theme 
  

One Tower Hamlets 

Strategic Priority 
 

Work efficiently and effectively as one council 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report updates the Council on the current position with regard to the 

Standards regime in the Localism Act 2011.  It is anticipated that the new 
arrangements will fully come into force from 1 July 2012.   A decision on 
establishing a Standards Advisory Committee; adopting a draft new Code of 
Conduct; and the appointment of a statutory Independent Person is sought 
so that arrangements can be put in place for a July commencement. 

 
2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 
2.1 The Council is recommended to approve the following with effect from the 

relevant commencement dates under the Localism Act 2011:- 
 
2.2 The establishment of a Standards Advisory Committee with terms of 

reference as set out in Appendix 1. 
 
2.3 The current seven Independent Members of the Standards Committee be 

reappointed as Co-Optees to the new Standards Advisory Committee when 
formed. 

 
2.4 The arrangements for dealing with allegations of a breach of the Code of 

Conduct as set out in Appendix 2. 
 
2.5 Authorise the Monitoring Officer to explore options for, and take the 

necessary action to appoint, an Independent Person whose appointment 
shall be confirmed by Full Council. 

 

Agenda Item 11.2

Page 289



  

2.6 The delegation to the Monitoring Officer of authority to consider applications 
for dispensations from the restrictions on participation in any matter in which 
there is a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

 
2.7 The adoption of a new Code of Member Conduct for the Council with effect 

from 1 July 2012 as set out in Appendix 3. 
 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Localism Act 2011 makes fundamental changes to the system of 

regulation of standards of conduct for elected and co-opted members.  The 
date for implementation of these changes is currently proposed to be 1 July 
2012.  It is therefore necessary for the new arrangements to be agreed at 
the meeting of Council in May 2012.  Some of the changes are already 
effective in so far as they relate to referrals to the Standards Board for 
England. 

 
3.2 This report describes the changes and recommends the actions required for 

the Council to implement the new regime.  It will be necessary for the 
Council to approve a new Code of Conduct.  A recommended draft code for 
Tower Hamlets is attached at Appendix 3.  Whilst a Code will not be 
prescribed the Local Government Minister has published a model short form 
code (Appendix 4).  The Local Government Association has also circulated a 
suggested template code (Appendix 5).  However, other London Authorities 
have adopted a similar code to the previous model code and this is also 
proposed for Tower Hamlets.   

 
3.3 The authority will remain under a statutory duty to promote and maintain high 

standards of conduct for its elected and co-opted members.  As far as 
possible this report recommends a framework close to the current one as 
that is now well established and understood by members. 

 
3.4 When in force the Act will repeal Section 55 of the Local Government Act 

2000, which provides for the current statutory Standards Committee.   So, 
there will be no requirement for a Standards Committee.   However, there 
will still be a need to deal with standards issues and case work.   Tower 
Hamlets had a Standards Committee before the current regime was 
introduced in the 2000 Act.  This report proposes that similar arrangements 
are adopted under the new provisions as existed in Tower Hamlets before 
the current statutory requirements.  Such a Committee will be a Committee 
of Council under S101 of the Local Government Act of 1972 without the 
unique features or statutory powers which were conferred on statutory 
Standards Committees. The composition of any Committee will be subject to 
proportionality.  It is possible to co-opt non elected members onto a 
Committee of the Council however such co-optees cannot vote unless the 
committee is advisory. 

 
3.5 The Act establishes a new category of Independent Persons (see below) 

who must be consulted at various stages, but provides that the existing co-

Page 290



  

opted independent members of Tower Hamlets’ Standards Committee 
cannot serve as Independent Persons for 5 years.  Independent Persons 
may be invited to attend meetings of the Standards Committee, but are 
unlikely to be co-opted onto the Committee.  Instead their role is one of input 
into any investigation of an alleged breach of the Code before the Council 
takes a decision in relation to the allegation. 

 

3.6 However, that does not stop the Council establishing a Committee with co-
optees.  Section 13(4)(e) Local Government Housing Act 1989 provides that 
co-optees have to be non-voting unless the Committee is an advisory 
Committee and not decision making established under Section 102(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972.  Under Section 12 of the 1972 Local 
Government Act, the Chair must have a casting vote.  Accordingly, the 
committee cannot have an independent Chair unless it is an advisory 
committee.  Tower Hamlets adopted a Standards Committee regime before 
the 2000 Act provisions were enacted that comprised co-optees from outside 
the elected membership with advisory powers.  This report largely proposes 
similar arrangements to those for the Standards Committee after the Act 
comes into force.  The role of the proposed committee will be advisory as its 
remit will be to recommend action to be taken in relation to investigation of 
complaints and to monitor and review the Council’s arrangement for 
upholding high standards of conduct amongst its elected members and 
make recommendations to the Council in that regard. 

 
4. CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
4.1 The current ten General Principles and Model Code of Conduct will be 

repealed.  However, the Council is required to adopt a new Code of Conduct 
governing elected and co-opted member’s conduct when acting in that 
capacity.  The Council’s new Code of Conduct must, when viewed as a 
whole, be consistent with the following seven principles; Selflessness; 
Integrity; Objectivity; Accountability; Openness; Honesty and Leadership  

 
4.2 The Council has discretion as to what it includes within its new Code of 

Conduct, provided that it is consistent with the seven principles.  The Code 
needs to be adopted at the May 2012 Meeting of the Council to come in to 
effect from 1 July 2012. 

 
4.3 Regulations to be made under the Act will require the registration and 

disclosure of “Disclosable Pecuniary Interests” (DPIs), broadly equating to 
the current prejudicial interests.  The provisions of the Act also require an 
authority’s code to contain appropriate requirements for the registration of 
other pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests.  The result is that it is 
not possible yet to draft Code provisions which reflect the definition of DPIs 
which will appear in Regulations yet to be drafted. 

 
4.4 However, it is known that the Council’s new Code of Conduct to have effect 

from 1 July 2012 should include provisions which deal with the following 
matters:- 

 

Page 291



  

• General conduct rules, to give effect to the seven principles.  This 
corresponds broadly with paragraphs 3 to 7 of the current Code of 
Conduct, applies to conduct of an elected or co-opted member of the 
Council or any of its committees or sub committees.  [The Council 
can amend its Code of Conduct subsequently if it wishes.]   

 

• A requirement for registration and disclosure of pecuniary and non-
pecuniary interests but only requiring withdrawal as specified by the 
Act in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests   

 

• Arrangements for dealing with an alleged breach of the Code. 
 
5. ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEALING WITH MISCONDUCT COMPLAINTS 
 
5.1 The Act requires that the Council adopt “arrangements” for investigating and 

deciding upon complaints of breach of Code of Conduct. The proposals in 
this report are to establish a Standards Advisory Committee which will 
operate in much the same way as it did before the 2000 Act came into effect.  
The committee would operate as an advisory committee (thus enabling co-
optees to be fully participating members).  Its powers (which are very much 
reduced under the new legislation) would be advisory. 

 
5.2 This report proposes that Council delegate to the Monitoring Officer the initial 

decision on whether a complaint requires investigation, subject to 
consultation with the Independent Person.  Where the Monitoring Officer 
feels that it would be inappropriate to take a decision on it, for example 
where s/he has previously advised the member on the matter or the 
complaint is particularly sensitive then may refer it to the Standards Advisory 
Committee for advice.  It is also recommended that the Monitoring Officer 
has delegated powers to seek to resolve a complaint informally, before 
taking a decision on whether the complaint merits formal investigation.   

 
5.3 Where a formal investigation finds no evidence of failure to comply with the 

Code of Conduct, it is proposed to delegate this decision to the Monitoring 
Officer, who would be required to consult with the Independent Person 
(under the Act) but with the power to refer a matter to Standards Advisory 
Committee if s/he feels appropriate.  Copies of all investigation reports will 
be provided to the Independent Person to enable them to give their view as 
required by the Localism Act. 

 
5.4 Where a formal investigation finds evidence of failure to comply with the Code 

of Conduct, there may yet be an opportunity for local resolution, avoiding the 
necessity of a local hearing.  The Monitoring Officer should only agree a 
local resolution after consultation with the Independent Person and where 
the complainant is satisfied with the outcome. 

 
5.5 In all other cases, where the formal investigation finds evidence of a failure to 

comply with the Code of Conduct, it is proposed that the Standards Advisory 
Committee (in practice a Hearings Panel constituted as a Sub-Committee of 
Standards Advisory Committee) hold a hearing at which the member against 

Page 292



  

whom the complaint has been made can respond to the investigation report, 
and the Hearing Panel can consider whether the member did fail to comply 
with the Code of Conduct and if so what action, if any, is appropriate to 
recommend as a result.  The Independent Person’s views would have to be 
incorporated into this process. 

 
5.6 The Act does not give the Council or its proposed Standards Advisory 

Committee any powers to impose sanctions such as suspension or 
requirements for training or an apology on members.  So, where a failure to 
comply with the Code of Conduct is found, the range of actions which the 
authority can take in respect of the member is limited and must be directed 
to securing the continuing ability of the authority to continue to discharge its 
functions effectively, rather than “punishing” the member concerned.  Case 
law made before the 2000 Act provisions confirms the limited extent of 
powers without any statutory provisions.  The proposed Terms of Reference 
appended set out the extent of those powers and have been framed as 
advisory powers only in view of the recommendations in this report for the 
committee’s constitution. 

 
5.7 There will be no statutory ability to require an apology (as at present) 

however the process proposed would ensure the Monitoring Officer sought 
local resolution whenever possible which maybe via an apology.  It is only 
likely that those cases not suitable for an apology or where the member has 
refused to give one would be likely to go to the Standards Advisory 
Committee. 

 
5.8 The Standards Advisory Committee will be able to write a formal letter to the 

Member informing them of their advice in relation to their conduct under the 
Code. 

 
5.9 Likewise, the Committee would be subject to the access to meetings and 

information rules and so its recommendations would be published. 
 
5.10 Without a statutory framework it is difficult to see how any appeals 

mechanism could operate.  However were a subject member to be 
dissatisfied with the recommendation from the Standards Advisory 
Committee he/she could say so and request that the Committee take 
alternative action.  Were a complainant dissatisfied it would be open to them 
to provide further information of relevance the Monitoring Officer and 
Independent Person who would deciding whether the matter warranted 
further consideration and they would have to access the Council’s 
complaints process.  Ultimately the actions of the authority could be subject 
to Judicial Review. 

 
6. INDEPENDENT PERSON(S) 
 
6.1 The “arrangements” adopted by the Council must include provision for the 

appointment by the Council of at least one Independent Person. The 
Independent Person must be appointed through a process of public 
advertisement, application and appointment by a positive vote of a majority 

Page 293



  

of all members of the Council (not just of those present and voting). The Act 
sets out specific statutory prohibitions on who can be an Independent 
Person and excludes previous and current members and Co-optees, their 
relatives and close friends.  

 
6.2 The independent Person must be consulted by the authority before it makes 

a finding as to whether a member has failed to comply with the Code of 
Conduct or decides on action to be taken in respect of that member. They 
may be consulted by the authority in respect of a standards complaint at any 
other stage; and they may be consulted by a member or co-opted member of 
the Council against whom a complaint has been made. This causes some 
problems, as it would be inappropriate for an Independent Person who has 
been consulted by the member against whom the complaint has been made, 
and who might as a result be regarded as prejudiced on the matter, to be 
involved in the determination of that complaint.  However it is most likely that 
members would seek such advice from the Monitoring Officer or her deputy 
rather than the Independent Person. 

 
6.3 The Act gives discretion to appoint one or more Independent Persons, but 

provides that each Independent Person must be consulted before any 
decision is taken on a complaint which has been investigated.  Accordingly, 
there would appear to be little advantage in appointing more than one 
Independent Person or the process will be unwieldy.  It is recommended that 
reserve candidates are retained and can be activated at short notice, without 
the need for re-advertisement, in the event that the Independent Person is 
no longer able to discharge the function. 

 
6.4 As the Independent Person is not a member of the authority or of its 

Committees or Sub-Committees, the remuneration of the Independent 
Person no longer comes within the scheme of the members’ allowances, and 
can therefore be determined without reference to the Independent 
Remuneration Panel. It is appropriate to undertake a proper review of the 
function before setting the remuneration and to see what other authorities 
are proposing.   

 
7. THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS’ INTERESTS 
 
7.1 The Localism Act abolishes the concepts of personal and prejudicial 

interests.  Instead, regulations will define “Disclosable Pecuniary Interests” 
(DPIs).  The Monitoring Officer is required to maintain a register of interests, 
which must be available for inspection and available on the Council’s 
website. 

 
7.2 At present we do not know what Disclosable Pecuniary Interests will be, but 

they are likely to be broadly equivalent to the current prejudicial interests.  
The intention was to simplify the registration requirement, but in fact the Act 
extends the requirement for registration to cover not just the member’s own 
interests, but also those of the member’s spouse or civil partner, or someone 
living with the member in a similar capacity.  Failure to comply with these 
provisions may lead to criminal sanctions. 

Page 294



  

 
7.3 The provisions of the Act in respect of the Code of Conduct require an 

authority’s Code to contain appropriate requirements for the registration of 
other pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests. 

 
8. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND WITHDRAWAL FROM MEETINGS 
 
8.1 If a member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (as will be defined by the 

Regulations) in any matter, he/she must not take part in any discussion or 
vote. Failure to comply becomes a criminal offence, rather than leading to 
sanctions.   

 
8.2 The Council’s Code of Conduct must make “appropriate” provisions for 

disclosure and withdrawal for interests other than DPIs.  Failure to comply 
with these requirements would be a breach of the Code of Conduct but not a 
criminal offence. 

 
9. SENSITIVE INTERESTS 
 
9.1 The Act effectively re-enacts the existing Code of Conduct provisions on 

Sensitive Interests.  Where a member is concerned that disclosure of the 
detail of an interest (either a DPI or any other interest which he/she would be 
required to disclose) at a meeting or on the register of members’ interests 
would lead to the member or a person connected with him/her being subject 
to violence or intimidation, he/she may request the Monitoring Officer to 
agree that the interest is a “sensitive interest”. 

 
9.2 If the Monitoring Officer agrees, the member thereby merely has to disclose 

the existence of an interest, rather than the detail of it, at a meeting, and the 
Monitoring Officer can exclude the detail of the interest from the published 
version of the register of members’ interest. 

 
10. DISPENSATIONS  
 
10.1 The provisions on dispensations are significantly changed by the Localism 

Act.  At present, a member who has a prejudicial interest may apply to 
Standards Committee for a dispensation.  In future, a dispensation will be 
able to be granted in the following circumstances.     

 
 10.1.1 That so many members of the decision-making body have DPIs in a 

matter that it would “impede the transaction of the business”.  In 
practice this means that the decision-making body would be 
inquorate as a result; 

 
10.1.2 That, without the dispensation, the representation of different political 

groups on the body transacting the business would be so upset as to 
alter the outcome of any vote on the matter.  This assumes that 
members are predetermined to vote on party lines on the matter, in 
which case, it could be inappropriate to grant a dispensation to 
enable them to participate. 

Page 295



  

 
10.1.3 That the authority considers that the dispensation is in the interests 

of persons living in the authority’s area; 
 
10.1.4 That without a dispensation, the Mayor (or where the Cabinet is 

discharging executive functions on behalf of the Mayor, sufficient 
members of the Cabinet) would be unable to participate on this 
matter.   It will be necessary to make provision in the scheme of 
delegations from the Mayor to cover this, admittedly unlikely, 
eventuality); or  

 
10.1.5 That the authority considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a 

dispensation. 
 

10.2 Any grant of a dispensation must specify how long it lasts for, up to a 
maximum of 4 years. 

 
10.3 The Local Government Act 2000 required that dispensations be granted by 

Standards Committee.  The Localism Act gives discretion for this power to be 
delegated.  If the proposal is for the committee to be advisory the decision 
would need to be delegated to the Monitoring Officer or another committee or 
the Council.  The Standards Committee could have an advisory role.  Such 
requests have not arisen to date in Tower Hamlets.   

 
11. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
11.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
12. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 (LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
12.1 The Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) is the author of this report and the 

legal implications arising from this matter are set out in the body of the 
report.  

 
13. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
13.1 Equalities considerations have been included in the Code. 
 
14. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
14.1 There are no implications arising from this report. 
 
15. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
15.1 There are no implications arising from this report. 
 
16. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
16.1 There are no implications arising from this report. 

Page 296



  

  
17. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
17.1 There are no implications arising from this report. 
 
18. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Draft terms of reference for the Standards Advisory Committee 
Appendix 2 – Draft arrangements for dealing with complaints of breach of the 

Code of Conduct 
Appendix 3 – Draft Code of Conduct 
Appendix 4 – Model Short Form Code 
Appendix 5 – LGA Template Code of Conduct 
 

 
 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  
Brief description of “background papers” Name and telephone number of holder  

and address where open to inspection. 
 

No unpublished background papers have 
been relied upon to a material extent in 
preparing this report  

n/a  

 

Page 297



  

 
 

 

Page 298



  

APPENDIX 1 
 
 

DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR THE STANDARDS ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE 

 
 
1. Standards Advisory Committee 
 
 The Council using the powers under section 102(4) of the Local Government 

Act 1972 have established a Standards Advisory Committee. 
 
 The Standards Advisory Committee shall have the power to create Sub-

Committees in order to discharge its advisory role. 
 
2. Composition 

 
The Standards Advisory Committee shall be comprised of Members of the 
Council, appointed by the Council in accordance with the requirements of 
political proportionality; and up to seven persons who are not Members or 
officers of the Council or any other relevant authority (i.e. Co-opted members.) 
 
The Co-opted member(s) will be entitled to vote at meetings under the 
provisions of S13 (4) (e) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 
 
The Committee shall establish Hearing Sub-Committees in accordance with 
these terms of reference. 
 

3. Appointment of Co-Opted Members 
 
A person may not be appointed as a Co-opted member of the Standards 
Advisory Committee or one of its sub-committees unless the appointment is 
approved by Full Council. 
 
The term of appointment shall be for four years unless otherwise determined 
by Full Council or the Co-optee does not continue to fulfil any required 
conditions as may be determined by the Authority from time to time.  Co-opted 
members may serve as many terms of appointment as the Council considers 
appropriate. 

  
4. Role and Function 
 

The Standards Advisory Committee has the following roles: 
 

4.1 To recommend to the Monitoring Officer whether complaints of a breach of 
the Members Code of Conduct should be referred for investigation by the 
Monitoring Officer or an investigator appointed by the Monitoring Officer 
where the Monitoring Officer considers it appropriate to refer the complaint 
to the Standards Advisory Committee for consideration,  

Page 299



  

4.2 To receive reports from the Monitoring Officer on the numbers of 
complaints of the Code received, the decisions taken by the Monitoring 
Officer (in consultation with the Independent Person) on such complaints 
and investigation outcomes where the investigation determines there was 
no evidence of a failure to comply with the code or where the investigation 
outcome recommends a local resolution. 

4.3 To convene a Hearings Sub-Committee or at least 3 Members of the 
Standards Advisory committee to consider any matter where the 
investigation finds evidence of a failure to comply with the Code and a 
local resolution is not possible or appropriate. 

4.4 To make such recommendations as the Hearings Sub-Committee 
considers appropriate as a result of any matter referred including; 

 

• Reporting its findings to Council for information; 

• Recommending to the member’s Group Leader (or in the case of 
ungrouped members, recommend to Council or to Committees) 
removal from any or all Committees or Sub-Committees of the Council; 

• Recommending to the Mayor removal from the Executive, or from 
particular Portfolio responsibilities; 

• Recommending the Monitoring Officer arrange training for the member; 

• Recommending removal from outside appointments to which he/she 
has been appointed or nominated; 

• Recommending withdrawing facilities provided to the member by the 
Council, such as a computer, website and/or email and Internet 
access;  

• Recommending excluding the member from the Council’s offices or 
other  premises, with the exception of meeting rooms as necessary for 
attending Council, Executive Committee and Sub-Committee meetings; 

• Recommending the Member to contact the Council via specified 
point(s) of contact. 

 
4.5 Promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by Members of the 

Council, co-opted members and church and parent governor 
representatives and where the Committee considers that there may be 
issues of concern recommending that the Monitoring Officer considers and 
reports on the issues raised. 

4.6 Assisting Members of the Council, co-opted members and church and 
parent governor representatives to observe the Council’s Code of Conduct 
for Members; 

 
4.7 Advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the Code of Conduct 

for Members; 
 

4.8 Monitoring the operation of the Code of Conduct for Members; 
 

Page 300



  

4.9 Advising, training or arranging to train Members of the Council, co-opted 
members and church and parent governor representatives on matters 
relating to the Code of Conduct for Members: 
 

4.10 To act as an advisory body in respect of any matters referred to the 
Standards Committee by the LSP or Community Forums in respect of 
probity issues arising out of the codes and protocols applicable to relevant 
members of the LSP and Community Forums as set out in the Community 
Forum handbook and as may be amended from time to time. 

 
4.11 Advice on allegations of Member breaches of the Protocols set out in the 

constitution as maybe referred to the Committee by the Monitoring Officer 
and to make recommendations with regard to such allegations as maybe 
so referred. 
 

4.12 Advising on local protocols for both Officer and Member governance. 
 

4.13 To monitor and review Member and Officer Procedures for Register of 
Interests and declaring gifts and hospitality. 

 
4.14 To receive periodic reports on the Council’s Ethical Governance 

arrangements, on whistle blowing arrangements and complaints. 
 
4.15 As requested by the Monitoring Officer, to advise on any applications for 

dispensations in relation to participation at a meeting by a member with a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  

 
5. Validity of proceedings 

 
A meeting of the Standards Advisory Committee or one of its sub-committees 
shall only be quorate where at least three members of the Committee or sub-
committee are present for its duration.   
 
Part VA of the Local Government Act 1972 applies in relation to meetings of 
the Standards Advisory Committee or its sub-committees as it applies to 
meetings of the Council. 
 

6. Hearing Sub-Committee 
 

Any Hearing Sub-Committee shall comprise a minimum of 3 Members of the 
Standards Advisory Committee at least 1 of whom shall be a co-opted 
Member. 

 
The Hearing Sub-Committee shall consider complaints referred to it that an 
elected or co-opted Member of the Council may have failed to comply with the 
Council’s Code of Conduct for Members or local protocol where the complaint 
has been subject to an investigation arranged by the Monitoring Officer and 
shall make recommendations accordingly.  The Hearings Sub Committee 
shall decide at the outset of the meeting whether it is in the public interest that 

Page 301



  

the Hearing is held in a public or private session in accordance with relevant 
statutory guidance as advised by the Monitoring Officer. 

 
7. Attendance Requirements 
 

At any meeting when any Member of the Committee is unable to attend, the 
meeting shall consider whether they shall condone the non-attendance.  The 
Member concerned shall be notified of the Committee’s decision in connection 
with their non-attendance.   
 
If the Committee has condoned non-attendance for the same Member for at 
least two consecutive meetings then in the event of further consecutive non-
attendance at a meeting the Committee shall (a) if it is an Elected Member 
decide whether it is appropriate for them to inform the relevant group of the 
non-attendance or (b) if it is an independent Member decide if they should 
inform the Council that a vacancy has arisen. 
 
The Committee shall not declare such a vacancy has arisen without first 
giving the absent Member an opportunity to make representations (which may 
be made in writing) as to their non-attendance and any matters they wish the 
Committee to take into account. 
 

8. Procedures 
 

The Committee shall agree a set of procedures to enable it to discharge the 
arrangements under these Terms of Reference. 

 
 
 

Page 302



  

APPENDIX 2 
 

 
DRAFT ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEALING WITH COMPLAINTS OF BREACH OF 
THE CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
 
1 The Monitoring Officer shall be the Proper Officer to receive complaints of 

failure to comply with the Code of Conduct. 
 
2. The Monitoring Officer shall ensure that the Council appoints at least one 

Independent Person and at least one reserve Independent Person. 
 

3. The Monitoring Officer shall, after consultation with the Independent Person, 
determine whether a complaint merits formal investigation and arrange such 
investigation. 

 
4. The Monitoring Officer may refer complaints of failure to comply with the Code 

to the Standards Advisory Committee to recommend whether or not the 
complaint requires investigation where s/he feel that it is inappropriate for 
him/her to take the decision without seeking their advice. 
 

5. The Monitoring Officer will report quarterly (or less frequently if there are no 
complaints to report) to the Standards Advisory Committee on the number 
and nature of complaints received and action taken as a result. 

 
6. If a complaint of failure to comply with the Code is referred for investigation 

the Monitoring Officer shall appoint an investigator or complete the 
investigation him/herself.  Such investigation should be completed within 3 
months of the decision to refer the matter for investigation. 

 
7. The Monitoring Officer may, during the course of the investigation, seek local 

resolution of the matter to the satisfaction of the complainant before the 
investigation is concluded. 

 
8. Where any investigation into a complaint of breach of the Code finds no 

evidence of failure to comply with the Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer 
shall close the matter, provide a copy of the report and findings of the 
investigation which shall be kept confidential to the complainant and to the 
member concerned and to the Standards Advisory Committee for information. 

 
9. Where the investigation finds evidence of a failure to comply with the Code of 

conduct, the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Independent Person, 
may seek local resolution to the satisfaction of the complainant in appropriate 
cases, with a summary report for information to Standards Advisory 
Committee.  Where such local resolution is not appropriate or not possible the 
Monitoring Officer shall report the investigation findings to a Hearings Panel of 
the Standards Advisory Committee for local hearing and recommendations.   
The Hearings Panel may sit in private after advice from the Monitoring Officer. 

 

Page 303



  

10. A Hearings Panel will advise whether or not the Panel considers there has 
been a breach of the Code and may if it considers sanction is appropriate 
having heard the matter:- 
 

• Report its findings to Council for information; 

• Recommend to the member’s Group Leader (or in the case of 
ungrouped members, recommend to Council or to Committees) that 
he/she be removed from any or all Committees or Sub-Committees of 
the Council; 

• Recommend to the Mayor that the member be removed from the 
Executive, or removed from particular Portfolio responsibilities; 

• Recommend the Monitoring Officer to arrange training for the 
member; 

• Recommend removing from all outside appointments to which he/she 
has been appointed or nominated; 

• Recommend withdrawing facilities provided to the member by the 
Council, such as a computer, website and/or email and Internet 
access; or 

• Recommend excluding the member from the Council’s offices or 
other  premises, with the exception of meeting rooms as necessary 
for attending Council, Executive Committee and Sub-Committee 
meetings; 

• Recommend the member to contact the Council via specified point(s) 
of contact; 

• Write to the member with their advice on their conduct. 
 
11. The recommendations of the Hearing Panels shall be published. 
 
12. Should a complainant be dissatisfied with the outcome of their complaint of a 

breach of the Code there is no formal right of appeal. However in the event 
that the Complainant submits additional relevant information the Monitoring 
Officer shall consider and decide if the matter warrants further consideration 
under these arrangements in which case it shall be treated as a fresh 
Complaint. 

 
 

Page 304



  

APPENDIX 3 

 
Draft Code of Conduct for Members 
 
CONTENTS 
 

Section Subject 

1 Introduction 

2 Scope and Interpretation 

3 General Obligations 

4 Interests 

5 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

6 Interests arising in relation to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees 

7 Effect of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on Participation at 
Meetings 

8 The Register of Members’ Interests 

9 Sensitive Information 

 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION   
 
1.1 Tower Hamlets Council has adopted this Code of Conduct for Members in 

accordance with the Localism Act 2011.  The Code will assist the authority in 
providing excellent local government for the people of the borough.  This 
Code of Conduct applies to the Mayor and all Members and Co-Opted 
Members of the authority or any of its committees or sub-committees and it is 
your responsibility to comply with the provisions of this Code. 

 

1.2 Tower Hamlets’ Code of Conduct 

 
(a) Any alleged breach of the provisions of the Code of Conduct by a 

Member or co-opted Member of the authority shall be dealt with in 
accordance with the arrangements set out in Appendix A to this 
Code.  

 

1.3 Additional Codes and Protocols  

 
(a) The Council has approved the following additional Codes and 

Protocols:  
 

• Planning Code of Conduct 

• Licensing Code of Conduct 

• Member/Officer Protocol 

• Employees' Code of Conduct  
 

Page 305



  

This Code should be read in conjunction with these Codes and 
Protocol’s that have been adopted by the Council as supplementary 
guidance for Members and officers.   These Codes and Protocols do 
not form part of the Code of Conduct but Members and officers are 
required to comply with their provisions. 

 
(b) Any failure by a Member to comply with these additional Codes and 

Protocols may be investigated in accordance with the arrangements 
set out at Appendix A to this Code 

 
(c) Any failure by an officer to comply with these additional Codes and 

Protocols will be referred to the relevant Corporate Director and 
where appropriate disciplinary action may be taken. 
  

1.4 General Principles of Conduct 
 

You should read this Code together with the general principles prescribed by 
the Localism Act 2011.  These principles are listed below and they should 
guide all aspects of your conduct as a member of the authority:- 
 

(a)  selflessness; 
(b)  integrity; 
(c)  objectivity; 
(d)  accountability; 
(e)  openness 
(f)  honesty; and 
(g)  leadership. 

 

1.5 Further Guidance  

 
If you require further guidance on the application or interpretation of the 
provisions of this Code of Conduct or any of the additional Codes and 
Protocols approved by the Council you should contact the Monitoring Officer. 
 

2.   SCOPE AND INTERPRETATION  

 
2.1 In this Code ‘meeting’ means any meeting of: 

(a) the authority; 

(b) the executive of the authority (currently known as the cabinet); 

(c) any of the authority's or its cabinet’s committees, sub-
committees, joint committees, joint sub-committees, panels, or 
area committees  
 

2.2 In this Code ‘Member’ includes a co-opted Member and an appointed 
Member.  

Page 306



  

 
2.3 Subject to paragraph 2.4, you must comply with this Code whenever you: 
 

(a) conduct the business of the authority (which, in this Code, 
includes the business of the office to which you are elected or 
appointed); or 

(b) act, claim to act or give the impression you are acting as a 
representative of the authority;  

and references to your official capacity are construed accordingly. 

2.4 Where you act as a representative of the authority: 

(a) on another relevant authority (as defined by section 49(6) of the 
Local Government Act 2000), you must, when acting for that 
other authority, comply with any code of conduct adopted by that 
other authority;  

 
(b)  on any other body, you must, when acting for that other body, 

comply with this Code of Conduct, except and insofar as it 
conflicts with any other lawful obligations to which that other 
body may be subject. 

 
 

3.  GENERAL OBLIGATIONS 
 
3.1 You must treat others with respect.  
 

3.2 You must not: 

(a)  do anything which may cause the authority to breach the Equality Act 
2010 or any other equality enactment; 

(b) bully any person; 

(c) intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or is likely to be: 
 
(i) a complainant, 
 
(ii) a witness, or 
 
(iii) involved in the administration of any investigation or proceedings, 

in relation to an allegation that a Member (including yourself) has failed 
to comply with his or her authority's code of conduct; 

(d) do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the 
impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of, the authority. 

Page 307



  

3.3. You must not: 

(a) prevent another person from gaining access to information to which that 
person is entitled by law. 

(b) disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or information 
acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to be aware, is 
of a confidential nature, except where: 

(i) you have the consent of a person authorised to give it; or 
 
(ii) you are required by law to do so; or 
 
(iii) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining 
professional advice provided that the third party agrees not to 
disclose the information to any other person; or 
 
(iv) the disclosure is— 

(a) reasonable and in the public interest and made in good faith and 
in compliance with the reasonable requirements of the authority. 

3.4 You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be 
regarded as bringing your office or the authority into disrepute. 

3.5 You: 

(a)  must not use or attempt to use your position as a Member improperly 
to confer on or secure for yourself or any other person, an advantage 
or disadvantage;  

(b) must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of 
the authority: 

(i) act in accordance with the authority's reasonable requirements; 
 
(ii) ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political 
purposes (including party political purposes);  

(c)  must have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity 
made under the Local Government Act 1986. 

3.6  When reaching decisions on any matter you must have regard to any relevant 
advice provided to you by: 

(a) the authority's Chief Finance Officer; and/or 
 
(b) the authority's Monitoring Officer, 

where they are acting pursuant to their statutory duties. 

Page 308



  

3.7 You must give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any statutory 
requirements and any reasonable additional requirements imposed by the 
authority. 
 

4. INTERESTS 

4.1 You have an interest in any business of the authority where either: 

(a) it relates to or is likely to affect: 

(i) any body of which you are a member or in a position of general 
control or management and to which you are appointed or nominated 
by the authority; 
 
(ii) any body 

(aa) exercising functions of a public nature; 
 
(bb) directed to charitable purposes; or 
 
(cc) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence 
of public opinion or policy (including any political party or 
trade union), 

of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 
management; 
 
(iii) any employment or business carried on by you; 
 
(iv) any person or body who employs or has appointed you; 
 
(v) any person or body, other than a relevant authority, who has made 
a payment to you in respect of your election or any expenses incurred 
by you in carrying out your duties; 
 
(vi) any person or body who has a place of business or land in the 
authority's area, and in whom you have a beneficial interest in a class 
of securities of that person or body that exceeds the nominal value of 
£25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital (whichever 
is the lower); 
 
(vii) any contract for goods, services or works made between the 
authority and you or a firm in which you are a partner, a company of 
which you are a remunerated director, or a person or body of the 
description specified in paragraph (vi); 
 
(viii) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or 
hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25; 
 

Page 309



  

(ix) any land in the authority's area in which you have a beneficial 
interest; 
 
(x) any land where the landlord is the authority and you are, or a firm in 
which you are a partner, a company of which you are a remunerated 
director, or a person or body of the description specified in paragraph 
(vi) is, the tenant; 
 
(xi) any land in the authority's area for which you have a licence (alone 
or jointly with others) to occupy for 28 days or longer; or 

(b) a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as 
affecting your well-being or financial position or the well-being or 
financial position of a relevant person to a greater extent than the 
majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the 
electoral division or ward, as the case may be, affected by the decision. 

 
4.2 In paragraph 4.1(b), a relevant person is: 

(a)  a member of your family or any person with whom you have a close 
association; or 

(b) any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any 
firm in which they are a partner, or any company of which they are 
directors; 

(c) any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in 
a class of securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 

(d) any body of a type described in paragraph 4.1 (a) (i) or (ii). 
 

5.  DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS 

5.1 A Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) is ……… (to be inserted when the 
relevant regulations have been issued)…… 

NB:  A Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests and also those 
of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living 
as husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they 
were civil partners; if the Member is aware that that other person has the 
interest.    

5.2 Subject to paragraphs 5.3 to 5.6, where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the 
business is considered, you must disclose to that meeting the existence and 
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when 
the interest becomes apparent; and must within 28 days notify the Monitoring 
Officer of the interest for inclusion in the register.  

Page 310



  

5.3 Paragraph 5.2 only applies where you are aware or ought reasonably to be 
aware of the existence of the interest. 

5.4 Where you have an interest but, by virtue of section 9, sensitive information 
relating to it is not registered in the authority's register of members' interests, 
you must indicate to the meeting that you have a personal interest, but need 
not disclose the sensitive information to the meeting. 

5.5 Subject to paragraph 7.1 (b), where you have an interest in any business of 
the authority and you have made an executive decision in relation to that 
business, you must ensure that any written statement of that decision records 
the existence and nature of that interest. 

5.6 In this Code ‘executive decision’ is to be construed in accordance with any 
regulations made by the Secretary of State under section 22 of the Local 
Government Act 2000. 

5.7 You do not have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the 
authority where that business: 

(a)  does not affect your financial position or the financial position of a 
person or body described in section 4 above; 

(b) does not relate to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, 
permission or registration in relation to you or any person or body 
described in section 4 above; or 

(c) relates to the functions of the authority in respect of:  

(i) housing, where you are a tenant of the authority provided that those 
functions do not relate particularly to your tenancy or lease; 
 
(ii) school meals or school transport and travelling expenses, where 
you are a parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or are a 
parent governor of a school, unless it relates particularly to the school 
which the child attends; 
 
(iii) statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social Security Contributions 
and Benefits Act 1992, where you are in receipt of, or are entitled to the 
receipt of, such pay; 
 
(iv) an allowance, payment or indemnity given to Members; 
 
(v) any ceremonial honour given to Members; or 
 

(vi) setting council tax or a precept under the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992. 

(NB:  The above provision to be reviewed when the regulations 
regarding DPIs are issued) 

Page 311



  

 

6.  INTERESTS ARISING IN RELATION TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEES 
 

6.1 You have an interest in any business before an overview and scrutiny 
committee of the authority (or of a sub-committee of such a committee) 
where: 

(a) that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) 
or action taken by the Mayor or the authority's cabinet or another of the 
authority's committees, sub-committees, joint committees or joint sub-
committees : and 

(b)  at the time the decision was made or action was taken, you were the 
Mayor or a member of the cabinet, committee, sub-committee, joint 
committee or joint sub-committee mentioned in paragraph (a) and you 
were present when that decision was made or action was taken. 

 

7. EFFECT OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS ON 
PARTICIPATION AT MEETINGS 
 

7.1 Subject to paragraph 7.2 where you have a DPI in any business of the 
authority: 

(a) you must withdraw from the room or chamber where a meeting 
considering the business is being held: 

(i) in a case where paragraph 7.2 applies, immediately after making 
representations, answering questions or giving evidence; 
 
(ii) in any other case, whenever it becomes apparent that the business 
is being considered at that meeting; 

unless you have obtained a dispensation from the authority's 
Monitoring Officer; 
 

(b) you must not exercise executive functions in relation to that business; 
and 

 
(c) you must not seek improperly to influence a decision about that 

business. 
 

7.2 Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the 
authority, or in relation to business before an Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee of the kind described at section 6 above, you may attend a 
meeting (including a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or of a 
sub-committee of such a committee) but only for the purpose of making 
representations, answering questions or giving evidence relating to the 

Page 312



  

business, provided that the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for 
the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise. 
 

8. THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 
 
8.1 Subject to paragraph 9, you must, within 28 days of: 

(a)  this Code being adopted by the authority; or 
 
(b)  your election or appointment to office (where that is later); or 

(c)   Disclosing a DPI at a meeting of the authority, its executive or any 
committee or sub-committee;  

Notify the Monitoring Officer in writing, for inclusion in the authority's Register 
of Members' Interests, of details of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and 
other interests that fall within any of the categories mentioned in paragraphs 
4.1 (a). 
 

8.2 Subject to paragraph 9, you must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any 
new DPI or change to any interest registered under paragraph 8.1, register 
details of that new personal interest or change by providing written notification 
to the authority's Monitoring Officer.  
 

9. SENSITIVE INFORMATION 
 

9.1 Where you consider that the information relating to any of your personal 
interests is sensitive information, and the authority's Monitoring Officer 
agrees, you need not include that information when registering that interest, 
or, as the case may be, a change to that interest under paragraph 8. 

 
9.2 You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any change of circumstances 

which means that information excluded under paragraph 9.1 is no longer 
sensitive information, notify the authority's Monitoring Officer asking that the 
information be included in the authority's Register of Members' Interests. 

 
9.3 In this Code, ‘sensitive information’ means information whose availability for 

inspection by the public creates, or is likely to create, a serious risk that you or 
a person who lives with you may be subjected to violence or intimidation. 

 
 

Page 313



  

 
 

Page 314



  

APPENDIX 4 
 

Illustrative text for code dealing with the conduct expected of members and 
co-opted members of the authority when acting in that capacity 

 
You are a member or co-opted member of the [name] council and hence you shall 
have regard to the following principles – selflessness, integrity, objectivity, 
accountability, openness, honesty and leadership. 
 
Accordingly, when acting in your capacity as a member or co-opted member -  
 
You must act solely in the public interest and should never improperly confer an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person or act to gain financial or other material 
benefits for yourself, your family, a friend or close associate. 
 
You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to outside 
individuals or organisations that might seek to influence you in the performance of 
your official duties. 
 
When carrying out your public duties you must make all choices, such as making 
public appointments, awarding contracts or recommending individuals for rewards or 
benefits, on merit. 
 
You are accountable for your decisions to the public and you must co-operate fully 
with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office. 
 
You must be as open as possible about your decisions and actions and the 
decisions and actions of your authority and should be prepared to give reasons for 
those decisions and actions. 
 
You must declare any private interests, both pecuniary and non-pecuniary, that 
relate to your public duties and must take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a 
way that protects the public interest, including registering and declaring interests in a 
manner conforming with the procedures set out in the box below. 
 
You must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of your 
authority, ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political purposes 
(including party political purposes) and you must have regard to any applicable Local 
Authority Code of Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986. 
 
You must promote and support high standards of conduct when serving in your 
public post, in particular as characterised by the above requirements, by leadership 
and example. 
 

Registering and declaring pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests 
 
You must, within 28 days of taking office as a member or co-opted member, notify 
your authority’s monitoring officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest as defined by 
regulations made by the Secretary of State, where the pecuniary interest is yours, 

Page 315



  

your spouse’s or civil partner’s, or is the pecuniary interest of somebody with whom 
you are living with as a husband or wife, or as if you were civil partners. 
 
In addition, you must, within 28 days of taking office as a member or co-opted 
member, notify your authority’s monitoring officer of any disclosable pecuniary or 
non-pecuniary interest which your authority has decided should be included in the 
register. 
 
If an interest has not been entered onto the authority’s register, then the member 
must disclose the interest to any meeting of the authority at which they are present, 
where they have a disclosable interest in any matter being considered and where the 
matter is not a ‘sensitive interest’.1 
 
Following any disclosure of an interest not on the authority’s register or the subject of 
pending notification, you must notify the monitoring officer of the interest within 28 
days beginning with the date of disclosure. 
 
Unless dispensation has been granted, you may not participate in any discussion of, 
vote on, or discharge any function related to any matter in which you have a 
pecuniary interest as defined by regulations made by the Secretary of State.  
Additionally, your must observe the restrictions your authority places on your 
involvement in matters where you have a pecuniary or non pecuniary interest as 
defined by your authority. 

 
 
 
 

                                                 
1
 A ‘sensitive interest’ is described in the Localism Act 2011 as a member or co-opted member of an 

authority having an interest, and the nature of the interest being such that the member or co-opted 
member, and the authority’s monitoring officer, consider that disclosure of the details of the interest 
could lead to the member or co-opted member, or a person connected with the member or co-opted 
member, being subject to violence or intimidation. 

Page 316



  

APPENDIX 5 
 

Local Government Association 
 

 Template Code of Conduct  
 

As a member or co-opted member of [X authority] I have a responsibility to represent 
the community and work constructively with our staff and partner organisations to 
secure better social, economic and environmental outcomes for all.  
 
In accordance with the Localism Act provisions, when acting in this capacity I am 
committed to behaving in a manner that is consistent with the following principles to 
achieve best value for our residents and maintain public confidence in this authority.  
 

SELFLESSNESS: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the 
public interest. They should not do so in order to gain financial or other material 
benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends.  
 
INTEGRITY: Holders of public office should not place themselves under any 
financial or other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might 
seek to influence them in the performance of their official duties.  
 
OBJECTIVITY: In carrying out public business, including making public 
appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards 
and benefits, holders of public office should make choices on merit.  
 
ACCOUNTABILITY: Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions 
and actions to the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is 
appropriate to their office.  
 
OPENNESS: Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all 
the decisions and actions that they take. They should give reasons for their 
decisions and restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly 
demands.  
 
HONESTY: Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests 
relating to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in 
a way that protects the public interest.  
 
LEADERSHIP: Holders of public office should promote and support these 
principles by leadership and example.  
 

The Act further provides for registration and disclosure of interests and in [X 
authority] this will be done as follows: [to be completed by individual authorities] 

Page 317



  

As a Member of [X authority], my conduct will in particular address the statutory 
principles of the code of conduct by:  
  

• Championing the needs of residents – the whole community and in a special way 
my constituents, including those who did not vote for me - and putting their 
interests first.  

 

• Dealing with representations or enquiries from residents, members of our 
communities and visitors fairly, appropriately and impartially.  

 

• Not allowing other pressures, including the financial interests of myself or others 
connected to me, to deter me from pursuing constituents' casework, the interests 
of the [county][borough][Authority's area] or the good governance of the authority 
in a proper manner.  

 

• Exercising independent judgement and not compromising my position by placing 
myself under obligations to outside individuals or organisations who might seek to 
influence the way I perform my duties as a member/co-opted member of this 
authority.  

 

• Listening to the interests of all parties, including relevant advice from statutory 
and other professional officers, taking all relevant information into consideration, 
remaining objective and making decisions on merit.  

 

• Being accountable for my decisions and co-operating when scrutinised internally 
and externally, including by local residents.  

 

• Contributing to making this authority’s decision-making processes as open and 
transparent as possible to enable residents to understand the reasoning behind 
those decisions and to be informed when holding me and other members to 
account but restricting access to information when the wider public interest or the 
law requires it  

 

• Behaving in accordance with all our legal obligations, alongside any requirements 
contained within this authority’s policies, protocols and procedures, including on 
the use of the Authority’s resources.  

 

• Valuing my colleagues and staff and engaging with them in an appropriate 
manner and one that underpins the mutual respect between us that is essential to 
good local government.  

 

• Always treating people with respect, including the organisations and public I 
engage with and those I work alongside.  

 

• Providing leadership through behaving in accordance with these principles when 
championing the interests of the community with other organisations as well as 
within this authority.  

Page 318



Report on Executive Decisions Precluded from “Call in” on Grounds of 
Urgency 

 
The Authority’s Constitution (Part 4 - Rules of Procedure, Section 4.5 - 
Overview and Scrutiny Rules of Procedure, Rule 17.1) provides that its call-in 
procedure set out at Rule 16 shall not apply where the decision being taken 
by the Executive is urgent.  
 
A decision is defined as urgent in Rule 17.1 if any delay likely to be caused by 
the call-in process would seriously prejudice the Council’s or the public 
interests.  
 
Rule 17.4 requires the reporting to the next available meeting of the Council of 
decisions taken by the Executive as a matter of urgency together with the 
reasons for urgency. 
 
Accordingly, decisions taken by the Executive where the above mentioned 
Constitutional provision has been invoked since the last ordinary meeting of 
the Council are set out below: 
 
Cabinet 08 February 2012 
Agenda Item 7.1 Thames Tideway Tunnel Update (CAB 067/112)  
 
 
Summary of matters subject of decision 
 

The report before the Cabinet: - 

 

• Provided Cabinet with the opportunity to respond to Thames Water’s 
Phase 2 consultation on the proposal to build the Thames Tideway 
Tunnel.  The report also provides an update on issues addressed in the 
previous report on the proposal presented to Cabinet on 2 November 
2011. 

 

Summary of Cabinet deliberations 
 

The order of business was varied by decision of the Mayor in Cabinet earlier 
in the proceedings in order to allow the Agenda item to be considered 
following a deputation from SaveKEMP campaign group in respect of it (which 
the Mayor had permitted under the constitutional provisions of Council 
Procedure Rule 7.2). 
 
Mr Halsey, Corporate Director Communities Localities and Culture, at the 
request of the Mayor, in introducing the report, summarised the key points 
contained therein. 
 
The Mayor agreed the recommended decisions as set out in the report. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 11.3

Page 319



Decision 
 
1. Agreed that the Mayor was satisfied that this matter was urgent, as 

defined in the Authority’s Constitution (Part 4 Rules of Procedure, 
Section 4.5 Overview and Scrutiny Rules of Procedure, Rule 17 ‘Call 
In’ and Urgency, sub paragraph 17.1, as any delay to implementation 
of all the decisions above would seriously prejudice the Authority’s and 
the Public’s interest; and therefore this matter should not be subject to 
‘Call In’; 

 
2. That it be noted that Thames Water had failed to provide sufficient 

information to allow a fully informed response to consultation to be 
provided; 

 
3. That the Authority’s concern at the impact of Thames Water’s preferred 

scheme for a connection to the proposed tunnel in the foreshore of 
King Edward Memorial Park and its support for an alternative scheme 
that provides for the main connection in the Heckford Street Industrial 
Estate, with just a connection to the North East Storm Relief Sewer in 
King Edward Memorial Park, be confirmed; 

 
4. That the draft version of the response to Thames Water based on 

Decisions 2 and 3 above, as set out in Appendix 1 to the report (CAB 
067/112), be approved; and that the Corporate Director Communities 
Localities and Culture be authorised to determine the final content of 
the response and to submit this to Thames Water by the deadline for 
response of 10 February 2012 

 
Reason for Urgency 

The Thames Water’s Phase 2 consultation closed on 10 February 2012.  
Members, if so minded, could determine not to respond to the Phase 2 public 
consultation.  However, officers did not recommend this course of action as 
the promoters of this London wide project and local residents may infer that 
the Council has no interest in influencing the final design solution. 
Disengagement for constructive dialogue could result in Thames Water 
imposing a solution on the borough.  Therefore it was considered to be in both 
the Council’s and the public interest to make a reasoned response to the 
consultation; that any delay to implementation of all the decisions above 
would seriously prejudice the Authority’s and the Public’s interest; and 
therefore this matter should not be subject to ‘Call In’. 
 

Page 320



 

  
LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 

 
COUNCIL MEETING 

 
WEDNESDAY 16th MAY 2012 

 
MOTIONS SUBMITTED BY 

MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 
 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE HEAD, 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
1. Fifteen motions have been submitted by Members of the Council under Council 

Procedure Rule 13 for debate at the Council meeting on Wednesday 16th May 
2012. 

 
2. In accordance with the protocol agreed by the Council on 21st May 2008, the 

order in which the motions are listed is by turns, one from each group, continuing 
in rotation until all motions submitted are included.  The rotation starts with any 
group(s) not reached at the previous meeting. 

 
3. Motions must be about matters for which the Council has a responsibility or 

which affect the Borough.  A motion may not be moved which is substantially the 
same as a motion which has been put at a meeting of the Council in the previous 
six months; or which proposes that a decision of the Council taken in the 
previous six months be rescinded; unless notice of the motion is given signed by 
at least twenty Members.  

 
4. There is no specific duration set for this agenda item and consideration of the 

attached motions may continue until the time limit for the meeting is reached.  
The guillotine procedure at Council Procedure Rule 9.2 does not apply to 
motions on notice and any of the attached motions which have not been put to 
the vote when the time limit for the meeting is reached will be deemed to have 
fallen.  A motion which is not put to the vote at the current meeting may be 
resubmitted for the next meeting but is not automatically carried forward.   

  
 
MOTIONS 
 
Set out overleaf are the motions that have been submitted. 
 

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 321



12.1 Licensing and anti-social behaviour on and around Brick Lane  
 
Proposer: Councillor Helal Abbas  
Seconder: Councillor Bill Turner 
 
This Council notes:  
 

• The complaints by many residents who live around Spitalfields that the number of 
late night alcohol licences on and around Brick Lane is resulting in an unacceptable 
level of alcohol-related crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour locally, including 
late night noise, urination and vomiting on doorsteps, and violence.  

 

• The request by police that the Council, as the licensing authority, adopt a saturation 
policy for the Brick Lane area 

 

• That a draft saturation policy for the Brick Lane area was taken to the Licensing 
Committee in September 2011, but has progressed no further, awaiting the 
publication of guidance on Cumulate Impact Policies by the government 

 

• That other measures, as well as the proposed saturation policy, could benefit local 
residents.  

 
This Council resolves:  
 

• To support a Five Point Plan to tackle the problem that includes:  
 

o A Saturation Policy for the Brick Lane area being brought forward for the 
consideration of the Licensing Committee as soon as possible after 
publication of the awaited government guidance 

 
o The adoption of Challenge 25 as a mandatory condition on all TH licences to 

the statement of licensing policy  
 

o Setting up a "Brick Lane Alcohol Partnership" including the trade, police, 
council and voluntary or community groups to better co-ordinate action, share 
information and build working relationships between relevant stakeholders (to 
be contained within existing budgets)  

 
o Giving police powers to implement section 30 dispersal orders from 10pm to 

5am Thursday – Saturday in the immediate vicinity of Brick Lane, allowing 
them limited powers to move groups on where they have reasonable grounds  

 
o Consideration of introducing pop-up/temporary urinals, as used in 

Westminster, on Friday and Saturday nights, and consulting on a bye-law to 
increase the fine for public urination to level 2 on the Standard Scale (£500).  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 322



12.2 Troubled Families 
 
Proposer:  Councillor Zara Davis 
Seconder:  Councillor David Snowdon 
 
This Council Notes: 
 

• The Coalition Government plans to deal with Troubled Families is a much 
welcomed step in the right direction. 

 

• Currently the government spends £9 billion a year on Troubled Families, with 
only £1 billion a year going to turning Troubled Families around. 

 

• Each Troubled Family costs £75,000 a year. 
 

• The London Borough of Tower Hamlets has 1,120 Troubled Families, the highest 
of any London Borough. 

 

• This means £84 million is spent each year on Troubled Families in the London 
Borough of Tower Hamlets. 

 
This Council Believes: 

 

• The creation of a new Troubled Families team at the Department for 
Communities and Local Government will help to solve this problem. 

 
This Council Resolves: 
 

• To support the setting up of a national network of Troubled Families ‘Trouble 
Shooters’. 

 

• To work with the Coalition government on this plan and to start to turn around 
the lives of London Borough of Tower Hamlets residents who live in Troubled 
Families. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 323



12.3 Getting rid of postal voting on demand 
 
Proposer: Councillor Fozol Miah 
Seconder: Councillor Harun Miah 
 
This Council notes: 

1) Judge Richard Mawrey, who presided over the trial of Labour Party members and 
supporters in Birmingham in 2005 who had used the postal voting on demand system to 
defraud the elections there and who described the abuse of the postal voting system on 
demand as worse than a banana republic, has recently stated that successive 
governments have done almost nothing to address the multiple flaws in the system and 
that the system remains wide open to fraud 

2) the Respect Party and some principled individuals from other parties have 
campaigned against the postal voting on demand system since at least 2004 whilst the 
Labour Party in Tower Hamlets and elsewhere has defended the postal voting on 
demand system 

3) recently six Tower Hamlets Labour councillors wrote to the Electoral Commission 
claiming irregularities in postal voting in the by-elections in Spitalfields and Banglatown 
and Weavers wards 

4) complaints about postal voting abuses made by other parties, including Respect, 
have in the past been fobbed off by the Electoral Commission 

5) by contrast the Electoral Commission has called in the police to investigate the 
allegations made by these six councillors 

6) the prime minister, responding to a Conservative MP's attack on the postal voting on 
demand system, claimed the priority should not be getting rid of postal voting on 
demand but individual voter registration 

7) individual voter registration will mean many poorer and less educated voters will fall 
off the register, thus further undermining British democracy, unless massive resources 
are put into individual voter registration which is very unlikely 
 
This Council believes that: 

1) the complaints made by the six Labour councillors are politically motivated and utterly 
hypocritical, given Labour's record in Tower Hamlets and elsewhere 

2) the prime minister is also prioritising individual voter registration over getting rid of 
postal voting on demand for political reasons in that individual voter registration will 
benefit the Tory party by removing poorer and less educated voters from the register 

3) the Electoral Commission has proved ineffective and biased in its attitude towards 
legitimate criticisms of the postal voting on demand system 

4) the priority should be to get rid of the postal voting on demand system lock, stock and 
barrel and the integrity of British elections cannot be restored until this is done 

5) the priority should also be to establish a proper system of proportional representation 
in all British elections 
 
 
 
 

Page 324



12.4 Open Spaces Strategy 
 
Proposer: Councillor Carlo Gibbs 
Seconder:  Councillor Amy Whitelock 
 
This Council notes: 
 
o The decision of Council on 8 December 2010 that put limits on the use of Victoria 
Park for commercial events, whilst still recognising that some events should still be 
allowed 
 
o The decision of Council on 21 December 2011 that Sir John McDougal Gardens, 
Millwall Park and Island Gardens should not be made available for commercial events. 
 
This Council further notes: 
 
o The decision of the Mayor to ignore the decision of Council o The Mayor's decision to 
cancel the free community event Paradise Gardens and the popular annual fireworks 
event in Victoria Park o That the Open Spaces Strategy is reserved to Full Council and 
does not currently contain a section on Commercial Events in the borough's Parks 
 
This Council resolves: 
 
o To amend the Open Spaces Strategy to include a section on Commercial Events in 
parks, to reflect the prior decisions of Council, that: 
 
o In regards to Victoria Park 
- Limits the number of large commercial music events in the park to six days each year; 
- Prevents the park being used for commercial events on consecutive weekends 
throughout the summer, with at least two weekends free after a weekend of events; 
- Sets a closing time for events to  10pm; 
- Sets a reduced noise levels for commercial events. 
 
o In regards to Sir John McDougal Gardens, Millwall Park and Island Gardens 
- prevents the holding of commercial events. 
 
o In regards to the gardens at Trinity Square: 
- allow the use for weddings but prevent the holding of other commercial events. 
 
o To exclude the Live Site events in Victoria Park in 2012 from the above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 325



12.5 History Teaching And The English Baccalaureate 
 
Proposer:  Councillor David Snowdon 
Seconder: Councillor Peter Golds 
  
This Council notes: 
 

• Only 11.7% of Tower Hamlets school children passes GCSE History at grades A*-C. 
This is the fifth lowest number in England, ahead of only Knowsley, Newham, 
Kingston-Upon-Hull and Manchester.  

 

• Over three times more school children achieve A*-C GCSE History in the top 
performing council in the country, Hammersmith and Fulham. 

 

• That the new gold standard of English secondary education, the English 
Baccalaureate, requires school children to have A*-C passes in Maths, English, two 
sciences, a modern language and history or geography. Only 5.9% of children 
achieved this, in part due to the low number of history GCSEs entered. 

 

• Tower Hamlets has the ninth lowest number of children passing A-Level History in 
England. 

 
This Council believes: 
 

• That the study of history allows our school children to develop high level analytical 
skills, and helps them to more fully appreciate the world around them. This in turn 
promotes civic and community engagement. 

 

• That in order to increase the number of Tower Hamlets school children achieving the 
English-Baccalaureate we need to increase the provision of History teaching in our 
schools. Not achieving this standard threatens to limit the educational opportunities 
available to our school children. 

 
This Council resolves: 
 

• To instruct officers to write to all head teachers of schools within the Borough to 
make them aware of the Council’s support for a higher provision of History teaching. 

 

• To instruct officers to contact schools to see what barriers exist to a higher level of 
provision of history teaching, and report back to full council within six months. 

 

• To ask the Mayor to champion the case of history teaching in Tower Hamlets, and 
investigate what he can do to promote this objective 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 326



12.6 Missiles at the Olympics 
 
Proposer: Councillor Harun Miah 
Seconder: Councillor Fozol Miah 
 
This Council notes 
 
1) the exceptional security measures being taken around the Olympic games 
 
2) the stationing of missiles on residential blocks in East London 
 
3) the deployment of RAF typhoon military aircraft at Northolt, the first time Northolt has 
been used for this purpose since World War 2. 
 
4) the huge inconvenience the Olympic games will cause residents of Tower Hamlets 
 
5) the limited access to the Olympic games that most Tower Hamlets residents will have 
 
6) the limited job opportunities made available to local residents by the Olympic games 
 
7) the very limited permanent gains that are being made from the Olympic games 
 
8) the enormous cost of the Olympic games, which has increased because of the 
exceptional security measures 
 
This Council believes 
 
1) the gains from the Olympic games originally planned by the former Mayor of London 
Ken Livingstone have been squandered under Boris Johnson 
 
2) the security measures, and in particular the stationing of missiles on residential 
blocks in residential areas, have created unnecessary fear in the hearts and minds of 
local residents 
 
3) the threat from terrorist attack in London and at the Olympic games has been 
increased by the involvement of British armed forces in illegal, unjustified and hugely 
costly wars in terms of lives lost and money spent in Iraq and Afghanistan 
 
4) the best way to reduce the risk of terrorist attack at the Olympic games would be to 
withdraw our troops from the unwinnable and futile war in Afghanistan immediately and 
to acknowledge that the war on Iraq was both illegal and entirely unjustified 
 
5) the exceptional security measures that have been taken to station military aircraft at 
Northolt and missiles on residential blocks in East London are unnecessarily causing 
fear and alarm amongst East London residents and should be stood down 
 
6) the Mayor of Tower Hamlets should do all in his power to minimise inconvenience 
from the Olympic games for the residents of Tower Hamlets and to boost access, job 
opportunities and lasting gains from the Olympic games 
 
 

Page 327



12.7 Youth Services 
 
Proposer:   Councillor Rachael Saunders 
Seconder: Councillor Helal Uddin 
 
This Council notes: 

• That the executive Mayor has decided to take the Council's youth service contracts 
in house. 

• That the reasons given for this decision included assertions that money would be 
saved if the council staff rather than the third sector organisations and schools 
managed the provider contracts.  

• That no evidence has been given for this, and no firm numbers given. 

• That the decision is not in line with the principles set out in the current Tower 
Hamlets Children and Young People’s Plan.   

• That the current providers add significant value to the contracts they hold through 
supporting services within their own HR and IT and through running additional youth 
services with their own resources.  

• That youth services across Tower Hamlets have improved significantly since they 
were first contracted out, through effective partnership working.  
 

This Council believes: 

• That in tough times it is right to work with partners to seek savings and efficiencies, 
and wrong to undermine relationships and act unilaterally. 

• That the best youth services support educational attainment and equip our young 
people to lead their communities. Youth services are there to support excellence not 
just tackle ASB.  

• That resources should reflect need, with the greatest resources for areas with the 
greatest youth population.  

• That effective  hyper local partnerships have been developed between youth 
services, schools, health services, employers and others through locally based 
management of services.   

• That currently our young people are able to shape and lead their own services. This 
must be strengthened, not weakened, in any future model.  

• That the targets that the contractors currently report against should continue to be 
publicly reported against if the service is taken in house.  

 
This Council resolves: 

• To oppose bringing the youth service in house at this point. 

• To call on the Mayor to:- 
o Work with providers to identify efficiencies in partnership; and 
o Run a full consultation with providers and young people before decisions 

about the future of the youth service are made.  
 

 

Page 328



12.8 Social Landlords 
 
Proposer: Councillor Gloria Thienel 
Seconder: Councillor Peter Golds 
 
This Council Notes: 
 

• That the Minister for Housing and Local Government has praised social landlords 
such as Viridian and Home Group for their plans to publish expenditure over £500. 
 

• That the Housing Minister calls on social landlords to follow Viridian and Home 
Group’s example and become more transparent. 

 

• That the government is committed to a consultation with social landlords on whether 
to expand the scope of the Freedom of Information Act to apply to them.  

 
This Council Believes: 
 

• That the example shown by Viridian and Home Group is a step in the right direction 
and all social landlords should consider following their lead. 

 

• That the government should extend the Freedom of Information Act to apply to 
social landlords and all Housing Associations; so they will publish spending over 
£500.  

 
This Council Resolves: 
 

• To support the Government in its consultation. 
 

• To encourage and support Housing Associations/Social landlords in the London 
Borough of Tower Hamlets to publish all spending over £500. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 329



12.9 Federation of Tenants and Residents Association: 
 
Proposer:  Councillor Rabina Khan   
Seconder:  Councillor Shahed Ali 
 
This Council notes: 
 
• That Tower Hamlets Federation of Tenants and Residents Associations (TRAs) 

has produced a Residents Charter  
 
• That the Residents Charter sets out some basic standards which residents 

believe that social landlords in the borough should adopt 
 
This Council welcomes: 
 
• The fact that TRAs are working together to give residents a voice in the important 

task of securing improvements in service standards of social landlords. 
 
This Council believes: 
 
• That all social landlords should sign up to the Residents Charter 
 
This Council resolves: 
 
• To endorse the Residents Charter which the Federation has produced 
 
• To request the Mayor to ask social landlords in the borough to commit to meeting 

the standards set out in the Charter. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 330



12.10 Queen’s Diamond Jubilee 
 
Proposer: Councillor David Snowdon 
Seconder: Councillor Peter Golds 
 
This Council Notes: 
 

• That the Queen is to celebrate her Diamond Jubilee this year, marking 60 years of 
the Queen’s reign. 

 

• The Queen came to the throne in 1952 and her coronation took place in 1953. The 
Queen celebrated her Silver Jubilee in 1977 and her Golden Jubilee in 2002. 

 

• The Queen is the second longest serving Monarch of the United Kingdom, and the 
longest serving Monarch of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern 
Ireland. 

 

• Currently the Queen is the second longest serving Monarch in the world. 
 
This Council Believes:  
 

• The Queen’s 60 years since her succession, ought to be commemorated. 
 

• That the Monarchy under the Queen’s stewardship is still an integral part of our 
national life today as it was 60 years ago. 

 
This Council Resolves: 
 

• To request the Speaker of the Council to send a congratulatory letter to the Queen, 
on behalf of all of the Councillors and the Council.  
 

• To record our gratitude to the Queen for her 60 years of service and to His Royal 
Highness Prince Phillip, The Duke of Edinburgh, for his service to Her Majesty the 
Queen and the country.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 331



12.11 Welfare Reform Changes 
 
Proposer:  Councillor Oliur Rahman 
Seconder:  Councillor Rabina Khan  
 
This Council notes that: 
 
• On Tuesday 24th April the BBC and other news outlets reported that Newham 

Council was investigating the possibility of housing homeless residents outside 
the borough, as after housing benefit reforms residents could not afford to live in 
the borough.  

 
• In Tower Hamlets, the changes to Local Housing Allowance (LHA) means that 

77% of LHA recipients will see a reduction in income.  
 
• Despite Grant Shapp’s comments that there is a National Discretionary Housing 

Payments Fund of £91m, Tower Hamlets has received only £490,000. 
 
• Residents in the borough are now receiving collectively £3.2m less than before 

April 2011 in benefits. 
 
• On 28th February 2012 The Mayor and Key Partners in Tower Hamlets signed a 

Welfare Reform Pledge, which committed the Council and key partners to limiting 
the impact of Central Government’s reforms on Tower Hamlets’ Residents.   

 
This Council believes that: 
 
• Grant Shapps MP’s defence of Housing Benefit Reforms was disingenuous and 

ignored the unique circumstances faced by inner London boroughs.  
 
• These Central Government reforms will have a disproportionate impact on Tower 

Hamlet’s residents, as it limits the level of housing benefits to large families and 
in areas of high rents.  

 
• This is a deliberate attempt by the coalition government at social engineering. 
 
• Inner London should remain somewhere people on all incomes can live.  
 
This Council resolves: 
 
• To continue to work with all partners to develop solutions which will help 

residents to stay in the borough.  
 
• To support the lobby for a larger Discretionary Housing Payments Fund for 

London Boroughs.   
 
• To support the lobby for a living rent.  
 
• To offer support and guidance to any families who find themselves in financial 

difficulties due to these changes. 
 

Page 332



12.12 Abuse of elderly and vulnerable patients motion 
 
Proposer:  Councillor Gulam Robbani 
Seconder:  Councillor Abdul Asad 
 
This Council notes that:  
 
• The BBC’s Panorama programme on the 23rd of April exposed shocking abuse 

of elderly and vulnerable patients at a London Care Home. 
 
• This is one of a series of exposures of systematic abuse in care homes.  
 
• Tower Hamlets provides high quality care provision for many elderly and 

vulnerable residents, including at the award winning Sonali Gardens.    
 
This Council believes that: 
 
• The care of elderly and vulnerable residents is one of the most important 

responsibilities of local government.  
 
• All residents of care homes have the right to the highest quality of care, as well 

as the right to live in dignity and be treated with respect. 
 
This Council resolves: 
 
• To condemn all forms of abuse in care homes. 
 
• To call on the Government to improve the national inspection of Care Homes.  
 
• To improve our own systems of reporting and investigating abuse to ensure that 

all vulnerable people in our care receive the highest standards of care.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 333



12.13 Recession 
 
Proposer:  Councillor Rania Khan 
Seconder:  Councillor Shafiqul Haque 
 
This Council notes: 
 
1. Tory driven austerity measures are not working; spending cuts have shrunken the 
economy, strangled growth and driven Britain into a double dip recession. Unlike the 
United States, UK economic output has yet to return to the levels before the recession 
began four years ago.  
 
2. This economic picture is set to worsen; national debt is expected to continue rising, 
from 67.3% of GDP this year, to peak at 76.3% of GDP in 2014/15, contrary to George 
Osborne's claims that his cuts would reduce the debt.  
 
3. With over 96% of the government's cuts have yet to be implement, Noble prize 
winning economist Paul Krugman warns that Britain faces "a death spiral of self 
defeating austerity" unless this government is forced to change track.   
 
4. The human cost of government austerity is immense. The impact on women is 
particularly hash. The Womens' Budget Group <http://www.wbg.org.uk/AboutUs.htm>, a 
group of independent experts who have been working with the Treasury to analyse the 
effect of economic policies on women, estimate that: 
 
* Lone parents and single pensioners - most of whom are women - will suffer the 

greatest reduction in their living standards due to public service cuts.  
 
* The cuts will lead to hundreds of thousands of women losing their job. 53% of the 

jobs in the public sector services that have not been protected from the cuts are 
held by women. The pay and conditions of all public sectors workers, 65% of 
whom are women, are likely to deteriorate.  

 
* Cuts in welfare spending fall disproportionately on women's finances. Child 

benefit is paid almost 100% to women; while 53% of housing benefit claimants 
are single women. Both benefits have been cut significantly in real terms and 
eligibility has been tightened.  

 
This Council agrees: 
 
1. There are economic alternatives that will cut the deficit while not endangering growth 
and fermenting inequality and social division. The government should look across the 
Atlantic and follow President Obama's alternative of Keynesian-style state intervention 
which has reduced unemployment and brought growth back to the USA. 
 
2. To support calls for a Plan B for the economy, outlined by over one hundred leading 
economists last year (Guardian Saturday 29 October 2011) which would include 
'reversing cuts to protect jobs in the public sector, directing quantitative easing to a 
green new deal to create thousands of new jobs, increasing benefits to put money into 
the pockets of those on lower and middle incomes and thus increase aggregate 
demand. This could in part be paid for by the introduction of a financial transactions tax.'  

Page 334



 
3. To support the call for 'Robin Hood' taxes on the financial sector. A tiny tax on short-
term, casino-style trading, which employs a small number of highly paid bankers in 
London, not the tens of thousands employed in high street financial services, would 
raise an estimated £20 billion. Research by the Institute for Public Policy Research 
(IPPR) shows that the sector can comfortably afford paying another £20 billion in tax. 
 
4. That in light of the fact that the financial sector is responsible for the current 
economic crisis, and that they have received huge handouts from the public purse, the 
bankers have a moral responsibility to repay their debt to the British people. 
 
5. That the priority for this council will be to follow policies that seek to protect residents, 
and their quality of life, from the impact recession by maintaining frontline services, 
protecting lower waged staff, reducing housing waiting lists and overcrowding by 
meeting the Mayor's affordable homes pledge, reducing energy bills via the setting up of 
new borough-wide energy co-op, and campaigning for a programme of public 
investment to create jobs and improve infrastructure.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 335



12.14 Time to Change campaign 
 
Proposer:  Councillor Abdul Asad 
Seconder:  Councillor Ohid Ahmed 
  
This Council notes: 
 
1. Tower Hamlets Council has partnered with MIND and Rethink to become the first 
council in the country to support the current phase of their Time to Change campaign. 
 
2. The purpose of the campaign is to promote greater awareness about mental illness 
and tackle the stigma surrounding it. 
 
3. An estimated 1 in 4 people will suffer from mental health issues at some stage in their 
lives. As the recession worsens more people are suffering from stress, anxiety and 
depression as redundancies, job insecurity and pay cuts soar. 
 
4. The negative impact of mental illness becomes all the more severe when those 
suffering from it also have to deal with others peoples negative reactions. 
 
This Council agrees: 
 
1. To endorse the Time to Change campaign to promote greater awareness about 
mental health, and to challenge the stigma around mental illness in the borough. 
 
2. To combat stigma in the workplace using Time to Challenge resources. These are 
tailored resources for line managers <http://www.time-to-change.org.uk/need-
support/employer>  and employees <http://www.time-to-change.org.uk/need-
support/support-workplace> , with advice on issues such as making reasonable 
adjustments, disclosure, and creating a mentally healthy workplace.  
 
3. To incorporate mental health training into induction or training programmes. 
 
4. To promote the Time to Change pledge; individuals and organisations can pledge to 
help end mental health prejudice, by signing up online <http://www.time-to-
change.org.uk/timetotalk/pledge>  or on our pledge postcards <http://www.time-to-
change.org.uk/shop/pledge-posters-postcards> .   
 
5. To review policies and procedures to ensure the council sets a standard for others in 
challenging discrimination and promoting wellbeing at work. 
 
6. To encourage a culture of openness. Enabling people to speak out about their own 
experiences of mental health problems help to empower others to feel able to do the 
same. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 336



12.15 Hate Crime/Islamophobia  
 
Proposer:  Councillor Alibor Choudhury 
Seconder:  Councillor Ohid Ahmed 
 
This Council notes: 
 
• The Evening Standard and other right wing blog’s negative reporting and 

portrayal of Tower Hamlets is having detrimental effect on the reputation of our 
diverse and unique borough 

 
• The newspaper’s continued insinuation of an extremist network in Tower 

Hamlets is incorrect 
 
• That Tower Hamlets has a good record of community cohesion underpinned by 

the ‘No Place for Hate Campaign’ and the vision of One Tower Hamlets 
 
• That the recent reports from the Standard and other sections of the right wing 

media targeting Tower Hamlets and its Muslim residents borders on 
Islamophobia and undermines the work of ‘No Place for Hate Campaign’ in 
Tower Hamlets 

 
• That all hate crimes are an extreme display of prejudice and discrimination of a 

person, group or community due to their race, gender, ethnicity, age, sexual 
orientation or faith 

 
• That all hate crimes are abhorrent and must not go unchallenged. 
 
This Council believes 
  
• That the Evening Standard and other right wing blog’s portrayal of the Tower 

Hamlets is misleading and not balanced 
 
• All residents irrespective of race, gender, ethnicity, age, sexual orientation and 

faith have the right to live in dignity and be treated with respect without vilification 
by the media  

 
• All forms of hate crimes including faith hate are abhorrent and must be opposed 

wherever they occur 
 
• Islamophobia is a specific form of hate crime related to negative assumptions 

about people of the Muslim faith 
 
This Council resolves: 
 
• To condemn the Evening Standard and right wing blog’s for the persistent 

negative reporting and portrayal of this borough and its people 
 
• To condemn members of this council who resort to feeding right wing journalists 

information to damage the reputation of this borough and its people 
 

Page 337



• That we cannot allow right wing media prejudice to denigrate the Bangladeshi 
and Muslim community from our borough 

 
• That all residents lose from the right wing media's negative portrayal of Tower 

Hamlets, especially young people applying to university and residents applying 
for jobs 

 
• That these communities are an important part of Tower Hamlets and they must 

be supported 
 
• To call on the government formally to recognise anti Muslim hate as 

Islamophobia. 

Page 338


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 MINUTES
	Minutes Council 220212 Budget

	5 TO RECEIVE PETITIONS
	6 TO RECEIVE WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
	8 TO RECEIVE WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL
	9.1 Local Development Framework (LDF):  Managing Development - Development Plan Document and Fish Island Area Action Plan submission to the Secretary of State for Independent Examination
	9.2 Enterprise Strategy
	Item 9.2 Enterprise Strategy - report to Cabinet
	Item 9.2 Enterprise Strategy - Strategy document
	Item 9.2 Enterprise Strategy - Action Plan
	Item 9.2 Enterprise Strategy - Consultation report
	Enterprise Item 9.2 - Enterprise Strategy EQIA

	9.3 Community Safety Plan 2012/13
	item 9.3 - Community Safety Plan report to Cabinet
	item 9.3 - Community Safety Plan appendices

	9.4 Pay Policy
	item 9.4 - Appendix - Pay Policy statement

	11.1 Scheme of Members' Allowances 2012/13
	11.2 The Amended Standards Regime
	11.3 Report on Executive Decisions precluded from 'Call-in' on grounds of urgency
	12 TO CONSIDER MOTIONS SUBMITTED BY MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL

